## NEWFOUNDLAND AND LABRADOR BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

120 Torbay Road, P.O. Box 21040, St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador, Canada, A1A 5B2

### Hearing Transcript

# Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro 2017 General Rate Application

July 17, 2018

#### The Board:

Darlene Whalen, Chair and CEO Dwanda Newman, Vice-Chair James Oxford, Commissioner

#### Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro:

Geoffrey Young, Counsel Alex Templeton, Counsel

#### **Newfoundland Power Inc.:**

Gerard Hayes, Counsel Liam O'Brien, Counsel

#### **Consumer Advocate:**

Stephen Fitzgerald, Counsel

#### **Island Industrial Customers:**

Paul Coxworthy, Counsel Dean Porter, Counsel

#### **Labrador Interconnected Group\*:**

Senwung Luk, Counsel

#### **Iron Ore Company of Canada\*:**

Benoit Pepin, Counsel

#### **Board Counsel/Staff:**

Jacqueline Glynn, Board Counsel Maureen Greene, Q.C., Hearing Counsel Sara Kean, Assistant Board Secretary

#### Witness/Witnesses:

Ms. Jennifer Williams, Vice-President of Production, Hydro
Mr. Ron LeBlanc, Vice-President of Transmission, Distribution & the NLSO, Hydro
Mr. Terry Gardiner, Vice-President of

Engineering Services, Hydro

<sup>\*</sup>Note – These two parties will not be in attendance every day

Page 1   1,900 a.m.  2   MS. GIBBONS   2   1   directly to talk about the off island purchases now for the test years. I wonder if we could bring up the additional cost to service information from March 22nd, Page 7, and I'm looking for Table 5. Here we go. So these are the supply sources for the recapture energy and marritime link purchases; and these are all built in, these purchases are built into the 2018/2019 test year. The recapture energy, what it is of how the purchases get made, how is it off the interior of how the purchases get made, how is it off that Naloc Tiengy Marketing energes Hydro for their services.	July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
2 MS. GIBBONS: 3 Q. We're back on the record. Sorry for the 4 delay. 5 CILAIR: 6 Q. Thank you so much. All right, to you, Mr. 7 O'Brien. 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair, When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Finergy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing edarges Hydro for for their services? 13 One of the question I had regarding that, and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for for their services? 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services? 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 11 understake to do a purchase for us, we will 11 on that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 24 Correct. 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. Theejeas may be intended the new firm contracted supply will provide dening two years or the pen		Page 1		Page 3
3 Q. We're back on the record. Sorry for the delay. 4 delay. 5 CHAIR: 6 Q. Thank you so much. All right, to you, Mr. 7 O'Brien. 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off possertedy, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for for their services. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 20 their services. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. Theire we go so these are the supply sources for the recommendance to the sample caregy. Marketing and approach to power purchases, and these are all built in, these purchases, and the sampling hest assumptions went into these projections here of how the purchases get made, how is it was assumptions went into these projections here of their services. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Okay.  10 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 20197 21 developing a review process one by Nalcor 22 means that the purchases done by Nalcor 23 means that the purchases done by Nalcor 24 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 25 means the purchase for the hearing yesterday that there is additional one of the responses to the consumer advocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 11 that would happen, is that something that's in the works or ha	1	(9:00 a.m.)	1	directly to talk about the off island
3 Q. We're back on the record. Sorry for the delay. 4 delay. 5 CHAIR: 6 Q. Thank you so much. All right, to you, Mr. 7 O'Brien. 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro 17 for their services. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 A. There's nothing in the test year for more firm energy this coming winter, and that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 11 Ms. Would have been another part of the advocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when the 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 mot approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 16 departs. 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 A. Correct. 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. There's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 WILLIAMS: 26 WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WIL	2	MS. GIBBONS:	2	purchases now for the test years. I wonder
delay.  5 CHAIR:  6 Q. Thank you so much. All right, to you, Mr.  7 O'Brien.  8 MR. O'BRIEN:  9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases.  13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is 11 to that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro 17 for their services?  18 MS. WILLIAMS:  19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services.  20 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019?  25 MS. WILLIAMS:  10 A. There's nothing in the test year for that.  21 MR. O'BRIEN:  22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019?  25 MS. WILLIAMS:  1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that.  2 MR. O'BRIEN:  2 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed?  24 MS. WILLIAMS:  3 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they of the recapture can be advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 10 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch.  3 Q. All right, thanks:  3 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they of dispatch.  4 MR. O'BRIEN:  3 Q. Shall right, thanks; and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch.  3 Q. All right, thanks:  4 A. There's nothing after that?  5 D. Thank would happen, is that		O. We're back on the record. Sorry for the		
5 CHAIR: 6 Q. Thank you so much. All right, to you, Mr. 7 O'Brien. 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 111 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 112 Marketing and approach to power purchases! 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 144 and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it 166 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 20 Co Nay, is there anything built into the 18 Hydro for 2018 or 2019? 2 Q. O'kay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 2 MS. WILLIAMS: 1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how lides on one of the responses to the consumer advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 1 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 4 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 16 fabragatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 4 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 16 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Os that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. There's nothing after that? 27 A. Correct. 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 A. Correct. 20 All right, 1 just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just terms of those types of purchases; just terms of those types of purchases; just terms of those types of purchases? 29 All right, 1 just want to turn, I guess, in terms		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
6 Q. Thank you so much. All right, to you, Mr. 7 O'Brien. 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it that Nalcor Inergy Marketing charges Hydro for for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost principles, I understand that there's 5 from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 10 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 40 miderake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's sprior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right, I thanks, and in terms of burchaseing after that? 25 more firm energy, hwat assumptions would not include additional information that is to be filed this week. 30 KW. WILLIAMS: 21 the firm of the carring vesterday that there is additional contracts now in place to provide for more firm energy this coming winter, and that will be filed – I believe it's the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts and the associated energy in the works or has been completed? 11 min the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 may be a completed? 14 may be a contract so win place to provide for more firm				
7 Co'Brien. 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for 17 for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 20 their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 Ms. Williams, I was assumptions would not include additional information that is to be filed this week. 30 Okay. 30	I .			
8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 3 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms of the of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for 16 for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 17 for their services? 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 Marketing meet with least cost 29 min one of the responses to the consumer 29 developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 met works or has been completed? 11 met works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 met works or has been completed? 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 more of the responses to the consumer 29 developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's 10 that would happen, is that somethi				
9 Q. Thank you, Madam Chair. When we left off yesterday, I think, M. Williams, I was talking with you about the Natoro Finergy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it that Nator Energy Marketing charges Hydro for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 Q. Okay. 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 11 mot approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN:	1			
10 yesterday, İ think, Ms. Williams, I was 11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Ilydro 17 for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 20 their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 20 All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – Irom one of the responses to the consumer advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 A. There's nothing after that? 20 Cokay, is there anything built into the test 21 dr. O'BRIEN: 22 dr. The recapture energy, what assumptions went into these projections here of the 38s gigawatt hours?  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. There anything built into the test 21 dr. O'BRIEN: 22 dr. The recapture energy, what assumptions would not include additional information that is to be filed this week.  MR. O'BRIEN: 21 dr. Williams, WILLIAMS: 22 dr. The recapture energy, what assumptions would not include additional information that is to be filed this week.  MR. O'BRIEN: 21 dr. Williams, WILLIAMS: 22 dr. There assumptions would not include additional information that is to be filed this week.  MR. O'BRIEN: 23 dr. There's nothing in the test 24 dr. There assumptions would not include additional information that is to be filed this week.  MR. O'BRIEN: 3 dr. There's nothing in the test 4 dr. Deleve Mr. Young men				*
11 talking with you about the Nalcor Energy 12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro 17 for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 20 their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 25 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 26 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 27 principles, I understand that there's – from 28 advocate's questions, that you were 29 developing a review process to ensure that 20 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 A. There snothing in the test year for that. 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's 10 in the works or has been completed? 11 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 A. There snothing in the test year for that. 25 MS.	1			•
12 Marketing and approach to power purchases. 13 One of the question I had regarding that, 14 and thank you for your answer just in terms 15 of how the purchases get made, how is it 16 that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro 17 for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for 20 their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS:  1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Okay. 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. Theleve Mr. Young mentioned at the start 27 of the hearing yesterday that there is additional 28 diditional information that is to be filed 4 this week. 4 MR. O'BRIEN: 4 A. Thee's currently not charging Hydro for 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 16 that Nallors. 2 In the works or has been completed? 2 In the works or has been completed? 3 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 4 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 5 not approve that purchase if it does not do 6 better than it would cost for us to 6 dispatch.  18 MR. O'BRIEN:				
13 One of the question I had regarding that, and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for their services?  18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything bilk that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 O. Okay, is there anything built into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 wear for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2019? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 Okay. 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Okay. 24 Of the hearing or the recommencement of the hearing yesterday that there is additional contracted supply that's in place to provide for more firm energy this coming winter, and that will be filed — I believe it's the intention of that will be filed — I believe it's the intention of the recommencement of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, 1 think, 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAM	1	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
and thank you for your answer just in terms of how the purchases get made, how is it that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for their services?  18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS:  18 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 1 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch. 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 Page 2 of this week. Will hearing or the recommencement of the hearing yesterday that there is additional contracts now in place to provide for more firm energy this coming winter, and that will be filed—I believe it's the intention of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, I10 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the I10 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases				C C
15 of how the purchases get made, how is it that Nalcor Energy Marketing charges Hydro for for their services? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for that. 23 year for anything like that into the future, do for 2018 or 2019? 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro advocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the week. 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 30 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro advocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the week so this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy in peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 31 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  32 MR. O'BRIEN: 33 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 34 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 35 MR. O'BRIEN: 36 Q. So that's prior to purchases just turns of those types of purchases just 37 A. Correct. 38 MR. O'BRIEN: 39 Q. So that's prior to purchases just 39 Q. All right, thus additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 30 A. Correct. 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. And is that over both years?	1			
this week.    17	1			
17		1 0		
18 MS. WILLIAMS:   19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services.   20 MR. O'BRIEN:   21	1			
19 A. They're currently not charging Hydro for their services. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, for 2018 or 2019? 23 WS. WILLIAMS: 24 For 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 29 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 20 All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor Energy Marketing meet with least cost principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer advecte's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 WILLIAMS: 29 WILLIAMS: 20 WS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 WS. WILLIAMS: 24 O. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 25 WS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 WS. WILLIAMS: 28 WILLIAMS: 29 WS. WILLIAMS: 20 WS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right, I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 25 WS. WILLIAMS: 26 WS. WILLIAMS: 27 WS. WILLIAMS: 28 WS. WILLIAMS: 29 WS. WILLIAMS: 20 WS. WILLIAMS: 20 WS. WILLIAMS: 21 WS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 WR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right, I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 25 WS. WILLIAMS: 26 WS. WILLIAMS: 27 WS. WILLIAMS: 28 WILLIAMS: 29 WS. WILLIAMS: 29 WS. WILLIAMS: 20 WR. O'BRIEN: 20 WR. O'BRIEN: 21 WS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 WR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right, I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just	1			
their services.  21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, for 2018 or 2019? 23 year for anything like that into the future, for 2018 or 2019? 24 firm energy this coming winter, and that will be filed – I believe it's the intention  Page 2  A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 A. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 27 Energy Marketing meet with least cost one of the responses to the consumer one of the responses to the consumer 28 advocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed?  28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS WILLIAMS: 20 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 WILLIAMS: 26 A. T believe Mr. Young mentioned at the start of the hearing of the recommencement of the hearing or the recommencement of the hearing of the recommencement of the hearing of the recommencement of the hearing of the resindulational place It believe it's the intention of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply wild not the swell subject of this week. So th				· ·
21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test 23 year for anything like that into the future, 24 for 2018 or 2019? 25 MS. WILLIAMS:  Page 2  1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 of this week. So this information would not 23 have included the new firm contracted supply 24 that's in place. It would have assumed some 25 amount of Maritime Link energy, as is 26 indicated there, up to 5 percent of the 27 monthly energy purchases, as well as the 28 recapture, and that 29 collede in believe it's the intention 29 dry in the weik. So this information would not 20 have included the new firm contracted supply 20 that's in place. It would have assumed some 21 amount of Maritime Link energy, as is 22 indicated there, up to 5 percent of the 23 monthly energy purchases, as well as the 24 recapture, and with the intention 25 indicated there, up to 5 percent of the 26 monthly energy purchases, as well as the 27 recapture, and with the intention 28 advocate's questions, that you were 39 developing a review process to ensure that 30 that would happen, is that something that's 31 in the works or has been completed? 32 think, 110 megawatts and the associated energy 33 on peak would have been another part of the 34 more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 35 are recapture, and with the intention of that table 36 of	1			
Q. Okay, is there anything built into the test year for anything like that into the future, for 2018 or 2019?  MS. WILLIAMS:  Page 2  A. There's nothing in the test year for that.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Begin and vocate's questions, that you were developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed?  MS. WILLIAMS:  Page 2  A. There's nothing in the test year for that.  MR. O'BRIEN:  A ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor that will be filed – I believe it's the intention of the filed – I believe it's the intention of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  Q. So that 's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that?  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN	1			C
year for anything like that into the future, for 2018 or 2019?  MS. WILLIAMS:  Page 2  A. There's nothing in the test year for that.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Contracts now in place to provide for more firm energy this coming winter, and that will be filed – I believe it's the intention  Page 2  There's nothing in the test year for that.  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. There's nothing in the test year for that.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Contracts now in place to provide for more firm energy this coming winter, and that will be filed – I believe it's the intention  Page 4  Of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but that would happen, is that something that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR.				
24			22	hearing yesterday that there is additional
Page 2  1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 will be filed – I believe it's the intention  Page 2  1 of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply thave included the new firm contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  25 WILLIAMS: 26 A. I believe over the pending two years or the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 O. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just  28 WILLIAMS: 29 A. I believe over the pending two years or the new	23	year for anything like that into the future,	23	contracts now in place to provide for more
Page 2  1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer 6 principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer 9 developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just  Page 4  of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have included the new firm contracted supply in that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the mounthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it cull the more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN:  10 That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you – are you aware of how much has been estimated?  MS. WILLIAMS:  19 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  MR. O'BRIEN:  22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 C. And is th	24	for 2018 or 2019?	24	firm energy this coming winter, and that
1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  1 of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you – are you aware of how much has been estimated?  MS. WILLIAMS:  19 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  MR. O'BRIEN:  23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 C. And is that over both years?	25	MS. WILLIAMS:	25	will be filed – I believe it's the intention
1 A. There's nothing in the test year for that. 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  1 of this week. So this information would not have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you – are you aware of how much has been estimated?  MS. WILLIAMS:  19 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  MR. O'BRIEN:  23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 C. And is that over both years?		Page 2		Page 4
2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to 16 dispatch. 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 2 have included the new firm contracted supply that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I to could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you — are you aware of how much has been estimated?  18 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just  25 Q. And is that over both years?	1		1	•
3 Q. All right, thanks, and in terms of how Hydro 4 ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor 5 Energy Marketing meet with least cost 6 principles, I understand that there's – from 7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  25 terms of those types of purchases just  26 that's in place. It would have assumed some amount of Maritime Link energy, as is indicated there, up to 5 percent of the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you – are you aware of how much has been estimated?  MS. WILLIAMS:  20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  MR. O'BRIEN:  22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?			2	
ensures that the purchases done by Nalcor Energy Marketing meet with least cost principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  M				
Energy Marketing meet with least cost principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer advocate's questions, that you were that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed?  MS. WILLIAMS: As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that?  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will for the monthly energy purchases, as well as the recapture, and with the intention of, I think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you are you aware of how much has been estimated?  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A Libelieve over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  MR. O'BRIEN:	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-
principles, I understand that there's – from one of the responses to the consumer advocate's questions, that you were believeloping a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed? In the works or has been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data. In the works or has been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data. In the works or has been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data. In the works or has been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data. In the work of that table of data. In the work of works or has been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data. In the life work of that table of data. In the life work of the work of the energy on pack would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data. In the life work of the l		1		
7 one of the responses to the consumer 8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  7 recapture, and with the intention of, I 8 think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but 10 the 110 megawatts and the associated energy 11 on peak would have been another part of the 12 assumptions in the derivation of that table 13 of data. 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 Q. That additional information in terms of the 16 more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 17 - are you aware of how much has been 18 estimated? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the 21 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the 22 new contracted supply will provide for an 23 additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?		•	_	
8 advocate's questions, that you were 9 developing a review process to ensure that 10 that would happen, is that something that's 11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  8 think, 110 megawatts on peak, and then it could be more outside of those hours, but the 110 megawatts and the associated energy on peak would have been another part of the assumptions in the derivation of that table of data.  14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 17 — are you aware of how much has been estimated? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the 21 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the 22 new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  26 Use of data.  27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 Use of purchases just  28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 And is that over both years?	7	• •		
developing a review process to ensure that that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \	*		1 /
that would happen, is that something that's in the works or has been completed?  11	1			
11 in the works or has been completed? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just 21 on peak would have been another part of the 22 assumptions in the derivation of that table 23 of data. 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 O. That additional information in terms of the 26 more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 27 are you aware of how much has been 28 estimated? 29 A. I believe over the pending two years or the 29 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the 20 new contracted supply will provide for an 21 additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 22 And is that over both years?				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
12 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 A. As we discussed yesterday, when they 14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just  12 assumptions in the derivation of that table 13 of data. 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 Q. That additional information in terms of the 16 more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 17 - are you aware of how much has been 18 estimated? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the 21 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the 22 new contracted supply will provide for an 23 additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?	1			
A. As we discussed yesterday, when they undertake to do a purchase for us, we will not approve that purchase if it does not do better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  15 Q. That additional information in terms of the more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you dispatch.  16 MR. O'BRIEN:  17 — are you aware of how much has been estimated?  18 estimated?  19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that?  20 MS. WILLIAMS:  21 MS. WILLIAMS:  22 A. Correct.  23 MR. O'BRIEN:  24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just  25 Q. And is that over both years?		•		•
14 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just 20 undertake to do a purchase for us, we will 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 Q. That additional information in terms of the 16 more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 17 — are you aware of how much has been 18 estimated? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the 21 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the 22 new contracted supply will provide for an 23 additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?				
15 not approve that purchase if it does not do 16 better than it would cost for us to 17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just 20 purchase if it does not do 15 Q. That additional information in terms of the 16 more firm energy, how much in 2018 would you 17 — are you aware of how much has been 18 estimated? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the 21 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the 22 new contracted supply will provide for an 23 additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?				
better than it would cost for us to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Occupate the dispatch of the disp				
17 dispatch. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 And is that over both years? 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 And is that over both years?				
18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review 20 process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 25 Q. And is that over both years?				
19 Q. So that's prior to purchasing, that review process, there's nothing after that? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?		*		
process, there's nothing after that?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just  20 A. I believe over the pending two years or the pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy.  24 MR. O'BRIEN:  25 Q. And is that over both years?				
21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 21 pending two seasons, 2018 and 2019, so the new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
22 A. Correct. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just 25 terms of those types of purchases just 26 new contracted supply will provide for an additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 And is that over both years?				, <del>,</del> ,
23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in 25 terms of those types of purchases just 23 additional 200 gigawatt hours of energy. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?				* -
24 Q. All right. I just want to turn, I guess, in terms of those types of purchases just  24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Q. And is that over both years?				117
25 terms of those types of purchases just 25 Q. And is that over both years?	1			
		4 a margina a C 4 la a a a 4 a margina a C margina a a a a i a a 4	1 25	() And is that over both years?

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 5		Page 7
1	MS. WILLIAMS:	1	are receiving energy "as is" now, and,
2	A. Correct. It's the sum of the two years.	2	obviously, the benefit of the recapture
3	MR. O'BRIEN:	3	we'll hopefully see in the fall with being
4	Q. And do you know what's in 2018? Do you know	4	able to bring 100 units on later. So we're
5	the breakdown?	5	not expecting a material difference in the
6	MS. WILLIAMS:	6	timing of the official commissioning.
7	A. I believe I do. 2018, an additional – let	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	me see, about 90.	8	Q. Is there any difference in price?
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	MS. WILLIAMS:
10	Q. 90 gigawatt hours?	10	A. Different in price?
11	MS. WILLIAMS:	11	MR. O'BRIEN:
12	A. Again this will all be clarified certainly	12	Q. Like, say, the recapture right now, we see
13	with the evidence.	13	this is based on July 1 in service, so you
14	MR. O'BRIEN:	14	are seeing energy flowing right now. Are
15	Q. Sure, yeah.	15	you purchasing that energy as it comes in?
16	MS. WILLIAMS:	16	MS. WILLIAMS:
17	A. And then, therefore, must be about 100.	17	A. Yes, at .2 cents, right.
18	Might be a split of 100 and 110 – it will	18	MR. O'BRIEN:
19	have to be clarified, obviously, with the	19	A. Yeah, and is there any difference then in
20	evidence.	20	what you will see as well for the firm
21	MR. O'BRIEN:	21	energy?
22	Q. Okay, so possibly 100 to 110 or somewhere in	22	MS. WILLIAMS:
23	that range?	23	A. Sorry, no, the firm energy has not commenced
24	MS. WILLIAMS:	24	yet.
25	A. Yeah.	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
	Page 6		
1	Page 6 MR. O'BRIEN:	1	Page 8
1 2	MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in
2	-	2	Page 8
1	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019.		Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2? MS. WILLIAMS:
2 3 4	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS:	2 3 4	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. The contracted firm energy is over and above
2 3 4 5	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2? MS. WILLIAMS:
2 3 4	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime	2 3 4	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it —	2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 8  Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you
2 3 4 5 6	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS:	2 3 4 5 6	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it —	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 8  Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it — MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the — all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at the maximum starting – it starts at 225
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it — MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the — all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and as of now, present purchases right	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at the maximum starting – it starts at 225 megawatts in Labrador and is delivered to
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it – MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the – all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and as of now, present purchases right now, where are they right now?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at the maximum starting – it starts at 225 megawatts in Labrador and is delivered to the island at 214 megawatts due to losses,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it — MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the — all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and as of now, present purchases right now, where are they right now? MS. WILLIAMS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at the maximum starting – it starts at 225 megawatts in Labrador and is delivered to the island at 214 megawatts due to losses, and so we're actually able to get more
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it — MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the — all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and as of now, present purchases right now, where are they right now? MS. WILLIAMS: A. I don't think we're going to have a material	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at the maximum starting – it starts at 225 megawatts in Labrador and is delivered to the island at 214 megawatts due to losses, and so we're actually able to get more recapture down because we have more firm
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. For 2019. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, so that would come over the Maritime Link, would it, or is it — MS. WILLIAMS: A. So all of the — all of the imports will be a mix of the Labrador Island Link and the Maritime Link. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. So in terms of, let's say, the recapture for 2018 here, that 388, that was based on an assumption of in service July 1, is that right? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay, and as of now, present purchases right now, where are they right now? MS. WILLIAMS:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	Q. Okay, but will there be a difference in price in that from the .2?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The contracted firm energy is over and above the recapture, so it is a different price.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. It is a different price, okay, and you expect the recapture energy of 388, even with the in service later into the fall, will you still have 388 gigawatt hours in 2018?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. What the contracted firm supply allows us to do is to – the words that we're using within Hydro is called "fill the LIL". Basically, we're able to maximize the amount of energy and capacity coming from Labrador over the Labrador Island Link into Newfoundland at the maximum starting – it starts at 225 megawatts in Labrador and is delivered to the island at 214 megawatts due to losses, and so we're actually able to get more

Page 9 Page 11 1 the capacity at 110 on peak. 1 energy. 2 2 MR. O'BRIEN: MR. O'BRIEN: 3 3 Q. And when you can only maximize it at 110, Q. All right, and Mr. Haynes kind of talked 4 was that as a result of what was available 4 about, and I think you've alluded to the 5 5 for recapture power? idea of off peak versus on peak delivery and 6 MS. WILLIAMS: 6 purchases. He mentioned somewhere in his 7 7 evidence about there being an ability to It was as a result of the Labrador load. We 8 8 had to satisfy the Labrador requirements store energy. You can bring some down and 9 9 store it, and he even, I think, used the before we could bring the additional 10 capacity in energy to the island. 10 phrase, "Import water". Are you able to give me a little bit more information on 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 12 what he was talking about there? So the Maritime Link purchases there that we 12 0. see in terms of estimations, can you just 13 13 MS. WILLIAMS: give me a quick overview as to how they were 14 14 Α. He was likely referring to what we are all 15 estimated in the first place? I think you 15 starting to talk about now, which is just said 5 percent of the load. How does 16 16 ponding. 17 that work? 17 MR. O'BRIEN: 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 Q. Okay. 19 Correct. It was basically with this asset 19 MS. WILLIAMS: A. 20 and our interaction with it was new. You 20 And the concept of ponding is that if, for 21 know, we've only really been interacting 21 example, somewhere in the Maritimes was 22 with this since February, late February, so 22 having a spring and they had a lot of energy 23 we didn't want to over estimate and. 23 that they were going to have to spill, and 24 we had capacity in our reservoirs to therefore, under estimate the needs for our 24 25 existing assets. We didn't think that would 25 basically store energy, what we could do is Page 10 Page 12 1 1 be a prudent course of action. So we went we could avail of the opportunity to take 2 for a more conservative 5 percent of the 2 what would be very cheap energy if a – 3 monthly energy requirement as is noted, and 3 sorry, if a partner or somebody in the 4 again those are market purchases, those are 4 Maritimes is going to spill energy, it would 5 be very cheap for them, they'd rather get not firm purchases. So we also didn't want 5 6 to over estimate what the market might be 6 some revenue for it as opposed to zero. So 7 able to provide because certainly our 7 we could bring over the Maritime Link or 8 neighbours in the Maritimes are, you know, 8 through the Labrador Link if that made 9 9 sense, basically, import energy. We would peaking in the winter season the same as us. so we have to be cognizant of that. So that have to pay for that, obviously, and what 10 10 that would mean is it would just ramp back was really some of the logic behind choosing 11 11 that somewhat conservative number. on our own generation, and the intention is 12 12 13 that it would likely offset later use of 13 MR. O'BRIEN: Holyrood or, you know, a more expensive 14 0. Okay, and up until now, where are purchases 14 on the Maritime Link? source. Then later when it was at an 15 15 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 appropriate market price to resell that 17 I believe we're at around – gosh, I had it 17 energy out, we would just generate more than noted because I - 26, I think, gigawatt 18 our customers needed and we would import the 18 hours is the number we are today. 19 19 difference at a higher price, and that would 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 be an opportunity that could – sorry. 26 gigawatt hours, and is that above and 21 export, thanks, that we could avail of in 21 beyond testing purchases? 22 22 the future. 23 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 That is, I'll call it, true economic market 24 Is there a plan in place, a formal plan, as A. Q. to how to do that?

25

purchases, yeah, not testing inadvertent

25

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

July 17, 2018 Page 13 Page 15 1 MS. WILLIAMS: 1 0. Okay, and in terms of Maritime Link, is there any change in that for 2018, the 93? 2 A. We're working on that, actually, and we do 2 3 intend to discuss that more with the Board 3 MS. WILLIAMS: 4 and certainly put that to the Board for 4 What we might end up doing is using a little A. 5 review and approval of exactly how that 5 bit less of the Maritime Link purchases as would work. 6 it might not be the more cost effective 6 7 MR O'BRIEN: 7 solution than recapture, obviously. 8 8 MR. O'BRIEN: Any timeline on that? Q. 9 9 MS. WILLIAMS: Yeah, it wouldn't be as economical, okay. Q. So Maritime Link right now, will we be using 10 Hopefully within the next month or so. 10 MR. O'BRIEN: that to date – from to date until when you 11 11 start technically using the LIL, will you be 12 Okay. So with the new firm sort of 12 0. contracts, any idea when they're going to making much purchases, Maritime Link 13 13 come on line, when you're going to be able 14 14 purchases? 15 to use those? 15 MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: So just to confirm, you're wondering if from 16 16 17 The details of that are included in the near 17 where we are today -18 term generation adequacy R5's, which I know 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 is not part of this proceeding, and I know 19 Until the fall when the LIL, yeah, when you Q. 20 that they are currently going through the 20 can get the recapture on. confidentiality review process. 21 21 MS. WILLIAMS: MR. O'BRIEN: 22 I don't anticipate a lot more of the 22 A. 23 23 Maritime Link. I think we would continue to Okay. O. 24 24 MS. WILLIAMS: use it in the way that we have been if 25 I don't want to say too much about the exact 25 there's an opportunity that makes sense. Page 16 Page 14 1 details of it. 1 For example, if we're still going through 2 2 MR. O'BRIEN: the commissioning process on the Labrador-3 3 No. no. Island Link, the Maritime Link is still a Q. MS. WILLILAMS: very good opportunity for us to avail of 4 4 5 But they will be in place for this winter. 5 when it makes economic sense. 6 The contracts are signed and confirmed, and 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 the supply is available for this coming 7 All right, and for 2019, do you anticipate Q. 8 winter. 8 those figures going up for recapture energy 9 9 (9:15 a.m.) as well? 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 MS. WILLIAMS: No, I think recapture in 2019 will be Okay. So in terms of full – I just want to 11 11 make sure I got it accurately. In terms of similar. 12 12 full gigawatt hours for recapture, the 388 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 13 that we see here is likely accurate for the Would be similar. So I had some questions 14 14 0. for Mr. Haynes just in terms of the 15 vear? 15 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 availability of recapture power, and we had talked about data centres and some of the 17 Sorry, I might have led you astray. That's 17 actually – the new forecast is closer to 500 load in Labrador possibly affecting 18 18 19 recapture power. With these new contracts 19 for recapture. MR. O'BRIEN: 20 now in place, does that sort of push that 20 21 off to the side as being a problem or 21 Okay. Q. 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 concern? 23 We're able to bring more recapture with the 23 MS. WILLIAMS:

24

25

24

25

firming of the LIL.

MR. O'BRIEN:

I don't have a concern with our ability to

bring down the amount that we currently

July 17, 2018 NL Hydro 2017 GRA Page 17 Page 19 1 have, and as well there are other processes 1 coming in place, is that right? 2 that have been put in place to help soften 2 MS. WILLIAMS: 3 some of the requests that we were seeing in 3 A. That's correct. 4 Labrador. 4 MR. O'BRIEN: 5 5 MR. O'BRIEN: Okay, but it'll only change to the extent of Q. 6 Yeah. 6 whatever the price change is in those extra Q. 7 MS. WILLIAMS: 7 purchases? 8 8 So, you know, I'm not – I'm not overly MS. WILLIAMS: A. 9 concerned with our ability to bring as much 9 The volume of purchases obviously will A. 10 energy as possible, the recapture. 10 impact it. MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 And when you say "soften", it concerns a 12 12 Yeah, and the LIL and LTA cost there of – O. 0. process is what you're talking about there? 13 and this is for 2018 of 27 million there, is 13 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 14 it still anticipated to be the same, that 15 The application for MAC, I think, it's 15 won't change? A. 16 putting a cap on the amount or the quantity MS. WILLIAMS: 16 of a request that a customer could come to 17 I think Mr. LeBlanc is going to speak to the 17 A. in Labrador that would – I think it's 100 18 18 LIL O & M costs. 19 kilowatts. I think that's correct. Mr. 19 MR. LEBLANC: 20 LeBlanc might be able to speak to that. 20 The LIL O & M costs will only start once Α. 21 MR. LEBLANC: 21 commissioning is complete. 22 Right now there is an application before the 22 MR. O'BRIEN: A. 23 Board to put a cap of 100 kilowatt hours for 23 Okav. O. a new customer in Lab East. Again that's MR. LEBLANC: 24 24 only in Lab East. Also if there are new 25 25 Α. So that is expected in the fall, and we do Page 18 Page 20 data centres that require building and have a revised number for that. 1 1 2 funding, the timeline for them to get online 2 MR O'BRIEN: 3 will be outside the 2018/2019 test year. 3 Good, okay. Q. MR. O'BRIEN: 4 4 MR. LEBLANC: 5 Outside of the test years, okay, and if you 5 And we are expecting it to be approximately Q. do have those contracts, in any event, 6 8.3 million for 2018. 6 7 you're talking about fill the LIL, I guess, 7 MR. O'BRIEN: 8 it gives you that opportunity to avoid that 8 Okay, and what's that based on? 9 concern? 9 MR. LEBLANC: I didn't hear you. Pardon? 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. MR. O'BRIEN: Correct. 11 11 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 12 O. I'm sorry. What was that based on? Is that Okay. I'd just like to briefly talk about a figure given to you by Nalcor or is that 13 Q. 13 the O & M costs with respect to the something you guys calculated? 14 14 Labrador-Island Link. I wonder if we could 15 15 MR. LEBLANC: 16 move to Appendix "H" of this document, Page 16 A. That was given to us by Nalcor, and it's a proration of the months in service. 17 1. This is the total system revenue 17 18 requirement under the expected supply cost MR. O'BRIEN: 18 scenario, which is what we're now looking at 19 19 Q. And in terms of fuel, is that fuel estimate 20 as a result of a settlement agreement. 20 there different now as a result of the LIL 21 Power purchases for off-island, line 9 21 coming into line later on in the fall, or as there, and that's the – the total is 10 a result of more purchases being available, 22 22 23 million there. That may change somewhat, I 23 are you able to estimate any difference in

24

25

MS. WILLIAMS:

guess, based on the information that we'll

receive now with the firm contracts that are

24

25

fuel that we might see in the 2018 year?

Page 21 Page 23 1 A. I don't want to speak necessarily for the 1 A. Yes. The actual invoices will be actual 2 2 testimony that, you know, Mr. Fagan is going costs, not forecast costs, and we will have to present, but I believe the improvement in 3 3 a chance to review them and they are also 4 fuel costs is in excess of 100 million 4 updating their costs. MR. O'BRIEN: 5 5 dollars. MR. O'BRIEN: 6 Okav. 6 Q. 7 7 Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: 8 8 MS. WILLIAMS: So, they expect to have an update by the end 9 Yeah. 9 of August for 2019. A. 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 O. And that's for 2018? 11 O. Okay. And when they give you those updated 12 costs, do vou have any discussions - will 12 MS. WILLIAMS: you have any discussions with them as to how It's for the combined years. 13 13 they're based, that sort of thing? 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 15 The combined. 15 MR. LEBLANC: Q. Yes, we'll ask for complete detail. MS. WILLIAMS: 16 16 A. I'm going to say 50 to 60 each year. 17 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 18 Q. And is that you who is involved with that or 19 Okay. And Mr. Fagan can speak to that 19 is it someone else? Q. directly, I guess, in terms of the amounts? 20 20 MR. LEBLANC: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 There's a number of us. I'll be involved, Α. I think that's best for Mr. Fagan to do, 22 as well as Ms. Hutchens from the accounting 22 23 23 side as well. ves. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Yeah. Now, there was an application before 25 O. In the normal course of things, these types Page 22 Page 24 the Board just in terms of whether or not 1 1 of costs, O&M costs, in an open access 2 the LIL and LTA costs ought to be included 2 regime, they're normally included as part of 3 in the test years and there's some 3 the transmission tariff, are they? Kind of indication by the Board that perhaps more built into your price? 4 4 5 5 evidence might come through in the hearing, MR. LEBLANC: 6 just in terms of the context behind why they 6 Yes. It's a complicated scenario here, but Α. 7 should be charged, that sort of thing. Is 7 their revenue requirements are included in 8 anyone on the panel here able to talk about 8 the transmission tariff that was - is in 9 say the context behind the Orders in Council 9 place. and that kind of thing? Would anyone here 10 10 MR. O'BRIEN: have been involved in any of that? So, in this case, Hydro is expecting to pay 11 11 100 percent of those costs, I take it, for 12 MR. LEBLANC: 12 No, that would be best left to Mr. Fagan to those two years? 13 A. 13 discuss. MR. LEBLANC: 14 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 In this case, we will be billed directly by 15 Α. 16 Q. Okay. And in terms of how those costs get 16 Nalcor. We will pay 100 percent of the costs outside of the tariff. 17 determined, Mr. LeBlanc, you indicated that 17 Nalcor had provided you with that estimate? MR. O'BRIEN: 18 18 19 MR. LEBLANC: 19 Okay. Q. 20 20 A. That is correct. MR. LEBLANC: 21 And then within the tariff, because they do 21 MR. O'BRIEN: have a revenue requirement, Hydro will get a 22 Will you have an opportunity to review that 22 Q. 23 estimate with Nalcor once you're invoiced 23 credit for the payments made to Nalcor. So, 24 for those costs? 24 there won't be any double payment on these 25 25 MR. LEBLANC:

July 1	7, 2016		INL HYUIO 2017 GKA
l .	Page 25		Page 27
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	Q. Okay. And over the 2018 and '19 test year,	2	Q. It's full, yeah.
3	do you anticipate anyone else using the LIL	3	MS. WILLIAMS:
4	or the LTA?	4	A. And there's no other contracts currently
5	MR. LEBLANC:	5	contemplated, but we continue to pursue
6	A. No, we do not.	6	anything that would be economic in nature
7	MR. O'BRIEN:	7	that could give us the flexibility to – you
8	Q. And if there were, would you expect to have	8	know, to further reduce costs.
9	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
	some proration of those costs?		
10	MR. LEBLANC:	10	Q. And I'll talk about this a little bit later
11	A. If other people – the way the mature	11	when I talk about standby generation, but
12	transmission tariff would work, if there	12	just in terms of say emergency reserves and
13	were third party revenues that were not	13	that sort of thing, are there any contracts
14	budgeted or accounted for, they would go	14	contemplated with Nova Scotia Power or NB
15	towards reducing the rates when the – the	15	Power or anything like that?
16	next time the rates would be updated and	16	MS. WILLIAMS:
17	that would result in everyone paying less	17	A. Not currently, however, some of the parties
18	for transmission.	18	or all the parties would be aware of the
19	MR. O'BRIEN:	19	reliability review that we're completing
20	Q. That'll be into the future though when the	20	this year; that for post-Muskrat we are
1			•
21	rate's updated?	21	undertaking what the future system
22	MR. LEBLANC:	22	reliability looks like and we need to
23	A. Yes.	23	compare ourselves to our neighbours to
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	understand what is – how does the system
25	Q. Okay. How often do rates get updated?	25	need to run with regards to reliability;
	Page 26		Page 28
1	MR. LEBLANC:	1	what are the metrics, what are the planning
2	A. We are planning – right now we have an	2	criteria we need to have in place. And once
3	interim transmission tariff.	3	we have that review completed, we'll
4	MR. O'BRIEN:	4	understand exactly what the future needs and
5	Q. Right.	5	then we'll pursue various opportunities if
6	MR. LEBLANC:	6	indeed we want to address those needs due to
7		7	cost. I think we do – Mr. LeBlanc could
/ 0	A. But post-Muskrat, we'd be looking at annual		
8	updates is the plan.	8	probably mention about reserve assistance,
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	but with regards to reserves, I'll call it,
10	Q. Okay.	10	to supply off island -
11	MR. LEBLANC:	11	MR. O'BRIEN:
12	A. Subject to approval.	12	Q. Okay.
13	MR. O'BRIEN:	13	MS. WILLIAMS:
14	Q. So, you've indicated that there is some	14	A we would look at that if we need something
15	contracts too that now with some firm energy	15	else as an alternative in the least cost
16	for the rest of 2018 and 2019. Are there	16	analysis concept.
17	any others that are in contemplation?	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	MS. WILLIAMS:	18	Q. I understood there was some reserve
19	A. No contracts, for example, of LIL because	19	assistance.
20	that does make it firm now.	20	MR, LEBLANC:
1			
21	MR. O'BRIEN:	21	A. Yeah.
22	Q. Yeah.	22	MS. WILLIAMS:
23	MS. WILLIAMS:	23	A. Yeah, with that, yeah.
24	A. That is – really we are contracting the	24	MR. LEBLANC:
25	maximum capacity.	25	A. Right now, with Nova Scotia Power, we do
	Discoveries Unlimite	d Inc.	(709)437-5028 Page 25 - Page 28

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 29		Page 31
1	have reserve assistance, but it's not	1	information to be provided on that and why
2	mandatory.	2	Hydro should – or why customers should pay
3	MR. O'BRIEN:	3	those costs. Am I better bringing all that
4	Q. Yeah.	4	up with Mr. Fagan?
5	MR. LEBLANC:	5	MR. LEBLANC:
$\frac{3}{6}$	A. So, if we are – if we anticipate that we'll	6	A. If it's the mechanics and the why should
7	be light on reserves, we can give them a	7	they pay -
8	call and if they have it, they will provide	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	, , , , , ,	9	
	it. But if they don't have it, there's no		Q. Yes, yeah. MR. LEBLANC:
10	obligation. And that's a reciprocal	10	
11	agreement.	11	A that would be best with Mr. Fagan.
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	Q. Is it?	13	Q. Okay. Does the same apply then, I guess,
14	MR. LEBLANC:	14	for both LIL and LTA costs?
15	A. If they're short, they can ask us.	15	MR. LEBLANC:
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	A. Yes.
17	Q. Okay.	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	MR. LEBLANC:	18	Q. Okay. Moving on to another topic then. I'd
19	A. And again, only supplied if the party has it	19	just like to ask about some of the hydraulic
20	available.	20	generation performance to date. I wonder if
21	MR. O'BRIEN:	21	we could bring up one of the documents that
22	Q. Has it available. Have you ever called on	22	I provided on Friday, which is the June 2018
23	that?	23	Energy Supply Report.
24	(9:30 a.m.)	24	MS. GLYNN:
25	MR. LEBLANC:	25	Q. We'll enter that as Information No. 9.
	Page 30		Page 32
1	A. I believe we have, and they did supply it	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	and I think once they said they did not have	2	Q. Thank you. So, this is the most recent
3	it.	3	Energy Supply Report for the Island
4	MR. O'BRIEN:	4	Interconnected System. Is that right?
5	Q. Okay.	5	MS. WILLIAMS:
6	MR. LEBLANC:	6	A. Correct.
7	A. So, then it resulted in starting the CT.	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	MR. O'BRIEN:	8	
9		9	
1 1	Q. When was that assistance agreement put in	-	hydrology. I just had a couple questions.
10	place?	10	So, it looks like storage hydrology levels
11	MR. LEBLANC:	11	in June are below average. Is that right?
12	A. That was put in place as part of the myriad	12	MS. WILLIAMS:
13	of agreements with – so, it's part of the	13	A. Below average, so, you're looking at which
14	operators' agreement, IOC, Interconnected	14	numbers? You're looking at the 2018 1903
15	Operators Agreement with Nova Scotia Power.	15	versus the 21-year average? Is that what
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	you're comparing?
17	Q. So, it was last year sometime or the year	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	before?	18	Q. Yes, yeah.
19	MR. LEBLANC:	19	MS. WILLIAMS:
20	A. It was at least in 2017. I'm not sure of	20	A. I guess it's below the 21-year average.
	the inking day.	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
21			
21 22	MR. O'BRIEN:	22	Q. Yeah, okay. All right. So, it's below the
		22 23	Q. Yeah, okay. All right. So, it's below the maximum operating level, but 67 percent
22	MR. O'BRIEN: Q. All right. Just in terms of back to the O&M		maximum operating level, but 67 percent
22 23	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 33		Page 35
1	A. Correct.	1	Q. Is it?
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	MS. WILLIAMS:
3	Q. I guess my question is more along the lines	3	A. And that is – sorry?
4	of the minimum storage level and it's the	4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	next page there, there's a chart that shows	5	Q. So, that minimum drop down there in May 1st
6	minimum storage level there, and that's the	6	is higher?
7	bottom dotted line? Is that right?	7	MS. WILLIAMS:
8	MS. WILLIAMS:	8	A. I think as a bottom threshold number.
9	A. That's correct.	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	Q. Okay.
11	Q. I'm given to understand that that minimum	11	MS. WILLIAMS:
12	storage level has actually dropped in the	12	A. From say a previous year.
13	last few months from where it was	13	MR. O'BRIEN:
14	traditionally. Is that fair?	14	Q. All right. And maybe we can have a look at
15	MS. WILLIAMS:	15	say the December one?
16	A. Sorry, it's dropped in the last?	16	MS. WILLIAMS:
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	A. Yeah.
18	Q. Since February it's actually come down?	18	MR. O'BRIEN:
19	MS. WILLIAMS:	19	Q. And I think I've got that there as well. I
20	A. The minimum storage level -	20	just want to get – really, I just want to
21	MR. O'BRIEN:	21	get an idea of sort of how that works and
22	Q. How does that work?	22	how you -
23	MS. WILLIAMS:	23	MS. WILLIAMS:
24	A. Sorry, yeah, the minimum storage level curve	24	A. Yeah.
25	that you see there -	25	MS. GLYNN:
	Page 34		Page 36
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	Q. And we'll enter that one as Exhibit – or
2	Q. Yeah.	2	sorry, Information No. 10.
3	MS. WILLIAMS:	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	A is re-evaluated ideally on a yearly basis,	4	Q. All right.
5	but sometimes we do it every say two years.	5	MS. WILLIAMS:
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	A. Yeah, I have -
7	Q. Okay.	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	MS. WILLIAMS:	8	Q. That must have been the year before, is it,
9	A. And this would have been re-evaluated	9	for May 1?
10	partway through this year to reflect, you	10	MS. WILLIAMS:
11	know, the things that we would know on the	11	A. Yeah, it basically is the – sorry, thank
12	system. And so, the current line that you	12	you. The minimum storage that we would
13	see there actually reflects – I think the	13	choose is based on our need for riding
14	minimum number there is 300, if you see that	14	through, if you want to call it that, the
15	there?	15	driest sequence that we have seen, which was
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	the '59 to '61 into '62 period.
17	Q. That's what it looks like.	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	MS. WILLIAMS:	18	Q. Yeah.
19	A. The first of May.	19	MS. WILLIAMS:
20	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	A. And then it also considers since that period
21	Q. Yeah.	21	if there's been any anomalous shorter
22	MS. WILLIAMS:	22	periods of time. So, for example, in that
23	A. I believe that's actually higher than it's	23	three-year period -
24	been in the past.	24	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	MR. O'BRIEN:	25	Q. Right.

Page 37 Page 39 1 MS. WILLIAMS: 1 All right. So, for example, if you look at 2 in May, if we kept trending toward that 2 A. - we protect ourselves in that realm that we 3 would not – we would have to make sure we 3 purple line, if you see where May, the 4 have enough hydraulic production, enough 4 orange line? 5 sort of thermal production, to ride through 5 MR. O'BRIEN: 6 that driest period. And so that's what the 6 Yeah. Q. 7 curve develops to - so, this is when you 7 MS. WILLIAMS: 8 8 have to take action through the year. If the orange line had kept trending and we 9 didn't get the snow melt or, for example, if 9 MR. O'BRIEN: we didn't have snow, we had kept trending 10 Q. Okay. 10 toward the purple line, we would be then MS. WILLIAMS: 11 11 12 saying "okay, we need to change our thermal 12 And so, yeah, the 300 is the lowest number Α. that we could go to, reflecting -- at that generation mix to prepare for" – so that we 13 13 point in time, reflecting that we would don't head into that line. And even if you 14 14 15 you know, if you hit – sorry, if you hit 15 did cross the line, it is not a guarantee below 300 at that point in time, you would that you won't be able to, you know, serve 16 16 17 not be able to, on a probabilistic basis, 17 customers. It's that if the three-year dry get through the dry period, if the dry sequence materializes, then you would have 18 18 19 period was to reoccur. 19 to, you know, add some additional generation 20 to the mix. So, basically, it's a line that 20 MR. O'BRIEN: we aim not to cross, but you know, if you do 21 Q. Okay. 21 head toward there, because of extreme rare 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 23 And so, the number would have dropped in 23 hydrology, we could still take some action. reflection of what we know on the system. but we generally dispatch so that we don't 24 24 In the future coming, we've got the incross that line. 25 25 Page 38 Page 40 service of the LIL. We've got the recapture 1 1 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 2 available. So, we would have developed the Okay. But it affects your dispatch decision O. storage guidelines on the basis of knowing 3 3 making? what we know at this point in time. MS. WILLIAMS: 4 4 5 MR. O'BRIEN: 5 Correct. A. 6 Okay. So, you'd – and that's kind of where 6 Q. MR. O'BRIEN: 7 I was going. It's on the basis of what you 7 Is that right? Okay. Q. 8 know what's coming up, the LIL and -8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 9 MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yeah, on a weekly basis we'd look for it. This is created basically every week and we 10 Correct. 10 A. look at it every week and you'd look at, MR. O'BRIEN: 11 11 okay, we are at a very dry sequence. 12 0. Is that fair? 12 MS. WILLIAMS: MR. O'BRIEN: 13 13 14 A. Yeah. 14 O. Yeah. 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 Q. Okay. And how does that affect how you 16 A. We'd take that point in time and we say, operate, where the minimum storage line is? okay, if we're at a very dry sequence or 17 17 How does that affect your operational very wet sequence and have a range of 18 18 19 outcomes that we could end up in, and then 19 decisions? 20 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 you make your judgments on that basis. Right. On a weekly basis, we have meetings 21 21 MR. O'BRIEN: where you look at where you are. So, for 22 22 So, it's not in terms of a long-term Q. 23 example, if you look at – if you go to this 23 planning? This is short-term?

24

MS. WILLIAMS:

It's a bit of both, yeah. It's both. I

year report, sorry, Caryn, if you don't

mind, just pop to the one from June? Yeah.

24

25

	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 41		Page 43
1	mean, certainly, immediate term, you make	1	Q. So, the top line and the bottom line though,
2	your decisions, you know, for the weeks	2	those are annual lines, are they, those
3	ahead.	3	dotted lines?
4	MR. O'BRIEN:	4	MS. WILLIAMS:
5	Q. Right.	5	A. Well, the top line doesn't really change.
6	MS. WILLIAMS:	6	MR. O'BRIEN:
7	A. And for example, if you see something	7	Q. No.
8	building, you say "okay, in six weeks' time,	8	MS. WILLIAMS:
9	if this trend continues, we could have to"	9	A. Because that's just the maximum of your
10	and you start wrapping your head around what	l .	reservoir.
11	that might look like.	11	MR. O'BRIEN:
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	Q. That's the maximum anyway, okay.
13		13	MS. WILLIAMS:
13	Q. Okay. MS. WILLIAMS:	14	A. Correct.
15		15	MR. O'BRIEN:
	A. And you think about that. And then, but	16	
16	again, you do always plan, for example, that	l	Q. But the bottom line is an annual line?
17	this is a long-term planning view as well.	17	MS. WILLIAMS:
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	A. In theory, it's annual. Again, you wouldn't
19	Q. Will that affect – I mean, if you see sort	19	change if there's nothing really material
20	of weeks ahead, will that affect your	20	changing.
21	decision making process as to whether you'll	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
22	go to the market to search for reserves	22	Q. Okay. In terms of – I want to talk a little
23	versus -	23	bit about hydraulic performance as well.
24	MS. WILLIAMS:	24	So, I wonder – I understand there's some –
25	A. Yes.	25	there's been some equipment issues at Bay
	Page 42		Page 44
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	D'Espoir generation station that's affected
2	Q just looking at standby generation?	2	the DAFOR performance since 2014. I saw
3	MS. WILLIAMS:	3	that in the evidence. What exactly were
4	A. Absolutely, it does.	4	those issues that you think had the effect
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	on that performance?
6	Olyany And thaga and dama ammually any you		*
	Q. Okay. And these are done annually or you	6	MS. WILLIAMS:
7	see one every week different?	7	MS. WILLIAMS: A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir
7 8		7 8	MS. WILLIAMS:
	see one every week different?	7	MS. WILLIAMS: A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir
8	see one every week different? MS. WILLIAMS:	7 8	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units
8 9	see one every week different? MS. WILLIAMS: A. We see a new -	7 8 9	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Yes.
8 9 10	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:	7 8 9 10	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN:
8 9 10 11	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You see the trending, the orange line every	7 8 9 10 11	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Yes.
8 9 10 11 12	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?	7 8 9 10 11 12	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:
8 9 10 11 12 13	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:	7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. So, it really has been the performance of
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. We see a new - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the</li> </ul>
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. We see a new - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Two units.
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Two units. MS. WILLIAMS:
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  MS. WILLIAMS:	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Two units.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. As opposed to across the fleet. And it's</li> </ul>
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We have a formal document that documents the	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Two units.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. As opposed to across the fleet. And it's been obviously the deterioration, the</li> </ul>
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We have a formal document that documents the decision making every week and exactly what	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Two units.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. As opposed to across the fleet. And it's been obviously the deterioration, the condition of the welds in those penstocks</li> </ul>
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We have a formal document that documents the decision making every week and exactly what each unit then is expected to do through	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Two units.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. As opposed to across the fleet. And it's been obviously the deterioration, the condition of the welds in those penstocks have affected it, and I think into 2017,</li> </ul>
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	see one every week different?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We see a new -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. You see the trending, the orange line every week?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, I look at it every day, but no, we do have, I'll call it, sort of a formal document that we look at with the decision making around how we decide to dispatch.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We have a formal document that documents the decision making every week and exactly what	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. The most significant impact on Bay d'Espoir becausethe rest of the hydraulic units have had very good performance.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Yes.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. So, it really has been the performance of the units that have been associated with the penstock that would out of service at a point in time. So, really two units.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Two units.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. As opposed to across the fleet. And it's been obviously the deterioration, the condition of the welds in those penstocks</li> </ul>

July 17, 2018 NL Hydro 2017 GRA

Page 45 Page 47

	Page 45		Page 47
1	penstock outage.	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	Q. The 2016 one.
3	Q. That's 1.64 out of –	3	MS. WILLIAMS:
4	MS. WILLIAMS:	4	A. And there's a Root Cause Report that has
5	A. 2.29.	5	been completed and submitted to the Board in
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	May on that.
7	Q. 2.29, okay. And this was—was this penstock		MR. O'BRIEN:
8	1?	8	Q. In May, that's what I understood.
9	MS. WILLIAMS:	9	MS. WILLIAMS:
10	A. Correct.	10	A. And the most material contribution found in
11	MR. O'BRIEN:	11	the Root Cause Report was operating in a
12	Q. Okay. And Mr. Haynes had talked about as	12	rough zone which was never understood to
13	well that there being recent repairs to a	13	affect the penstock condition. It was
14	leak and it was something that had occurred	14	understood that it can affect the generating
15	before with that particular penstock?	15	unit itself, its performance, and you have
16	MS. WILLIAMS:	16	various measures in place to ensure that
17	A. Um-hm.	17	·
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	rough zone operation doesn't impact your
19		19	generating unit itself, but it wasn't
20	Q. Is that right? MS. WILLIAMS:	20	understood to impact the penstock condition.
21		21	So, that was certainly a new finding for us
21	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	21	and we've taken that learning and made some
	penstock 1. It was addressed and put back		changes in how we operate those units. And
23	in service, and then we had another leak	23	so, as of November when we received the
24	develop in the same penstock.	24	report, the rough zone operation has been
25	MR. O'BRIEN:	25	materially reduced for those units, and
	Page 46		Page 48
1	Q. Right.	1	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board
2	Q. Right. MS. WILLIAMS:	2	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted
2 3	Q. Right. MS. WILLIAMS: A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know,	2 3	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment
2 3 4	<ul><li>Q. Right.</li><li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li><li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine</li></ul>	2 3 4	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was
2 3 4 5	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld
2 3 4 5 6	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock
2 3 4 5 6 7	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then,</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened,</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been previously addressed in 2016 had to be</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come back clean. So, we did have, out of the 60
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been previously addressed in 2016 had to be completed again. I think it was 26 or 29 welds had to be re-completed.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come back clean. So, we did have, out of the 60 welds, every one was fine, except for 1.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been previously addressed in 2016 had to be completed again. I think it was 26 or 29</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come back clean. So, we did have, out of the 60 welds, every one was fine, except for 1.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been previously addressed in 2016 had to be completed again. I think it was 26 or 29 welds had to be re-completed.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And of the earlier one?</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come back clean. So, we did have, out of the 60 welds, every one was fine, except for 1.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been previously addressed in 2016 had to be completed again. I think it was 26 or 29 welds had to be re-completed.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come back clean. So, we did have, out of the 60 welds, every one was fine, except for 1.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>Q. Right.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Downstream or upstream. It was, you know, within a couple of cans. Each can are nine feet from that one, but it wasn't the exact same location.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. In a similar location, in September, and it was addressed along with a lot if the interior welds and were replaced at the time due to the issues, the corrosion and the degradation that had been seen. And then, in 2017, in November, the second leak that we had seen, that's the one that reopened, and we had to go back in and address that. And some of the welds that had been previously addressed in 2016 had to be completed again. I think it was 26 or 29 welds had to be re-completed.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And of the earlier one?</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	actually, as a bit of an update, the Board and parties would be aware that we submitted for and were approved a condition assessment to undertake this year, and I think it was yesterday we completed the last weld inspection on penstock 1. And so, penstock 1 there were 60 welds that were inspected in two areas. One area was the previously refurbished welds, as well as the section that is in the lower portion downstream of the surge tank. And this is the area where we saw issues this year in penstock 3, and that was a bit of a surprise. And we had looked at those welds before, but we really had a really good look with all of the appropriate technology this year on penstock 1. So, we were a little wondering what we were going to see there, but they've come back clean. So, we did have, out of the 60 welds, every one was fine, except for 1.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. MS. WILLIAMS:

Page 49 1 and now reviewed. So, we're very pleased 1 Q. And are you expecting to have to do similar that the changes that we've made have not 2 type of repairs in the future in either of 2 3 caused any recurrence of degradation of the 3 these penstocks? 4 welds or a cracking in the welds. 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 5 We'll wait for the condition assessment MR. O'BRIEN: A. And there's no issue now with penstock 3? 6 recommendations. 6 Q. 7 (9:45 a.m.) 7 MR O'BRIEN: 8 8 MS. WILLIAMS: Q. Yes. 9 9 So, penstock 3, that's done and completed as MS. WILLIAMS: 10 10 It could range from get in and look at these MR. O'BRIEN: every year, and if they see a bit of an 11 11 issue here and there, address it, or you'll 12 Yes. 12 O. have a much larger issue. I was very MS. WILLIAMS: 13 13 heartened again to know that after one year 14 Α. And I'm not sure if the parties would be—be 14 15 up to date yet. There's a Rolling 15 of operation with the reduced rough zone Generation Report that's due at the end of 16 operation that we haven't really seen 16 17 the month. So, there'll be an update anything material. 17 certainly in that at the time, but penstock MR. O'BRIEN: 18 18 19 3's condition assessment has been done and 19 Yes. Q. 20 completed. That did have welding that had MS. WILLIAMS: 20 21 to be addressed, similar in quantity to what 21 A. Because you know, if we had a major 22 we saw in penstock 1. The anomaly on 22 significant issue, a solution might have 23 penstock 3 is in the lower portion of the 23 been a much more significant investment. penstock, and we have found a different MR. O'BRIEN: 24 24 25 specification and an actual different base 25 0. Yes. Page 50 Page 52 metal that was used for construction. 1 1 MS. WILLIAMS: 2 2 And obviously, you know, we prefer not to MR O'BRIEN: Α 3 3 do—have to do up massive investment in Q. Okay. MS. WILLIAMS: penstocks, but we'll do what's required. We 4 4 5 And so, now that we've seen the lower 5 do have to get into penstock 2 this year as 6 portion of penstock 1 with no issues, we're 6 well. That will tell us a little more 7 wondering if what we saw in penstock 3 might 7 exactly what the long-term solutions are for 8 be related to the base metal that we have— 8 the reliable operation. And penstock 2, 9 that we had found. A coupon has been cut 9 that was also refurbished last year. out and is sent away for assessment. MR. O'BRIEN: 10 10 MR. O'BRIEN: Yes. 11 O. 11 12 Q. Okay. 12 MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: Under a supplemental project, and it had 13 13 Α. But penstock 3 is put back in service. And also seen I think about half of the amount 14 14 again, too, the most contributing factor to of refurbishment required that we did see in 15 15 16 the degradation of the welds that--the 16 penstock 1 and penstock 3. 17 practice again, the rough zone operation, MR. O'BRIEN: 17 18 has been, you know, as much as eliminated Right 18 Q. and I know the operators in Mr. LeBlanc's 19 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 group have a much tighter, a tighter range 20 About 1500 feet I think is the range versus 21 in which to operate those units now. So, 3.000 and 3500 on the other two. 21 but they're doing it and we're seeing, you 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 23 know, the obviously the improvements in the The same issues or -23 0. 24 results of penstock 1. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 The same, similar issues.

Page 53 Page 55 1 MR. O'BRIEN: 1 0. So, you had actually—the 2.29 is below what you had planned for? Yes. 2 The same parts, yeah. 2 Q. 3 3 MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: 4 Yeah, exactly. So, the rough zone 4 What we had modelled in our near-term Α. Α. 5 operation, and you know, not to get too 5 generation adequacy. 6 technical, but there's this peaking MR. O'BRIEN: 6 7 phenomenon that also existed from original 7 0. Yes 8 construction that the rough zone operation 8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 and the peaking phenomenon together would 9 Yes, it was 2.6 I think. A. have resulted in what we're seeing now. So, 10 10 MR. O'BRIEN: by removing the rough operation, I'm hopeful 11 11 O. Okay. And just in terms of just moving to 12 that that is going to be a good portion of 12 the thermal generation performance, I the long-term solution, but the, you know understand just in terms of unit 1 at 13 13 MR. O'BRIEN: Holyrood, it's been derated for most of the 14 14 15 Yes. So, you expect performance to be a 15 Q. vear. little bit better and—forward into the MS. WILLIAMS: 16 16 future? Yes. 17 17 Α. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 I expect the performance to be very good 19 What types of issues have you dealt with Q. into the coming winters. there and where do you see that unit into 20 20 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 the future this year? 22 Okay. Because there's a large portion here 22 MS. WILLIAMS: Q. 23 of that performance associated with or the 23 The units in Holyrood are experiencing A. reduction significant deration due to the airflow 24 24 buildup, you know, the combustion particles 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 Page 56 Page 54 build up in the—some of the critical 1 A. Yes. 1 2 2 components out in Holyrood. So, absolutely MR. O'BRIEN: 3 3 - associated with those? Holyrood is not performing obviously where Q. 4 we want it to be, and it does exceed, you 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 5 Exactly. know, what we would like to see. The A. MR. O'BRIEN: 6 project that we have before the Board and 6 7 Yes. 7 for approval, and obviously there's some Q. 8 8 continuing information to be provided to the MS. WILLIAMS: 9 9 Board on that file, but we are proceeding A. And even the 2.29 in our near-term with a project to replace the hot end air 10 generation adequacy we assume, I think it's 10 combined, day 4 of 2.6. So, I would not heater baskets and to address an airflow 11 11 want to plan for 2.29. You know, I'm seal—sorry, seal clearance leakage issue on 12 12 disappointed obviously when we have an unit 3. So, we fully expect that project to 13 13 unplanned issue, but from our near-term reinstate materially if not to full capacity 14 14 generation planning perspective, even with 15 15 those units in advance. 16 the unplanned issue on penstock 1, we were 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 below our estimation. Unit 3 or all three? 17 0. MR. O'BRIEN: MS. WILLIAMS: 18 18 19 Q. Yes 19 All three. Α. MR. O'BRIEN: 20 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 21 And I don't minimize it at all. We take it 21 All three? A. Ο. MS. WILLIAMS: 22 very seriously, but it was better than the 22 23 (unintelligible) energy adequacy, and also 23 Yeah, very close to full, in advance of 24 was better than CEA. 24 winter. So, the historical--the most recent 25 25 performance I don't believe is indicative of MR. O'BRIEN:

Page 57 Page 59 1 what we can expect this coming winter. 1 0. Okay, but the other two are offline? 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 MS. WILLIAMS: 3 3 Q. Okay. I was going to ask that because A. Right. 4 historically you haven't had all three rated 4 MR. O'BRIEN: 5 5 Okay. I think you've covered performance. at full? Q. MS. WILLIAMS: 6 How about Stephenville in terms of gas 6 7 7 turbine performance? I understand there's No, and the previous year, in 2017, we came 8 8 in just under 15 percent day 4 at Holyrood. some repairs to be done, planned, in early 9 9 MR. O'BRIEN: August? Is that right? 10 Q. Yes. 10 MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: Correct. And Stephenville is—it sacrifices 11 11 A. itself for Hardwoods. 12 And this year, we're not tracking to 15. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: MR. O'BRIEN: 13 13 14 Q. What are you tracking to this year? 14 Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 We're in exceeding of 20. We are generally using it to make sure that 16 16 Hardwoods is in better performing condition. MR. O'BRIEN: 17 17 The need of Stephenville in its location and 18 Q. Okay. 18 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 its importance to the island is not the same 20 as Hardwoods. So, the group appropriately 20 But again, that is not going to be 21 indicative of what we're going to see this 21 make the decision to use critical components 22 coming winter. You know, I've said I will 22 from Stephenville to keep Hardwoods in 23 not go to the Board and ask for a project 23 better performance, and the performance of 24 unless somebody can be making very sure that Hardwoods is good to date. 24 25 this project will work. 25 MR. O'BRIEN: Page 58 Page 60 MR. O'BRIEN: 1 1 Q. Okay. Well, Stephenville right now is, 2 2 And when is that contemplated to be? When what, at—is it offline or is it currently Q. 3 do you contemplate having units ready? 3 rated 25? What's the -4 MS. WILLIAMS: 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 In advance of December 1st. 5 I think we've got one unit now in 25. 6 MR. O'BRIEN: MR. O'BRIEN: 6 7 Okay. So, right now where the three units-7 Yes. Q. Q. 8 right now unit 1 is around, what, 116? MS. WILLIAMS: What's it rated at right now? 9 9 A. Yeah. 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 MR. O'BRIEN: Both of the units offline now. And the repairs in terms of August, are they 11 11 still on line or in—on schedule? 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 12 All are offline? MS. WILLIAMS: 13 Q. 13 I haven't been told otherwise. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 14 Yeah. 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 Α. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 Q. Okay. And how about Hardwoods right now? What's the—where is Hardwoods? Okay. So, there's none in synchronous 17 17 condenser mode now? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 Hardwoods as well, the end of July I think A. 20 we've got a unit, one end that's got to come 20 A. Unit 3 I think is in sync. back out. We've got some work to do there. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 22 Unit 3 is? 22 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. 23 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 And what are the repairs necessary in

24

25

Hardwoods?

MS. WILLIAMS:

Yeah.

MR. O'BRIEN:

24

25

A.

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 61		Page 63
1	A. The bellows I believe.	1	the last couple of years if repowering is an
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	option. And that has been determined to be
3	Q. Bellows?	3	not an option. It—basically if you wanted
4	MS. WILLIAMS:	4	to repower it, it would—you'd have to
5	A. Yeah.	5	replace so much that it just—you'd have to
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	buy a whole brand new one. So, that's been
7	Q. Yes, okay.	7	ruled out. So, it was good to –
8	MS. WILLIAMS:	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	A. I'm trying to get the, yeah, the various	9	Q. It's not cost effective?
10	specifics.	10	MS. WILLIAMS:
11	MR. O'BRIEN:	11	A. Correct, yeah. So, and on the Stephenville
12	Q. I thought both had similar bellows issues,	12	end, the Stephenville unit from a
13	but I—they may not.	13	transmission planning perspective, there's
14	MS. WILLIAMS:	14	
1		15	really two gates you've got to think about.
15	A. Yeah, I think we sacrificed again		One is what's needed from a generation
16	Stephenville, I think, to get Hardwoods	16	planning perspective, and one from a
17	back.	17	transmission planning perspective. And
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	Stephenville from a transmission planning
19	Q. Okay.	19	perspective would not be required. However,
20	MS. WILLIAMS:	20	we'd have to put in a power transformer and
21	A. But I'd have to go back and double check if	21	breakers and switches at Bottom Brook which,
22	you want the exact detail.	22	you know, I think everyone would know that
23	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	that would likely be much—a much cheaper
24	Q. And I understand from Hydro's capital budget		solution than the ongoing –
25	last year there was a requirement that you	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
	1		MIC, O BICIEI (.
	Page 62		Page 64
1		1	
1 2	Page 62	1 2	Page 64
1	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans	1	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:
2	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?	1 2	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:
2 3	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS:	1 2 3	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And
2 3 4	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3 4 5	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this
2 3 4 5 6	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3 4 5 6	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat
2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Fage 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Fage 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Fage 62 file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review that we're doing on the island this year	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple of staged things that would have to occur
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review that we're doing on the island this year that determines what is indeed required post	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple of staged things that would have to occur from a transmission perspective. Exactly
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review that we're doing on the island this year that determines what is indeed required post Muskrat from a reliability and a planning	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple of staged things that would have to occur from a transmission perspective. Exactly what's needed on the island from a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review that we're doing on the island this year that determines what is indeed required post Muskrat from a reliability and a planning perspective. So, some of the preliminary	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple of staged things that would have to occur from a transmission perspective. Exactly what's needed on the island from a synchronous condensing or generation
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review that we're doing on the island this year that determines what is indeed required post Muskrat from a reliability and a planning perspective. So, some of the preliminary conclusions from the gas turbine review that	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple of staged things that would have to occur from a transmission perspective. Exactly what's needed on the island from a synchronous condensing or generation perspective with those two units removed is
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	file a report looking at the long-term plans for each of these units?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Um-hm. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Has that been done? MS. WILLIAMS: A. The report is done. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And it will be filed with the Board obviously within—this is the middle of July. The end of July in the capital budget. And in addition to, I think, to really understanding the possibilities for these two gas turbines, we have to consider those in conjunction with the reliability review that we're doing on the island this year that determines what is indeed required post Muskrat from a reliability and a planning perspective. So, some of the preliminary	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, keeping a gas turbine going. And then, similar, at Hardwoods. So, I should havesorry, I should have said this earlier, both units are needed until Muskrat interconnection. So, we need to keep them functioning as much as we possibly can until that time, and then, we'll determine what we need exactly from the reliability perspective. But from the transmission perspective, Stephenville, you'd have to put in a power transformer and a breaker. And at Hardwoods, that similar, we'll call it, transmission system investment, not necessarily say by 2021. For example, I think Oxen Pond would need a power transformer in 2026. So, there's a couple of staged things that would have to occur from a transmission perspective. Exactly what's needed on the island from a synchronous condensing or generation

Page 67  we'll look at what the least cost solution could be.  we'll look at what the least cost solution could be.  MR OBRIEN:  A M. OBRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A Well, we — 90  MR OBRIEN:  MR OBRIEN:  MR OBRIEN:  A Well, we — 90  MR OBRIEN:  A Well we — 90  MR OBRIEN:  A Well we — 90  MR OBRIEN:  A Well we — 90  MR OBRIEN:  A Weld was with this report;  MR WILLIAMS:  A Weld was with the bigger review.  MR OBRIEN:  A Weld was with the was will be contained in the capital budget is the capital budget is the capital required to the capital budget is the capital required to the capital budget is the capital required to the capital budget is the capital budget is the capital required to the capital budget is the capital budget is the capital required to be doing consultation with the various parties.  A and what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't review with some cost benefit analysis that you've already done?  MR OBRIEN:  A correct, exactly.  MR WILLIAMS:  A correct, exactly.  MR WILLIAMS:  A Absolutely.  MR WILLIAMS:  MR WILLIAMS:  A No, it it gas turbines on the island?  Is it something different? Is it trying to what you you you would plan on providing parties, if you're already done?  MR OBRIEN:  MR WILLIAMS:  A And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't gas will be contained in the system. Once we do on treview	July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
2 could be 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 4 Q. And have you done—like with this report that 's going to be filed soon, have you done as cost benefit analysis for those particular units for replacement in that report? 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 A. Well, we— 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 Q. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or is that going to be part of the bigger resident in the report is that going to be part of the bigger resident in the report is that going to be part of the bigger resident in the report is that going to be part of the bigger resident in the report is that going to be part of the bigger resident in the report is that going to be part of the bigger review. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. It'll be part o'the bigger review. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to the capital budget is the capital required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spir out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty reinvesting in those, I don't think review could spir out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then ovbiously, you know, and as Liberty to momented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. In the part o'the bigger review. 15 Q. Okay. 16 Change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think review could spir out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then ovbiously, wou know, and as Liberty would say, "O'tay, we've analyzed what that the future system has," and then Hydor would kay, "O'kay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 15 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 16 A. Mos WILLIAMS: 27 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 30 A. So, you're planning—just to follow-up on what sequence of the province of the parties. And if the win		Page 65		Page 67
3 MR. O'BRIEN: 4 Q. And have you done—like with this report that's going to be filed soon, have you done a cost benefit analysis for those particular or units for replacement in that report? 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 6 MS. WILLIAMS: 7 Repair versus replacement kind of thing or its that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 A. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or its that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 11 Q. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or its that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 12 is that going to be part of the bigger review. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. If I'll be part of the bigger review. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't returnishing those would be required, but refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spir out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really meed to be doing consultation with the various parties. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really—to be admitted in their report, you really in perfect on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spir out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really in perfect on the system. Once we do our review because that required out to be doing consultation with the various parties. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Yes. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 34 And then we'd say, "There's a gap that the future system has," and then I	1	we'll look at what the least cost solution	1	to fill that gap."
4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 A. And have you done—like with this report that's going to be filed soon, have you done a cost benefit analysis for those particular units for replacement in that report? 7 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 A. Well, we – 9 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 11 G. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 11 13 reliability analysis? 13 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 14 15 A. It'll be part of the bigger review. 15 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 17 Q. Yes. 17 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 12 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 21 O. Okay. 21 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 23 Q. Okay. 22 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 25 A. And whar's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 26 change, but again from repowering, 26 reinvesting in those, I don't think refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the agap that you need to fill. And then who would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the spartes. 11 26 Language the parties. And if it's no cost, then obviously, you know, a very significant appropriate review for us to undertake. And you know, a very as going to the part of the bigger review. 15 27 Q. Ves. 17 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 29 Q. Okay. 19 20 Ves. 19 21 Condition of the bigger review. 19 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 23 Q. Okay. 21 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 25 A. And whar's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 26 Change, but again from repowering, 27 27 Repetition of the parties, if you're going to engage them, with some cost benefit analysis that you view already done? 20 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 29 Q. Okay. 21 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 20 Q. Okay. 23 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 23 Q. Okay. 25 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 25 A. And whar's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 26 A. And then we've do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, ear eas the parties. And if the unit in service, we	2	could be.	2	MR. O'BRIEN:
4 Q. And have you done—like with this report that's going to be filed soon, have you done a cost benefit analysis for those particular units for replacement in that report?  7 M. Well, We —	3	MR. O'BRIEN:	3	Q. Yes.
that's going to be filed soon, have you done a cost benefit analysis for those particular units for replacement in that report?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Well, we—  Page 68  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIE	1	O. And have you done—like with this report		7
6 a cost benefit analysis for those particular units for replacement in that report? 7 wints for replacement in that report? 8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 A. Well, we- 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 Q. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 12 is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 13 reliability analysis? 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. If I'll be part of the bigger review. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 to keep the units functioning until 2021. 21 to keep the units functioning until 2021. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Oday: 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't reprived the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Goky, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Goky, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Goky, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 39 MS. WILL		•	5	A. And then, we'll engage the parties. And if
minis for replacement in that report?  M. W. W. I. I.A.M.S:  M. W. I. W. W. —  M. O'BRIEN:  M. M. LILAMS:  M. M. URLIAMS:  M. W. COBRIEN:  M. W. COBRIEN:  M. W. W. COBRIEN:  M. W. W. W. COBRIEN:  M. W.	l			
8 MS. WIL IJAMS: 9 A. Well, we— 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 Q. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or reliability analysis? 12 is that going to be part of the bigger review. 13 reliability analysis? 14 MS. WIL IJAMS: 15 A. If 'll be part of the bigger review. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WIL IJAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 To keep the units functioning until 2021. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't erview could spin bay to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spin out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty or verview could spin out, you know, here's a gap that the future system has," Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that up the treport, you really need to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that up apis if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 A. Correct, exactly. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. In order to get their thoughts on it? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. Absolutely. 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 Q. How about the Holyrood CT, any issues experienced with that? 29 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 30 MR. O'BRIEN: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 54 MS. WILLIAMS: 55 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 55 MS. WILLIAMS: 66 MS. WILLIAMS: 77 MS. WILLIAMS: 78 MS. WILLIAMS: 89 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 80 MR. O'BRIEN: 80 MS. WILLIAMS: 81 MS. WILLIAMS: 81 MS. WILLIAMS: 82 MS. WILLIAMS: 83 MS. WILLIAMS: 84 MS. WILLIAMS: 85 MS. WILLIAMS: 86 A. But it's exactly	1	J 1		
9 A. Well, we— 10 MR O'BRIEN: 11 Q. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 12 is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 13 reliability analysis? 14 MS, WILLIAMS: 15 A. It'll be part of the bigger review. 16 MR, O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS, WILLIAMS: 18 MS, WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 20 MR, O'BRIEN: 21 Q. Okay. 22 MK, O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS, WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 20 MR, O'BRIEN: 21 MR, O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. 23 Q. Usay. 24 MS, WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 26 A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that aga is if you compare ourselves to our neiphbours." 27 MR, O'BRIEN: 28 MR, O'BRIEN: 29 MR, O'BRIEN: 21 MR, O'BRIEN: 21 MR, O'BRIEN: 21 MR, O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay, Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 23 Q. Ves. 24 MS, WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs." 26 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs." 27 And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs."	I	-		÷ •
MR. O'BRIEN:	I			
11 Q. Repair versus replacement kind of thing or is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis? 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. It'll be part of the bigger review. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning unitl 2021. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 22 reinvesting in those, I don't think and the conclusions of what's required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty 20 parties. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 34 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. Boboutely. 45 MS. WILLIAMS: 46 MS. WILLIAMS: 47 MS. WILLIAMS: 48 MS. WILLIAMS: 49 MS. WILLIAMS: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MS. WILLIAMS: 41 MS. WILLIAMS: 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MS. WILLIAMS: 45 MS. WILLIAMS: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MS. WILLIAMS: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MS. WILLIAMS: 41 MS. WILLIAMS: 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MS. WILLIAMS: 45 MS. WILLIAMS: 46 MS. WILLIAMS: 47 MS. WILLIAMS: 48 MS. WILLIAMS: 49 MS. WILLIAMS: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MS. WILLIAMS: 45 MS. WILLIAMS: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MS. WILLIAMS: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 44 MS. WILLIAMS: 45 MS. WILLIAMS: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MS. WILLIAMS: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MS. WILLIAMS: 45 MR. O'BRIEN: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MR. O'BRIEN: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR.	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
is that going to be part of the bigger reliability analysis?  A. It'll be part of the bigger review.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O	1			
reliability analysis?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. It'll be part of the bigger review.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Yes.  MR. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021.  D. Okay.  MR. O'BRIEN:  D. Okay.  MR. WE WILLIAMS:  And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRI	I			
MS. WILLIAMS:	1			
15 A. It'll be part of the bigger review. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 17 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 Converted to keep the units functioning until 2021. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 A. Absolutely. 27 Page 68 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 Change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, hand as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 28 gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 30 Q. Yes. 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 Q. Yes. 41 Q. Yes. 42 MS. WILLIAMS: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 Q. Yes. 55 MS. WILLIAMS: 45 MR. O'BRIEN: 56 MR. O'BRIEN: 66 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 51 MS. WILLIAMS: 52 MR. O'BRIEN: 53 MR. O'BRIEN: 54 A. And we might come forward and to really-to would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 55 MS. WILLIAMS: 56 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs. 57 MR. O'BRIEN: 58 MR. O'BRIEN: 59 MR. O'BRIEN: 50 Q. Yes. 50 Q. O'Ray. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhault that you've already done? 50 MR. O'BRIEN: 51 MR. O'BRIEN: 52 A. Absolutely. 53 A. Absolutely. 54 MS. WILLIAMS: 55 A. BrutiaMS: 66 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that you neve to do? 67 MS. WILLIAMS: 68 A. And we really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that you neve to do? 68 MR. O'BRIEN: 69 O'RAN AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AN	1	• •		•
16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't a gain, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: 26 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 Q. Yes. 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Yes. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 A. Correct, exactly. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. In order to get their thoughts on it? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't be really singhistic, say, "Here's a gap that you need to fill. And then would spirity in the various parties. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. In order to get their thoughts on it? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't be really singhistic, say, "Here's a gap that you need to fill. And then would spirity in the service we definitely had a few bumps and bruises. 30 MR. O'BRIEN: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. Yes. 33 MR. O'BRIEN: 34 MR. O'BRIEN: 35 MS. WILLIAMS: 36 MR. O'BRIEN: 37 MR. O'BRIEN: 38 MR. O'BRIEN: 39 MR. O'BRIEN: 30 MR. O'BRIEN: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do? 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1			
17 Q. Yes. 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 21 to keep the units functioning until 2021. 22 MR. OBRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 26 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 reinvesting in those, I don't think 28 refurbishing those would be required, but 38 agan, we really have to see the content and 49 the conclusions of what's required on the 50 system. Once we do our review, because that 64 review could spit out, you know, here's a 68 gap that you need to fill. And then 69 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 90 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 29 gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 17 MR. O'BRIEN: 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 WILLIAMS: 19 WI	1			
18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't contained in the capital budget in the 2019 budget doesn't contained in the capital budget form repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think conclusions of what's required but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  10 MS. WILLIAMS: 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 Page 68 1 I MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. How about the Holyrood CT, any issues experienced with that? 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 A. No, its reliability has been very good. 6 Obviously, you know, when we very first had the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises. 9 obviously, you know, and as Liberty on the fire propt, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties. 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours." 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul thay on have to do? 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, wo'd	1			
19 A. We do know that what will be contained in the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then flydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then flydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  18 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 O, Yes. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. Absolutely. 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 A. No, its reliability has been very good. 29 Okay. So, that's a highly reliable unit right now. 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and — 20 Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1			
the capital budget is the capital required to keep the units functioning until 2021.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 24 MS. WILLIAMS:  Terinvesting in those, I don't think 25 the conclusions of what's required, but 36 again, we really have to see the content and 56 the conclusions of what's required on the 57 review could spit out, you know, here's a 88 gap that you need to fill. And then 59 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 26 commented in their report, you really need 17 to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  10 Change, but again from repowering, 27 reinvesting in those, I don't think 28 experienced with that?  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
to keep the units functioning until 2021.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.  And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Page 68  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. How about the Holyrood CT, any issues experienced with that?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, its reliability has been very good.  O'bviously, you know, when we very first had the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'B	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 26 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 27 A. Absolutely.  Page 68  1	1			
23 Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't 26 Change, but again from repowering, 27 reinvesting in those, I don't think 28 refurbishing those would be required, but 49 again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then to be doing consultation with the various parties.  10				· •
A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't  A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't  Page 66  Change, but again from repowering, refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:   1				
25 A. And what's going in the 2019 budget doesn't Change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  WILLIAMS:  A. No, its reliability has been very good.  Obviously, you know, when we very first had the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN:  WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Yes.  MR. WILLIAMS:  A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. O'BRIEN:  A. And t	1	•		`
Page 68    Change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think again, we really have to see the content and to be collisions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.    MR. O'BRIEN:   A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."    MR. O'BRIEN:   16	1			
change, but again from repowering, reinvesting in those, I don't think refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts bas	23	<u> </u>	23	<u> </u>
reinvesting in those, I don't think refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1		1	- 1
refurbishing those would be required, but again, we really have to see the content and the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for,	1			
4 again, we really have to see the content and 5 the conclusions of what's required on the 6 system. Once we do our review, because that 7 review could spit out, you know, here's a 8 gap that you need to fill. And then 9 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 10 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 10 neighbours." 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this 15 year? 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a 18 project for, I guess, a fairly significant 19 investment that was starts based 20 essentially, and – 21 neighbours." 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe				
the conclusions of what's required on the system. Once we do our review, because that review could spit out, you know, here's a gap that you need to fill. And then obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. And we might come forward and to really—to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I		-		<u> </u>
6 system. Once we do our review, because that 7 review could spit out, you know, here's a 8 gap that you need to fill. And then 9 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 10 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 11 neighbours." 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this 15 year? 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a 18 project for, I guess, a fairly significant 19 investment that was starts based 20 essentially, and - 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 20 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	I			
7 review could spit out, you know, here's a 8 gap that you need to fill. And then 9 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 10 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 11 neighbours." 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this 15 year? 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a 18 project for, I guess, a fairly significant 19 investment that was starts based 20 essentially, and – 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	Ι.	•		
8 gap that you need to fill. And then 9 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 10 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 10 neighbours." 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 bumps and bruises.  9 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 Q. Yes. 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and — 20 essentially, and — 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1	•		Obviously, you know, when we very first had
9 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 10 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 21 neighbours." 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 obviously, you know, and as Liberty 20 Land Commented in their report, you really need 20 Commented in their report, you really need 21 NR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 23 NR. WILLIAMS: 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1			
10 commented in their report, you really need 11 to be doing consultation with the various 12 parties. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to really-to 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 20 neighbours." 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 27 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and — 21 meighbours." 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe				the unit in service, we definitely had a few
to be doing consultation with the various parties.  11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yes. 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 10 neighbours." 17 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 WILLIAMS: 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this 15 year? 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a 18 project for, I guess, a fairly significant 19 investment that was starts based 20 essentially, and — 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1 ^		8	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.
parties.  12  A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now.  13  MR. O'BRIEN:  14  Q. Yes.  15  MS. WILLIAMS:  16  A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17  be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18  that the future system has," and then Hydro 19  would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20  gap is if you compare ourselves to our 21  neighbours."  22  MR. O'BRIEN: 23  Q. Yes. 24  MS. WILLIAMS: 25  A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26  A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. 18  MR. O'BRIEN: 19  Way. Any repairs contemplated on it this 19  year? 16  MS. WILLIAMS: 17  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a 18  project for, I guess, a fairly significant 19  investment that was starts based 20  essentially, and – 21  MR. O'BRIEN: 22  Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 23  overhaul that you have to do? 24  MS. WILLIAMS: 25  A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	1	obviously, you know, and as Liberty	8 9	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN:
MR. O'BRIEN:  14 Q. Yes.  15 MS. WILLIAMS:  16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 21 neighbours."  22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs  13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this 15 year?  16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a 18 project for, I guess, a fairly significant 19 investment that was starts based 20 essentially, and – 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 23 overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need	8 9 10	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes.
14Q. Yes.14Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this15MS. WILLIAMS:15year?16A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."16MS. WILLIAMS:20gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."18project for, I guess, a fairly significant21MR. O'BRIEN:20essentially, and -22MR. O'BRIEN:22Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big23Q. Yes.23overhaul that you have to do?24MS. WILLIAMS:24MS. WILLIAMS:25A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs25A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various	8 9 10 11	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:
15 MS. WILLIAMS: 16 A. And we might come forward and to reallyto 17 be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap 18 that the future system has," and then Hydro 19 would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 21 neighbours." 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 NS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 20 overhaul that you have to do? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.	8 9 10 11 12	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now.
A. And we might come forward and to really-to be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —  21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN:	8 9 10 11 12 13	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN:
be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Yes.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and –  21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes.	8 9 10 11 12 13 14	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this
that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. Q. Yes. A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs  18 project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based 20 essentially, and – 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 23 overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?
would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that 20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 21 neighbours." 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 23 Q. Yes. 23 overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year? MS. WILLIAMS:
20 gap is if you compare ourselves to our 21 neighbours." 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 20 essentially, and – 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big 23 overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a
21neighbours."21MR. O'BRIEN:22MR. O'BRIEN:22Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big23Q. Yes.23overhaul that you have to do?24MS. WILLIAMS:24MS. WILLIAMS:25A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs25A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant
22MR. O'BRIEN:22Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big23Q. Yes.23overhaul that you have to do?24MS. WILLIAMS:24MS. WILLIAMS:25A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs25A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based
23 Q. Yes. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 23 overhaul that you have to do? 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and —
24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and –  MR. O'BRIEN:
25 A. And then, we'd say, "This is what it costs 25 A. The big overhaul, correct. And I believe	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN:	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and –  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big
, , , ,	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes.	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and –  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?
	10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	obviously, you know, and as Liberty commented in their report, you really need to be doing consultation with the various parties.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. And we might come forward and to reallyto be really simplistic, say, "Here's a gap that the future system has," and then Hydro would say, "Okay, we've analyzed what that gap is if you compare ourselves to our neighbours."  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS:	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	the unit in service, we definitely had a few bumps and bruises.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yes. MS. WILLIAMS: A. But it's a highly reliable unit right now. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. Any repairs contemplated on it this year?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. In the capital budget for 2018, there was a project for, I guess, a fairly significant investment that was starts based essentially, and –  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. So, that's the overhaul, the big overhaul that you have to do?  MS. WILLIAMS:

NL Hydro 2017 GRA July 17, 2018

1			NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 69		Page 71
1	when we submitted for the approval of that	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	in the 2018 budget, it would be, okay, we'll	2	Q. Okay. And are those capitaland I will get
3	do the planning and the procurement and the	3	to this sort of a bit later, but do those
4	engineering in the 2018. And we would	4	capital costs enter into your thought
5	advance and do the execution in 2019, but if	5	process when you're deciding to run it?
6	the starts were such that we had to advance	6	MS. WILLIAMS:
7	it, then we would talk with the Board about	7	A. Absolutely. So, the analysis that I've
8	that. We would inform the Board.	8	mentioned yesterday that we do, I mean we
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	have on a day had the—what's been developed
10	Q. Right.	10	in Mr. LeBlanc's group is these tools now,
11	MS. WILLIAMS:	11	these visual tools that help you look
12	A. And as I understand it, that's being	12	forward and see from a spinning perspective
13	contemplated now to talk with the Board	13	from a reserve perspective, when could you
14	about that.	14	need non-conventional generation? When
15	MR. O'BRIEN:	15	could you need your gas turbines? And so,
16	Q. So, are you –	16	when we see that, that's when we decide to
17	MS. WILLIAMS:	17	go and speak with Energy Marketing and say,
18	A. Or submit that to the Board, sorry.	18	"Okay, we have a need here. If you could
19	MR. O'BRIEN:	19	procure energy for us and capacity for us,
20	Q. Your starts have advanced to that extent?	20	you know, in the morning and the evening for
21	MS. WILLIAMS:	21	the next two days, you know, four hours a
22	A. Correct.	22	day at both times a day, we would"—"Can you
23	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	tell us what that price is?" And they would
24	Q. That you're hitting that annual or that—	24	come back and say, "Here is the price." And
25	sorry, that large overhaul that has to be	25	we say, "Well, that's"—we run that through
	Page 70		Page 72
1	done?	1	our little analysis, and if it comes out
2	(10:00 a.m.)	2	cheaper than the gas turbines, we say,
	MS. WILLIAMS:		cheaper than the gas turbines, we say,
1		2	"I at's produce that" and then we affect it
3		3	"Let's procure that," and then we offset it.
4	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to	4	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts
4 5	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we	4 5	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the
4 5 6	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had	4 5 6	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.
4 5 6 7	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports	4 5 6 7	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:
4 5 6 7 8	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.	4 5 6 7 8	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime
4 5 6 7 8 9	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.  MR. O'BRIEN:	4 5 6 7 8 9	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of
4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right?</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at the supply cost application that we had
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at the supply cost application that we had completed, we were dispatching in the least
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. It's back calculated that you -</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at the supply cost application that we had completed, we were dispatching in the least cost order, so we were only running gas
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. It's back calculated that you -</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at the supply cost application that we had completed, we were dispatching in the least cost order, so we were only running gas turbines as a last resort, as our last
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. It's back calculated that you - MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. It's back calculated from that?</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at the supply cost application that we had completed, we were dispatching in the least cost order, so we were only running gas turbines as a last resort, as our last option.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>A. Yes, and it would certainly be related to the Holyrood availability that we experienced this winter, and before we had the Maritime Link ability to do the imports and the offsetting.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And so, when you—and we got some information there on the record just in terms of what the capital cost of starting or an equivalent start might be for the CT, that's what that's based on? It's sort of the annual overhauls and that kind of thing?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yeah.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. It's back calculated that you -</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	And as I mentioned, we've offset 15 starts this year with the gas turbine since the Maritime Link went into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And so prior to that, prior to the Maritime Link going in service, would those types of capital costs have been, would operators be asked to consider those types of capital costs before running the generation?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I don't know that we –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Was that part of your mindset kind of thing?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, I guess, you know, if we looked at the supply cost application that we had completed, we were dispatching in the least cost order, so we were only running gas turbines as a last resort, as our last

Page 73 Page 75 MS. WILLIAMS: 1 Yeah. So I can read them to you if that's 1 Α. 2 A. That's how it's built in, yeah. 2 what you want. MR. O'BRIEN: 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 4 And I think you answered this question, Mr. 4 Yes, sure. 0. 5 LeBlanc, just in terms of backup generation 5 MR. LEBLANC: in the event that there's a bi-pole trip on 6 So on January 24th, TL215 in Port aux Basques 6 experienced an unplanned outage for 5 hours 7 7 the LIL, that's something that's going to be 8 part of the reliability sort of assessment 8 and 38 minutes, so that was a big 9 down the road, is that right, in terms of 9 contributor to it, and then on December 30th, 10 any contracts with NB Power or Nova Scotia 10 there was an unplanned power outage of 1 Power, we only had the assistance contract hour, 34 minutes and it was caused by a trip 11 11 12 right now. 12 of TL214, or a winter storm in the area, so MR. LEBLANC: 13 those were the big drivers in 2017 for T-13 14 Α. Yes. We have reserve assistance now, but we 14 SAIDI. 15 do want to get into reserve sharing if 15 MR. O'BRIEN: possible. And in terms of sort of regions, which 16 16 17 MR. O'BRIEN: regions would have been more driving this 17 18 Q. And have you gotten into any discussions 18 figure? That's an all regions figure, I 19 further in terms of reserve sharing with 19 guess. 20 anvone other than Nova Scotia Power? 20 MR. LEBLANC: 21 MR. LEBLANC: 21 Yes, that's for it all. So again, the Port A. 22 Not at this stage because with reserve aux Basque area and the -A. 22 sharing you also need a firm transmission 23 23 MR. O'BRIEN: path and right now, there is a bottleneck 24 24 They're the bigger drivers. Q. 25 from New Brunswick to Nova Scotia, so if we 25 MR. LEBLANC: Page 74 Page 76 1 had reserve sharing, it would have to be 1 Α. Yeah. MR. O'BRIEN: with Nova Scotia Power at this point. 2 2 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 How do these figures compare to CEA Q. 4 It would have to be with Nova Scotia, okay. 4 averages? Q. 5 And in terms of transmission reliability, 5 MR. LEBLANC: 6 maybe I'll ask you about this, Mr. LeBlanc. 6 Again, not great, again in comparing it to A. 7 I wonder if we could bring up Information 1 7 CEA. 8 and that would be page 10 of Information 1. 8 MR O'BRIEN: 9 Transmission Performance and this one is 9 0. Just explain to that to me, why? 10 updated to include 2017 actuals and appears 10 MR. LEBLANC: that the SAIDI there was much higher in 2017 11 CEA just has one region that combines urban 11 from 2016, can you account for that? and rural and we're mainly a rural area, we 12 12 have no underground transmission. We also 13 MR. LEBLANC: 13 have a low number of delivery points which 14 Yes, I do have a list of outages that 14 explain it. Now, if I can find them, but 15 15 is what T-SAIFI and T-SAIDI is based on. 16 again, they were all outage related. 16 Again, if you have one long line with one MR. O'BRIEN: station at the end and that line goes out, 17 17 Outage related, yes. you have a resulting thing, but if you have 18 18 Q. the same length of line with 10 stations on 19 MR. LEBLANC: 19 20 20 A. So they were incidents that happened. it, you would divide by 10, so your 21 reliability would be 10 times better if you 21 MR. O'BRIEN: have multiple stations on that line. So we 22 I understood like 2016 you would anticipate 22 0. 23 to be higher because of other reasons, but 23 have long lengths of line serving a small 24 2017 was outage related. 24 amount of stations. Again, so we have a lot of radio lines and that sets your T-SAIFI, MR. LEBLANC: 25 25

NL Hydro 2017 GRA

July 17, 2018 Page 77 Page 79 1 T-SAIDI, makes it worse in that thing, but 1 but we have rounded the corner and we are 2 if you were in an urban area where you have 2 seeing an improvement. The trend is, again, 3 a ring transmission line with multiple 3 I won't say trending downward, but an 4 4 terminal stations off it, the same amount of improvement. 5 5 outages per kilometer would result in much MR. O'BRIEN: better reliability statistics. 6 Do you anticipate further improvement going 6 Q. 7 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 into the test years? 8 8 Okay, and your statistics there, so do you MR. LEBLANC: Q. 9 focus more on sort of your own targets and 9 Yes, we expect it to continue to improve. A. your own past sort of, I guess, successes, Again, we have done a lot of planned outages 10 10 and planned maintenance which also affects as opposed to CEA average? 11 11 MR. LEBLANC: 12 vour reliability. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 Yes, we create our own outage statistics and 13 set them as our targets based on, again, we Affects your figures, yeah. 14 14 Q. 15 subject the planned outages, we look at the 15 MR. LEBLANC: unplanned portion only and we improve on So the more planned outages you have, the 16 16 17 that number, so extract unplanned, improve 17 worse your reliability stats, but as we're it, then add on our plan to maintenance work seeing it improving and we correct the 18 18 19 for the upcoming year and that becomes our 19 backlog of deficiencies on our system, then 20 we can tone down on the amount of planned 20 new target. MR. O'BRIEN: outages which will help reliability and 21 21 22 And where are you now, just say in terms of 22 because we've caught up and have gotten to Q. 23 unplanned versus where you were back in 23 the backlog of deficiencies, that will also 2012, 2011, that sort of thing? 24 improve our reliability stats. 24 25 MR. LEBLANC: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: Page 78 Page 80 Okay. If we can move to the next page of We are slowly improving. The worst of it 1 Q. 1 A. 2 was in 2014, but since 2014 to present our 2 this one, the distribution performance. In 3 outage indices are improving, both in 3 2017 I just saw distribution performance transmission and in distribution. seems to be up from 2016 in terms of SAIDI. 4 4 5 5 MR. O'BRIEN: MR. LEBLANC: And what are you doing to do that? 6 Again, the SAIDI was up slightly, but again, 6 Q. A. 7 MR. LEBLANC: 7 you can't look at a particular year, you 8 Again, we have increased O&M, our CMs, PMs, 8 have to look at the trends. 9 we do inspections of our lines, we do 9 MR. O'BRIEN: helicopter patrols, we do infrared thermal 10 10 Okay. Q. vision, looking for hotspots, a frayed MR. LEBLANC: 11 11 conductor, insulators that may be cracked or Again, was 2017 a worse weather year? You 12 12 Α. 13 tracking and things like that, so again a don't know. Was there a type of equipment 13 bit more due diligence going in. We have that we had problems with and we had to go 14 14 the Winter Readiness Program where we 15 in and do a bunch of planned outages to 15 identify our major elements, they all get 16 16 repair or replace that equipment? So there inspected and looked at and any are a lot of factors and so, if you look at 17 17 18 discrepancies or deficiencies found are 18 the overall trend in the moving averages, we corrected before the upcoming winter season. are still trending downward or towards 19 19 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 improvement in both SAIFI and SAIDI. And those things are moving along better 21 21 MR. O'BRIEN: than they were, say, back in 2013, 2014? 22 22 Well if you look at the 2012, and I know we 0. 23 MR. LEBLANC: 23 don't have anything prior to that, there

24

25

MR. LEBLANC:

Yes, and again, reliability you just can't

turn on a dime; it's a slow-moving beast,

24

25

A.

seemed to be a trend upwards.

Page 81 Page 83 1 A. Yeah, it was upward to—trending upwards to 1 Α. Yes. 2 2 2014, then from 2014 to 2017 actual, we are MR. O'BRIEN: 3 3 trending downwards. 0. In terms of how you look at that, what do 4 4 MR. O'BRIEN: you do when you look—I know that's a new 5 Except for, well the '17 actual you are not. 5 index that Hydro uses now versus what was Q. MR. LEBLANC: 6 used before, something that's sort of 6 No. but the trend is still downwards. 7 created -7 8 8 MR. LEBLANC: MR. O'BRIEN: 9 9 Q. Do you anticipate say the test years to be No, it's not a replacement, it's an A. additional indices that we would look at. 10 lower? 10 11 MR. LEBLANC: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 12 Yes, again, the same as the transmission, we 12 Okay, that's fair, and just in terms of how Α. 0. expect it to continue to improve. 13 that was, the thought process in creating 13 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 that additional index, I want to get an idea 15 And are you doing the same sorts of things 15 from you as to how you use that, the results Q. 16 of that, going forward for operational 16 there? 17 MR. LEBLANC: 17 decisions. 18 Α. Yes, again, the exact same things, we do 18 MR. LEBLANC: 19 inspections and when we decide our own and 19 I wasn't here when it was developed, but A. we look at our worse performing feeders and 20 20 what I understand is the bulk of the 21 so that's how we prioritize our work, which 21 electricity consumers on the island are 22 ones need the most tender-loving care based 22 Newfoundland Power customers, and we were 23 on reliability stats and the outages, so all 23 reporting our outage statistics on our 24 outages, and where they are, are tracked, 24 customers only, and then we thought, well, 25 that's put into a database and our 25 we're affecting a lot more people than just Page 82 Page 84 1 1 reliability engineers examine that and they our own customers if we have issues with our 2 make recommendations on where we have to 2 transmission system and our bulk delivery 3 concentrate our efforts in terms of O&M. 3 system, so we decided that we would look at 4 4 MR. O'BRIEN: that as well. What effect does Newfoundland 5 So just in terms of your O&M and that sort 5 Power have—or not Newfoundland Power, sorry, Q. 6 of thing, what are the big things that Newfoundland Hydro have on the electricity 6 7 you're doing that you may not have been 7 consumers on the island, and that's why that 8 doing in 2012, '13, '14, that kind of area? 8 indice was created 9 Is there anything big that sort of jumps out 9 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 at you as what you're doing now? 10 Right, no, I understood that. And do you Q. MR. LEBLANC: look at that regularly? I mean, is that 11 11 Again, the biggest thing we're doing is something that you plan on looking at to 12 A. 12 inspections. We're inspecting our gauge your operations? 13 13 infrastructure, we're doing—we have a Wood MR. LEBLANC: 14 14 15 Pole Management Program, so we inspect our 15 Again, it's looked at, we look at the four Α. 16 wood poles and when we're there, we also 16 indices now. We look at T-SAIFI, T-SAIDI 17 look at the crossarms, insulators. Again, 17 for Hydro, we look at SAFI and SAIDI for 18 assessing the condition of all our 18 Hydro and we look at the end-consumer 19 19 infrastructure. reliability indices as well, and all five of 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 those are used in the assessment of where we concentrate our efforts in terms of O&M and 21 I wonder if we could go to where we had—I 21 Q. 22 wanted to talk about system performance as a 22 what work we plan for the upcoming year. 23 whole and the end-user reliability 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 performance index. 24 Okay. I just want to talk about, switch 0.

25

25

MR. LEBLANC:

gears a little bit and talk about sort of

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 85		Page 87
1	standby generation. I understood from the	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	evidence that one of the operational	2	Q. Yeah, okay.
3	improvements that Hydro has implemented in	3	MR. GARDINER:
4	recent years is to have daily status	4	A. Yes, all hands on deck.
5	meetings in terms of generation. Who takes	5	MR. O'BRIEN:
6	part in those meetings?	6	Q. So these 6 a.m. reports, these are, are they
7	(10:15 a.m.)	7	daily reserve forecast information, that
8	MS. WILLIAMS:	8	kind of thing, included in those reports?
9	A. I'll call it all of our operational staff,	9	MS. WILLIAMS:
10	so our general managers and others that	10	A. Correct.
11	report through to them and we have ECC	11	MR. O'BRIEN:
12	representation as well, and I believe we	12	Q. And is that for the Island and the Avalon?
13	would have communications' people,	13	MS. WILLIAMS:
14	regulatory, to see if there's any sort of	14	A. Avalon has gone away now, if you want to
15	pending issues, they would also attend.	15	call it that, the constraint has gone away
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	with TL267. Unless we have maintenance that
17	Q. Okay, and when do they happen?	17	would occur in the corridor that could
18	MS. WILLIAMS:	18	reinstate the Avalon constraint or if you
19	A. First thing in the—well, 9:00, sort of when	19	have an issue that develops in that
20	everyone gets in and does a bit of a system	20	corridor, but generally that constraint has
21	assessment if there's any risks or any	21	gone, so it's really an island review now.
22	concerns for discussion and it's 9 a.m.	22	MR. O'BRIEN:
23	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	Q. Island review now. So prior to 267 coming
24	Q. Okay, any VPs attend those?	24	in, I guess you would have had Avalon
25	MS. WILLIAMS:	25	forecast information as well?
	Page 86		Page 88
1	A. I used to attend regularly, but now that	1	MS. WILLIAMS:
2	we've got, I'll call it solid, really	2	A. Correct.
3	helpful general managers with us, I don't	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	attend regularly anymore.	4	Q. Okay. And have you found these daily status
5	MR. LEBLANC:	5	meetings to have effect on reliability in
6	A. I attended when I first came, but I may	6	
7			•
	attend one every two months, you know, so		the short term?
8	attend one every two months, you know, so it's just an ad hoc drop-in.	7	the short term? MS. WILLIAMS:
8 9	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.		the short term?
9	it's just an ad hoc drop-in. MR. O'BRIEN:	7 8 9	the short term? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN:
9 10	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.	7 8	the short term? MS. WILLIAMS: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of
9 10 11	it's just an ad hoc drop-in. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner? MR. GARDINER:	7 8 9 10	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do
9 10 11 12	it's just an ad hoc drop-in. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner? MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first	7 8 9 10 11 12	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?
9 10 11 12 13	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I	7 8 9 10 11 12 13	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:
9 10 11 12 13 14	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a
9 10 11 12 13 14 15	<ul> <li>it's just an ad hoc drop-in.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?</li> <li>MR. GARDINER:</li> <li>A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning,</li> </ul>	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m.,	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m., and we review those and if there's any	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or if there was something pending. If action
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m., and we review those and if there's any concerns, I'd certainly would have a	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Absolutely. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS: A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or if there was something pending. If action was required, it allowed everyone to be
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m., and we review those and if there's any concerns, I'd certainly would have a discussion.	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or if there was something pending. If action was required, it allowed everyone to be understanding what the priorities were and
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m., and we review those and if there's any concerns, I'd certainly would have a discussion.  MR. O'BRIEN:	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or if there was something pending. If action was required, it allowed everyone to be understanding what the priorities were and could sort of move as one, as opposed to
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER:  A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m., and we review those and if there's any concerns, I'd certainly would have a discussion.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay.	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or if there was something pending. If action was required, it allowed everyone to be understanding what the priorities were and could sort of move as one, as opposed to everyone gathering information in different
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	it's just an ad hoc drop-in.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Right. How about you, Mr. Gardiner?  MR. GARDINER: A. That's the same thing, when they first started I attended all of them, and now I probably attend once a month, but I do review the morning reports every morning, first thing, we get the daily ups, we get the status updates probably around 6 a.m., and we review those and if there's any concerns, I'd certainly would have a discussion.  MR. O'BRIEN:	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	the short term?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And how is that? Are you able to sort of give me any information on that? Where do you see that affect reliability?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I believe what it did was it brought a larger group of people to the same frame of reference with what the system condition was in the moment and if action was required or if there was something pending. If action was required, it allowed everyone to be understanding what the priorities were and could sort of move as one, as opposed to

25

Q.

in the system, everyone is there.

25

Okay, I do want to talk about, like I said,

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 89		Page 91
1	standby generation, so part of the	1	MS. WILLIAMS:
2	application before us includes the balances	2	A. It's run, there was obviously a series of
3	and the energy supply cost variance deferral	3	triggers that the gas turbine would be run
4	account, and I guess you'd agree with me	4	and until T20267 you had triggers, several
5	that a large part of that is associated with	5	triggers that would have required it. You
6	the dispatches of standby generation, is	6	had voltage consideration on the Avalon, you
7	that fair?	7	had transmission constraint itself, so the
8	MS. WILLIAMS:	8	actual transmission line loadings themselves
9	A. Correct.	9	coming in through the corridor, and you had
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	the spinning reserves on the Avalon, the
11	Q. And we talked about the capital costs	11	spinning reserves on the Island. So you had
12		12	1 0
1	before. One of the things I wanted to talk		all of these potential triggers that could
13	to you about sort of on this point was your	13	have required gas turbine operation and so
14	thought process over the last few years in	14	having perfect foresight, you know, I don't
15	exercising standby generation, so I just	15	think is possible, and so therefore, that
16	wanted to get, there's some questions I had	16	would have been a reason for any deviation,
17	to get straight in my mind as to how	17	really, and certainly the other
18	reserves work and that sort of thing, and we	18	infrastructure issues that we would have
19	have the Liberty Consulting Group Report and	19	had, say that developed say at Holyrood and
20	I'll ask you a few questions on that and get	20	even, say, at Bay D'Espoir, that could have
21	your thoughts on that as well. Now, when it	21	triggered additional, so you know, you would
22	comes to Holyrood GT or gas turbine, for	22	expect it at certain levels of availability
23	example, Liberty has indicated in their	23	and that would give you an expectation of
24	report that over the last few years it's run	24	when it would operate, and then obviously in
25	approximately nine times more than what was	25	actuality what develops on any one day is
	Page 90		Page 92
1	initially anticipated, is that a fair	1	the trigger for when it actually needs to
2	assessment, in that range?	2	operate.
3	MS. WILLIAMS:	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	A. It's definitely been more than what was	4	Q. Okay, but can you take me back to sort of
5	anticipated but the, if you about it from a	5	what, can you comment on what the initial
6	test year perspective, the system has	6	thought process was for using the GT and
7	changed and –	7	sort of how often you were going to use it,
8	MR. O'BRIEN:	8	and that would have been, I know you
9	Q. No, I get that.	9	wouldn't have been the one necessarily
10	MS. WILLIAMS:	10	making that decision, but can you comment on
11			that? I understood it was about 500 hours a
1	A. And the philosophy of expectations have	11	
12	changed since then.	12	year was the initial plan.
13	MR. O'BRIEN:	13	MS. WILLIAMS:
14	Q. But I'm talking more now in looking at the	14	A. I think so, yeah. Again, this would have
15	deferral account, so part of this is sort of	15	been started, started construction in 2014.
16	what's happened in the past and what's	16	MR. O'BRIEN:
17	sought to be recovered, so over the last few	17	Q. Right.
18	years and I'll as you about sort of what the	18	MS. WILLIAMS:
19	plan is in the future, but over the last few	19	A. A lot of Hydro's actions and putting gas
20	years just in terms of how long or how many	20	turbines on in advance of issues really
21	times the Holyrood GT was run or CT was run,	21	developed after the March 2015 voltage or
22	I understand that Liberty has looked at the	22	sort of frequency decay that we would have
23	figures and said it's somewhere in that	23	witnessed a fairly significant outage in
24	range of nine times where you had initially	24	March, and so prior to that time, it would
24 25	range of nine times where you had initially thought.	24 25	March, and so prior to that time, it would have been anticipated that that would have

Page 93 Page 95 1 been the dispatch of the gas turbine, so 1 A. As we continue to consult with the Board and 2 2 that was a material shift for us, and you the parties on what level of reliability 3 3 know, you consider how the Avalon load has they're interested in, that would be an 4 changed, again, unavailability of Holyrood 4 input, so you know, today – 5 has had its, you know, issues over the last 5 MR. O'BRIEN: 6 couple of years, those things wouldn't have 6 There's just less issues to deal with. Q. 7 necessarily contemplated either. So, you 7 MS. WILLIAMS: 8 8 know, really being conscious of Less issues to try to decide when is it 9 9 interruptions for customers, that would have going to have to trigger use of it, and 10 been a material shift for us. 10 again, I think the improved day four numbers will provide for more accurate forecasting 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 go forward as well. 12 So when you said unavailability of Holyrood 12 0. MR. O'BRIEN: 13 units, is that right, has that always been 13 14 an issue though? 14 0. Okay, and just one more question, it's kind 15 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 of on the point of what was the initial sort Yes, but I believe when we think about how of thought process. I understood when I 16 16 17 we forecast the gas turbine usage, the 17 asked or Mr. Haynes had mentioned there parties are probably aware and recall that might have been a different permit required 18 18 19 the long-term planning availability numbers 19 based on what the initial hourly usage or that we would have used, say a few years ago 20 20 yearly assessment for usage was going to be 21 for Holyrood would have been the lower 21 versus what Holyrood CT ultimately became 22 numbers you will see, even let's say the 22 used for, is that something that you can 23 (unintelligible) generation report, it's 23 comment on, and sort of what was that 9.64 and the Bay D'Espoir units, or not Bay 24 24 process? 25 D'Espoir, the hydraulic units generally 25 MS. WILLIAMS: Page 94 Page 96 1 1 would have been .9. That was the long-term A. I think it's accurate that the number of 2 2 number that had been used for a long time. hours used obviously is different than what 3 3 I suspect that when the planning was was initially contemplated, but I believe 4 completed for what the amount of usage the the certificate of approval doesn't restrict 4 5 gas turbines, sorry, the gas turbine would 5 the amount of hours that's required. 6 indeed be used, would have been reflective 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 of those older numbers. We now go forward 7 Q. Okay. 8 using the more updated numbers of about, I 8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 think it's 15 percent for Holyrood and the 9 A. It's just a set of instructions and 2.6 for hydraulic units, so that is going to 10 10 directions that we have to do to meet from be, go forward, a better reflection of what an environmental perspective. 11 11 our needs are, and obviously go forward, the 12 12 MR. O'BRIEN: Avalon constraint has gone away, so instead Okay, so you didn't have to get a different 13 13 Q. of having to monitor four potential triggers or a modified certificate of operation or 14 14 for a gas turbine operation, really are just 15 15 anything like that? 16 dealing with now just reserve, just spinning 16 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 reserve as opposed to the Avalon voltage, 17 Α. No. the frequency concerns, the transmission MR. O'BRIEN: 18 18 corridor constraints, so it's an easier 19 19 Q. Okay, so getting back sort of to the 20 deferral account itself, and I guess you'd 20 forecast process now. 21 agree with me it's fair that when we're 21 MR. O'BRIEN: talking, we're talking about a fairly large 22 And that will affect your decision-making 22 Q. 23 process for operating or having standby 23 amount of money over the last three years, 24 reserves, or will it? 24 2015, 2016, 2017. I think we're in the

25

25

MS. WILLIAMS:

range of about 59 million associated with

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
1.	Page 97		Page 99
1	the energy supply cost variance account,	1	Q. But there were a number of criticisms
2	that it would be appropriate for customers	2	regarding Hydro's management practices and
3	to want to know the cost benefit analysis of	3	operation philosophy, is that fair?
4	the usage of standby generation.	4	MS. WILLIAMS:
5	MS. WILLIAMS:	5	A. That is correct. No, sorry, can you repeat
6	A. Correct.	6	that?
7	MR. O'BRIEN:	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	Q. Over the last three years, say 2015, 2016,	8	Q. There was a number of criticisms regarding
9	2017, have you been involved, yourself, with	9	Hydro's management practices and operation
10	decision making on the operation of standby	10	philosophy.
11	generation, or is it just since you became a	11	MS. WILLIAMS:
12	VP?	12	A. I don't know if I'd interpret they had a
13	MS. WILLIAMS:	13	criticism of the operational philosophy. I
14	A. On a daily dispatch?	14	would have interpreted that they said the
15	MR. O'BRIEN:	15	way you operate is generally what you would
16	Q. Yeah.	16	expect to see in North America. It's not
17	MS. WILLIAMS:	17	abnormal. I understood the criticism was –
18	A. No, I mean, if the system requires it and	18	MR. O'BRIEN:
19	the folks who monitor the system say we are	19	Q. Okay, and that's the N1 contingency.
20	going to dip into a point where we will be	20	MS. WILLIAMS:
21	violating the criteria, then that's it. So	21	A. Right. The criticism I interpreted it to be
22	I wouldn't intervene to say yes or no. It	22	is that we did not engage and consult with
23	doesn't require any level of approval.	23	parties on what provision of this, what
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	Hydro believed to be appropriate reliability
25	Q. Okay, so it's not your –	25	operational philosophy, that we did not
<u> </u>	Page 98		Page 100
1	MS. WILLIAMS:	1	consult with the parties to say this is what
2	A. It's not approval of us, I mean, they're	2	this will cost, are you on board, that I
3	abiding by instructions that are well	3	interpreted it as the clearest message that
$\frac{1}{4}$	understood by us to be executed on a daily	4	we received.
5	basis.	5	MR. O'BRIEN:
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	Q. Okay, I'll ask you a bit about that then,
7	Q. Okay, all right. So Hydro brought an	7	and there's a number of recommendations that
8	application back in the fall for the 2015,	8	were made to Hydro, which I understand have
9	2016 balances and that was not approved by		been accepted?
10	the Board, but it's now back for approval,	10	MS. WILLIAMS:
11	along with 2017 as well.	11	A. Correct, we I think last Thursday put a
12	MS. WILLIAMS:	12	response on file.
13	A. Correct.	13	MR. O'BRIEN:
14	MR. O'BRIEN:	14	
15		15	Q. There was a response filed last week, yeah. So I want to talk about some of those
1	Q. And this has been looked at by Liberty.		recommendations and some of those
16	Have you reviewed Liberty's report?	16	
17	MS. WILLIAMS:	17	criticisms, I guess. Talking about the
18	A. I have.	18 19	management of the deferral account itself, I
19		19	noted in the report that Liberty suggested
	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	that it had game difficulty in analysis a
20	Q. Okay. Now Liberty didn't ultimately	20	that it had some difficulty in analyzing
20 21	Q. Okay. Now Liberty didn't ultimately determine the costs incurred were	21	management decisions based on the evidence
20 21 22	Q. Okay. Now Liberty didn't ultimately determine the costs incurred were imprudently incurred, that's correct?	21 22	management decisions based on the evidence that was on the record, and I think that was
20 21 22 23	<ul><li>Q. Okay. Now Liberty didn't ultimately determine the costs incurred were imprudently incurred, that's correct?</li><li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li></ul>	21 22 23	management decisions based on the evidence that was on the record, and I think that was largely as a result of there being a number
20 21 22	Q. Okay. Now Liberty didn't ultimately determine the costs incurred were imprudently incurred, that's correct?	21 22	management decisions based on the evidence that was on the record, and I think that was

Page 101 Page 103 1 that fair? 1 Right, spinning. Correct. A. 2 2 (10:30 a.m.)MR. O'BRIEN: 3 MS. WILLIAMS: 3 Q. There's other issues, planned outages that 4 I think that would probably be fair. I 4 would enter into your mind process or the 5 don't want to put words in Liberty's mouth, 5 operator's process when you're operating but I believe that's generally it. 6 standby generation and unplanned outages and 6 7 7 even testing, all that sort of rolls up into MR. O'BRIEN: 8 8 And it's difficult to parse out sort of the this total sort of package. Q. costs associated with each driver. 9 9 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 The total quantity. MR. O'BRIEN: 11 A. Right. 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 12 12 But there are overlapping drivers on a O. number of occasions, is that fair? Is that fair? 13 13 O. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 Again, I think that's Liberty's review, I 15 A. Correct. A. 16 can't say for sure if that's exactly what MR. O'BRIEN: 16 17 they would have said, but I think, yeah, 17 And Liberty was, what I took to say, Q. they said it was tough to read into the 18 18 critical of Hydro not, sort of, trying to 19 data. 19 track stand-by generation to a lower detail 20 in terms of parsing out some of the costs 20 MR. O'BRIEN: associated with each kind of driver. Is 21 Q. Right, and I think that they had mentioned 21 22 the drivers, like you had talked about a that fair? 22 23 bunch of different sort of drivers, you're 23 MS. WILLIAMS: talking about support of spinning reserve as 24 24 We will, obviously, have to find a tracking Α. and therefore reporting solution that works 25 being one. 25 Page 104 Page 102 MS. WILLIAMS: 1 1 better, but again, like I referenced, when 2 2 you have on for one reason, it is also Α Yes 3 3 MR. O'BRIEN: satisfying the other reason. So, I've heard 4 Mr. Young use this expression, you can't 4 Derating of units being an issue too that Q. 5 might drive you to operate more standby 5 take the milk out of the tea. We can't 6 generation, some units being offline would 6 divorce everything. And so to say, you 7 be other things you'd have to take into 7 know, do you allocate 50 percent of the 8 8 production that day to one of the reasons account 9 9 even though, because it's supplying both of MS. WILLIAMS: 10 the reasons? Again, I fully accept that And I think, you know, I think obviously 10 A. Liberty will have a view and at one point we it's difficult to do, but that is a reality 11 11 accept because we accept the opinion and we for us, is that there are some things that 12 12 will have to adjust, but you know, if you are inherently married and we can't divorce 13 13 have a unit that's derated, you then have to them. 14 14 replace the reserve that that would have 15 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 provided, so you have a trigger, but it also 16 Q. And did you, at any point, decide or sort of talk about how we could do that in order to 17 supplies the answer to the other issue as 17 18 well. a cost benefit analysis? 18 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 20 No, because I don't know that we would have I understand, yeah, and this is sort of the A. thought process behind why you would look at fully grasped Liberty's perspective that 21 21 the nameplate versus the derating because it's not helpful, the data that we have. I 22 22 23 that unit is providing standing or spinning 23 guess, you know, we certainly want to be helpful and we didn't create a set of data 24 reserve as well as providing production. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 25 that said, oh, this is great; this is going

Page 105 Page 107 1 to confuse everybody. It's the last thing 1 Absolutely. A. 2 2 we want. We want to make sure that we MR. O'BRIEN: 3 3 capture enough data that everyone can parse Q. And so when you got to the point, say in 4 through, but obviously we weren't as 4 March of 2015 and decided you were going to 5 successful as we would have liked and we 5 have to start operating the CT differently, 6 have to find a better way forward. 6 was there any thought put to, okay, well as 7 7 we go forward, we should be tracking why MR. O'BRIEN: 8 8 Okay. So, if you were going to—and I assume we're using it, for what reason, so we can Q. 9 9 your management decisions in operating look at what a cost efficient approach to 10 stand-by generation, you would have wanted 10 operating standby generation might be. to do so on a cost benefit basis, like I 11 11 MS. WILLIAMS: 12 12 would imagine, is that fair? I wasn't necessarily super close to that at Α. the time. Obviously, from a review of that, 13 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 14 It's our least cost dispatch and we don't 14 the March outage and prudence, I would have 15 want to start it up unless we absolutely 15 been party to various conversations. And I have to. And the reason why the gas remember Mr. Henderson saying, at one point, 16 16 17 turbines or, in particular, let's call it 17 and I think he wanted—I don't know if he 18 Holyrood, gas turbine, is being used is 18 said it in a hearing or if he wanted it 19 because of, you know, Holyrood is at its end 19 included, you know, this is going to be more 20 20 of life. It is experiencing issues. We costly. So, I don't know if, at the time, 21 have essentially had to treat it in that 21 he might have done an analysis. I don't 22 fashion. And, I mean, you have the 22 think we've done that because as Liberty 23 constraint that previously existed; you have 23 commented on, the context that Hydro came through was, you know, we've got to get that 24 the load on the Avalon, you know. In order 24 25 to function with the current system in the 25 reliability back. And so it was really—I'm Page 106 Page 108 1 1 not saying that you ignore costs, but we last couple of years, we really didn't have 2 much choice but to dispatch the gas 2 knew we had to do better on reliability and 3 turbines. I think it's about 20 percent of 3 continued or, you know, a repeat of any of 4 our installed capacity. When you do have an the outages we had seen will be intolerable. 4 5 issue and it's part of your reserve 5 MR. O'BRIEN: 6 planning, you don't expect to never run. 6 Okay, and in terms of tracking in the future Q. 7 You expect to run it and I understand again, 7 then, in terms of trying to track drivers 8 8 and certain costs associated with certain the magnitude is significant. You know, 9 9 prior to the last few years, you know, drivers, do you plan to try to do that, to consult with Liberty or to consult with 10 Holyrood would have been used to help with 10 spinning reserve and, you know, those costs anyone else to see how we might be able to 11 11 would be flowing through the RSPs, so I 12 12 do that in the future. 13 think it's the magnitude of why we've had to 13 MS. WILLIAMS: run the gas turbines. The philosophy is not 14 14 Yes, well Liberty has made a suggestion themselves as an appendix to the report. 15 radically different than say, it would have 15 16 been historically, it's that we have gone to 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 a point in the last couple of years where Yes, I saw that. 17 0. 18 we've had to use the gas turbine because of MS. WILLIAMS: 18 19 what was going on in the Avalon. 19 That we will look at that and see if that A. 20 20 MR. O'BRIEN: makes sense. And Liberty are coming to meet with the TTO team in a couple of weeks in 21 Okay. And I guess my point is more—for your 21 Q. 22 operational philosophy you want your 22 August and we'll meet with them as well and 23 operational philosophy to be cost effective. 23 we might be able to take a bit of time at 24 That's a fair statement, is it? 24 the time to have a chat with them about 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 that, to see what makes that most sense.

Page 109 Page 111 1 But it is our intention to get a report and 1 can't come—and we are running the utility—we 2 2 can't come with no recommendation and say, the reporting mechanism that makes sense, 3 that people can understand the drivers and 3 here, let's duke it out. We will come with 4 the background. 4 a recommendation, but we're going to show 5 5 the parties why we arrived at a MR. O'BRIEN: 6 Will you consult with stakeholders on that, 6 recommendation and the costs and the Q. 7 is that your plan? 7 benefits that would result from that 8 8 MS. WILLIAMS: MR. O'BRIEN: 9 Sure, yeah, absolutely. 9 Okay. I mentioned earlier, I do want to Q. A. 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 just get an idea about the, sort of, the Okay. And I understood, just in terms of reliability standard that was implemented in 11 Q. 11 your response last week, that Hydro had 2015, sort of, how things changed from March 12 12 indicated that when it makes changes to its 2015 going forward. And Liberty sort of 13 13 operational philosophy in the future that mentions this in the report that there was 14 14 15 could materially affect costs, that you will 15 an N-1 or single worse contingency standard seek stakeholder in place at that time already, is that fair? 16 16 17 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 MS. WILLIAMS: 18 Α. Which, you know, again their statement was 18 A. Yes 19 exactly in line with what we were thinking 19 MR. O'BRIEN: about with regards to the reliability review 20 20 And what was that standard and how did it 21 that we're undertaking. You know, because 21 differ moving forward? What was the change? MS. WILLIAMS: 22 we very much are cognizant that that could 22 23 result, depending on what materializes, that 23 You might venture into something that I could result in investment on the system in would like to ask one of the parties out in 24 24 25 some kind of a change. And so we had 25 the audience to come up and talk about. The Page 110 Page 112 1 already commenced planning for consultation. 1 exact -So, I was happy and not surprised to see 2 2 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 that that was Liberty's recommendations. So 3 Is it Mr. Fagan? Q. we're happy to get in line where their 4 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 thinking was because we were already headed 5 No, it's not Mr. Fagan; it's somebody in Mr. LeBlanc's group, but you know, I think in down that path. 6 6 the response back on the Liberty report we 7 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 8 8 acknowledge that there is some clean up that And so when you're headed down that path, I Q. 9 guess, in the future, I guess you recognize 9 we're going to do there. So, I don't know it's important to provide cost estimates or if Mr. LeBlanc would be able to comment on 10 10 least cost benefit analysis for stakeholders it, but I would not want to venture there. 11 11 12 to-12 MR. LEBLANC: MS. WILLIAMS: I believe the change was just for the 13 13 A. Yes, as I mentioned earlier – Avalon. The N-1 was for the Island and then 14 14 15 it changed that we also had to look at the 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 Q. - take part in those discussions. 16 Avalon almost as a separate system and treat MS. WILLIAMS: 17 it as a standalone from a reliability point 17 Yes, the reliability review that we're going 18 18 of view. to present, you know, if it requires some 19 19 MR. O'BRIEN: level of investment, we'll have five, six, 20 20 0. And I think that was one of the changes that 21 Liberty did note. And there's two operating 21 ten options. MR. O'BRIEN: instructions obviously, for the Island and 22 22 23 23 for the Avalon. The Avalon one was brought Q. Okay. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 in later. And Hydro will have a recommendation, we 25 25 MS. WILLIAMS:

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 113		Page 115
1	A. It's T096.	1	Q. Okay. And so going forward then, if I'm
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	right then, so what we have is the N-1
3	Q. I think one of the things that was raised	3	standard, N-1 contingency which is the
4	and that may not have been clear was the	4	largest unit that's on the system, 100
5	concept of the N-1 generation having some,	5	percent spinning reserve going forward.
6	being all spinning reserve versus having the	6	MR. LEBLANC:
7	possibility of some of that being non-	7	A. Slight correction to that. N-1 refers to
8	spinning reserve. And I wasn't clear on	8	the loss of any element on your system –
	that and I didn't know if anybody could	9	MR. O'BRIEN:
10	clarify that for me.	10	Q. Yes.
11	MR. LEBLANC:	11	MR. LEBLANC:
12		12	
1	3		A not necessarily a generator. It can also be a transmission line.
13	many fronts, the reliability criteria is	13	
14	loss of your single largest generator, it	14	MR. O'BRIEN:
15	has to be able to be replaced within 10	15	Q. Okay.
16	minutes, of which there is only a	16	MR. LEBLANC:
17	requirement for 25 percent to be spinning.	17	A. Reserves are based on the loss of your
18	The remaining 75 percent can be non-spinning	18	single largest generating unit online and
19	based on performance. Now, if you miss the	19	your second largest generating unit online.
20	10 minute, that 25 percent of spinning can	20	MR. O'BRIEN:
21	increase up to 100 percent based on your	21	Q. Okay. So, that's the 70 percent—is it 70—
22	performance. So, unless you have a—and then		well, the operating instruction says 70
23	it's really hard ratchet it back down. And	23	megawatts of additional spinning reserve.
24	again, you also have to, at the same time,	24	MR. LEBLANC:
25	for the loss of your second largest unit,	25	A. And again, that's, again for –
	Page 114		Page 116
1	you have to have to be able to replace 50	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	percent of that within 30 minutes and that	2	Q. Where does that come from?
3	can be all non-spinning. However, since we—	3	MR. LEBLANC:
4	at that time we were an island, no	4	A. Interconnected utilities. So, again, that
5	interconnections, you can't lean on your	5	wasn't here. So, they put that in as a proxy
6	neighbors; you can't have reserve sharing	6	for loss of the second largest unit.
7	and things like that. So, the criteria is	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	the amount of 10 minute reserve has to be	8	Q. The second largest. Okay.
9	100 spinning.	9	MR. LEBLANC:
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	A. Again, the rules are slightly different when
11	Q. And so in the prior situation, prior to	11	you're an island and you're electrically an
12	2015, whether or not you could have non-	12	island as well. Now, once we move forward
13	spinning or spinning, you didn't have the	13	and the LIL is commissioned and Maritime
14	option for non-spinning, you didn't have the	14	Link and we're at full capacity in all
15	MR. LEBLANC:	15	
			those, we will be reviewing those
16	A. Again, I'm can't speak to how, what the	16	reliability standards.
17	reliability –	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	Q. So, from 2015 to the TL267 coming in, was
19	Q. Well, just following up on your comment.	19	there any change in or was it all spinning
20	MR. LEBLANC:	20	reserve? It was 170 spinning reserve plus
21	A. But again, and I'm not sure what we did pre	21	the 70 extra which was the proxy for that,
22	there. I never looked into it. When I	22	the loss of the second half.
1	7 / 11 ·	~~	MC WHILLAMC
23	came, I was on a go forward basis	23	MS. WILLIAMS:
1	came, I was on a go forward basis unfortunately. MR. O'BRIEN:	23 24 25	MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes. MR. LEBLANC:

1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 117		Page 119
1	A. And that 70 was non-spinning.	1	think Liberty was raising at that –
2	MR. O'BRIEN:	2	(10:45 a.m.)
3	Q. Was non-spinning?	3	MS. WILLIAMS:
4	MR. LEBLANC:	4	A. Yes, so, as I mentioned, there's another
5	A. Only the 170 was spinning.	5	gentleman who is probably in the room here
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	that very close to, I think, that
7	Q. And what as the 70 non-spinning from?	7	observation by Liberty and has acknowledged
8	That's from any other generation unit to be	8	that we can tidy that up and I think that
9	brought on in 30 minutes?	9	was a commitment in the report that we sent
10	MR. LEBLANC:	10	back, the filing that we sent back, that we
11	A. Yeah, that could meet the timeline. And	11	are going to look for what those
12	that was one of the problems too. The	12	inconsistencies are and we're going to
13	Holyrood CT cannot start in 10 minutes.	13	update that and send it forward. I would be
14	MR. O'BRIEN:	14	afraid to comment on –
15	Q. No, I understood that.	15	MR. O'BRIEN:
16	MR. LEBLANC:	16	Q. On what they actually were.
17	A. So, for it count as—you have to start it in	17	MS. WILLIAMS:
18	order to count the reserve.	18	A. Yes, exactly.
19	MR. O'BRIEN:	19	MR. O'BRIEN:
20	Q. Now, I understood from the operating	20	Q. Okay, that's fair. And in terms of looking
21	instructions that 70 was for spinning	21	at that, what's Hydro's plan? Is it to file
22	reserve for uncertainties, but am I wrong in		a report, file a modified operating
23	that? That extra –	23	instruction or –
24	MS. WILLIAMS:	24	MS. WILLIAMS:
25	A. It is 170 spinning.	25	A. Yes, and I think that that was fairly well
	Page 118		Page 120
1	MR. O'BRIEN:		
1 -		1	underway, so that won't be months. I mean,
2	Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70	2	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.
3	Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?	2 3	hopefully we'll see that within weeks. MR. O'BRIEN:
3 4	<ul><li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li><li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li></ul>	2 3 4	hopefully we'll see that within weeks. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating
3 4 5	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction
3 4 5 6	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing
3 4 5 6 7	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be non-</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that
3 4 5 6 7 8	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in,
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yes.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul> </li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yes.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction from—just to be clear to make sure that I'm</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an additional 35 megawatt reserve required.
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction from—just to be clear to make sure that I'm not wrong on that. Maybe I'll come back to</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an additional 35 megawatt reserve required.  MS. WILLIAMS:
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction from—just to be clear to make sure that I'm not wrong on that. Maybe I'll come back to that. Okay, alright, so, Liberty had made</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an additional 35 megawatt reserve required.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. It might be in how something might be
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction from—just to be clear to make sure that I'm not wrong on that. Maybe I'll come back to that. Okay, alright, so, Liberty had made some comments just in terms of, sort, of</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an additional 35 megawatt reserve required.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. It might be in how something might be written. I would have to understand what
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Yes.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction from—just to be clear to make sure that I'm not wrong on that. Maybe I'll come back to that. Okay, alright, so, Liberty had made some comments just in terms of, sort, of whether or not the operating instructions</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an additional 35 megawatt reserve required.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. It might be in how something might be written. I would have to understand what you're looking at to make sure we're clear,
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>Q. 170 spinning, but I understood the extra 70 was also to be spinning, but it's not?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. No, it's 240 total reserve.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. 240 total, but the last 70 can be nonspinning.</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Right.</li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. And that's what you've operated on since 2015?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: <ul> <li>A. Yes.</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. O'BRIEN:</li> <li>Q. Okay. Well, take me through, sort of—I just want to bring up the operating instruction from—just to be clear to make sure that I'm not wrong on that. Maybe I'll come back to that. Okay, alright, so, Liberty had made some comments just in terms of, sort, of</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	hopefully we'll see that within weeks.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. And in terms of the Avalon operating instruction and removing the restriction from the Avalon or sorry the TL267, removing the restriction from the Avalon, did that change the operating instructions once in, in terms of a reserve?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. No, we, just on the island basis now, if I understand your question. It wouldn't have changed the reserve; it's still 240 for the Island. We were always having to satisfy the Avalon as well as the Island, so it doesn't change how we serve the Island.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I understood the Island instruction had an additional 35 megawatt reserve required.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. It might be in how something might be written. I would have to understand what

Page 121 Page 123 1 0. Okay. And that's for Island and for Avalon, 1 MS. WILLIAMS: 2 it's all the same. 2 A. Correct. 3 MR. O'BRIEN: 3 MS. WILLIAMS: 4 Well, Avalon is gone now, we don't analyze 4 And for the operators when they make Q. 5 5 operational decisions to dispatch standby that anymore. MR. O'BRIEN: 6 generation, I guess that's done throughout 6 7 7 the day based on where the load is. Is that Alright. So, before Avalon was gone though, 8 8 was there a different operating or reserve accurate? 9 9 requirement on the Avalon than the Island. MS. WILLIAMS: 10 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 Yes, absolutely and it's done in least cost I'm trying to recall the exact megawatt order at all times. And the instruction 11 11 12 number now. It might have been 240 as well; 12 would indicate, you know, that it's least I'd have to go back and double check. cost order. And the forecast, certainly, 13 13 can vary throughout the day as well, things 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 15 Can you do that for me? 15 materialize, things don't materialize. Q. (10:48 a.m.) MR. O'BRIEN: 16 16 MS. WILLIAMS: Sure. 17 17 Q. 18 So, it's just the megawatt reserve that we 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 were using from an Avalon perspective. 19 I think there's a RFI in the record where, 20 20 you know, there's time it can as much as off MR. O'BRIEN: 21 Q. Yes and I'm wondering if there was a 21 by 100 megawatts which is a material 22 different reserve, are these reserves sort 22 difference and it's not—and sometimes 23 of added together or how does that work? 23 industrial load can by the one that changes. Can you have spinning reserve that's but you know, cloud cover can have a very 24 24 25 providing coverage, say, for Avalon and the 25 significant impact on what the material and Page 124 Page 122 1 1 Island or do you have to have a different load change is going to be throughout the generator doing that? 2 2 day. 3 3 MS. WILLIAMS: MR. O'BRIEN: 4 4 Okay, no, I don't know if you still need it And I presume there are times when you look Q. A. 5 5 or not, but the—you had to, sort of, get back and you see that there are some standby through both gates to make sure you were 6 6 generation that has been running that may 7 stable. So, if you had enough reserve on 7 not have been necessary because ultimately 8 the Island, but you weren't getting through 8 you didn't violate the reserve requirement. 9 9 That must happen on occasion? the gate on the Avalon, then you didn't have 10 enough, you had to address the Avalon. 10 MS. WILLIAMS: MR. O'BRIEN: I think—when those things appear to occur, 11 11 you have to consider the context in which 12 Q. Okay. 12 they operate. So, for example, at Holyrood, 13 MS. WILLIAMS: 13 if you have a forecast that requires the 14 But if you had—when you had all your system 14 dispatched and both gates were okay, Holyrood gas turbine to be on and you put it 15 15 16 checking both boxes, you were okay. It's 16 on, say, in the morning and it continues on not like you had to have double the amount 17 17 through the day, but you will need it say in 18 and it was, you know, added additive. It the evening, you cannot shut that unit. It 18 was how you dispatched it, it satisfied both needs a certain period of time not running 19 19 criteria. 20 before it can actually be started back up 20 21 again. So, while the reserves may look to 21 MR. O'BRIEN: be too rich in any moment, say well you 22 Okay, and when you dispatch during the day, 22 Q. 23 you have the forecast in the morning and I 23 should shut that thing down, you actually 24 take it, you also have forecasts for 6 days 24 physically can't shut it down because when

25

out or 7 days out as well. Is that fair?

25

you need it the next time, you actually will

	7, 2018		NL Hydro 201 / GRA
	Page 125		Page 127
1	not be able to start up the gas turbine.	1	calculations going on in the background
2	So, for every instance there's a reason why,	2	here. We think that you might have the
3	you know, there's a reserve. And for	3	opportunity to shut this down and that would
4	example, if you also shut down the gas	4	require an additional interaction. So,
5	turbine, say if you had it on 40 megawatts	5	we're always looking for ways to improve how
6	and you are now drifting to—and that	6	we dispatch and when we take them on and
7	contributes 90 megawatts to spinning. If	7	when we take them off.
8	you are at 80 megawatts over your spinning	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	reserve of 270, it looks again like it's	9	Q. So, those types of things, you brought that
10	rich. Well, you're above 170, you should	10	in early in 2018, the visual tools, that's
11	shut that thing down. As soon as you shut	11	the software, I guess, is it software based
12	it down, you're losing 90 megawatts of	12	or –
13	contribution of spinning reserve. So, you	13	MS. WILLIAMS:
14	have to wait until the spinning gets to a	14	A. Yes.
15	certain point that when you removed that	15	MR. O'BRIEN:
16	unit from service and you loss all that	16	Q. And the alarms and that sort of thing should
17	spinning contribution, you don't violate the	17	help in terms of where fuel costs go into
18	plan that you had. So, an exact number at	18	the future, should help reduce them.
19	any point in time may not be the best	19	MS. WILLIAMS:
20	reflection of what the impact is of shutting	20	A. Yes, and I mean, certainly the biggest
21	a unit down and the decision making.	21	improvement into the future is going to be
22	MR. O'BRIEN:	22	the availability of the Maritime Link and
23	Q. so, if you—and I know this is in hindsight,	23	certainly Labrador/Island Link with regards
24	but if in hindsight you look back and there	24	to gas turbine usage in the future expect a
25	was more reserve on a system than was	25	significant shift. I think of the costs
	3	_	
1	Page 126		Page 128
1	Page 126 necessary at any given point, what sort of	1	Page 128  vear to date in the supply cost balance in
1 2	necessary at any given point, what sort of	1 2	year to date in the supply cost balance in
2	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do	2	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has
2 3	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost	2 3	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in
2 3 4	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an	2 3 4	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear
2 3 4 5	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?	2 3 4 5	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being
2 3 4 5 6	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time? MS. WILLIAMS:	2 3 4 5 6	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the
2 3 4 5 6 7	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could	2 3 4 5 6 7	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have —
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have —  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very rich, from a contribution perspective right	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have —  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. I sort of touched on this before, the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very rich, from a contribution perspective right now. We are also now pursuing additional	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. I sort of touched on this before, the effect of TL267 when it came online, Mr.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very rich, from a contribution perspective right now. We are also now pursuing additional tools, for example, audible alarms to help,	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have —  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. I sort of touched on this before, the effect of TL267 when it came online, Mr. Haynes had touched on this as well in that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very rich, from a contribution perspective right now. We are also now pursuing additional tools, for example, audible alarms to help, you know, if there's a lot going on in the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have —  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. I sort of touched on this before, the effect of TL267 when it came online, Mr. Haynes had touched on this as well in that it may have been effective in reducing some
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very rich, from a contribution perspective right now. We are also now pursuing additional tools, for example, audible alarms to help, you know, if there's a lot going on in the ECC at any point in time, we said we'll get	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have –  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. I sort of touched on this before, the effect of TL267 when it came online, Mr. Haynes had touched on this as well in that it may have been effective in reducing some costs in standby generation requirements.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	necessary at any given point, what sort of analysis do you do of those instances? Do look at whether or not there's a cost benefit analysis at that time and an operational decision analysis at that time?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. If we identify a time that we need to, could have initially done 5, 10, 20 minutes early, obviously we're always looking to improve how we dispatch generally. And earlier in 2018 we added, I'll call the better visual tools for the spinning and the online reserve. And they've been helpful in providing for the operators, more tools to see, when is everything on; is it drifting above that point. If I do take the gas turbine off now, do I violate that 170 again, even though it looks like it's very rich, from a contribution perspective right now. We are also now pursuing additional tools, for example, audible alarms to help, you know, if there's a lot going on in the	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	year to date in the supply cost balance in 2018 something like 70 percent of it has been incurred prior to the Maritime Link in service. So, you know, that is a very clear indicator of the benefit of being interconnected and being able to offset the gas turbine starts.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. So, what you've got to date, 70 percent of that was prior to February.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes, well, I think throughout February as well because we did have —  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Testing.  MS. WILLIAMS:  A starts in February.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Okay. I sort of touched on this before, the effect of TL267 when it came online, Mr. Haynes had touched on this as well in that it may have been effective in reducing some

Page 129 Page 131 1 A. I think, inherently it would because of the 1 0. Oh no, I get that. 2 2 other constraints that we mentioned. So, MS. WILLIAMS: 3 3 you know, when you have the transmission A. But yes, yeah. 4 line corridor, so we would have had those 4 MR. O'BRIEN: 5 constraints and certainly even in the 5 It may have been a knock on effect. Q. 6 summer, you know, when you get the 6 MS. WILLIAMS: 7 additional—Mr. LeBlanc or Mr. Gardiner would 7 Α Correct 8 be able to speak to that more, you know, 8 MR. O'BRIEN: 9 9 when there's more heating or the ability to And I guess one of the responses to the RFIs Q. 10 dissipate the heat on the lines through the 10 is that you couldn't estimate that cost, but warmer period, you know, TL267 will have an my question to you now is that there is not 11 11 12 impact, you know, from that constraint likely any benefit in 2018 as a result of 12 perspective as well as with the line Holyrood units be derated? 13 13 loadings, but I don't think it materializes 14 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 as much as we would have liked in this past 15 Not year to date. And you know, again, A. winter because of the Holyrood derations 16 going through this winter, but again, you've 16 17 that we were witnessing. If we hadn't had 17 got the additional supply sources now which will further complicate exactly what is the 18 such a significant deratings this winter, 18 trigger for reduced gas turbine usage 19 the gas turbine usage may not have been as 19 high. 20 because we're going to have several benefits 20 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 in this pending season that is going to help 22 So, do you anticipate being ready with the 22 curb gas turbine usage. So, it's not just 23 Holyrood units in the fall for winter? 23 going to be TL267. It's going to be several MS. WILLIAMS: reasons that we're able to use—to have less 24 24 25 Α. Yes. 25 gas turbine usage. Page 130 Page 132 1 1 MR. O'BRIEN: MR. O'BRIEN: 2 I think you testified that they should 2 O. Q. Q. And where is the balance right now? What's 3 be at around full capacity by the winter. 3 the, I guess, the deferral account balance MS. WILLIAMS: 4 of 2018? 4 5 Yes, absolutely. 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 6 6 I think it's around 15 million. I'll double MR. O'BRIEN: Α. 7 Is that the expectation? So, do you 7 check that. I had that question—yeah, about Q. 8 anticipate that with that the TL267 will 8 15 million year to date. have effect on, sort of, how much standby 9 9 MR. O'BRIEN: generation will be necessary? 10 10 And that's with some Maritime Link purchases Q. MS. WILLIAMS: 11 11 In addition to the Maritime Link and I 12 12 A. MS. WILLIAMS: Correct, 70 percent of that number was 13 believe we're anticipating less than 10 more 13 A. incurred in January and February before we 14 gigawatt hours from gas turbines to year 14 had the Maritime Link opportunities. 15 15 end. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 17 Okay. Perhaps we can take a break. O.

So, there's no way really for 2018 of

calculating any benefit of the TL267 in 18 19

terms of averting a standby generation

because the Holyrood units were not – 20

MS. WILLIAMS: 21

22 Correct, and I don't believe TL267 was A. 23

justified on the basis of gas turbine usage

24 anyway.

25 MR. O'BRIEN:

CHAIR: 18

19 Q. You still have further questioning following

20 the break? 21 MR. O'BRIEN:

22 I think if we could break now, it would be O.

good.

24 CHAIR:

25 0. Okay.

23

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 133		Page 135
1	(BREAK – 11:00 A.M.)	1	you would have difficulty regulating, you
2	(RESUME – 11:33 A.M.)	2	know, voltage and frequency.
3	CHAIR:	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	Q. Back to you, Mr. O'Brien.	4	Q. Okay.
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	MS. WILLIAMS:
6	Q. Okay. We had discussed earlier this issue	6	A. So, it's more of a critical versus a
7	of reserve and reserve on a system and I	7	minimum.
8	just wanted to get my head back around this	8	MR. O'BRIEN:
9	and I had a chat with Mr. Young about this	9	Q. Okay, alright.
10	as well. I had a look at the operating	10	MS. WILLIAMS:
11	instructions for the Avalon and for the	11	A. Minimum, are minimum is the largest, 170
12	Island. They're on the record. And I can	12	that we've been operating to.
13	bring them up if you like, it's NP-NLH-38,	13	MR. O'BRIEN:
14	attachment 1 and page 76, I think is the	14	Q. So, if you scroll back up again where it
15	Avalon Capability and Reserve System	15	just says "plus minimum reserve", you're
16	Operating Instruction. Okay, and on that	16	looking at the 170, but you have a critical
17	one at page 2 of 5, there's an indication	17	aspect of that that has to be there which is
18	there, under "Available Avalon Reserve,	18	the 35.
19	impact of largest contingency plus minimum	19	MS. WILLIAMS:
20	reserve". And I understood the largest	20	A. Correct.
21	contingency would be the 170 of spinning	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
22	reserve and plus minimum reserve, there's a	22	Q. Okay. And if we go to page 82, that's the
23	footnote there of five. It just says 35	23	start of the, what I understood to be the
24	megawatts. And I understand that's no	24	Island one. Now, is this right?
25	longer—is this operating instruction in	25	MS. WILLIAMS:
	Page 134		Page 136
1	place anymore?	1	A. That's correct.
2	MS. WILLIAMS:	2	MR. O'BRIEN:
3	A. No, that one would be, in theory, removed,	3	Q. Okay, so the Island one, so page 2 of that
4	but again, as I mentioned, there will be	4	talks about largest generating unit plus
5	times, if per se, the maintenance is	5	minimum spinning reserve, under "Available
6	complete and the corridor changes, we would	6	Reserve". Now, there's no footnote on the
7	have to reconsider, say, some of these	7	spinning reserve there, but if you scroll to
8	things, but on a day-to-day basis, that's	8	the next page, page 3, there's a section C
9	gone.	9	that talks about maintaining spinning
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	reserve. "The ECC shall maintain sufficient
11	Q. That's gone, okay. What was the 35	11	spinning reserve to cover performance
12	megawatts associated with? Was that	12	uncertainties in generating units,
13	spinning reserve, non-spinning reserve?	13	especially wind and other variable
14	MS. WILLIAMS:	14	generation and unanticipated increases in
15	A. That would be a sub component of the	15	demands. The ECC will take appropriate
16	spinning.	16	action to maintain a minimum spinning
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	reserve level equal to 70 megawatts". Now,
18	Q. Okay.	18	is that on top of the 170?
19	MS. WILLIAMS:	19	MS. WILLIAMS:
20	A. And the word "minimum" likely causes some	20	A. No.
21	confusion. It's more, I think the word	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
22	critical for this room, might be the right	22	Q. Or is that part of –
23	way to characterize it. And if we got to a	23	MS. WILLIAMS:
24	point where we had 35 megawatts, and this is	24	A. Again, that's more of the subset.
1	the Avalon, on the Avalon, below that point	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	the Avalon, on the Avalon below that both i	Z. )	MIX. O DIXIDIX.

July 1	7, 2016		INL HYUIO 2017 OKA
	Page 137		Page 139
1	Q. Okay.	1	A. I think the first sentence is not
2	MS. WILLIAMS:	2	necessarily related to the second sentence.
3	A. That's really a subset, so if you—from a	3	And this might be also where Liberty was
4	planning perspective, if you're going to	4	perhaps finding some inconsistencies.
5	keep your spinning reserve to be the largest	5	MR. O'BRIEN:
6	unit and then you want to maintain the	6	Q. And I'm wondering if that might be it.
7	minimum, below which it becomes critical.	7	Like, if we could pull up page 3.6 of the
8	So, the word minimum there in underlined,	8	case, just show you sort of what I'm—okay,
9	but it really is about criticality below	9	so under 3.32. Yes, there we go, okay,
10	which at that point you have difficulty in	10	scroll up a little bit more, here we go.
11	managing the frequency and the voltage.	11	The third bullet there, "the maintenance of
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	spinning reserves equal to the capacity of
13	Q. So, I understood from reading the evidence	13	the largest online unit"—so that's your 170—
14	that there was 240 reserve required and that	14	"and an additional 70 megawatts of available
15	170 was the N1 contingency and that the 70	15	reserve to cover performance uncertainties".
16	was for performance uncertainties to get you	16	And that's what we saw in the instruction,
17	to 240 as opposed to it being a component of	17	"to cover performance uncertainties".
18	the 170.	18	MS. WILLIAMS:
19	MS. WILLIAMS:	19	A. Right, two separate sentences.
20	A. I'm sorry, can you repeat?	20	MR. O'BRIEN:
21	MR. O'BRIEN:	21	Q. I understood you to say something different
22	Q. Okay. So, in the rate case there's an	22	because it was half of the second largest.
23	indication of 240 megawatts as your spinning	23	MR. LEBLANC:
24	reserve. And I can probably bring you to	24	A. If you turn to PUB-046.
25	it, just bear with me. When I read it last	25	MR. O'BRIEN:
	Page 138		Page 140
1	night, it was 240 that indicated that it was	1	Q. Okay.
2	170 plus 70 and the exact words were "for	2	MR. LEBLANC:
3	uncertainties in generating units" which to	3	A. It explains it there.
4	me corresponds with the 70 here versus a	4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	component.	5	Q. Okay.
6	MS. WILLIAMS:	6	MR. LEBLANC:
7	A. I think they're different 70s, if that makes	7	A. In our response. So, if you read starting
8	sense.	8	on line 11, it says, "for the current
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	system, this is equal to 170 megawatts when
10	Q. Okay.	10	units one or two at Holyrood is online and
11	MS. WILLIAMS:	11	154"—but—"the enables Hydro to position the
12	A. So, it's the largest unit plus a buffer for	12	system and be able to restore customer
13	the uncertainties that would occur and then	13	quickly in the event of a loss of the
14	we would say both forecasts would be, you	14	largest generating unit. Hydro also
15	know, a component.	15	maintains an additional reserve, at least 70
16	MR. O'BRIEN:	16	megawatts". And if you go down to footnote
17	Q. Okay.	17	1, it says, "this reserve is not necessarily
18	MS. WILLIAMS:	18	online, but is available for quick start in
19	A. But of the 70 you see here, is a subset of	19	the event of a contingency event", which
20	the 170. So, there just happens to be a	20	means non-spinning.
21	same quantity.	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
$\begin{vmatrix} 21\\22\end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:	22	Q. Okay, alright. So, I just wanted to be
23			
	Why wolling you describe it the same way as	14	clear that when we look at the operating
24	Q. Why would you describe it the same way as for uncertainties in generating units?	23 24	clear that when we look at the operating instructions in the standby generation

25

25

MS. WILLIAMS:

dispatches practices of Hydro for the last 3

July 1'	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 141		Page 143
1	years, that 70 megawatts has not been	1	we were going to need it for reserves. So
2	considered spinning. It's been considered	2	this would be an unexpected outage or
3	non-spinning.	3	something like that.
4	MS. WILLIAMS:	4	MR. O'BRIEN:
5	A. Over and above the largest generating unit,	5	Q. Okay, alright. I just wanted to get that
6	non –spinning.	6	clarified.
7	MR. O'BRIEN:	7	MS. WILLIAMS:
8	Q. So, that means you don't have to have it on,	8	A. But again, I believe that the, what would
9	you just have to have it ready to go.	9	appear to be confusion, in say the writing
10	MS. WILLIAMS:	10	of the instructions, will be clarified and
11	A. Correct.	11	that will refiled with the Board as well.
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	Q. Okay. So, that doesn't affect fuel costs?	13	Q. Alright. Okay, so getting back to Liberty's
14	MS. WILLIAMS:	14	report, one of the things that Liberty
15	A. Correct.	15	raises is the ability of the reliability
16	MR. LEBLANC:	16	standard to achieve its objective. So,
17	A. Now, I don't know is this happened, just—	17	Liberty made some observations about there
18	maybe I should keep my mouth shut, but	18	being a minimal overall improvement in
19	anyway –	19	reliability. Is that fair?
$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 20 \end{vmatrix}$	MR. O'BRIEN:	20	MS. WILLIAMS:
21	Q. Feel free to speak.	21	A. I think they quantified it that way.
$\frac{21}{22}$	MR. LEBLANC:	22	MR. O'BRIEN:
$\begin{vmatrix} 22 \\ 23 \end{vmatrix}$	A. If you cannot start that 70 megawatts quick	23	Q. Yeah. And I just wanted to get your
24	start, then it would have to be online, if	24	· J
25	it doesn't meet the timeframes required.	25	thoughts on that. I think Liberty had indicated that the evidence suggests that
23		23	~~
,	Page 142	,	Page 144
1	So, if, say, one or two of your quick start	1	the reliability standard could be said to
2	units was out for maintenance, it then may	2	reduce the recovery time from outages, but
3	switch to spinning just because there's no	3	not prevent outages. Is that fair?
4	other way to get it.	4	MS. WILLIAMS:
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	A. I'm not an electrical engineer, but you
6	Q. So when you say if you can't start the 170,	6	know, the discussions that I have hadI
7	that's –	7	think NP-306, Caryn, if you wouldn't mind
8	MR. LEBLANC:	8	just opening that. We have tried to put
9	A. No, not the 170, the 70.	9	Hydro's position forward that that is not
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	just the only benefit, although we feel
11	Q. The 70, okay.	11	differently, but again, you know, we accept
12	MR. LEBLANC:	12	the findings, but you know, in that RFI, we
13	A. Say you were relying on Hardwoods, for	13	did discuss that we think it's more than
14	example, to do that and it's out for	14	that five to ten minute perceived –
15	repairs, then you don't have another unit	15	MR. O'BRIEN:
16	that can start short term, then you'd have	16	Q. I think it said six –
17	to default to spinning reserves.	17	MS. WILLIAMS:
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	A. Correct—benefit. And so we run through in
19	Q. Got it. And that depends on the	19	there, I mean, as Mr. LeBlanc mentioned, if,
20	availability of units and it's more	20	for example, it was during the day and we
21	exception than the rule.	21	had an issue where the Holyrood gas turbine
22	MR. LEBLÂNC:	22	was not on, so if we did not have it on and
23	A. That's more an exception, more on	23	spinning in advance of a contingency and
24	availability. And again, we've never	24	again, it would only be on if it was the
1 25	released a unit for maintenance if we knew	25	last option available and least cost
25	released a difft for maintenance if we knew	23	iast option available and least cost
	Discoveries Unlimite		

July 1			NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 145		Page 147
1	dispatch order, and you had an issue develop	1	sort of changed in March, did you consider
2	during the day and you had the staff that	2	looking at well how is this going to benefit
3	normally worked there—they are generally a 8	3	us when we change, when we set the new
4	to 4 group, Monday to Friday—and you had an	4	standard?
5	under frequency or sorry, trip of unit that	5	MS. WILLIAMS:
6	caused an under frequency, you could get	6	A. I don't recall because I think when Hydro
7	that in, say, thirty to forty minutes and so	7	looked at changing to operating this way and
8	the next, if customers were off and we	8	dispatching in advance, it was understood
9	didn't have enough generation on line,	9	that it generally was the way it would have
10	enough spinning to restore everybody quickly	10	been done with utilities, so to track that
11	in the five to ten minutes, as is noted, you	11	benefit for something that really is
12	would then have to wait for the Holyrood gas	12	expected of you anyway, we didn't undertake
13	turbine to come on, so there would be people	13	to do that.
14	that would experience a longer outage, the	14	MR. FITZGERALD:
15	thirty to forty minutes that comes on line;	15	Q. Okay. And I know it was mentioned in the
16	however, if that issue occurred after 4 p.m.	16	evidence that one of the other operational
17	or on the weekend, you know, you'd have to	17	improvements that Hydro has implemented is
18	wait to get somebody in to do it, the checks	18	to have operating—or have staffing of
19	that they have do in advance so you could	19	standby units in advance. Can you take me
20	be, you know, many hours extending from an	20	through sort of how that works?
21	outage, so you know, we have tried to put	21	MS. WILLIAMS:
22	that on the record that that is our position	22	A. So the chart, there's actually charts on,
23	that, you know, this is not just the only	23	probably too difficult to explain it
24	benefit, but you can't say that you avoided	24	certainly for the transcript, but basically
25	it because it didn't occur, right, so you	l	
1 43	it because it didn't becai, ngiit, so you	1 23	is again on a daily basis and a look-lorward
23	<del>-</del> <del>-</del>	25	is again on a daily basis and a look-forward
	Page 146		Page 148
1	Page 146 can't really say that.	1	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's
1 2	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD:	1 2	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load
1 2 3	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah.	1 2 3	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we
1 2 3 4	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS:	1 2 3 4	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking
1 2 3 4 5	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only	1 2 3 4 5	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our
1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur,
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit of operating in this matter.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 148 basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but also with uncertainty in the actual load
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit of operating in this matter. MR. FITZGERALD:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but also with uncertainty in the actual load forecast, and again, I think I have another
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Page 146 can't really say that. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit of operating in this matter. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But you can't actually, like you say, you	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but also with uncertainty in the actual load forecast, and again, I think I have another RFI, I can't recall the number, but it talks
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Can't really say that.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit of operating in this matter.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But you can't actually, like you say, you can't—	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but also with uncertainty in the actual load forecast, and again, I think I have another RFI, I can't recall the number, but it talks about the Nostradamus forecast and the
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Can't really say that.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit of operating in this matter.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But you can't actually, like you say, you can't –  MS. WILLIAMS:	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but also with uncertainty in the actual load forecast, and again, I think I have another RFI, I can't recall the number, but it talks about the Nostradamus forecast and the errors that it can result in. I think there
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Can't really say that.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Yeah. MS. WILLIAMS: A. You know, I think the other pieces had only units online, you also could have prevented a wider spread issue because having the units online, again, not electrical but this is what I've been told, and it makes sense to me, is having the units online prevents the rate of frequency decay when it does occur, and so you are likely offsetting a larger outage as opposed to if you had to wait for it to bring it online, so I really believe that it is more than just the five to ten minute reduction that was the benefit of operating in this matter.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But you can't actually, like you say, you can't —  MS. WILLIAMS: A. Can't measure it.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	basis, if we create charts that there's triggers below which if we see a load forecast and a system condition that if we see it dip below at 170, when we are talking about conventional generation only, so our normal hydraulic units. Wind, we don't count until the day of, so if we see situations pending where we cannot meet our spinning reserve at quantities that dip below the 170, then we would decide to staff—or sorry, if they're going to dip close to we would decide to staff and then that allows us to be able to have people in place in the event of another, say, generation issue that could occur, transmission issue that could occur, but also with uncertainty in the actual load forecast, and again, I think I have another RFI, I can't recall the number, but it talks about the Nostradamus forecast and the errors that it can result in. I think there was a day last year, maybe April 1st, '17, we

Page 149 Page 151 1 have to call somebody in and it's, you know, 1 an understanding of operating this way is 2 three hours or four hours before you can 2 going to cost money, but, you know, it had 3 3 been the assimilation of a lot of input and actually re-establish that reserve, so that 4 it's under those reasons when we're watching 4 interpretation by Hydro, again I acknowledge 5 the forecast to see if it's going to come 5 that we didn't go out and ask parties, this 6 close to, we can't meet it with our 6 is how we're going to operate, are you on 7 7 board with how we're going to do this, I conventional generation and then we say, 8 8 okay, it's appropriate for us to put staff acknowledge that, but it was very clear that 9 9 that it was an understanding it is going to in place. 10 10 MR. FITZGERALD: be a costly way to operate but really felt And I guess that's sort of a looking-forward that we were assimilating input and looking 11 11 12 approach in that you believe the load is 12 at historically where we had come from, that going to hit a certain point, then you'll this is where we need to go to go forward, 13 13 staff in advance. Do you take a 14 14 so retrospective analysis of that from a cost 15 15 MR. FITZGERALD: So would it be fair to characterize the benefit perspective later on to sort of 16 16 17 track this to say have we staffed too much 17 approach as an improvement at any cost 18 or too many times, and is this operational 18 approach, or did you consider costs at the 19 loss working out for customers? 19 time? 20 20 MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: 21 I mean, again, the messages that we receive, 21 Again, I don't think nobody would have had A. 22 you know, quite clearly is that you need to 22 improvement at any cost, you know, damn the 23 be more cognizant now of that balance, so we 23 torpedoes, do whatever it takes to keep the 24 will be examining that go forward. 24 lights on. If that was the case, you'd 25 MR. FITZGERALD: 25 have, you know, a lot more investment and Page 150 Page 152 Q. And I just wanted to get your comments on 1 that going on, which was really an alignment 1 2 some of Liberty's comments about, in the 2 of how we were operating to what was 3 report they talk about prudence and whether 3 expected. 4 or not the costs in this deferral account 4 MR. FITZGERALD: 5 were imprudently incurred and we mentioned 5 So when Liberty says that Hydro's failure to 6 earlier that that was not the conclusion, undertake a cost benefit analysis is a 6 7 but they did make some observations which 7 serious omission, do you have any comment on 8 8 that? ran counter, in their mind, to the prudent 9 9 standard and I wanted to get some of your MS. WILLIAMS: 10 comments on that, one of which was that 10 We received the input and we will undertake A. Hydro failed to consider the cost at the to do that, go forward with any material 11 11 12 time they implemented the reliability change, and I think that is Liberty's 12 13 standard and that essentially it appeared to perspective and obviously we'll await the 13 be an improvements at any cost approach, do Board's ultimate decision on their view. I 14 14 15 you have any comment on whether that was the 15 think they also certainly said, you know, in 16 case or whether that's reasonable? 16 their opinion that even if you had gone, they believe the outcome would have been the 17 MS. WILLIAMS: 17 18 I mentioned earlier about Mr. Henderson had 18 same and I'm not suggesting at all that that 19 19 means Hydro thinks it doesn't need to get testimony at the time, I think it was 20 testimony it was in a filing to do with 20 input, that's not the case at all, but it 21 prudence, actually I think it was the 21 just supports the fact that I think Hydro December 22nd filing of the, maybe phase one, thought the approach that it was taking from 22 22 23 I'm trying to recall exactly the filing, but 23 a management of the system perspective was I believe the date was December 22nd, is that 24 24 the appropriate approach.

25

MR. FITZGERALD:

this will be costly, so there was definitely

25

Page 153 Page 155 1 Q. And Liberty suggests that management's 1 A. Yeah, I don't recall specifically – again it 2 actions indicate they're either unaware of 2 wasn't justified on that basis. 3 3 MR. O'BRIEN: the magnitude of costs associated with it or 4 they were insensitive to costs, which were 4 No. 0. 5 kind of strong words and I wanted to get 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 6 your comment on that. 6 Was that something that everyone kind of 7 7 said "this will likely help us as well", I MS. WILLIAMS: 8 8 Right, like I said, I don't think it's expect that was the case, but the decision A. 9 9 helpful for Hydro to debate that. We take to advance, it wasn't the driver. 10 Liberty's input seriously and we certainly 10 MR. O'BRIEN: take, you know, obviously they're a useful 11 11 Q. Didn't have that in your thought process? consultant for the Board and we think it's 12 12 MR. GARDINER: appropriate we take the input, but I 13 13 A. No 14 struggle with that characterization because 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 there is no way that anybody at Hydro is 15 Q. No, okay, and has Hydro decided to insensitive to the costs that are being reconsider its spinning reserve requirements 16 16 incurred on the system and we're very as a result of sort of the outcome and 17 17 18 conscious of the pending costs that are 18 seeing the large volumes in the deferral 19 coming, and you know, doing everything we 19 account? Is that something that's on your 20 can to mitigate expenses incurred. 20 mind? 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 At any point sort of from 2015 forward did Not in the moment because again, you know, Q. 22 A. 23 23 we feel we are, and Liberty, I think, has you come to a realization in your role that costs, supply costs, were going to be agreed, that how you're operating is 24 24 generally how a utility would operate, but 25 escalating as a result of this reliability 25 Page 156 Page 154 1 1 again I – this year we've already commenced standard and it's something that we should get input from customers? 2 a consultation with customers, and as part 2 3 MS. WILLIAMS: 3 of those conversations we are going to be 4 asking for input from customers, and the I think we know that the system itself was 4 A. 5 changing, so this was a short duration issue 5 industrial customers from Newfoundland 6 that was occurring, and that, you know, the Power, and from the Board, and from, you 6 7 same thing if you think about what TL267 can 7 know, I'll call it customers in their homes, 8 provide to us, the Avalon constraint 8 ask for that input, and that's going on now disappearing, there would have been a -9 9 and it'll all be incorporated into November. generally you would have expected a shift, So we have a very short period of time to 10 10 anyway. So, no, I don't think we would have add on a second parallel similar outcome 11 11 needed to reevaluate it and then reestablish review. I don't know that it's really 12 12 helpful. It would probably just slow down 13 and have that communication to change it 13 the review that we're ongoing, but we are 14 associated with the costs being incurred 14 very much looking for input on costs and 15 because the costs would have been changing 15 16 coming with the system changes as is. 16 what that translates to with regards to MR. O'BRIEN: reliability. 17 17 18 MR. O'BRIEN: And let me ask you just sort of back on the 18 Q. TL267, when you made the decision to move 19 19 So in terms of, say, specifically the Q. 20 that forward, is that something that you reserve requirements, would you be looking 20 21 were cognizant of, that possibly having an at providing some cost benefit analysis to 21 assistance on standby generation usage and customers as to, look, if we're going to 22 22 23 bringing down costs in this account? I know 23 monitor – if we're going to amend our 24 it wasn't put forward on that, but -24 reserve requirements, here's what the cost

25

25

MS. WILLIAMS:

might be, here's the risk benefit analysis

Page 157 Page 159 1 that you can look at? 1 Yes, yeah. A. 2 2 MS. WILLIAMS: MR. O'BRIEN: 3 3 I think how we're framing up how we're going Q. And Liberty talked about the possibility of A. 4 to engage the various parties is going to be 4 the need to tilt the cost versus reliability 5 different for every party because, 5 approach, and, I guess, that's what we're 6 obviously, the parties in this room are very 6 talking about now, that's kind of where you 7 savvy and understand the kinds of things 7 see Hydro going forward is looking at that? 8 8 that we're talking about, but when we start MS. WILLIAMS: 9 9 to engage customers, we're going to be Right, we were very pleased to see that they A. 10 working with Newfoundland Power to decide 10 were opening – sorry, put that conversation how is it we engage with customers because on the table because that's where our heads 11 11 12 they won't be able to interpret the 12 have been this year. information the same way. You know, 13 13 MR. O'BRIEN: ideally, you'll be able to say would you 14 14 0. Now one of the other comments Liberty made 15 like to pay an extra \$2.00 on your bill for 15 in terms of a – and, I guess, they phrased the rest of your life, would you accept the it as a second kind of counter-availing 16 16 17 risk of an outage once every five years 17 prudence factor, I think, is what they instead of one every 20 years. So, you 18 18 called it, was that there is a suggestion 19 know, we really have to think about how do 19 that Hydro continues to fail to consider 20 20 we get useful input from the customers, costs when operating standby generation 21 because again the people in this room 21 within its reliability. What comment would 22 understand when we talk about reliability you have on that? 22 23 benefits, so it's going to be a mix of how 23 MS. WILLIAMS: we gather that input and how we incorporate I had difficulty with that one too, and I 24 24 Α 25 that into our review. 25 think about, you know, the decision making Page 160 Page 158 1 that we look at, you know, every week and 1 MR. O'BRIEN: 2 2 every day on how can we choose the absolute Q. But, I guess, you'd agree with me that that 3 3 kind of analysis is necessary for customers least cost solutions to provide for the to make an informed decision? 4 reliability standards that we're executing. 4 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 and as I mentioned, it is contained in a 6 confidential R5, near term generation 6 A. Absolutely. 7 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 adequacy, I think, is PUB-4. It does talk 8 8 about the savings that we've been able to They got to know what the costs are versus 9 the reliability; if you're going to give up 9 realize year to date, and, you know, that is some sort of reliability, what the benefit 10 10 something that we are always looking at. So would be. that I had a bit of difficulty with, but 11 11 12 Liberty – again would they agree, you know, MS. WILLIAMS: 12 Right, and I would caution the use of with my characterization that I think we are 13 Α. 13 "customers making that decision", because very conscious of it and we are still doing 14 14 15 there might be – you know, I think it's 15 our best not to dispatch – sorry, to provide 16 going to be the Board's decision what the 16 for the other alternatives to dispatch. 17 ultimate investment is going to be. 17 They may not have access or may not have had 18 access in that proceeding as they were 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 19 looking at this one, but we are very Q. Very well. 20 20 conscious of it and finding ways to offset MS. WILLIAMS that gas turbine operation. 21 So I'd prefer to characterize it as input. 21 Α. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 23 And how do you sort of reconcile that with 0. Input, sure, stakeholder input on that sort O. 24 of thing? 24 sort of where, I guess, the deferral account

25

MS. WILLIAMS:

25

is to date, this year? I mean, you had

	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 161		Page 163
1	indicated earlier that it's a large figure	1	We're hoping that that will inform this
2	this year, and, I guess, from what I can	2	conversation as well, and any other pending
3	understand, it's probably larger than any of	3	conversations. I think we mentioned in our
4	the other years.	4	reply that, you know, we would certainly
5	MS. WILLIAMS:	5	engage parties if there was another material
6	A. I don't think so. I think we're estimating	6	change that we were undertaking that could
7	8 million at the end of the year.	7	result in increased costs, but it is
8	MR. O'BRIEN:	8	intended that this set of information will
9	Q. I thought you said 15 million.	9	be a springboard over which we could use to
10	MS. WILLIAMS:	10	inform generally. So to us, it's serving
11	A. Sorry, 18 million.	11	dual purposes as to provide some insight
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	into this as well as insight into the
13	Q. 18 million.	13	reliability review. Because as we will
14	MS. WILLIAMS:	13	
15			engage the various parties on the
1	A. 15 year to date, and 70 percent of that was	15	reliability review, we don't yet have the
16	incurred in the first two months before we	16	solution, so we have to kind of get some
17	had the opportunity to go with least cost	17	indicators in advance, what does reliability
18	off island supply. So, you know, as soon as	18	look like to you, at what cost can it come,
19	the potential developed, we started availing	19	and that will then inform some of the
20	of it, so I don't fully agree that we're not	20	solutions that you might put forward.
21	conscious of how we're dispatching because	21	MR. O'BRIEN:
22	we are indeed looking for the least cost	22	Q. Okay, and in terms of providing better cost
23	dispatch opportunities.	23	estimates into the future, I guess, annual
24	(12:00 p.m.)	24	and maybe quarterly, how do you intend to do
25	MR. O'BRIEN:	25	that and how to track costs, what's the plan
	Page 162		Page 164
1	Q. I wonder if we could get an Undertaking to	1	for letting customers know sort of what to
2	produce the account balance as of the end of	2	expect?
3	Q2, I guess.	3	MS. WILLIAMS:
4	MS. WILLIAMS:	4	A. I think we've suggested and, I guess, it
5	A. Sure.	5	would be up to the Board if it's acceptable
6	MR. O'BRIEN:	6	to them, at least on a year to date basis.
7	Q. Okay, thanks.	7	We've suggested we could include, say,
8	MS. GLYNN:	8	specifically the supply cost balances
9	Q. Noted on the record.	9	quarterly, and if that's acceptable, then
10	MR. O'BRIEN:	10	we'll certainly do that, and if the Board
11	Q. Liberty recommended that Hydro re-examine	11	C '4 ' 1'.CC C 4
l .	· ·		prefers it in a different format on a more
12	its approach to balancing cost and	12	frequent format, we could certainly adjust
l .	· ·		•
12	its approach to balancing cost and	12	frequent format, we could certainly adjust
12 13	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about	12 13	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We
12 13 14	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans -	12 13 14	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective,
12 13 14 15	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a	12 13 14 15	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to
12 13 14 15 16	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the	12 13 14 15 16	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.
12 13 14 15 16 17	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any	12 13 14 15 16 17	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:
12 13 14 15 16 17 18	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any plans early on to have discussions with	12 13 14 15 16 17 18	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And would you look at including information
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any plans early on to have discussions with stakeholders before that happens?  MS. WILLIAMS:	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And would you look at including information as to what's driving those costs or what
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any plans early on to have discussions with stakeholders before that happens?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, yeah. So I think the stakeholder	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And would you look at including information as to what's driving those costs or what drove those costs?
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any plans early on to have discussions with stakeholders before that happens?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, yeah. So I think the stakeholder consultation is to gather input on what does	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And would you look at including information as to what's driving those costs or what drove those costs?  MS. WILLIAMS:
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any plans early on to have discussions with stakeholders before that happens?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, yeah. So I think the stakeholder consultation is to gather input on what does reliability costs look like to you. That is	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And would you look at including information as to what's driving those costs or what drove those costs?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely, yeah.  MR. O'BRIEN:
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	its approach to balancing cost and reliability, and we talked a fair bit about that. I wondering if there's any plans - apart from, I guess, the filing of a reliability focus sort of long term down the road reliability approach, are there any plans early on to have discussions with stakeholders before that happens?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Right, yeah. So I think the stakeholder consultation is to gather input on what does	12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	frequent format, we could certainly adjust accordingly or a separate report. We thought that from an efficiency perspective, that would be an appropriate place to include those costs.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. And would you look at including information as to what's driving those costs or what drove those costs?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Absolutely, yeah.

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 165		Page 167
1	information in the appendix of that report	1	MS. WILLIAMS:
2	as to how to sort of try to separate out	2	A. Yeah.
3	costs. Do you intend to provide some cost	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
4	benefit, or, I guess, cost that is	4	Q. Okay, all right. Now that 2018 and 2019
5	attributed to each kind of driver in those	5	test year at 41.1, that doesn't take into
6	reports?	6	account any reduction of production due to
7	MS. WILLIAMS:	7	TL 267, does it?
8	A. We will certainly look at what they've	8	MS. WILLIAMS:
9	suggested and they were quite clear. They	9	A. No. Again I think I mentioned earlier, it
10	said, listen, this is an option, don't feel	10	wasn't really forecasted in, the forecast of
11	you have to do this if you need to do	11	TL 267 impact.
12	something differently. So we will look at	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	that, and then if it seems to make sense	13	Q. It's difficult to do that, break that up.
14	with what we are currently doing, then we	14	MS. WILLIAMS:
15	can adopt that if it makes sense to us, and	15	A. Yes.
16	then as we present it to the Board, if it	16	MR. O'BRIEN:
17	makes sense to the Board, this feels	17	Q. Okay, the last topic I had, I was going to
18	correct, then we can certainly use that one,	18	ask you, Mr. Gardiner, about just the
19	and if it doesn't, then we'll look for	19	capital program and capital expenditures,
20	alternative solutions.	20	that sort of thing.
21	MR. O'BIEN:	21	MR. GARDINER:
22	Q. Okay. I just wanted to touch briefly, and	22	A. Okay.
23	we did this yesterday, on the gas turbine	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
24	and diesel production for the test years. I	24	Q. I wonder if we could bring up 3.42 of the
25	wonder can we bring up Information 1, Page		evidence, page 3.42, and lines 11 to 15
25		23	
1	Page 166	1	Page 168
	35. It's the Schedule 3-V, I think. We	1	there. So Hydro was forecasting in 2017 to
$\frac{2}{2}$	just had a quick look at this yesterday. In	2	spend approximately 370 million, including over 167 on the transmission infrastructure.
3	terms of the island interconnected system	3	
4	and gas turbine diesel production, the	4	Were the actuals around that, do you know?
)	fourth line there, the actual production in	5	MR. GARDINER:
6	gigawatt hours was 56 for 2017, and the test	6	A. I believe so.
'/	year for 2018 is 41.1, and 2019 is 41.1.	7	MR. O'BRIEN:
8	For 2018 now, do you have a handle on what		Q. Yeah, okay.
9	the actual production is to date?	9	MR. GARDINER:
10	MS. WILLIAMS:	10	A. I know that – yeah, I believe so. That's
11	A. I think it's around 46.	11	subject to check.
12	MR. O'BRIEN:	12	MR. O'BRIEN:
13	Q. Around 46, and where do you expect it to be	13	Q. And in terms of capital expenditures and
14	by the end of the year?	14	carryovers -
15	MS. WILLIAMS:	15	MR. GARDINER:
16	A. Low 50s to mid 50s.	16	A. Yes.
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	MR. O'BRIEN:
18	Q. Okay. For 2019, do you expect it to change?		Q. Over the last – in the last GRA, there was
19	MS. WILLIAMS:	19	some concern raised by Newfoundland Power
20	A. Yes, and some of this will be updated in the	20	about carryovers and a variance between
21	evidence that's going to get filed this	21	budget and actual expenditures.
22	week. I believe that number is just under	22	MR. GARDINER:
23	30 for 2019 in the new evidence.	23	A. Yes.
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	MR. O'BRIEN:
25	Q. Yeah, I would expect that to go down.	25	Q. And there's a fair – from 2015 to 2016, the
	Discoveries Unlimite	d Inc.	(709)437-5028 Page 165 - Page 168

Page 169 Page 171 1 evidence shows there's sort of a 59 percent 1 MR. O'BRIEN: variance in 2015, 41 percent in 2016, but it 2 2 Q. There you go. 3 was right back down to, I think, .1 in 2017. MR. GARDINER: 3 MR. GARDINER: 4 4 Yes. Α. 5 2017, correct. 5 MR. O'BRIEN: A. MR. O'BRIEN: Yeah, so it's page 52 of that document. 6 6 Q. 7 7 MR. GARDINER: And I'm assuming that's from bringing 8 forward the TL267? 8 Actually, it's page 106 in the document page MR. GARDINER: 9 9 52 in the report. 10 Correct. If we could bring up -10 MR. O'BRIEN: Yeah, there's a summary, I think, there. 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 And sure, if you want to -12 12 MR. GARDINER: O. MR. GARDINER: 13 There is. 13 A. - page 106, I believe, of the – it would be 14 14 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 page 106 of the Information 1, I believe, is 15 Q. Here we go. it? Page 52. MR. GARDINER: 16 16 17 MR. O'BRIEN: Thank you. 17 A. MR. O'BRIEN: 18 Q. Page 52, you got it. 18 19 MR. GARDINER: 19 Okay. Yeah, so we see the variances year Q. 20 over year and there's significant variances 20 Yeah. Α. there in '15 and '16 and even '13 and '14. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 22 MR. GARDINER: 22 Q. Okay. 23 23 Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. 24 I believe those are the references that you 24 MR. O'BRIEN: Α. 25 talked about with Mr. Haynes. 25 O. Normally, I guess you'd agree with me, that Page 172 Page 170 MR. O'BRIEN: 1 anything over ten percent is something you'd 1 want to take a good look at? 2 2 Q. Yeah. 3 MR. GARDINER: 3 MR. GARDINER: 4 4 I think it's 106 in the document, page 52 of Absolutely. Our targets, our capital metric Α. 5 the Variance Report maybe. 5 target is a ten percent variance. MR. O'BRIEN: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 6 7 Yeah, just bring up page -7 Yeah. Q. Q. 8 MR. GARDINER: 8 MR. GARDINER: December 31st, 2017. 9 9 A. That's correct. And we did look at that and 10 10 MS. MASSIE: I mean, I can certainly speak to '15, '16 and '17. Sorry, can you repeat what you're looking 11 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 12 for? 12 If you can, please. MR. GARDINER: 13 13 Q. MR. GARDINER: 14 A. It's the -14 MR. O'BRIEN: I would, yeah. If you could bring up in 15 15 Α. 16 Q. It's the attached capital expenditure. So, 16 Exhibit 6, page 18 in Table 1, I'm going to there's an attachment to this document, I refer to the Lab West project that was 17 17 approved and perhaps it would be efficient 18 18 think. 19 if we – in the table, it shows 163 million 19 MR. GARDINER: 20 dollar variance and the variance report is 20 A. Yes. 21 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 41. MR. O'BRIEN: 22 So, Information 1, but there's also an 22 Q. 23 attachment to that. 23 So, there's a big difference in that one. Q. 24 MR. GARDINER: 24 MR. GARDINER:

25

A.

Yes.

25

Okay. Page – probably page 32. Variance

Page 173 Page 175 1 41. Variance 41, I think you went – maybe 1 So, if you look at that -A. 2 went by. No, page -2 MR. O'BRIEN: MR. O'BRIEN: 3 3 0. Some of it's in '16 and some of it's in '17? 4 There you go. That's it. 2015 variance 4 MR. GARDINER: 5 5 Right. So, if you take that variance, if there. A. MR. GARDINER: 6 you brought that forward, something that 6 7 7 wasn't planned for, our variance would be Okay. That's the 2015 variance. But if you 8 8 look at – I'm looking for the variance less than ten percent, just based on those itself for Lab West. It should be on page 9 9 two movements of those monies. 10 32 of variance No. 41. Caryn, if you just 10 MR. O'BRIEN: go up, I believe. Just go down. Keep 11 11 Q. Were anything – were any items moved ahead 12 going. There you go. So there, the Lab 12 like to 2018? West 2014 construction was a variance of 162 13 MR. GARDINER: 13 14 and that was due to the suspension of the 14 Not in 2015 or '16. Α. 15 work. 15 MR. O'BRIEN: Okay. All right. And 2017? MR. O'BRIEN: 16 16 0. Right. MR. GARDINER: 17 Q. 17 18 MR. GARDINER: 18 Α. In 2017, there were. 19 For Lab West. So, if we go back to the 59 19 MR. O'BRIEN: percent variance, if we were to take the 59 20 20 Yeah. Ο. MR. GARDINER: 21 - that 163 million dollars out of the 21 budget. 22 There were a number – and we can talk about 22 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 - if we just follow through, if you look -MR. O'BRIEN: 24 24 Q. Yeah. 25 MR. GARDINER: 25 O. I think there was 38 million or something. Page 176 Page 174 Because we weren't going to do the work MR. GARDINER: 1 A. 1 2 until we had word from Alderon to move on in 2 A. That was carried back, yes, that's correct. 3 terms of financing, that would put our 3 MR. O'BRIEN: variance at minus – or at 15.9 percent 4 4 Yeah. 0. 5 actually. 5 MR. GARDINER: 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 6 If you look at 2016, just to tell the story, A. 7 7 we had a minus 41 percent. It's a bit of an Okay. Q. 8 8 improvement, but still nothing to brag MR. GARDINER: 9 9 A. So, the other thing that was going on – and about. MR. O'BRIEN: 10 that's also affecting 2016 too, Mr. O'Brien. 10 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 11 0. No. Is it? Okay. 12 Q. 12 MR. GARDINER: If you look at the variance again, it's the 13 MR. GARDINER: 13 Α. same variance actually for Lab West. There 14 We can go to that variance as well in 2016. 14 was 128 million dollars that year that was 15 But also, what was happening is the – as you 15 16 mentioned, in 2016, we did have TL267 that 16 on our books as a budget that we carried and 17 was ongoing and we did change the cash flow 17 it's been reported in the total budget for 18 quite a bit in that project as well. So, in 2016. But if you take that money out -18 - if you go to page - just subject to check, 19 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 if you like, there's a 19 million dollar 20 0. Yeah. carryover that we brought forward as well 21 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 into '16. 22 - and go to what our budget would have been 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 without Lab West, it would be – once again,

24

25

24

25

Ο.

Okay.

MR. GARDINER:

it would be about eight percent of the

variance.

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 177		Page 179
1	MR. O'BRIEN:	1	we talked to System Operation as to what
2	Q. So, you'd be within your ten percent in	2	would the best thing to do. It was good
3	2016?	3	because we wanted to take the resources to
4	MR. GARDINER:	4	make sure we got 267 done, but also from an
5	A. We would be within our ten percent, yeah,	5	operations point of view, we were able to do
6	which is what our target is, as you say.	6	that work and we'll be doing that work this
7	MR. O'BRIEN:	7	year and be able to take TL202 or TL206 out
8	Q. Yeah, and with the TL267 coming in in 2017,	8	and still have the benefit of having the two
9	a bit early from 2018, that creates a bit of	9	circuits that come in from Bay D'Espoir.
10	an anomaly though in your -	10	So, it de-risks the work somewhat.
11	MR. GARDINER:	11	MR. O'BRIEN:
12	A. It does.	12	Q. Right.
13	MR. O'BRIEN:	13	MR. GARDINER:
14	Q in your 2018 year.	14	A. So, if you take those ones and the other two
15	MR. GARDINER:	15	that were – two major ones was the first
16	A. Absolutely.	16	one, variance 12. Just for clarity, the
17	MR. O'BRIEN:	17	projects that impacted to the acceleration
18	Q. Sorry, 2017 year. Is that fair?	18	of 267 were those three and there was a
19	MR. GARDINER:	19	couple of others.
20	A. That's correct. So, as you mentioned	20	MR. O'BRIEN:
21	previously and indeed what's up on the	21	Q. Couple others down there.
22	screen there now, it necessitated moving 38	22	MR. GARDINER:
23	million dollars back.	23	A. There was some fire protection in Bay
24	MR. O'BRIEN:	24	D'Espoir and there was some anchors that we
25	Q. Right.	25	were planning to do on 202 and 206.
1			Well planning to do on 202 and 200.
	Page 178		
1	Page 178 MR GARDINER:		Page 180
1 2	MR. GARDINER:	1	Page 180 MR. O'BRIEN:
2	MR. GARDINER: A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.	1 2	Page 180 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah.
2 3	MR. GARDINER: A. So, we accelerated the in-service date. Originally, we did put it in service on	1 2 3	Page 180 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER:
2 3 4	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but	1 2 3 4	Page 180 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17
2 3 4 5	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just	1 2 3 4 5	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -
2 3 4 5 6	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The	1 2 3 4 5 6	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date. Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.)
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 180 MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12,
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred.	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date. Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred for two reasons. One is that we had this	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift -  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be delivered in November. However, there was
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred for two reasons. One is that we had this work that we had not planned on doing and	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be delivered in November. However, there was some delays and various things and we didn't
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred for two reasons. One is that we had this work that we had not planned on doing and the other one was around risk. As we've	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be delivered in November. However, there was some delays and various things and we didn't get the material until January/February of
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred for two reasons. One is that we had this work that we had not planned on doing and the other one was around risk. As we've talked about, the TL267 line brought a third	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be delivered in November. However, there was some delays and various things and we didn't get the material until January/February of this year.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred for two reasons. One is that we had this work that we had not planned on doing and the other one was around risk. As we've talked about, the TL267 line brought a third line in from the bay. So, we would have to	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be delivered in November. However, there was some delays and various things and we didn't get the material until January/February of this year.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MR. GARDINER:  A. So, we accelerated the in-service date.  Originally, we did put it in service on  December 6th, 2017, which was good, but however, if you just read down – if you just move down a little bit, please. Okay. The largest contributors in the under spend in '17 were from a number of projects. And if you look at variance 28, variance 29 and variance 38, they were three variances that we consciously moved forward because of the work that we had to do. For example, in the terminal station refurbishment, we deferred. We looked at it. We did a de-risk and some of the terminal station refurbishment that we were doing in Sunnyside, as well as Bay D'Espoir and in Western Avalon, we deferred for two reasons. One is that we had this work that we had not planned on doing and the other one was around risk. As we've talked about, the TL267 line brought a third	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Page 180  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. MR. GARDINER: A. And if you add those all up, that's a 17 million dollar shift - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Yeah. (12:15 p.m.) MR. GARDINER: A that we made consciously to do that. The other projects that are there, variance 12, site facilities, that's a new site facility that we're putting in Bay D'Espoir and that was a three million dollar carryover, and what happened there was quite often with the material delivery – this was a three-year project. The material was supposed to be delivered in November. However, there was some delays and various things and we didn't get the material until January/February of this year.

25

A.

Sunnyside. So, we looked at it. We felt –

25

Now, that project will still be completed on

Page 183   Page 183   Page 183   Page 183   If time and it will be on budget. That's what I I've been told and that's what we've been tracking to. The other variance that we did a mention there is 65 and Ms. Williams talked about the work that we were doing around the penstock and then, when we did the work, we penstock and then, when we did the work, we penstock and then, when we did the work, we penstock and then, when we did the work, we penstock and then, when we did the work, we penstock and then, when we did the work, we penstock and then, when we did the work was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on what happened in penstock one, and when we got in penstock too, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding retribishment that we didn't have to do.  22 MR, O'BRIEN:  3 Q. Okay.  4 MR, G'ARDINER:  4 We did about 1400 feet in penstock too and then that it fyou take the projects of the math on that, if you take the projects of the math on that, if you take the projects a variance of 13 percent.  4 Q. Yeah.  5 MR, GARDINER:  6 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  7 MR, O'BRIEN:  8 MR, O'BRIEN:  10 A. Yeah, If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent.  11 MR, GARDINER:  12 MR, O'BRIEN:  13 MR, O'BRIEN:  14 Q. Yeah.  15 A. And it you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  17 MR, GARDINER:  18 MR, GARDINER:  19 MR, GARDINER:  19 MR, GARDINER:  20 Q. Okay.  21 MR, G'ARDINER:  22 A. And that so the 38 million dollars came be ack from '18 back to '17.  23 MR, O'BRIEN:  24 MR, G'ARDINER:  25 A. And that so the 38 million dollars came be ack	July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
2		Page 181		Page 183
tracking to. The other variance that we did mention there is 65 and Ms. Williams talked be penstock and then, when we did the work, we put a supplemental into the Board for nine million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on en previously in September.    MR. OBRIEN:	1	time and it will be on budget. That's what	1	MR. GARDINER:
mention there is 65 and Ms. Williams talked about the work that we were doing around the penstock and then, when we did the work, we put a supplemental into the Board for nine million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the operations of the work that we saw that we didn't know what the MR, GARDINER:  12 MR, OBRIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR, GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what happened in penstock one, and when we got in penstock two, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 21 MR, OBRIEN: 22 MR, OBRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR, GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock woo sand 26 we did about 1400 feet in penstock woo so, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of a about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects based on the movement of TL,267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 26 MR, OBRIEN: 27 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock two So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of MR, CARDINER: 28 Q. I expected you would have, Mr, Gardiner. 29 MR, GARDINER: 30 Q. Veah. 41 Q. Yeah. 42 Q. Yeah. 43 Q. For two reasons. One was the main reason I believe is to de-risk the work. 44 MR OBRIEN: 45 A. We didn't want to be working on a third the thaking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are Page 184 coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we wanted to —as I said yesterday about working on	2	I've been told and that's what we've been	2	A. And to your point, that would have -
mention there is 65 and Ms. Williams talked about the work that we were doing around the penstock and then, when we did the work, we put a supplemental into the Board for nine million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on the operations of the work that we saw that we didn't know what the MR, GARDINER:  12 MR, OBRIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR, GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what happened in penstock one, and when we got in penstock two, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 21 MR, OBRIEN: 22 MR, OBRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR, GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock woo sand 26 we did about 1400 feet in penstock woo so, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of a about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects based on the movement of TL,267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 26 MR, OBRIEN: 27 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock two So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of MR, CARDINER: 28 Q. I expected you would have, Mr, Gardiner. 29 MR, GARDINER: 30 Q. Veah. 41 Q. Yeah. 42 Q. Yeah. 43 Q. For two reasons. One was the main reason I believe is to de-risk the work. 44 MR OBRIEN: 45 A. We didn't want to be working on a third the thaking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are Page 184 coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we wanted to —as I said yesterday about working on	3	tracking to. The other variance that we did	3	MR. O'BRIEN:
about the work that we were doing around the penstock and then, when we did the work, we put a supplemental into the Board for nine million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental tool the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock one previously in September.  10 Mr. O'RBIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what was that we would look at it based on what happened in penstock too, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 10 MR. O'RBIEN: 11 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock too and the math on that, if you take the projects of that three was alous we did about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do take the projects of the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 10 MR. O'RBIEN: 11 A. Yesh. If you did the projects based on the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 12 MR. GARDINER: 13 Q. Yeah. 14 MR. O'RBIEN: 15 MR. O'RBIEN: 16 We did Application of the work on the work of the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 17 MR. GARDINER: 18 A. Yesh. If you did the projects based on the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 MR. GARDINER: 11 A. Yesh. If you did the projects based on the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. Yesh. If you did the projects based on the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. And that –so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. And that –so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. And that –so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. And that –so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 25 A. We did over 2,000 fer in penstock two so, if you do the movement of Tl.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 26 MR. GA	4		4	Q. Some move -
6 penstock and then, when we did the work, we put a supplemental into the Board for nine million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock one previously in September. 11 do penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock one previously in September. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what happened in penstock one, and when we got into penstock two, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 we did about 1400 feet in penstock one and Page 182 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of a about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 We did dover 2,000 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of a bout 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 18 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. GARDINER: 20 Q. Lexpected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. GARDINER: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. G'ARDINER: 39 MR. G'ARDINER: 40 MR. O'BRIEN: 41 MR. G'ARDINER: 41 MR. G'ARDINER: 42 MR. G'ARDINER: 43 MR. G'ARDINER: 44 MR. G'ARDINER: 45 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MR. G'ARDINER: 48 MR. G'ARDINER: 49 MR. G'ARDINER: 40 MR. G'ARDINER: 51 MR. G'A	5	about the work that we were doing around the	5	`
The supplemental into the Board for nine million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock one previously in September.   10	1 .	•		
8 million dollars and that, the basis for that supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock one previously in September.  12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a — we didn't know what was that we would look at it based on what happened in penstock one, and when we got into penstock two, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding redriving the that there was a lot of welding redriving that we would look at it based on what happened in penstock two, to our good fortune, is that there was a lot of welding redriving that we work.  15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 We did dover 2,000 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of a about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects based on the movement of '17.267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent.  17 We did not that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, that we wanted to — as I said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our owns, and ifelf that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 Q. Yeah. 10 A. Yeah. Hyou did the projects based on the m	1	*		
9 supplemental to do the penstock was based on the work that we saw that we did in penstock on previously in September. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what we were going to find, so our best estimate we were going to find, so our best estimate we were going to find, so our best estimate was that we would look at it based on what happened in penstock one, and when we got into penstock two, to our good fortune, is that there was a tot of welding refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 15 we did about 1400 feet in penstock one and 16 we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, 1 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3 about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4 the math on that, if you take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - MR. O'BRIEN: 16 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 17 MR. GARDINER: 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Veah. 21 Coming in the to be working on a third then take the projects - we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we wanted to – as I said yesterday about working our our won, people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us a variance of 13 percent. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent. 19 MR. GARDINER: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. Me didn't want to be working on a third then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines the we wented to – as I sa	1	1 11		
10	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•
11 one previously in September. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what 16 we were going to find, so our best estimate 17 was that we would look at it based on what 18 happened in penstock one, and when we got 19 into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 20 that there was a lot of welding 21 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 26 we did about 1400 feet in penstock one and 27 we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, that there because we did the math. If you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects that we Veah. If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 28 Q. Yeah. 39 Q. Okay. 40 MR. GARDINER: 41 Coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we warrance of 13 percent. 41 Q. Yeah. 42 Yeah. If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 Q. Yeah. 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 Coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we wanted to – as 1 said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year. 40 Q. Yeah. 41 MR. O'BRIEN: 42 Q. Yeah. 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 Q. Yeah. 45 MR. O'BRIEN: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 Okarier in the varier of the projects of the serven percent, less than ten, seven percent, less than ten, seven percent, less than ten, seven percent. 48 MR. O'BR	1	• •		
12   MR. O'BRIËN:     13   Q. Um-hm.     14   MR. GARDINER:   15   A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what 16   we were going to find, so our best estimate was that we would look at it based on what 18   happened in penstock one, and when we got 19   into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 19   that there was a lot of welding 21   refurbishment that we didn't have to do.   22   MR. O'BRIEN:   23   Q. Okay.   Q. Veah.   MR. GARDINER:   A. We didn't want to be working on a third circuit that was coming in and being in Bay D'Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 24   we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, 1   that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3   about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you down that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects 5   that we – because we did the math. If you 16   the math on that, if you take the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent.   18   WR. O'BRIEN:   19   Wariance of 13 percent.   19   WR. O'BRIEN:   19   WR. O'BRIE	1	•		
13 Q. Um-hm. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what 16 was that we would look at it based on what 17 was that we would look at it based on what 18 happened in penstock one, and when we got 19 into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 19 that there was a lot of welding 20 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 26 Mr. GARDINER: 27 we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, and a shout 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 28 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 A. Yeah. 21 wariance of 13 percent. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. And that you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent. 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock two. So, if you do 26 the math on that, if you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of that we have a deal of the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. Okay. 33 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. GARDINER: 43 MR. GARDINER: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. GARDINER: 47 MR. GARDINER: 48 MR. GARDINER: 49 MR. GARDINER: 40 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. GARDINER: 43 MR. GARDINER: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. GARDINER: 47 MR. GARDINER: 48 MR. GARDINER: 49 MR. GARDINER: 40 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. GARDINER: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. GARDINER: 47 MR. GARDINER: 48 Gidn't want to be work in be winding in the being in Bay 49 Coming in	1			· · ·
14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what 16 we were going to find, so our best estimate 17 was that we would look at it based on what 18 happened in penstock kone, and when we got 19 into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 10 that there was a lot of welding 21 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock two. So, 2 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3 about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4 the math on that, if you take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 6 take the projects - 7 MR. O'BRIEN: 8 Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 9 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the 11 movement of TL267, it would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. For two reasons. One was the main reason I 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 MR. O'BRIEN: 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 MR. GARDINER: 11 We didn't want to be working on a third 12 circuit that was coming in and being in Bay 10 Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and 12 then taking out our primary station of 12 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 14 coming in there. For the sake of one year, 15 we felt that that was the right thing to do 16 from a reliability point of view, and also, 17 you know, there's a number of resources that 18 we wanted to – as I said yesterday about 19 work on our work, and I felt that that would 20 give us the ability then to take some of 21 they can do the work on the other work this 22 year. 23 A. So, that's the analysis that we did. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 26 back from '18 back to '17. 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. GARDINER: 30 MR. GARDINER: 31 MR. GARDINER: 31 MR. GARDINER: 32 MR. GARDINER: 33 MR. GARDINER: 34 MR. GARDINER: 35 MR. GARDINER: 36 MR. GARDINER: 37 MR. GARDINER: 38 MR. GARDINER: 39 MR. GARDINER: 30 MR. GARDINER: 30 MR. GARDINER: 31 MR	1			· ·
15 A. So, we came up with a – we didn't know what 16 we were going to find, so our best estimate 17 was that we would look at it based on what 18 happened in penstock one, and when we got 19 into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 19 that there was a lot of welding 20 that there was a lot of welding 21 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 23 D'Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and 24 MR. GARDINER: 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock two. So, 2 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3 about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4 the math on that, if you take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 6 take the projects - 10 that we – because we did the math. If you 16 the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent. 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 12 work on our work and 1 felt that that would give us a variance of 13 percent. 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 15 MR. O'BRIEN: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 18 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. GARDINER: 10 MR. GARDINER: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MR. GARDINER: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MR. GARDINER: 11 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 MR. GARDINER: 11 MR	1			
16	1			7
17	1	, 1		
18 happened in penstock one, and when we got into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 20 that there was a lot of welding 21 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 23 D'Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and 24 then taking out our primary station of 25 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 26 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 27 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 28 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 29 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 20 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 21 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 21 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 22 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 24 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 24 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 24 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 25 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 26 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 27 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 28 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 28 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 28 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 28 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 28 Sunnyside with the other two lines that 40 Sunnyside with the other work 40 Su	1	,		
19 into penstock two, to our good fortune, is 20 that there was a lot of welding 21 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 26 we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects of MR. O'BRIEN: 28 Q. 1 expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 39 MR. GARDINER: 40 Q. Yeah. 41 Q. Yeah. 41 Q. Yeah. 42 MR. GARDINER: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 Q. Yeah. 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent. 46 MR. GARDINER: 47 MR. O'BRIEN: 48 Q. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. GARDINER: 40 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. O'BRIEN: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 Q. Yeah. 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent. 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 Q. Okay. 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. O'BRIEN: 43 MR. GARDINER: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. GARDINER: 47 MR. O'BRIEN: 48 MR. GARDINER: 49 MR. GARDINER: 40 Q. Yeah. 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. O'BRIEN: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MR. O'BRIEN: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. GARDINER: 40 Okay. 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. O'BRIEN: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MR. O'BRIEN: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 Okay. 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 41 MR. GARDINER: 42 MR. O'BRIEN: 43 MR. O'BRIEN: 44 MR. GARDINER: 45 MR. GARDINER: 46 MR. O'BRIEN: 47 MR. O'BRIEN: 48 MR. O'BRIEN: 49 MR. O'BRIEN: 40 Okay. 40 Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1			
that there was a lot of welding refurbishment that we didn't have to do.  MR. O'BRIEN:  O we did about 1400 feet in penstock one and shout 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  O We Glid Dover 2,000 feet in penstock one and shout 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects of MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  A. We didn't want to be working on a third circuit that was coming in and being in Bay D'Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are Page 184 coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we wanted to – as I said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN	1			
21 refurbishment that we didn't have to do. 22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 26 regular than 1400 feet in penstock two. So, 20 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3 about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4 the math on that, if you take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 4 take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 4 take the projects 6 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 9 MR. GARDINER: 29 MR. GARDINER: 30 MR. GARDINER: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 A. We didn't want to be working on a third circuit that was coming in and being in Bay D'Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are  Page 182 coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we wanted to – as I said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us a variance of 13 percent. 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 Q. Right. 33 MR. O'BRIEN: 34 MR. GARDINER: 35 MR. GARDINER: 36 MR. GARDINER: 37 Okay. So, from an overall picture then, I gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a huge – there's a reason for the huge difference? 38 MR. GARDINER: 39 MR. GARDINER: 30 Okay. So, from an overall picture then, I gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a huge – there's a reason for the huge difference? 30 MR. O'BRIEN: 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 31 MR. O'BRIEN: 32 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 32 MR. O'BRIEN: 33 MR. O'BRIEN: 34 A. We didn't want to be work and then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 35 Page 184 4 coming in there. For the sake of one year, we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, t	1	, ,		
22 MR. O'BRIEN: 23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 25 we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of that we because we did the math. If you take the projects of the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent.  13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent. 18 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 24 then taking out our primary station of then then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 24 then taking out our primary station of Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 25 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 26 Sunnyside with the other two lines that are 27 we felt that that was the right thing to do from a reliability point of view, and also, you know, there's a number of resources that we we wanted to – as I said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year. 28 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 39 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 30 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 31 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 31 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 32 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 33 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 34 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 35 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 36 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 37 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 38 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 39 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 30 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 31 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 31 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 32 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 33 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 34 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 35 Jan R. O'BRIEN: 36 Jan R.	1	<u> </u>		
23 Q. Okay. 24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and 26 Page 182 27	21	refurbishment that we didn't have to do.		Č
24 MR. GARDINER: 25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and  Page 182  1 we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, 2 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3 about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4 the math on that, if you take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 4 take the projects - 4 that we – because we did the math. If you 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 6 take the projects - 6 that we – because we did the math. If you 6 take the projects - 7 MR. O'BRIEN: 7 work on our work, and I felt that that would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 Q. Okay. 20 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	22	MR. O'BRIEN:		circuit that was coming in and being in Bay
25 A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and  Page 182  we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, 2 that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of 3 about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do 4 the math on that, if you take the projects 5 that we – because we did the math. If you 6 take the projects - 6 that we – because we did the math. If you 6 take the projects - 7 MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:	23	Q. Okay.	23	D'Espoir and Western Avalon doing work and
Page 182  We did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects of the work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRI	24	MR. GARDINER:	24	then taking out our primary station of
we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects of take the order two major projects of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR	25	A. We did over 2,000 feet in penstock one and	25	Sunnyside with the other two lines that are
we did about 1400 feet in penstock two. So, that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects of take the order two major projects of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR		Page 182		Page 184
that resulted in a savings or a non-spend of about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - that we wanted to – as I said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of have resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  MR. O'BRIEN: 12 MR. O'BRIEN: 13 Q. Right. 14 MR. GARDINER: 15 A. So, that's the analysis that we did. 16 MR. O'BRIEN: 17 Q. Okay. So, from an overall picture then, I gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a huge – there's a reason for the huge difference? 18 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. GARDINER: 20 Q. Okay. 20 difference? 21 MR. GARDINER: 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	_	1	-
about 5.5 million dollars. So, if you do the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. O'BRIEN:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. GARDINER:  MR. G'BRIEN:  MR. G'BR	1	•		
the math on that, if you take the projects that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects - MR. O'BRIEN: Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. MR. GARDINER: O'BRIEN: MR. GARDINER: MR. O'BRIEN: MR. GARDINER: MR. O'BRIEN: MR. GARDINER: MR. O'BRIEN: MR. GARDINER: MR. O'BRIEN: MR. GARDINER: MR. O'BRIEN: MR. GARDINER:	1			
that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects -  that we – because we did the math. If you take the projects -  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner.  MR. GARDINER:  10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent.  12 variance of 13 percent.  13 MR. O'BRIEN:  14 Q. Yeah.  15 MR. GARDINER:  16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  18 MR. O'BRIEN:  19 MR. O'BRIEN:  10 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  18 MR. O'BRIEN:  19 MR. O'BRIEN:  10 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  19 MR. O'BRIEN:  20 Q. Okay.  21 MR. GARDINER:  22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17.  24 MR. O'BRIEN:  25 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17.  26 We wanted to – as I said yesterday about working on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  10 WR. O'BRIEN:  11 MR. O'BRIEN:  12 MR. O'BRIEN:  13 Q. Right.  14 MR. O'BRIEN:  15 A. So, that's the analysis that we did.  16 MR. O'BRIEN:  17 Q. Okay. So, from an overall picture then, I gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a huge – there's a reason for the huge difference?  27 MR. GARDINER:  28 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17.  29 MR. O'BRIEN:  20 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1			* *
take the projects -  7 MR. O'BRIEN:  8 Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner.  9 MR. GARDINER:  10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the 11 movement of TL267, it would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent.  13 MR. O'BRIEN:  14 Q. Yeah.  15 MR. GARDINER:  16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent.  19 MR. O'BRIEN:  10 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 20 Dack of MR. GARDINER:  21 MR. O'BRIEN:  22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17.  24 MR. O'BRIEN:  26 Work on our own, having our own people work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year.  10 they can do the work on the other work this year.  11 year.  12 MR. O'BRIEN:  13 Q. Right.  14 MR. GARDINER:  15 A. So, that's the analysis that we did.  16 MR. O'BRIEN:  17 Q. Okay. So, from an overall picture then, I gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a huge – there's a reason for the huge difference?  21 MR. GARDINER:  22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17.  24 MR. O'BRIEN:  25 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17.  26 Work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this 10 MR. O'BRIEN:  26 WR. O'BRIEN:  27 MR. GARDINER:  28 MR. O'BRIEN:  29 Work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this 10 MR. O'BRIEN:  18 MR. O'BRIEN:  19 Work on our work, and I felt that that would give us a these distinctions and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work in they can do the work on the other work on the other work in they can do the work on the other work on the other work on t	_ ا	, , ,	_	
7 MR. O'BRIEN: 8 Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 9 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the 11 movement of TL267, it would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 A. And O'BRIEN: 26 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 27 work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year. 16 A. Yeah. 17 WR. O'BRIEN: 18 Work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year. 18 WR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 11 Work on our work, and I felt that that would give us the ability then to take some of these resources and put them on 267 and then they can do the work on the other work this year. 18 WR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. So, from an overall picture then, I gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a huge – there's a reason for the huge difference? 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came back from '18 back to '17. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really				
8 Q. I expected you would have, Mr. Gardiner. 9 MR. GARDINER: 9 these resources and put them on 267 and then 10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the 11 movement of TL267, it would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 10 Okay. 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	1 3		
9 MR. GARDINER: 10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the 11 movement of TL267, it would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really				
10 A. Yeah. If you did the projects based on the movement of TL267, it would give us a variance of 13 percent.  12 variance of 13 percent.  13 MR. O'BRIEN:  14 Q. Yeah.  15 MR. GARDINER:  16 A. And if you take the other two major projects out, we would be at seven percent, less than le	1			
11 movement of TL267, it would give us a 12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. MR. O'BRIEN: 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. GARDINER: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. GARDINER: 20 MR. GARDINER: 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. Yes. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 25 Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1			
12 variance of 13 percent. 13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 21 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 MR. O'BRIEN: 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	1 3		
13 MR. O'BRIEN: 14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 Q. Right. 17 MR. GARDINER: 18 MR. GARDINER: 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. Yes. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•
14 Q. Yeah. 15 MR. GARDINER: 16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. GARDINER: 27 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 28 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1			
MR. GARDINER:  16 A. And if you take the other two major projects  17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than  18 ten, seven percent.  19 MR. O'BRIEN:  10 Q. Okay.  11	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
16 A. And if you take the other two major projects 17 out, we would be at seven percent, less than 18 ten, seven percent. 19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 26 MR. O'BRIEN: 27 Okay. 28 So, from an overall picture then, I 29 gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a light of the huge difference? 29 difference? 20 difference? 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. Yes. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1			
out, we would be at seven percent, less than ten, seven percent.  NR. O'BRIEN:  Okay.	1			,
18ten, seven percent.18gather from the 2015 and 2016, there's a19MR. O'BRIEN:19huge – there's a reason for the huge20Q. Okay.20difference?21MR. GARDINER:21MR. GARDINER:22A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came22A. Yes.23back from '18 back to '17.23MR. O'BRIEN:24MR. O'BRIEN:24Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	5 1 5		
19 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 29 huge – there's a reason for the huge 20 difference? 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. Yes. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	•		
20 Q. Okay. 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 20 difference? 21 MR. GARDINER: 22 A. Yes. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	1	,		
21 MR. GARDINER:   22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came   23 back from '18 back to '17.   24 MR. O'BRIEN:   21 MR. GARDINER:   22 A. Yes.   23 MR. O'BRIEN:   24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really				
22 A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came 23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 22 A. Yes. 23 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	20	5 ·		
23 back from '18 back to '17. 24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	21	MR. GARDINER:	21	MR. GARDINER:
24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	22	A. And that – so the 38 million dollars came	22	A. Yes.
24 MR. O'BRIEN: 24 Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really	23	back from '18 back to '17.	23	MR. O'BRIEN:
	24		24	Q. Or huge variance, and it's associated really
	25	Q. Right.	25	

<del> </del>	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 185		Page 187
1	MR. GARDINER:	1	MR. O'BRIEN:
2	A. Well, really three projects in terms of –	2	Q. Yeah.
3	when you talk about the Lab – the non-	3	MR. GARDINER:
4	project, Lab West.	4	A. First of all, we have a more robust project
5	MR. O'BRIEN:	5	execution group that we started. They're
6	Q. The non-one, yes.	6	dedicated to carrying out the work. So,
7	MR. GARDINER:	7	that's from a project execution point of
8	A. Right. The 267.	8	view. But also, one of the things that
9	MR. O'BRIEN:	9	we've done in our estimating, to the get the
10	Q. Yeah.	10	estimates better going forward, is that we
11	MR. GARDINER:	11	have increased front-end engineering that we
12	A. And then also TL266 which was the other –	12	do. We require site visits by our team.
13	the sister line that we're building in from	13	MR. O'BRIEN:
14	Soldier's Pond, we did take resources from	14	Q. Okay.
15	there and put them on TL267 to make sure	15	MR. GARDINER:
16	that we captured the – make sure we made the		A. And we talked about travel yesterday, about
17	date, the 2017 date.	17	being cut or whatever. I mean, that's part
18	MR. O'BRIEN:	18	•
			of it, but we were able to manage it and you
19	Q. So, when we look at sort of the variance	19	coordinate with the teams that are out in
20	over time -	20	operations. We also keep now, in the last
21	MR. GARDINER:	21	two years, lessons learned database.
22	A. Yeah.	22	MR. O'BRIEN:
23	MR. O'BRIEN:	23	Q. Okay.
24	Q and we've got sort of – we've got capital	24	MR. GARDINER:
25	budget and expenditures here in Table 17.	25	A. So, every time we complete a project, the
	Page 186		Page 188
1	So, apart from the one year 2011 where it	1	project team gets together with the
2	was under the ten percent, every year up to	2	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they
2 3	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16		project team gets together with the
2	was under the ten percent, every year up to	2	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they
2 3	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16	2 3	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong
2 3 4	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-	2 3 4	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that
2 3 4 5	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that	2 3 4 5	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we
2 3 4 5 6	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just	2 3 4 5 6	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.
2 3 4 5 6 7	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your	2 3 4 5 6 7	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER:
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct. MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Have you made any changes with your	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Have you made any changes with your department?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a — there's an electronic database. It's on
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Have you made any changes with your department?  MR. GARDINER:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a – there's an electronic database. It's on the Share Point and we – it's mandatory now.
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct. MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Have you made any changes with your department?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a — there's an electronic database. It's on the Share Point and we — it's mandatory now. It has to be signed off by the project
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Have you made any changes with your department?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a — there's an electronic database. It's on the Share Point and we — it's mandatory now. It has to be signed off by the project manager and part of the estimate template
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Have you made any changes with your department?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Can you tell us about that?	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a — there's an electronic database. It's on the Share Point and we — it's mandatory now. It has to be signed off by the project manager and part of the estimate template that we use now is that you have to review
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	was under the ten percent, every year up to 2015, it was over ten and the 2015 and '16 with a big contribution from the non-project, I guess, I can understand that affecting those two figures. I'm just wondering, so going forward, with your comment earlier about ten percent being -MR. GARDINER:  A. It is our target, that's correct.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q your target, have you made a conscious effort, say since the last GRA, to focus on keeping that as your target?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:  Q. Have you made any changes with your department?  MR. GARDINER:  A. Yes, we have.  MR. O'BRIEN:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	project team gets together with the estimators and the engineers and they discuss what went right and what went wrong and there's a report that comes out of that and we take those lessons learned and we move them forward.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. And is that something you just started sort of in the last couple of years?  MR. GARDINER: A. It's something, I guess, that was done, Mr. O'Brien, on an ad-hoc basis.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.  MR. GARDINER: A. And some project managers would do it. Some discipline leads would do it. But, since I've been there now, and you know, this is a — there's an electronic database. It's on the Share Point and we — it's mandatory now. It has to be signed off by the project manager and part of the estimate template

ļ	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 189		Page 191
1	lot of cases, has reviewed the previous work	1	panel.
2	that was done, particularly if it's similar	2	MS. WILLIAMS:
3	work, you know. The other thing is that we	3	A. Good afternoon.
4	have some programs now that we put in for –	4	MR. GARDINER:
5	we talked about the terminal station	5	A. Good afternoon.
6	refurbishment, modernization, so similar	6	MR. FITZGERALD:
7	work. So, we're packaging it up and we're	7	Q. Appreciate your stamina.
8	learning and we're going forward looking at	8	MR. LEBLANC:
9	multi-year projects as well and delivery of	9	A. Thank you.
10	materials. And the other thing that we do –	10	MR. FITZGERALD:
11	and as I say, some of these things, we were	11	Q. Mr. O'Brien was taking you through the
12	doing, but probably weren't doing as – in	12	completion of the TL267.
13	every job – is that we do require, as part	13	MR. GARDINER:
14	of our estimating, we do look for actual	14	A. Yes.
15	prices and we just don't use store prices.	15	MR. FITZGERALD:
16	Sometimes what would happen is we would use	16	Q. And you were talking about the capital
17	our store prices that we have, but yet, when	17	costs, but the O&M in relation to that going
18	you have a large quantity, you won't be able	18	forward, are they significant? Do we have
19	to take it out of our storage. You have to	19	that on the record as to -
20	go to tender and sometimes there's	20	MR. GARDINER:
21	fluctuations.	21	A. No, I don't see it as being significant. I
22	MR. O'BRIEN:	22	mean, it's 188 kilometres of line. We have.
23		23	I think, 2600 kilometres of transmission
24	Q. In your price. MR. GARDINER:	23 24	
25		25	line right now. It's a standard design, 230
23	, , ,	23	design. So, it's 230kV transmission line
1	Page 190	1	Page 192
1	things that we've done in our estimating so	1	that our crews can work on, as well as the
2	that we – you know, had we not had these	2	equipment in the station. So, I'm not aware
	1' 11 1 1 1 1 1		equipment in the station. So, I'm not aware
3	anomalies, we would do – and our target is	3	that we've increased our O&M, Mr.
3 4	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.		that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.
4 5	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent. MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald. MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.	3 4 5 6	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going
4 5 6 7	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent. MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER:	3 4 5 6 7	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald. MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6 7 8	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking	3 4 5 6 7 8	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.
4 5 6 7 8 9	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year. MR. GARDINER:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year. MR. GARDINER:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't.  MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll continue to do.  MR. O'BRIEN:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?  MR. GARDINER: A. I would think so.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll continue to do.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. I don't have any further questions	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?  MR. GARDINER: A. I would think so. MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll continue to do.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. I don't have any further questions for this panel.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?  MR. GARDINER: A. I would think so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. So, an undertaking for -
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll continue to do.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. I don't have any further questions for this panel.  CHAIR:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?  MR. GARDINER: A. I would think so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. So, an undertaking for - MR. GARDINER:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll continue to do.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. I don't have any further questions for this panel.  CHAIR: Q. Thank you, Mr. O'Brien. Mr. Fitzgerald.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?  MR. GARDINER: A. I would think so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. So, an undertaking for - MR. GARDINER: A. I know what the final costs will be, but I'm
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	ten percent, plus or minus ten percent.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. And our completion rate, since I was looking at those things, our completion rates in each of those years, '15, '16 and '17, was in excess of 90 percent. We put those assets into service.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. MR. GARDINER: A. So, those are the types of things that we were doing and that we'll be doing, we'll continue to do.  MR. O'BRIEN: Q. Okay. I don't have any further questions for this panel.  CHAIR:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	that we've increased our O&M, Mr. Fitzgerald.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Is it part of the revenue – well, it's going to be part of the revenue requirement next year.  MR. GARDINER: A. Yes. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. But, do we have that number, what it's going to be?  MR. GARDINER: A. I don't. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Can we get that number?  MR. GARDINER: A. I would think so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. So, an undertaking for - MR. GARDINER:

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 193		Page 195
1	we plan to be – right now, we're tracking to	1	million in 2019, correct?
2	that number. So, is that – now, the revenue		MR. LEBLANC:
3	requirement may be different. I'm not able	3	A. We did have a slight update. In doing part
4	to speak to that.	4	of the due diligence with Nalcor, we found a
5	MR. FITZGERALD:	5	double counting of a few people and one item
6	Q. Yeah, I was referring though to the O&M	6	to be – not counted, but shouldn't have been
7	costs.	7	in there, so the revised number is 51.3
8	MR. GARDINER:	8	million. However, as I said this morning,
9	A. Oh, the O&M costs, okay, sorry.	9	Nalcor are updating their 2019 budgets and
10	MR. LEBLANC:	10	they expect to have that available by the
111	A. Again, the O&M for 267 would not be	11	end of August.
12	separated out. It would be lumped in with	12	MR. FITZGERALD:
13	the O&M for all our transmission and	13	Q. Okay. So, I guess the question we have –
14	distribution assets.	14	and it's come up before – is what
15	MR. GARDINER:	15	methodology does – is Hydro going to employ
16		16	to vet these costs? You know, you'll be
17	A. Oh, sorry. MR. FITZGERALD:	17	presented with a bill.
18		18	MR. LEBLANC:
1	Q. Okay.	ı	
19	MR. YOUNG:	19	A. Yes.
20	Q. So, I'm assuming there's no undertaking?	20	MR. FITZGERALD:
21	MR. FITZGERALD:	21	Q. And I understood from Mr. Haynes, his
22	Q. No.	22	evidence, that there wouldn't be resistance
23	MR. YOUNG:	23	per se, but there would be – they would be
24	Q. Okay.	24	challenged if they didn't reflect least – or
25	MR. GARDINER:	25	you know, what appear reasonable. Is that
١.	Page 194		Page 196
1	A. Okay. Sorry, I didn't understand your	1	just a general concept or is there – are you
2	question, but yes, right. I mean, one thing	2	prepared at this point to deal with the
3	that would happen, like if you were flying	3	amounts that are coming forward?
4	that line, there's two lines in that	4	MR. LEBLANC:
5	corridor now. So, the person would be	5	A. Again, the amounts were presented to us. We
6	flying that line; he would look at the three	6	weren't involved in their preparation,
7	lines versus the two lines.	7	Nalcor, and they developed from mid in-
8	MR. FITZGERALD:	8	house. They also hired a consultant to
9	Q. Understand. Just want to turn now to the	9	assist them, TransGrid Solutions, TGS. And
10	LIL and the LTA and because we were happy to	10	again, they did, as I've been told, they've
11	hear this morning that for the 2018 cost has	11	done the due diligence. They've compared
12	now been reduced to eight million dollars.	12	the systems to other DC systems to come up
13	MR. LEBLANC:	13	with the O&M amounts. And again, when these
14	A. That's correct.	14	budgets were prepared, it was still early
15	MR. FITZGERALD:	15	on. They didn't have infrastructure in
16	Q. And I guess that's because of the delay in	16	place, but now, as I've been told by Nalcor
17	it coming into service.	17	that a lot of the facilities are on the
18	MR. LEBLANČ:	18	ground, power is flowing through them. So,
19	A. Correct.	19	they feel a bit more comfortable with it.
20	MR. FITZGERALD:	20	And so, they are taking an O&M review of
21	Q. But nevertheless, it's a savings.	21	their costs and again, that will be
22	MR. LEBLANC:	22	available by the end of August of this year.
23	A. And we'll take it.	23	MR. FITZGERALD:
24	MR. FITZGERALD:	24	Q. Right. But as I understood from Mr. Haynes,
25	Q. Yeah, sure. And it's – but it's still 52.9	25	and I won't take you to his testimony – we
	,		: y : : = = =====================

	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 197		Page 199
1	can go there, but he said that, you know,	1	MR. FITZGERALD:
2	"we're accountable". That is Hydro is	2	Q. Okay, fair enough. So, right now, the
3	accountable for these charges. And I	3	remedy, if you will, for an overcharge, if
4	believe he used the words "I don't think	4	there is one, in your estimation, is audit?
5	that we could actually go back and refuse	5	MR. LEBLANC:
6	the amount that's presented to Hydro." Do	6	A. Well, it may not be an overcharge, because I
7	you agree with that?	7	don't think there would be an overcharge. I
8	MR. LEBLANC:	8	think if they do submit an invoice to us,
9	A. Yeah, I think we are responsible for the	9	that work was probably done. It's – if we
10	costs.	10	deem if that was warranted may be a better
11	MR. FITZGERALD:	11	way of putting it, as opposed to an
12	Q. Okay. So, Hydro has no leverage whatsoever	12	overcharge.
13	to oppose the costs?	13	MR. FITZGERALD:
14	MR. LEBLANC:	14	Q. Well, I guess, yeah, we're using different
15	A. If we feel that the costs are unreasonable,	15	language here, but from your experience as a
16	we will object to the costs and ask for an	16	system person, if a Nalcor contract is
17	explanation on why the costs are that level	17	presented to you and you say "well, that
18	and ask for the background and how they came		could have been sourced different", just
19	about it and they'll have to show their due	19	from your own auditing in-house expertise,
20	•	$\begin{vmatrix} 19 \\ 20 \end{vmatrix}$	
1	diligence and be subject to audit of those	ı	if you will, you would have – you would be
21	costs. MR. FITZGERALD:	21	able to do the audit yourself, I would think.
22		22	
23	Q. Audit by whom?	23	(12:30 p.m.)
24	MR. LEBLANC:	24	MR. LEBLANC:
25	A. We would want to see their books and "okay,	25	A. Again, we are going to question them and
,	Page 198	,	Page 200
1	how did you come up with that? Why did you		we'll – and I've been told that they will
2	do that?" So, we are going to question them	2	explain their charges and the rationale
3	on the costs if we deem them unreasonable.	3	behind it. So, if we deem them in the
4	MR. FITZGERALD:	4	future that they are unreasonable or they
5	Q. Do you have the ultimate option to refuse to	5	goom unreagenable to us we will question
6	nav')		seem unreasonable to us, we will question
	pay?	6	them on it.
7	MR. LEBLANC:	7	them on it. MR. FITZGERALD:
8	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so.	7 8	them on it. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but
8 9	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD:	7 8 9	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no
8 9 10	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy?	7 8 9 10	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?
8 9 10 11	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to	7 8 9 10 11	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC:
8 9 10 11 12	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and	7 8 9 10 11 12	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.
8 9 10 11	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do	7 8 9 10 11	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC:
8 9 10 11 12	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and	7 8 9 10 11 12	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.
8 9 10 11 12 13	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do	7 8 9 10 11 12 13	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD:
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that.
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. LEBLANC: A. I do not believe so. MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all as a possible pushback?	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the NLSO which is a new animal, to put it that
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	MR. LEBLANC:  A. I do not believe so.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy?  Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all as a possible pushback?  MR. LEBLANC:	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the NLSO which is a new animal, to put it that way, it appears to me.
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. I do not believe so.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy? <ul> <li>Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all as a possible pushback?</li> </ul> </li> <li>MR. LEBLANC: <ul> <li>A. Okay. You mean outside my realm. That</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the NLSO which is a new animal, to put it that way, it appears to me.  MR. LEBLANC:
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. I do not believe so.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy?  Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all as a possible pushback?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Okay. You mean outside my realm. That becomes to the legal applicability of that.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the NLSO which is a new animal, to put it that way, it appears to me.  MR. LEBLANC: A. It's an extension of the existing Energy
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. I do not believe so.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy?  Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all as a possible pushback?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Okay. You mean outside my realm. That becomes to the legal applicability of that.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the NLSO which is a new animal, to put it that way, it appears to me.  MR. LEBLANC: A. It's an extension of the existing Energy Control Center.  MR. FITZGERALD:
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. I do not believe so.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, is there any private law remedy?  Like if say a third party contractor came to you and gave you an unreasonable bill and say "no, we're not paying that one". Do you have the option – they're your parent, I understand – to say "well, we'll settle this somewhere else. We're not going to pay this"? Has that been a consideration at all as a possible pushback?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Okay. You mean outside my realm. That becomes to the legal applicability of that.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay, so -</li> </ul>	7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	them on it.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right, and not to belabour the point, but you can question them on it, but you have no ability to resist payment?  MR. LEBLANC: A. I believe we have the obligation to pay.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. That's, of course, if those charges are legally able to be recovered. That's another issue. I won't ask you about that. I just want to talk a little bit about the NLSO which is a new animal, to put it that way, it appears to me.  MR. LEBLANC: A. It's an extension of the existing Energy Control Center.  MR. FITZGERALD:

	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 201		Page 203
1	Hydro and/or Nalcor?	1	A. And the way we do disseminate that
2	MR. LEBLANC:	2	information, if it needs to be, there is
3	A. It is a department of Hydro.	3	open access same time information system, NO
4	MR. FITZGERALD:	4	ASSIS, and that's the venue for
5	Q. It is a department of Hydro?	5	disseminating that type of information and
6	MR. LEBLANC:	6	everyone has access to that and it's posted
7	A. Department, yeah.	7	there and everyone gets access at the same
8	MR. FITZGERALD:	8	time.
9	Q. And is that the future of the NLSO? Is it	9	MR. FITZGERALD:
10	going to stay that way?	10	Q. Okay.
11	MR. LEBLANC:	11	MR. LEBLANC:
12	A. Yes, it is. Now, there are a bit more	12	A. Again, it's not giving them the information.
13	security around it. We have code of	13	It's not giving them the information in
14	conduct. Their facility is within the Hydro	14	advance of others.
15	building, a different security level, so not	15	MR. FITZGERALD:
16	everyone has access to it unless they have	16	Q. Okay. So, the NLSO is a new entity at
17	to have access to it. So, it is a	17	least, or a new department, and its role is
18	restricted area and the employees of the	18	going to be the long term planning, I guess,
19	NLSO do have to sign a code of conduct, so	19	for the province's system. Is that one of
20	there's certain information they can't	20	the -
21	release, even within Hydro.	21	MR. LEBLANC:
22	MR. FITZGERALD:	22	A. They do the transmission planning for the
23	Q. Okay. But Nalcor would have access, would		system. Ms. Williams' department does the
24	they?	24	generation planning.
25	MR. LEBLANC:	25	MR. FITZGERALD:
	Page 202		Page 204
	1 uge 202		
1 1	A No	1	_
$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 2 \end{vmatrix}$	A. No. MR_FITZGERALD <sup>.</sup>	1 2	Q. Okay.
2	MR. FITZGERALD:	2	Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC:
2 3	MR. FITZGERALD: Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So,	2 3	<ul><li>Q. Okay.</li><li>MR. LEBLANC:</li><li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the</li></ul>
2 3 4	MR. FITZGERALD: Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is	2 3 4	<ul><li>Q. Okay.</li><li>MR. LEBLANC:</li><li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li></ul>
2 3 4 5	MR. FITZGERALD: Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?	2 3 4 5	<ul><li>Q. Okay.</li><li>MR. LEBLANC:</li><li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li><li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li></ul>
2 3 4 5 6	MR. FITZGERALD: Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor? MR. LEBLANC:	2 3 4 5 6	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7	MR. FITZGERALD: Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?  MR. LEBLANC: A. Correct.	2 3 4 5 6 7	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a marketer or an outside agency a competitive</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the same time. They don't discriminate. They</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a marketer or an outside agency a competitive advantage over someone else, that</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the same time. They don't discriminate. They charge the same rates to Hydro as an outside</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a marketer or an outside agency a competitive advantage over someone else, that information is restricted and will not be</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the same time. They don't discriminate. They charge the same rates to Hydro as an outside entity who may want transmission service.</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a marketer or an outside agency a competitive advantage over someone else, that information is restricted and will not be shared internally even with Nalcor.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the same time. They don't discriminate. They charge the same rates to Hydro as an outside entity who may want transmission service. So, in that respect, they do act</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a marketer or an outside agency a competitive advantage over someone else, that information is restricted and will not be shared internally even with Nalcor.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the same time. They don't discriminate. They charge the same rates to Hydro as an outside entity who may want transmission service. So, in that respect, they do act independently of Hydro.</li> </ul>
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No? Okay. But, I guess, it's – okay. So, the NLSO is a department of Hydro, which is a subsidiary of Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. So, any information that the NLSO has would be able to be accessed by Nalcor?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. No.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. No?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. It depends what information it is. If it's sensitive information that could result in deemed giving a transmission customer or a marketer or an outside agency a competitive advantage over someone else, that information is restricted and will not be shared internally even with Nalcor.</li> </ul>	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. And another entity outside of NLSO does the distribution planning.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay. So, it's not independent per se from Hydro?</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. In certain information it is independent from Hydro. It doesn't share all the information with Hydro because Hydro can get a competitive advantage if there was a fully active electricity market or for exports or imports. So, they can't show favouritism to Hydro itself. So, in that respect, they treat Hydro the same as they'd treat any other transmission customer. No better, no worse. Give them the information at the same time. They don't discriminate. They charge the same rates to Hydro as an outside entity who may want transmission service. So, in that respect, they do act</li> </ul>

Page 205 Page 207 1 MR. LEBLANC: 1 transmission to do it. 2 2 A. Yes, that's the long term model that is in MR. FITZGERALD: 3 3 Q. Okay. And that call is being made by the 4 MR. FITZGERALD: 4 management of the NLSO? 5 Okay. So, if there is an outage on the 5 MR. LEBLANC: Q. 6 system going forward, is it the NLSO who's 6 Yes. Again, they do system studies. It may A. require load-flows, whatever analysis is 7 responsible or is it Hydro's responsibility? 7 8 8 MR. LEBLANC: needed to be done. If it's a short term, 9 9 Again, the outage, it's still Hydro that's it's shorter-term event. If it's a long A. responsible. If it's their transmission term request, a system impact studies will 10 10 system, they have to initiate the repairs have to be performed to see if it is 11 11 and they have to notify their customer and available or possible to grant that request. 12 12 do the outage notification. So, that would 13 13 MR. FITZGERALD: remain a Hydro responsibility. Would you allow though that there could be, 14 14 0. 15 MR. FITZGERALD: 15 in a situation of the closeness, that you Could you envision a conflict of a situation know, there's almost an irresistible 16 16 Ο. 17 say where -- we have the Maritime Link now 17 inference that, you know, one might favour in service and Nalcor wants to sell power one over another, you know? 18 18 19 over that link and the NLSO, of course is – 19 MR. LEBLANC: 20 or should be more concerned, I would think, 20 Again, it's a first-come-first-served with 21 about reliability on the island. Would 21 regard to transmission availability, so, 22 there ever be a conflict in the NLSO in a 22 whoever is first in the queue. All requests are time stamped when they're received, and 23 situation like that as to who's the boss. 23 they're dealt with in order. And again, the 24 who gets priority? 24 pricing the same for everybody, and everyone 25 MR. LEBLANC: 25 Page 208 Page 206 1 is treated equally, and no preference is 1 A. No. If Nalcor or any transmission customer, 2 2 including Hydro, wanted to sell say to Nova given to anyone including Hydro or Nalcor 3 Scotia over the Maritime Link, they'd have 3 affiliates. to put a request in to see if there is 4 MR. FITZGERALD: 4 available transmission to do it. And the 5 5 Yes. No, theoretically I agree. That sounds like a good system, but you know, the 6 NLSO will review that request. They'll look 6 human nature being what it is, if one 7 at the current system conditions and if that 7 8 request can be granted without reducing the 8 particular manager is making a decision that 9 reliability of the existing system, it will 9 perhaps offends Nalcor management, you know, be granted. And the transmission is you have to wonder about the pressure on 10 10 available. that particular individual or that 11 11 management team as to making the right 12 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 13 So that, I guess, again looking at the decision or making the political decision or Q. 13 corporate structure, so the NLSO is still a making the survival decision. 14 14 department of a subsidiary of the parent who 15 15 MR. LEBLANC: 16 has made a call or who'd prefer a decision 16 A. Anything is possible. You can also bribe a made one way or the other? 17 police officer if you're caught for 17 MR. LEBLANC: 18 speeding, but it's set up that there is no 18 19 preference, preferential treatment, to Well, if it puts the system in jeopardy in 19 A. 20 this case, if this is what you're driving 20 Nalcor affiliates. Everyone is treated at, the request would be denied. It would equally. It's on a first-come-first-served 21 21

22

23

24

25

only be approved if it does not have a

detrimental effect on the reliability of the

island system or the Newfoundland and

Labrador system, and that there is available

22

23

24

25

basis, and it's only approved if it does not

have a detrimental effect to the system and

the transmission is available.

MR. FITZGERALD:

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 209		Page 211
1	Q. Okay. Do you think that would be any	1	reintegrated the system operator within New
2	advantage at all to having an independent	2	Brunswick Power.
3	NLSO?	3	MR. FITZGERALD:
4	MR. LEBLANC:	4	Q. Okay. I just want to talk a bit about the
5	A. Again, you—there's increased costs to do	5	open access tariff, if you can educate me on
6	that because you then have to have your own	6	this.
7	IT department. You'd have to have your own	7	MR. LEBLANC:
8	HR department. You'd have to have your own	8	A. Okay.
9	payroll department or farm-outs. So, there	9	MR. FITZGERALD:
10	are efficiencies with having it in house.	10	Q. First of all, I understand that by the Order
11	And this model is used throughout North	11	in Council that the Board granted earlier
12	America. It's probably the prevalent method	12	this year, P Number 3, the Board has
13	used and there are not issues, and there is	13	approved the tariff on an interim basis?
14	also a complaint mechanism if someone feels	13	MR. LEBLANC:
15	-	15	
l .	that they've been unfairly treated. MR. FITZGERALD:	16	A. That's correct. MR. FITZGERALD:
16			
17	Q. Okay, I was going to ask you that. In your	17	Q. And can you—what is the rationale—firstly,
18	experience then—so, I think when you	18	you know, what criteria or why did you feel
19	indicated where you had been in the past,	19	compelled, or Hydro, to be a member of this
20	you were in New England as well or did I	20	open access regime, if you will?
21	hear that correctly or was it Maine?	21	MR. LEBLANC:
22	MR. LEBLANC:	22	A. Usually the way open access started in the
23	A. I dealt with New England, but I did not work	23	United States and to make sure that—and they
24	in New England. I worked in upstate New	24	wanted deregulation in the system in the mid
25	York and dealt with -	25	nineties. And the way they wanted to ensure
	Page 210		Page 212
1	MR. FITZGERALD:	1	that if one area went way, they wanted
2	Q. Upstate New York it was. Okay, I misheard.	2	everyone—there was a reciprocity aspect to
3	And -	3	an open access tariff. So, if you want
4	MR. LEBLANC:	4	service through a system, you have to offer
5	A. Open access there.	5	equal or superior, equivalent service in
6	MR. FITZGERALD:	6	your system. And so, that way—and that's
7	Q. Right. And also, in PEI and New Brunswick I	7	how it grew. And then, that also extended
8	think?	8	into the United States, and I think at the
9	MR. LEBLANC:	9	time there was three exporters, NB Power,
10	A. PEI and New Brunswick.	10	Manitoba Hydro and BC Hydro. So, they
11	MR. FITZGERALD:	11	signed the reciprocity agreements. So,
12	Q. And so –	12	then, when they developed their open access
13	MR. LEBLANC:	13	tariffs, they had to build reciprocity into
14	A. And a bit in Nova Scotia.	14	it. So, then, once the neighbouring
15	MR. FITZGERALD:	15	entities wanted to go in, like Nova Scotia,
16	Q. And so, in all of those jurisdictions, it's	16	PEI, Quebec, they also had to get
17	the same set up? The –	17	reciprocity. And now, we do have—so, if we
18	MR. LEBLANC:	18	want access through Nova Scotia, well they
19	A. It's the same model, except initially when	19	have a reciprocity clause in their tariff.
20	New Brunswick Power, they unbundled in the	20	If you use our tariff, you have to agree to
21	early 2000s and at that point the system	21	reciprocity. And the same with Hydro
22	operator became a separate entity	22	Quebec. In future we may want to plan
23	completely. And after seven or eight years,	23	transactions, further transactions through
24	they realized that the costs were	24	Quebec or once we are open to the North
25	prohibitive and they re-amalgamated and	25	American grid, there's a possibility that HQ
23	-		
	Discoveries Unlimite	d Inc.	(709)437-5028 Page 209 - Page 212

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 213		Page 215
1	could cry foul if we don't offer the	1	the same terms and conditions.
2	equivalent open access service within	2	MR. FITZGERALD:
3	Newfoundland and Labrador.	3	Q. As they are?
4	MR. FITZGERALD:	4	MR. LEBLANC:
5	Q. Okay. So, there's no central registry if	5	A. As they are.
6	you will of these, of the document? This is	6	MR. FITZGERALD:
1 7	jurisdiction to jurisdiction. In other	7	Q. As they are.
8	words, you say to Nova Scotia, "Well, here's	l .	MR. LEBLANC:
9	my certification."	9	A. Similar.
10	MR. LEBLANC:	10	MR. FITZGERALD:
11	A. Yes.	11	Q. Just the point I guess is that, you know,
12	MR. FITZGERALD:	12	the Electrical Power Control Act, you know,
13	Q. "I'm a member of this group."	13	restricts them selling directly, that is
14	MR. LEBLANC:	14	them, outside exporters or importers of
15	A. Yeah. Yeah, there is no open access police	15	power, or sellers of power, todirectly to
16	force. It's a complaint system, and if the	16	Newfoundland Power for example?
17	complaint gets done, it gets lodged, and in	17	MR. LEBLANC:
18	Canada people who hear the complaints are	18	A. Yes, there are restrictions within the
19	usually the provincial regulators.	19	province.
20	(12:45 p.m.)	20	MR. FITZGERALD:
21	MR. FITZGERALD:	21	Q. And do the other tariff holders or members,
22	Q. Okay. So, just the way it would work then	22	are they aware of those restrictions?
23	is if you're dealing with alliance in Nova	23	MR. LEBLANC:
24	Scotia, they have to be satisfied on a	24	A. Okay. Usually the reciprocity does not
25	checklist or whatever that you're a member	25	pertain to energy sales or energy markets.
	Page 214		Page 216
1	of—or not a member, whatever the wording is,	1	It's more on the open access of the
2	that you have signed up?	2	transmission system itself. So, the
1 -			
3	MR. LEBLANC:		
3 4	MR. LEBLANC: A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually	3	eligibility of the transmission customer is
4	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually	3 4	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of
5	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I	3 4 5	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.
4	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there	3 4 5 6	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6 7	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask	3 4 5 6 7	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any
4 5 6 7 8	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our	3 4 5 6 7 8	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there
4 5 6 7 8 9	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then	3 4 5 6 7 8 9	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell
4 5 6 7 8 9 10	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay.	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC:	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay.  MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they cried foul, they could just suspend that transaction and then there would be lost	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure if it is or not. I know there was talk of
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they cried foul, they could just suspend that	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure if it is or not. I know there was talk of it at one time. There was talk of not
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they cried foul, they could just suspend that transaction and then there would be lost opportunity for Nalcor.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure if it is or not. I know there was talk of it at one time. There was talk of not putting it in there. I could not say for
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they cried foul, they could just suspend that transaction and then there would be lost opportunity for Nalcor.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Right. So, the issue of the extent of the</li> </ul>	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure if it is or not. I know there was talk of it at one time. There was talk of not putting it in there. I could not say for certain whether it is or not, but it is—that
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay.</li> <li>MR. LEBLANC:</li> <li>A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they cried foul, they could just suspend that transaction and then there would be lost opportunity for Nalcor.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure if it is or not. I know there was talk of it at one time. There was talk of not putting it in there. I could not say for
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	A. Yes. They expect reciprocity. And usually they don't always have a checklist because I don't want to say there's a form out there that's signed, but if they ever went to ask for the equivalent service in our jurisdiction, and it's not there, then they'd cry foul.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay. MR. LEBLANC: A. Or they could cry foul. And the fear with Hydro Quebec as well, if they cry foul, and we do have transmission service through Quebec now from north to south, and if they cried foul, they could just suspend that transaction and then there would be lost opportunity for Nalcor.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Right. So, the issue of the extent of the reciprocity, has that ever come up?	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	eligibility of the transmission customer is not part of the reciprocity. That's more of an energy marketing function.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. So, if that's the case, it doesn't make any difference to the other marketer that there is a market, if you will, that they can sell to? That's not the point? It's –  MR. LEBLANC:  A. That is not part of the reciprocity aspect.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay. Is the cost of the Maritime Link included in Nova Scotia's open access transmission tariff?  MR. LEBLANC:  A. It is not included in ours. I am not sure if it is or not. I know there was talk of it at one time. There was talk of not putting it in there. I could not say for certain whether it is or not, but it is—that would be up to Nova Scotia Power and the

	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
1	Page 217		Page 219
1	Q. So if you, now I say you, Hydro is required	1	need that could develop, there's a need that
2	to pay the Nova Scotia open access	2	would be, and we would witness it on a day
3	transmission tariff if it imports power from	3	ahead, and then there's also sort of a
4	New England, wouldn't the effect of that be	4	forward looking, we'd meet on a weekly
5	paying twice if in fact it is not included—	5	basis, and a forward looking ahead where we
6	or sorry, if it is included?	6	might also identify an opportunity, so at
7	MR. LEBLANC:	7	any one of those times Hydro is watching the
8	A. I have to—repeat the question?	8	system and identifying a need, and then on
9	MR. FITZGERALD:	9	the weekly meetings, we meet with Energy
10	Q. Do I have to?	10	Marketing on a weekly basis and look at
11	MR. LEBLANC:	11	those opportunities in those meetings and so
12	A. I just don't want to answer it wrong.	12	it's a bit more planned for than the ones
13	MR. FITZGERALD:	13	that kind of crop up.
14	Q. If Hydro is required to pay the Nova Scotia	14	MR. FITZGERALD:
15	open access transmission tariff if it	15	Q. So which department in Hydro is a liaison
16	imports power from New England, and the cost	ı	with NEMs?
17	is already included in the Maritime Link, if	17	MS. WILLIAMS:
18	we're already paying for that, are we paying	18	A. The department is resource and production
19	twice?	19	planning and it reports to me.
20	MR. LEBLANC:	20	MR. FITZGERALD:
21	A. Okay, we are not paying twice because one	21	Q. And you've indicated this morning that, I
22	thing with the Maritime Link I know all of	22	think it was this morning, that there is no
23	the transmission access has been granted to	23	fee for this service that is being charged
24	Nalcor, who then have assigned it to them,	24	by NEMS?
25	so in effect they get, and the cost of that	25	MS. WILLIAMS:
	Page 218		Page 220
1	transmission is built into all the	1	A. Correct.
2	agreements, so there is no separate billing	2	MR. FITZGERALD:
3	for them to use it, so when Hydro wants to	3	Q. So on the other end then, so NEMS, do you
4	import, and as Ms. Williams mentioned	4	know what they do then? Once you put in
5	previously, NEM is our agent for doing that,	5	your requisition, do you know how it works
6	so they would deliver the power to Bottom	6	on the other end?
7	Brook, so on the Newfoundland side of the	7	MS. WILLIAMS:
8	Maritime Link, so in that aspect we would	8	
. ~			A. I never, you know, gone and sat down in the
9	not be paying twice.	9	A. I never, you know, gone and sat down in the chair and specifically witnessed it, but
1	not be paying twice. MS. WILLIAMS:	I	chair and specifically witnessed it, but
9	1 0	9	, ,
9 10	MS. WILLIAMS:	9 10	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they
9 10 11	MS. WILLIAMS: A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer	9 10 11	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get
9 10 11 12	MS. WILLIAMS: A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that	9 10 11 12	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the
9 10 11 12 13	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.  MR. FITZGERALD:	9 10 11 12 13	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so,
9 10 11 12 13 14	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.	9 10 11 12 13 14	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different
9 10 11 12 13 14 15	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on	9 10 11 12 13 14 15	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process.</li> </ul>	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process. How it originates, I think Ms. Williams</li> </ul>	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I guess their experience in knowing what could
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	<ul> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process. How it originates, I think Ms. Williams indicated before need is identified and then</li> </ul>	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I guess their experience in knowing what could be available at any time and the systems
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process. How it originates, I think Ms. Williams indicated before need is identified and then the wheels start turning, if you will, as	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I guess their experience in knowing what could be available at any time and the systems they use, I'm not a hundred percent sure,
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process. How it originates, I think Ms. Williams indicated before need is identified and then the wheels start turning, if you will, as need is required, so you contact NEMs first,	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I guess their experience in knowing what could be available at any time and the systems they use, I'm not a hundred percent sure, but they would pursue, you know, whatever
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process. How it originates, I think Ms. Williams indicated before need is identified and then the wheels start turning, if you will, as need is required, so you contact NEMs first, is that how it works?	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I guess their experience in knowing what could be available at any time and the systems they use, I'm not a hundred percent sure, but they would pursue, you know, whatever opportunity they could provide to us and
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	MS. WILLIAMS:  A. There's an RFI, I think it's Consumer Advocate's 183 that answers that specifically.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Okay, thank you. Just a few questions on the off-island power procurement process. How it originates, I think Ms. Williams indicated before need is identified and then the wheels start turning, if you will, as need is required, so you contact NEMs first, is that how it works?  MS. WILLIAMS:	9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	chair and specifically witnessed it, but they do go out and they would source, you know, available in the market, how they could get that through, how they could get us energy, you know, through any of the people that they have contacts with, and so, you know, do they source ten different opportunities, they would have their, I guess their experience in knowing what could be available at any time and the systems they use, I'm not a hundred percent sure, but they would pursue, you know, whatever opportunity they could provide to us and then come back and say here's the

0 011 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 221		Page 223
1	MR. FITZGERALD:	1	department?
2	Q. Right, and how did this arrangement develop?	2	MS. WILLIAMS:
3	It was just a natural thing or, you know,	3	A. No, we could also contract out to somebody
4	the Maritime Link is there now, NEMS seems	4	else, I think the reality is in the province
5	to be, like, the person on the spot, but do	5	right now we would then be competing with
6	you have the discretion to use other	6	Nalcor because they are going to be selling
7	marketers?	7	excess Muskrat energy and so there's
8	MS. WILLIAMS:	8	facilities that Hydro has first right on in
9	A. We could, we don't really think—we didn't	9	the province and there's facilities that
10	think that that quite made sense for us,	10	Nalcor, through the agreements that Mr.
11	there's also a couple of RFIs there, I think	11	LeBlanc mentioned, has first right through,
12	Consumer Advocate 54 and 184 would address	12	so we would end up competing with each other
13	some of that. If you look at how Energy	13	and if we went and got a separate energy
14	Marketing developed, there was excess	14	marketer, so right now we're working with
15	capacity in Labrador that Nalcor had the	15	NEM to develop a way to optimize all of the
16	opportunity to sell and it started selling	16	assets and work together so then Energy
17	it in late 2000s, I believe, if I have the	17	Marketing wins and Hydro wins and customers
18	date wrong, and it was, I think, selling it	18	win.
19	directly to Hydro Quebec and when the term	19	MR. FITZGERALD:
20	of that arrangement ended, I think the	20	Q. So when I asked you earlier about whether
21	renegotiation terms were not acceptable to	21	you have any discretion, does that mean that
22	Nalcor and so they said, well, how can we	22	you don't have any discretion, that is
23	now do this sale of energy, and they	23	Hydro, to source out independent contractors
24	contracted it on a temporary basis to EMERA	24	because of this competition issue?
25	while they determined what the long term	25	MS. WILLIAMS:
		ı	
	Page 222		Page 224
1	Page 222 correct approach was and the correct	1	Page 224 A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.
1 2	correct approach was and the correct	1 2	Page 224  A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for
1 2 3	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe	1 2 3	A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for
	correct approach was and the correct	2	A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.
3	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec,	2 3	A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.  I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are
3 4	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so	2 3 4	A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.
3 4 5	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another	2 3 4 5	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.         I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.     </li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>
3 4 5	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA,	2 3 4 5 6	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to	2 3 4 5 6 7	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-	2 3 4 5 6 7 8	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct.</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement,</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.  I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.  I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though,</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.  I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS: A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD: Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected.  I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of years of experience and adding in, you know, twenty plus people to try to undertake	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other jurisdictions the regulator does indeed review purchases on a reverse looking</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of years of experience and adding in, you know, twenty plus people to try to undertake similar work.	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other jurisdictions the regulator does indeed review purchases on a reverse looking process, I believe in Nova Scotia they do</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of years of experience and adding in, you know, twenty plus people to try to undertake similar work.  MR. FITZGERALD:	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other jurisdictions the regulator does indeed review purchases on a reverse looking process, I believe in Nova Scotia they do review the purchases. I'm not exactly sure</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of years of experience and adding in, you know, twenty plus people to try to undertake similar work.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. I don't quite understand that, why wouldn't	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other jurisdictions the regulator does indeed review purchases on a reverse looking process, I believe in Nova Scotia they do review the purchases. I'm not exactly sure if it's in some form of an aggregate or if</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of years of experience and adding in, you know, twenty plus people to try to undertake similar work.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. I don't quite understand that, why wouldn't you be just—are there not energy marketers	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other jurisdictions the regulator does indeed review purchases on a reverse looking process, I believe in Nova Scotia they do review the purchases. I'm not exactly sure if it's in some form of an aggregate or if it's on a detail, every single transaction</li> </ul>
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22	correct approach was and the correct approach would be to again try to maybe renegotiate something with Hydro Quebec, continue to contract out to EMERA or another person, or to take that in-house, and so through the course of working with EMERA, they decided it was appropriate for them to take that in-house, to take that work in-house and I believe it was a several year process of learning the business and then Energy Marketing, I believe it was 2015 perhaps that they started doing it themselves, selling the excess energy, so they've been doing it for several years, you know, so for Hydro to decide to take that on themselves, we'd have to go through a very similar process of, you know, a number of years of experience and adding in, you know, twenty plus people to try to undertake similar work.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. I don't quite understand that, why wouldn't	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	<ul> <li>A. I don't know if it's necessarily connected. I think that it is the best solution for Hydro at this time to proceed as we are proceeding.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. That is with NEMS?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. Correct.</li> <li>MR. FITZGERALD:</li> <li>Q. The purchases that you, or the procurement, I guess or purchases through NEMS, they're not reviewable by the Board per se, though, are they?</li> <li>MS. WILLIAMS:</li> <li>A. No, I think we are hoping to find an appropriate review process with the Board for purchases and I think in other jurisdictions the regulator does indeed review purchases on a reverse looking process, I believe in Nova Scotia they do review the purchases. I'm not exactly sure if it's in some form of an aggregate or if</li> </ul>

Page 225	July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
2 the purchases. 3 MR. FITZGERALD: 4 Q. If you have Hydro purchase power from, you know, an entity other than NEMS, would the Band have direct review of the contracts then? 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 7 A. Yes, I believe the Board would have the jurisdiction, if they pleased, to review any prochases that we would make. 10 jurisdiction, if they pleased, to review any prochases that we would make. 11 purchases that we would make. 12 MR. FITZGERALD: 13 Q. With the alternate marketer? 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Correct. 15 MR. FITZGERALD: 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. So have you, has there been any direction from Nalcor of unity this pleased of the reason why it is it more appropriate? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I don't know that there's direction from 22 this partnership with NEM is the right move forward, we would have to have that conversation, but I really am convinced it's relationship. 21 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship. 22 appropriate? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate? 25 consens we just talked about, is that I province: As you know, that we don't currently have the capture of the reasons we just talked about, is that I province: As you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I province: As you know, that we have with the intention that both customers and the province all assets and Nalcor is still a croyunce and interested in doing the best thing for the province; all assets and Nalcor is still a province; all assets and Nalcor is the reason with the intention that both customers and the province; all assets and Nalcor is til		Page 225		Page 227
3 A. I haven't pursued if it's prohibited or not, because I believe it's the right course of know, an entity other than NEMS, would the Board have direct review of the contracts then?   7	1	is an appropriate review mechanism to review	1	competing with Nalcor?
3 A. I haven't pursued if it's prohibited or not, because I believe it's the right course of know, an entity other than NEMS, would the Board have direct review of the contracts then?   7	2	the purchases.	2	MS. WILLIAMS:
because I believe it's the right course of action.  New, an entity other than NEMS, would the Board have direct review of the contracts then?  MS. WILLIAMS:  Now, an entity other than NEMS, would be Board have direct review of the contracts then?  MS. WILLIAMS:  Now, an entity other than NEMS, would be Board have direct review of the contracts then?  MS. WILLIAMS:  Now, an entity other than NEMS, would have the jurisdiction, if they pleased, to review any processes that we would make.  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  Now, which alternate marketer?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. I guess it's similar, it would be similar to if we're, you know, using Naleor to do, say, some of the information services for us.  You know, to me, it feels similar, you've got a group of people who are specialists and we are availing of a specialist to do work that we don't currently have the capability to do, and so I don't know that I have the rejat move forward, we would have to have that conversation, but I really am convinced it's relationship.  MR. FITZGERALD:  A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I the province; a lassets and Nalcor is still a province; a lasset is and the shareholder will benefit the most. If we didn't parture. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a province; a lasset share we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. If we didn't parture. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a province; a lasset share we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will be	3			A. I haven't pursued if it's prohibited or not,
Source   Record of the contracts   Source   So	4	Q. If you have Hydro purchase power from, you	4	
6 Board have direct review of the contracts then? 7 then? 7 then? 8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 A. Yes, I believe the Board would have the jurisdiction, if they pleased, to review any purchases that we would make. 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 WR. FITZGERALD: 13 Q. With the alternate marketer? 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Correct. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. So have you, has there been any direction flag from Nalcor that you must use NEM? 18 MS. WILLIAMS: 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. I don't know that there's direction from land from Nalcor that you must use NEM? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. I don't know that there's direction from land for the province in a sess that we would have to have that conversation, but I really am convinced it's relationship. 20 A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I province: a so, you know, us working together to polyminize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 21 Crown corporation, as we are, we are all in interested in doing the best thing for the volvince, is you know, us working together to polyminize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 34 Correct. 45 MS. WILLIAMS: 46 MS. WILLIAMS: 57 A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I province. So, you know, us working together was no such things of their expertise. 35 MR. FITZGERALD: 36 MS. WILLIAMS: 37 A. As I just mentioned, you know fing together was no such things of their expertise. 38 MS. WILLIAMS: 39 And FITZGERALD: 40 Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. 39 And FITZGERALD: 40 Province. So, you know, us working together was no such things of their expertise. 40 A. Yes. 41 MR. FITZGERALD: 42 A. Sorry, wh	5		5	
The composition of the composi				
8 MS. WILLIAMS: 9 A. Yes, I believe the Board would have the 10 purisdiction, if they pleased, to review any 11 purchases that we would make. 12 MR. FITZGERALD: 13 Q. With the alternate marketer? 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Correct. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. So have you, has there been any direction 18 from Nalcor that you must use NEM? 19 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. I guess it's similar, it would be similar to 11 if we're, you know, using Nalcor to do, say, 12 some of the information services for us. 13 You know, to me, it feels similar, you've 14 got a group of people who are specialists to 15 and we are availing of a specialist to 16 work that we don't currently have the 17 capability to do, and so I don't know that I 18 apropriate for Hydro to undertake this 19 conversation, but I really am convinced it's 10 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 21 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 22 appropriate? 23 appropriate? 24 appropriate? 25 appropriate? 26 A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of 27 the didn't parture. We are talking about 18 fin fact there was a marketer other than 19 NEMS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. I guess it's similar, it would be similar to 11 fin fact there was a marketer other than 12 in five 're, you know, using Nalcor to do, say, 13 some of the information services for us. 14 A. I guess it's similar, it would be similar to 15 dive 're, you know, using Nalcor to do, say, 16 work that we don't currently have the 18 capability to do, and so I don't know that I 29 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 21 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 22 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 23 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 24 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 25 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 26 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 27 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 28 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 29 appropriate for Hydro to undertake t		then?		O. Would you agree that from a consumer's
9 A. Yes, I believe the Board would have the jurisdiction, if they pleased, to review any purchases that we would make.   10				
10	1			
11   murbases that we would make.   12   MS. WILLIAMS:   13   Q. With the alternate marketer?   13   Give 're, you know, using Natcor to do, say, some of the information services for us.   14   Some of the information services for us.   15   You know, to me, it feels similar, you've got a group of people who are specialists to do work that we don't currently have the got a group of people who respecialist to do work that we don't currently have the got a group of people who respecialist to do work that we don't currently have the got a group of people who respecialist to do work that we don't currently have the got appropriate you must use NEM. Hydro believes that 21   You had an outside party, I mean, I think 22   Think we'd be in competition with each other appropriate?   You had an artiliated party, I would be better if you had an outside party, I mean, I think 23   Think we'd be in competition with each other appropriate?   You had an artiliated party would be more conflicted because they could have other each of the reasons we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Naleor is still a the reason we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.   You have been very experienced marketers.   Year, with III AlmS:   You have been very experienced marketers.   Year, with III AlmS:   Year, with III and III appropriate or the intension of the province. So, you know, us working load to the shareholder will benefit the most.   Year, with III and III appropriate or the province or the		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
12 MR. FITZGERALD:	1			
13   Q. With the alternate marketer?		*		
14   Some of the information services for us.     15   A. Correct.   16   MR. FITZ/GERALD:   16   from Nalcor that you must use NEM?   18   work that we don't currently have the capability to do, and so I don't know that I larger that the optics, it would be better if you had an unstide party, it it's, if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted because they could have other customers and the reasons we just talked about, is that I might we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a provinced assets and Nalcor is still a larger that the optics.   11 miss we'd be in competition with each other to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.   18 MR. FITZ/GERALD:   19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?   21 MS. WILLIAMS:   22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited?   23 MR. FITZ/GERALD:   24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be   25 MS. WILLIAMS:   26 MS. WILLIAMS:   27 Wou're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be   25 MS. WILLIAMS:   26 MS. WILLIAMS:   27 Wou're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be   25 MS. WILLIAMS:   26 MS. WILLIAMS:   27 Wou're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be   28 MS. WILLIAMS:   28 MS. WILLIAMS:   29 MS. WIL				·
15 A Correct   16 MR. FITZGERALD:   16   17   20   So have you, has there been any direction   18   most of mon Nalcor that you must use NEM?   18   most of mon Nalcor that you must use NEM?   18   most of mon Nalcor that you must use NEM?   18   most of the work that we don't currently have the capability to do, and so I don't know that there's direction from   20   agree that the optics, it would be better if   21   you had an outside party, I mean, I think   22   this partnership with NEM is the right move   23   forward. If we didn't feel it was the right   23   move forward, we would have to have that   25   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   25   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   25   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   25   conflicted because they could have other   26   move forward, we would have to have that   26   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   26   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   27   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   28   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   29   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   20   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   20   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   21   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   21   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   22   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   23   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   24   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   25   conflicted because they could be more conflicted because they could be more conflicted than if you had an affiliate party, it was it is prounted as a finite party, it was it is prount	1	`		
16 MR. FITZGERALD:				
17 Q. So have you, has there been any direction from Nalcor that you must use NEM?  18 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 A. I don't know that there's direction from Nalcor you must use NEM, Hydro believes that this partnership with NEM is the right move 21 this partnership with NEM is the right move 22 this partnership with NEM is the right move 23 forward. If we didn't feel it was the right 24 move forward, we would have to have that 25 conversation, but I really am convinced it's 25 conversation, but I really am convinced it's 26 conversation, but I really am convinced it's 27 relationship. 28 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this 29 relationship. 30 MR. FITZGERALD: 40 Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more 30 the reasons we just talked about, is that 16 think we'd be in competition with each other 31 interested in doing the best thing for the 31 the shareholder will benefit the most. 31 the shareholder will benefit the most. 32 think With LIAMS: 34 A. Sorry, what's not probibited? 35 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 36 MR. FITZGERALD: 35 that 's why I asked the competition issue. 36 MR. FITZGERALD: 36 MR. FITZGERALD: 37 vou're saying that the reason why it's 38 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 37 MR. FITZGERALD: 38 mode of the reasons we just talked about, is that I 39 think we'd be in competition factor, that's 30 mode of the reasons we just talked about, is that I 30 the save thing for the 30 the save thing for the 31 think we'd be in competition with each other 32 think we'd be in competition with each other 34 think we'd be in competition with each other 35 think we'd be in competition with each other 36 the reasons we just talked about, is that I 30 the save thing for the 30 the save thing for the 31 think we'd be in competition with each other 34 think we'd be a body of knowledge out the 35 think we'd be a body of knowledge out there 36 that the original work and an outside party, it agree that the optics, it would be better if 32 think it is, if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in				
18	1			
19 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 A. I don't know that there's direction from 21 Nalcor you must use NEM, Hydro believes that this partnership with NEM is the right move this partnership with NEM is the right move forward. If we didn't feel it was the right move forward, we would have to have that 22 tit's, if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted because they could have other conflicted because they would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted because they could have other conflicted because they could have other conflicted than if you had an affiliated party.  10 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  21 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  22 appropriate?  23 do relationship.  24 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  25 conflicted because they could have other conflicted because they could be more conflicted than if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliate party, it should be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliate party.  25 appropriate?  26 A. As I just menton, that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a provincial assets and	1			
A. I don't know that there's direction from Nalcor you must use NEM, Hydro believes that this partnership with NEM is the right move forward. If we didn't feel it was the right move conversation, but I really am convinced it's page 226 conversation, but I really am convinced it's relationship.  A appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  A And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate?  A SI just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I flink we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a liatiersted in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  A Sorry, what's not prohibited?  A Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MR. FITZGERALD:  A Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MS. WILLIAMS:  MS. WILLIAMS:  A Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MS. WILLIAMS:   1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
Nalcor you must use NEM, Hydro believes that this partnership with NEM is the right move forward. If we didn't feel it was the right move forward. We would have to have that conversation, but I really am convinced it's   24	1			
this partnership with NEM is the right move forward. If we didn't feel it was the right move forward, we would have to have that conversation, but I really am convinced it's conflicted because they could have other Page 226 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  MR. FITZGERALD:  And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate?  A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I provincial assets and Nalcor is still a provincial assets and Nalcor is still a interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. FITZGERALD:  A. Correct.  MR. FITZGERALD:				
forward. If we didn't feel it was the right move forward, we would have to have that 25 conversation, but I really am convinced it's 25 conflicted because they could have other 25 conversation, but I really am convinced it's 25 conflicted because they could have other 26 conflicted because they could have other 27 customers that they might be also trying to 28 satisfy and they would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliated party. 28 MR. FITZGERALD: 3 drawing to 30 than if you had an affiliated party. 3 drawing to 30 than if you had an affiliated party. 4 MR. FITZGERALD: 4 Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more 5 appropriate? 5 Q. Yeah, with all due respect to Nalcor though, 6 I think you indicated they've just developed 6 this expertise; ten years ago there was no 8 such things of their expertise. 4 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. Correct. 10 A. Correct. 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would 13 have been very experienced marketers. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Yes. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that 18 there would be acting in your best interest as opposed to a third party would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliated party. 16 WR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. Yeah, with all due respect to Nalcor though, 16 I think you indicated they've just developed 17 think you indicated they've just developed 18 WILLIAMS: 10 A. Correct. 10 A. Correct. 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would 13 have been very experienced marketers. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Yes. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that 18 there would be a body of knowledge out there 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's 19 you will. So that's why I asked the 20 you will. So that's why I asked the 21 you will. So that's why I asked the 22 question, I'm not quite sure why there's a 10 lock with NEMS right now, other than you 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 24 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 25 MS. WILLIA				
move forward, we would have to have that conversation, but I really am convinced it's  Page 226  appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  MR. FITZGERALD:  A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I provincial assets and Nalcor is still a linterested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  A. Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MR. FITZGERALD:  D. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  MR. FITZGERALD:  D. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I provincial assets and Nalcor is still a linterested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. FITZGE				
25   conversation, but I really am convinced it's   Page 226   Page 228     1	1			
Page 226  1 appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  2 relationship.  3 MR. FITZGERALD:  4 Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate?  6 MS. WILLIAMS:  7 A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I provincial assets and Nalcor is still a linterested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  18 MR. FITZGERALD:  19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  20 MR. FITZGERALD:  11 MR. FITZGERALD:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers.  14 MS. WILLIAMS:  15 A. Yes.  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  18 MR. FITZGERALD:  20 Yeah, with all due respect to Nalcor though, I think you indicated they've just developed this expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise.  9 MS. WILLIAMS:  10 A. Correct.  11 MR. FITZGERALD:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers.  14 MS. WILLIAMS:  15 A. Yes.  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be  10 Customers that they would be an affiliated party.  11 MR. FITZGERALD:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there was no such		,		
appropriate for Hydro to undertake this relationship.  MR. FITZGERALD: Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate? MS. WILLIAMS: As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the respective and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR.	23			<u> </u>
relationship.  MR. FITZGERALD:  And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate?  MS. WILLIAMS:  As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I provincial assets and Nalcor is still a interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Satisfy and they would be more conflicted than if you had an affiliated party.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Yeah, with all due respect to Nalcor though, I think you indicated they've just developed this expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise.  MS. WILLIAMS:  Description:  MR. FITZGERALD:  M	,		1	e
MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I provincial assets and Nalcor is still a interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. FITZGERAL				
4 Q. And sorry, in a nutshell why is it more appropriate? 5 A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a 12 Crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it? 20 N. WILLIAMS: 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be appropriate? 3 MR. WILLIAMS: 4 MR. FITZGERALD: 5 Q. Yeah, with all due respect to Nalcor though, I think you indicated they've just developed this expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise.  9 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. Correct. 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Yes. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue. 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be  4 MR. FITZGERALD: 5 Q. Yeah, with all due respect to Nalcor though, I think you indicated they've just developed this expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise.  9 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. Correct. 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 Q. But I'msexuming ten years ago there was no such things of their exp				
appropriate?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about 1 provincial assets and Nalcor is still a 1 Crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD:  MR. FITZG				
6 MS. WILLIAMS: 7 A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of 8 the reasons we just talked about, is that I 9 think we'd be in competition with each other 10 if we didn't partner. We are talking about 11 provincial assets and Nalcor is still a 12 Crown corporation, as we are, we are all 13 interested in doing the best thing for the 14 Province. So, you know, us working together 15 to optimize all of the assets that we have 16 with the intention that both customers and 17 the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's 20 not prohibited or is it? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be  6 It think you indicated they've just developed this expertise; ten years ago there was no such things of their expertise.  9 MS. WILLIAMS: 10 A. Correct. 11 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Yes. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that 18 there would be a body of knowledge out there 19 that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue. 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS:				
A. As I just mentioned, you know, for some of the reasons we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a limiterested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. MR. FITZGERALD:  18 MR. FITZGERALD:  19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  20 MS. WILLIAMS:  11 MR. FITZGERALD:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers.  14 MS. WILLIAMS:  15 A. Yes.  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  21 MS. WILLIAMS:  22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited?  23 MR. FITZGERALD:  24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be  25 MS. WILLIAMS:  27 A. WILLIAMS:  28 MS. WILLIAMS:  29 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 In would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  29 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 MS. WILLIAMS:  21 MS. WILLIAMS:  22 MS. WILLIAMS:  23 MS. WILLIAMS:  24 MS. WILLIAMS:  25 MS. WILLIAMS:				
the reasons we just talked about, is that I think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a 12 Crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and 17 the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's 20 not prohibited or is it? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 you will. So that's why I asked the 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 22 MR. FITZGERALD: 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLIAMS: 20 Sorry, what's not prohibited? 21 Sorry what's not prohibited? 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 24 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 28 MS. WILLIAMS: 29 MS. WILLI	I _			
think we'd be in competition with each other if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a Crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. MR. FITZGERALD:  18 MR. FITZGERALD:  19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  20 MS. WILLIAMS:  11 MR. FITZGERALD:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers.  14 MS. WILLIAMS:  15 A. Yes.  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  20 You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be  10 A. Correct.  11 MR. FITZGERALD:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers.  14 MS. WILLIAMS:  15 A. Yes.  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  28 MS. WILLIAMS:  29 MS. WILLIAMS:  20 MS. WILLIAMS:	1 '	•		
if we didn't partner. We are talking about provincial assets and Nalcor is still a Crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. MR. FITZGERALD:  MS. WILLIAMS:		•		•
11 provincial assets and Nalcor is still a 12 Crown corporation, as we are, we are all 13 interested in doing the best thing for the 14 Province. So, you know, us working together 15 to optimize all of the assets that we have 16 with the intention that both customers and 17 the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's 20 not prohibited or is it? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 MR. FITZGERALD: 22 M. Surly was assets and Nalcor is still a 3 MR. FITZGERALD: 3 MR. FITZGERALD: 4 MR. FITZGERALD: 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 5 MS. WILLIAMS: 6 MR. FITZGERALD: 7 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue. 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 26 MS. WILLIAMS: 27 MS. WILLIAMS: 8 MR. FITZGERALD: 9 MS. WILLIAMS:				
Crown corporation, as we are, we are all interested in doing the best thing for the Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most. MR. FITZGERALD:  18 MR. FITZGERALD:  19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  20 MS. WILLIAMS:  11 MS. WILLIAMS:  12 Q. But I'm assuming ten years ago there would have been very experienced marketers.  13 MS. WILLIAMS:  14 MS. WILLIAMS:  15 A. Yes.  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  21 You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be will ask of the competition issue.  22 MS. WILLIAMS:  23 MS. WILLIAMS:  24 MS. WILLIAMS:  25 MS. WILLIAMS:  26 MS. WILLIAMS:	1			
13 interested in doing the best thing for the 14 Province. So, you know, us working together 15 to optimize all of the assets that we have 16 with the intention that both customers and 17 the shareholder will benefit the most. 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's 20 not prohibited or is it? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 23 have been very experienced marketers. 14 MS. WILLIAMS: 15 A. Yes. 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that 18 there would be a body of knowledge out there 19 that might be advantageous to tap into, 20 rather than this "new kid on the block" if 21 you will. So that's why I asked the 22 question, I'm not quite sure why there's a 23 lock with NEMS right now, other than you 24 Sorry and the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 25 MS. WILLIAMS:		*		
Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  MS. WILLIAMS:  16 MR. FITZGERALD:  17 Q. I would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  Province. So, you know, us working together to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize all of the assets that we have to optimize the first there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  Province. To optimize all of the assets that we have the assets that we have the first that might be advantageous to tap into, and the province all of the assets that we have the first that might be advantageous to tap into, and the first that might be advantageous to tap into, and the province all of the first that might be advantageous to tap into, and the first that might be advantageous to tap into, and the first that might be advan	1	* '		
to optimize all of the assets that we have with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Where would think, you know, intuitively that there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  Yes.  MR. FITZGERALD:  There would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be  MS. WILLIAMS:  MR. FITZGERALD:  MS. WILLIAMS:				* *
with the intention that both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Description of prohibited or is it?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MR. FITZGERALD:  Description factor, that's indicated the competition is it?  MR. FITZGERALD:  Description in the both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  The most indicated the competition factor, that's indicated the competition is it?  Description in the both customers and the shareholder will benefit the most.  The most indicated the most in the reason will be a body of knowledge out there in that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  Description in the most in the reason will be a body of knowledge out there in the might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  Description in the most in the most in the problem in		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
the shareholder will benefit the most.  MR. FITZGERALD:  Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  MS. WILLIAMS:  A. Sorry, what's not prohibited?  MR. FITZGERALD:  MS. FITZGERALD:  MR. WILLIAMS:  MR. WILLIAMS:	1			
18 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's 20 not prohibited or is it? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be  18 there would be a body of knowledge out there that might be advantageous to tap into, 20 rather than this "new kid on the block" if 21 you will. So that's why I asked the 22 question, I'm not quite sure why there's a 23 lock with NEMS right now, other than you 24 said the competition issue. 25 MS. WILLIAMS:				
19 Q. Leaving aside the competition factor, that's not prohibited or is it?  20 not prohibited or is it?  21 MS. WILLIAMS:  22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited?  23 MR. FITZGERALD:  24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be  19 that might be advantageous to tap into, rather than this "new kid on the block" if  20 you will. So that's why I asked the  22 question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue.  24 Sorry, what's not prohibited?  25 MS. WILLIAMS:	1			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
20 rather than this "new kid on the block" if 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 20 rather than this "new kid on the block" if 21 you will. So that's why I asked the 22 question, I'm not quite sure why there's a 23 lock with NEMS right now, other than you 24 said the competition issue. 25 MS. WILLIAMS:	1			
21 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be 25 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 you will. So that's why I asked the question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue. 25 MS. WILLIAMS:				
22 A. Sorry, what's not prohibited? 23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 20 question, I'm not quite sure why there's a lock with NEMS right now, other than you said the competition issue. 25 MS. WILLIAMS:		•		
23 MR. FITZGERALD: 24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's 25 preferable is because otherwise you'd be 23 lock with NEMS right now, other than you 24 said the competition issue. 25 MS. WILLIAMS:	1			
24 Q. You're saying that the reason why it's preferable is because otherwise you'd be 25 MS. WILLIAMS:		3,		
preferable is because otherwise you'd be 25 MS. WILLIAMS:				<b>C</b> ,
	1 7/1	II Vali re caying that the reacon why if c	1/4	said the competition issue
D	1	• •		

July 1	7, 2018		NL Hydro 2017 GRA
	Page 229		Page 231
1	A. Right. I don't believe that I had suggested	1	coal, and we could purchase something at
2	that NEM is the right choice because of	2	eight cents and it was generated a hydraulic
3	their depth of experience, ten, twenty,	3	facility, we would be purchasing the five
4	thirty years of experience, it is just that	4	cent energy.
5	it would be an affiliate and I think we're	5	MR. FITZGERALD:
6	in this together with trying to make the	6	Q. Yeah, I guess we're saying the same thing, I
7	right decisions for the Province, as opposed	7	guess, it doesn't, environmental emissions
8	to a third party who could be making the	8	or the cost of environment emissions in
9	best decisions from a, you know, from just a	9	another jurisdiction are not something that
10	private company's perspective, they would be	10	Hydro has to concern itself with?
11	acting in their best interest.	11	MS. WILLIAMS:
12	MR. FITZGERALD:	12	A. We are not concerning—we are only concerning
13	Q. I guess one point, the Consumer's advantage,	13	ourselves with environmental restrictions in
14	I guess, is that if it was purchased from	14	our own jurisdiction.
15	somewhere else, then the procurement	15	MR. FITZGERALD:
16	contracts could be reviewed by this Board?	16	Q. One of the questions that, this may have
17	MS. WILLIAMS:	17	been in an RFI, but it's common knowledge
18	A. And again, how we, the purchases that do	18	that Hydro's alternative to off-island
19	occur will be put before the Board for	19	purchases is Holyrood and they all want 90
20	review and certainly for the parties to	20	percent that Holyrood costs, so if that's
21	review on a confidential basis, as would be	21	the number to beat, you know, what does NEMS
22	required depending on how the information	22	offer, like it doesn't sound like a very
23	gets presented.	23	high bar, if you will.
24	MR. FITZGERALD:	24	MS. WILLIAMS:
25	Q. We understand that obviously there's power	25	A. I'm sorry?
	Page 230		Page 232
1	coming over the Maritime Link right now and	1	MR. FITZGERALD:
2	it's being purchased from Nova Scotia and do	2	Q. Everyone knows that the displacement cost is
3	we know whether that power is being	3	90 percent, all they have to get is 90
4	generated by coal plants?	4	percent of the Holyrood, the cost of running
5	MS. WILLIAMS:	5	Holyrood.
6	A. We would not have any knowledge about where	6	MS. WILLIAMS:
7	any, the source of the energy.	7	A. Sorry, that was in the evidence from what
8	MR. FITZGERALD:	8	we've estimated and included in evidence.
9	Q. And do I take it then that that's not a	9	MR. FITZGERALD:
10	criteria as to why you would purchase one	10	Q. Right. So that's not a solid figure then.
11	from the other, it doesn't matter to you?	11	MS. WILLIAMS:
12	MS. WILLIAMS:	12	A. That is an estimate, if we found something
13	A. No, we are looking for the least cost.	13	that was, say, 9 percent, you know, we
14	MR. FITGERALD:	14	probably would think that, you know, that's
15	Q. So environmental aside, environmental is not	15	not close enough, we want to make sure that
16	a factor that you look into when it comes to	16	at a minimum we're doing our best to plan
17	least cost?	17	for that minimal amount of savings, but we
18	(1:00 p.m.)	18	are asking NEM to get us, you know, the best
19	MS. WILLIAMS:	19	deal that they can get, as opposed to just
20	A. If there is an environmental adder, if	20	that 90 percent deal.
21	that's the correct word to use, on the	21	MR. FITZGERALD:
22	price, it would be certainly factored in	22	Q. Has there been any talk or any suggestion
23	there with the ultimate delivered price, but	23	that the current arrangement where they're
24	when we are looking to purchase, if we could	24	not charging for this service may change?
. / >	DUTCHAVA COMATHING AT TIVA CANTO AND IT WAS	. / >	IVIN WILL LAWIN.

25

MS. WILLIAMS:

purchase something at five cents and it was

25

July 17, 2018 NL Hydro 2017 GRA Page 233 Page 235 1 A. Yes, I expect it will change throughout the 1 to dispatch is for the actual generation 2 2 course of this year, is that we are working units and we hand that information over to 3 with Energy Marketing and Nalcor to develop 3 the NLSO and then they then execute that 4 a, I think Mr. Haynes might have testified 4 dispatch. 5 to it probably early in his testimony about 5 MR. FITZGERALD: 6 how we're going to work together for all the 6 But does that weave them then back into the. Q. 7 assets once we start, you know, integrating 7 not the performance base, but I mean, you 8 8 because if there's additional capacity or know, the shared profit type of situation 9 9 compromising the sales? I may have energy in Labrador that can be sold and if 10 how you generate your energy throughout the 10 misunderstood you, sorry if I did, but the course of a year can result in better NLSO I thought was just a regulator, it's an 11 11 pricing by using ponding, like I mentioned 12 on/off switch, if you will. It is not 12 earlier, we're going to work together to get profit driven, it's got nothing to do with 13 13 as much net financial benefit as possible revenue, if you will, correct? 14 14 15 and find a way to split the net benefit of 15 MS. WILLIAMS: that, and the intention is to come up with Correct. 16 16 Α. 17 what that looks like and obviously through MR. FITZGERALD: 17 18 the course of that and that's the real long 18 Q. But if you're saying a decision regarding dispatching will be interlinked with NEMS 19 term how NEM will function and provide 19 20 20 support to Hydro, so the intention is that and Hydro making strategic calls as to when 21 how we work that out, we will present that 21 to sell or buy power, wouldn't that be to the Board for their approval this fall. included in the NLSO? 22 22 23 23 MR. FITZGERALD: MS. WILLIAMS: 24 Is it contemplated that it's going to be 24 No, Mr. LeBlanc can probably speak to that a Q. Α. 25 performance based or are you just going to 25 bit better. Page 234 Page 236 MR. LEBLANC: 1 get a bill from NEMS on their efforts? 1 2 2 MS. WILLIAMS: No, again, NLSO looks at the system 3 No, I don't know if it will be, exactly if 3 reliability. Okay, so if part of the plan A. 4 was we are going to export this much it was going to be performance based, you 4 generation, NLSO might way, well hold on, 5 know, ultimately we're going to get a set of 5 6 revenue and exactly how we're going to work 6 you can't do that because if we have one 7 together is still going to be subject to 7 unit fail, we don't have enough spinning 8 technical restrictions, if I can use that 8 reserves so you can't sell it; or no, that word, that Hydro would impose, so we would 9 9 transmission corridor is completely booked. always still be able to be in control of our you can't make that export. So they look at 10 10 assets in the same way that I mentioned it from a system reliability point of view, 11 11 we're in control now of deciding to veto or and again, the only thing the NLSO sells per 12 12 approve a purchase over the Maritime Link se is transmission access, so the sales or 13 13 and we decide how we dispatch our energy deals are outside the scope of the 14 14 15 15 NLSO, but they have to use the highway generation. But, you know, exactly how we 16 split that benefit will be determined and 16 system of the NLSO and then NLSO is also 17 then presented to the Board for their review 17 responsible for the system reliability of and approval. the grid, so if they see a violation, 18 18 MR. FITZGERALD: they'll flag it. 19 19 20 Okay, and again when you say "dispatch", MR. FITZGERALD: 0. 20 again you're referring to the NLSO? 21 21 Right, I see that between the reliability, Q. that's all they're concerned with is 22 MS. WILLIAMS: 22 23 Sort of, I guess how the production planning 23 reliability, they're not concerned with A.

24

25

profitability.

MR. LEBLANC:

group works is that those weekly meetings

that we have, we will decide what the plan

24

25

Page 237 Page 239 1 A. No, the NLSO and its department are a non-1 0. Steve, I believe it might be April 23rd 2 profit entity. 2 you're looking at. MR. FITZGERALD: 3 MR. FITZGERALD: 3 4 There was an exhibit, I don't think we have 4 April 23rd? Okay, I'll try that. So rather Q. Q. 5 5 than wasting everybody's time, perhaps, I'll to go to it because I think we've all seen 6 it a hundred times, it's the Industrial come back to that question, I've lost it in 6 7 7 the haystack there. If we can turn, sorry Customer's NLH-122. This was the 22.89 8 8 kilowatt figure that Mr. Haynes referred to about that, to the issue of the load 9 9 as where he thought things were going as of forecast, has Hydro updated its load 10 2021. Has that figure changed at all since 10 forecast since the application has been we sat here last in April, or is that still 11 11 filed? MS. WILLIAMS: 12 12 MR. LEBLANC: Mr. LeBlanc will answer. 13 13 Α. 14 As far as I know that's still the figure. 14 MR. LEBLANC: A. 15 MR. FITZGERALD: 15 The load forecast is usually done annually A. So that's Hydro's figure? with updates as need be, so again, I'm not a 16 16 Ο. MR. LEBLANC: 17 hundred percent positive when the last 17 update to a load forecast was. 18 Α. That was a figure prepared by Nalcor. 18 19 MR. FITZGERALD: 19 MR. FITZGERALD: 20 Nalcor, right, so my question should be are 20 Q. Has there been any, I mean with all the O. 21 you just going with that figure or is Hydro, 21 information that's come out, it's in-house, going to -22 information that you had, but the public 22 23 23 information that's come out, since April has MR. LEBLANC: 24 there been any contact with the Industrial 24 Again, that was an estimate, like Hydro was A. 25 not doing the cost estimates for the entire 25 customers or Newfoundland Power regarding Page 240 Page 238 any shifting or changing in load? 1 Maritime Link project and that was a figure 1 2 that was done up in advance just to see 2 MR. LEBLANC: 3 3 where things were going, so they took where A. I know they are asked several times per year 4 Hydro was, there was some input in what our 4 to provide a load forecast update to us and 5 portion would be and then they added on 5 so that would continue. Whether they have their portion to come up with that number. 6 responded or not, I cannot say because 6 7 MR. FITZGERALD: 7 there's lots of times they do not respond, 8 Okay, so the answer is no, you're just going 8 so then we take that as no change and if Q. they do respond, then it's incorporated. 9 with the Nalcor number? 9 10 MR. LEBLANC: 10 MR. FITZGERALD: For now, but once we progress and get closer When you say "they", sorry, that's your 11 11 to that date, the Hydro portion is going to 12 12 customers? be updated through these hearings and all MR. LEBLANC: 13 13 that and so the number will mature over Industrials or Newfoundland Power. 14 14 A. 15 MR. FITZGERALD: time. 15 16 MR. FITZGERALD: 16 Q. So there's been no communication between you Okay. I just want to move to an issue of regarding changes in load informally? 17 0. 17 recall that Mr. Haynes brought up and if we MR. LEBLANC: 18 18 19 can go to the April 24th transcript, pages 94 19 No, it's usually by email that they are Α to 96, sorry, looking at the wrong 20 requested to provide updates to their load 20 transcript, my apologies, I had the wrong forecast and that's done on a regular basis. 21 21 site, just bear with me for a moment. 22 22 MR. FITZGERALD:

23

24

25

Sorry, did you pull up April 24th? Is that

the one that was pulled up?

23

24

25

MR. YOUNG:

So you're not aware of any change, if you

will, going on right now -

MR. LEBLANC:

Page 241 Page 243 1 A. Of a material change? No. 1 0. All right, so does the math slide scale, so 2 if you're 50 percent it's -2 MR. FITZGERALD: 3 3 MR. LEBLANC: Q. Material change, nothing. So everything, there's no indication whatsoever that 4 4 It's not necessarily linear, so it depends Α. 5 there's been a decrease in expected load? 5 on the rate impact for any increase—again, MR. LEBLANC: 6 other factors come into account, so that's 6 7 7 one factor you have to take into account. Not that I am aware of, no. 8 8 You also have to look at how much of a load (1:15 p.m.)9 9 MR. FITZGERALD: can be switched. Not all electricity load 10 Okay, the elasticity studies or data, if you 10 can be switched to alternate means. Your have any for 2019 test year, do any of TV, you can't use wood or propane to drive 11 11 those, you know, reflect upcoming rate your TV, so certain loads you cannot switch, 12 12 increases, the 22.89 we just talked about? so you can't get a hundred percent reduction 13 13 or a hundred percent or a negative hundred 14 MR. LEBLANC: 14 15 Yes, elasticity is taken into account in the 15 percent elasticity. Then you also have to A. load forecast and we use an elasticity, and do a cross price elasticity analysis. Okay, 16 16 17 again that's more for the residential area, what are your alternatives doing if the 17 electricity went up 20 percent, but oil went 18 for the Newfoundland Power we rely on their 18 19 load forecast which we incorporate into ours 19 up 25 percent for heating, you may have a 20 positive elasticity factor in that case. 20 and they do take elasticity into account. The General Service, a lot of their, they 21 21 Then you also have to look at the cost of 22 don't have alternate means of switching, so 22 what are the alternative means to switch. 23 elasticity is not a big factor for General 23 Okay, if you have a small house and it's Service customers. And for the Industrial very chopped up, lots of rooms, you may not 24 24 25 customers, we, again rely on their forecast 25 be able to put a mini split in or things Page 242 Page 244 1 1 for what they require and if there's a price like that, or it may be cost prohibitive to 2 of elasticity, they take that into account 2 put in a furnace and put in more air ducts 3 themselves. 3 for heating, so a lot of factors have to be 4 MR. FITZGERALD: looked at in determining your elasticity 4 5 So the data that you rely on or the studies, 5 model. And right now with the way the markets are, it's about a minus .3 factor. 6 you know, have you encountered or do you 6 7 have comparators of, you know, rate changes 7 MR. FITZGERALD: 8 in the magnitude that we're talking about to 8 Based on the hundred percent increase. Ο. 9 9 MR. LEBLANC: 10 MR. LEBLANC: 10 Oh, that's based on a hundred. Again, Α. there's a scale, you're not going, for a 20 For elasticity? 11 11 percent increase you're not going to get a 12 MR. FITZGERALD: 12 30 percent drop in, it will be a lesser 13 Q. Yes 13 MR. LEBLANC: amount. 14 14 15 For residential, for the increases that 15 MR. FITZGERALD: Α. 16 we're looking at with Muskrat Falls coming 16 Q. I just want to refer back now to a 17 on line, we have an elasticity factor of 17 transcript, it's the April 24th transcript, about minus .3, so that means for a hundred pages 94 to 96. Okay, so this is Mr. 18 18 percent increase in rates you'd see a drop Haynes' evidence and he's talking about the 19 19 off approximately 30 percent in load. recall power, down at line 19, he starts, he 20 20 says "When NEM was created, there was a 21 MR. FITZGERALD: 21 bunch of things that were going to happen, 22 At a hundred percent increase. 22 Q. 23 MR. LEBLANC: 23 you know, there was the presumption that A hundred percent, yeah, so that's a factor. 24 recall would be, would continue to be sold 24 A. by NEM, long term, any profits, whatever, 25 MR. FITZGERALD: 25

Page 245 Page 247 1 would go to Nalcor. Basically that's been 1 MS. WILLIAMS: 2 reviewed and basically Hydro owns that 2 A. But I think we've talked a little bit about 3 recall." So when that evidence came out, it 3 this earlier, about the following, we're 4 appeared to us in any event that this was a 4 going to do the fall, so maybe I should have 5 discovery of sorts, was that something new 5 asked for clarification on your question. 6 that came forward, that Hydro discovered 6 MR. FITZGERALD: 7 that they owned some recall? 7 Okay, so can you run that by me again? 8 8 MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: 9 No, I don't know that it was, I'm looking 9 So sorry, the question? A. A. 10 at—I don't know that it was a new discovery 10 MR. FITZGERALD: at the time. I will apologize to you, some The value sharing. 11 11 Q. of this is before my time. I'm not as MS. WILLIAMS: 12 12 intricately involved with history of how all So yeah, so the value sharing is intended, 13 13 of this would have occurred, you know, any additional energy that either Muskrat or 14 14 15 depending on how far you want to go with 15 Hydro has, wherever the source, whether it's this, I would probably have to consult or on-island, whether it's recall or it's 16 16 defer. 17 Muskrat, we'll be working with Energy 17 18 MR. FITZGERALD: 18 Marketing and Muskrat to come up with an 19 Defer, okay, all right. And who would be 19 operational and optimization plan and the 20 value that would result from how we 20 better to speak with on this? 21 MS. WILLIAMS: 21 assimilate and function all of those assets 22 I don't want to say Mr. Haynes, he might 22 together, we look up at the plan and we'll 23 fire me. I'm looking for help here, it 23 present it to the Board for their review and might be Mr. Haynes, I don't necessarily 24 24 approval this fall. think it's Mr. Fagan or Ms. Hutchens. MR. FITZGERALD: 25 25 Page 248 Page 246 Q. So this isn't newly discovered recall power. 1 MR. FITZGERALD: 1 2 You don't think it's Mr. Fagan, okay, all 2 It's recall power that everyone knew existed 0. 3 right. 3 in the first place. MS. WILLIAMS: MS. WILLIAMS: 4 4 5 I don't think that's it's necessarily Ms. 5 Yes, yes. Sorry, I'm making sure I'm 6 Hutchens or Mr. Fagan. I'm thinking about, understanding your question. 6 7 say, some of the history of this. 7 MR. FITZGERALD: 8 8 Well it's just the way the evidence came MR. FITZGERALD: Q. out, it says that basically that's been 9 O. Yeah, because it talks about, "Right now is 9 that the recall will be sold and anything reviewed and basically Hydro owns that 10 10 recall, so that we can't use, I mean, but first our 11 11 objective is to bring to the Island anything 12 12 MR. WILLIAMS: 13 that can't be sold will be sold by them, but I don't think Mr. Haynes was—I don't want to 13 Α. the process of the overall value sharing, if put words in his mouth, certainly, but I 14 14 you will, between NEM and the power supply don't think he was saying this was a new 15 15 16 in Hydro is subject to ongoing dialogue." 16 discovery. If it reads that way, if it was inferred that way, I don't believe that that MS. WILLIAMS: 17 17 I can speak to that, which I think we've 18 was what he intended but I don't have the 18 already done, but I think your question, 19 19 history about, you know, years ago how all the contracts were put in place. 20 sorry, was did you just discover that you 20 21 had recall and I was a bit confused by the 21 MR. FITZGERALD: question, I wasn't sure by what you meant 22 22 Okay. And one final question that just came O. 23 there. 23 out yesterday, the hiring at Hydro, different topic, is there currently a hiring 24 24 MR. FITZGERALD:

25

Q.

Sorry.

25

freeze at Hydro or is it business as usual?

July 17, 2018 NL Hydro 2017 GRA Page 249 1 MS. WILLIAMS: There's no freeze. As we mentioned that 2 3 every position, you can almost consider that 4 a freeze, you were not approved on that 5 position until you fully justified that it's absolutely required. Would you call that a 6 freeze? Not necessarily, but in the context 7 8 of what the public would infer it as, but 9 there's no official freeze. 10 MR. FITGGERALD: Okay, thank you, that concludes our 11 Q. 12 questions. CHAIR: 13 14 Q. Thank you, Mr. Fitzgerald. Mr. Coxworthy, 15 would you prefer to wait until tomorrow morning? 16 MR. COXWORTHY: 17 Madam Chair, I'd ask if perhaps we can 18 Q. 19 adjourn for the day. 20 CHAIR: 21 Q. Absolutely, we'll see you at 9:00 in the 22 morning. MR. COXWORTHY: 23 24 Thank you. Q. 25 Upon concluding at 1: 25 p.m. Page 250 **CERTIFICATE** I, Judy Moss, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct transcript of a Newfoundland and Labrador Hydro 2017 General Rate Application hearing, heard on the 17th day of July, 2018 before the Board of Commissioners of Public Utilities, 120 Torbay Road, St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador and was

transcribed by me to the best of my ability by means of a sound apparatus.

Dated at St. John's, Newfoundland and Labrador this 17th day of July, 2018

Judy Moss

Α **Abiding -** 98:3 **Ability -** 11:7, 16:24, 17:9, 70:7, 129:9, 143:15, 184:8, 200:10 **Able -** 7:4, 8:16, 8:22, 10:7, 11:10, 13:14, 14:23, 17:20, 20:23, 22:8, 37:17, 39:16, 88:10, 108:11, 108:23, 112:10, 113:15, 114:1, 125:1, 128:6, 129:8, 131:24, 140:12, 148:13, 157:12, 157:14, 160:8, 179:5, 179:7, 187:18, 189:18, 193:3, 199:21, 200:15, 202:10, 220:25, 234:10, 243:25 **Abnormal -** 99:17 **Above -** 8:4, 10:21, 32:24, 125:10, 126:16, 141:5 **Absolute - 160:2** Accelerated - 178: Acceleration - 179: Accept - 102:12, 104:10, 144:11, 157:16 Acceptable - 164:5 , 164:9, 221:21 Accepted - 100:9 Access - 24:1, 160:17, 160:18, 201:16, 201:17, 201:23, 203:3, 203:6, 203:7, 210:5, 211:5, 211:20, 211:22, 212:3, 212:12, 212:18, 213:2, 213:15, 216:1, 216:15, 217:2, 217:15, 217:23, 236:13 **Accessed -** 202:10 Accordingly - 164: Account - 74:12, 89:4, 90:15, 96:20, 97:1, 100:18, 102:8, 132:3, 150:4, 154:23, 155:19, 160:24,

162:2, 167:6, 241:15, 241:20, 242:2, 243:6, 243:7 Accountable - 197: 2. 197:3 Accounted - 25:14 Accounting - 23:2 Accurate - 14:14, 95:11, 96:1, 123:8 Accurately - 14:12 **Achieve -** 143:16 Acknowledge - 11 2:8, 151:4, 151:8 Acknowledged - 1 19:7 **Across -** 44:20 Act - 204:22, 215:12 Acting - 227:23, 229:11 **Action -** 10:1, 37:8, 39:23, 88:17, 88:18, 136:16, 227:5 **Actions -** 92:19, 153:2 **Active -** 204:13 Actual - 23:1, 49:25, 81:2, 81:5, 91:8, 148:17, 166:5, 166:9, 168:21, 189:14, 235:1 Actuality - 91:25 **Actuals -** 74:10, 168:4 **Ad -** 86:8, 188:12 **Add -** 39:19, 77:18, 156:11, 180:4 Added - 121:23, 122:18, 126:11, 238:5 **Adder -** 230:20 **Adding -** 222:18 **Addition -** 62:15, 130:12 **Additive - 122:18 Address - 28:6**, 46:17, 51:12, 56:11, 122:10, 221:12 Addressed - 45:22, 46:11, 46:19, 49:21 **Adequacy - 13:18**, 54:10, 54:23, 55:5, 160:7 **Adjourn - 249:19** Adjust - 102:13, 164:12 **Adopt -** 165:15

Advance - 56:15,

56:23, 58:5, 69:5, 69:6, 92:20, 144:23, 145:19, 147:8, 147:19, 149:14, 155:9, 163:17, 203:14, 238:2 Advanced - 69:20 Advantage - 202:2 0, 204:12, 209:2, 229:13 Advantageous - 2 28:19 **Advocate -** 221:12 Advocate's - 2:8, 218:12 Affect - 38:16, 38:18, 41:19, 41:20, 47:13, 47:14, 88:12, 94:22, 109:15, 141:13 Affected - 44:1, 44:23 **Affecting -** 16:18, 83:25, 174:10, 186:6 Affects - 40:2. 79:11, 79:14 **Affiliate - 227:22**, 229:5 Affiliated - 228:3 Affiliates - 208:3, 208:20 **Afraid - 119:14 Afternoon - 190:25** , 191:3, 191:5 **Agency - 202:19 Agent - 218:5** Aggregate - 224:2 Agree - 89:4, 96:21, 158:2, 160:12, 161:20, 171:25, 197:7, 208:5, 212:20, 227:7, 227:20 **Agreed -** 155:24 Agreement - 18:20 , 29:11, 30:9, 30:14, 30:15 Agreements - 30:1 3, 212:11, 218:2, 223:10 Ahead - 41:3, 41:20, 175:11, 219:3, 219:5 **Aim -** 39:21 **Air -** 56:10, 244:2

**Alarm - 126:24 Alarms - 126:21**, 127:16 **Alderon - 174:2** Alignment - 152:1 **Alliance -** 213:23 Allocate - 104:7 **Allow -** 207:14 **Allowed -** 88:19 Allows - 8:13, 148:13 **Alluded - 11:4** Alright - 118:21, 121:7, 135:9, 140:22, 143:5, 143:13 **Alternate - 225:13**, 241:22, 243:10 Alternative - 28:15, 165:20, 231:18, 243:22 Alternatives - 160: 16, 243:17 Amalgamated - 21 0:25 **Amend -** 156:23 America - 99:16, 209:12 **American -** 212:25 **Amount -** 4:4, 8:16, 16:25, 17:16, 52:14, 76:24, 77:4, 79:20, 94:4, 96:5, 96:23, 114:8, 122:17, 197:6, 232:17, 244:14 **Amounts -** 21:20, 196:3, 196:5, 196:13 **Analysis - 28:16**, 65:6, 65:13, 67:18, 71:7, 72:1, 97:3, 104:18, 107:21, 110:11, 126:2, 126:4, 126:5, 149:15, 152:6, 156:21, 156:25, 158:3, 184:15, 207:7, 243:16 **Analyze - 121:4 Analyzed -** 66:19 Analyzing - 100:20 **Anchors - 179:24** And/Or - 201:1 **Animal - 200:18 Annual - 26:7.** 43:2, 43:16, 43:18, 69:24, 70:15, 163:23 **Annually - 42:6,** 239:15

Anomalies - 190:3 Anomalous - 36:21 **Anomaly -** 49:22, 177:10, 183:8 Anticipate - 15:22, 16:7, 25:3, 29:6, 74:22, 79:6, 81:9, 129:22, 130:8 Anticipated - 19:14 , 90:1, 90:5, 92:25 Anticipating - 130: 13 **Anymore -** 86:4, 121:5, 134:1 **Anyway -** 43:12, 130:24, 141:19, 147:12, 154:11 **Apologies - 238:21** Apologize - 245:11 Appear - 124:11, 143:9, 195:25 **Appeared -** 150:13, 245:4 **Appears -** 74:10, 200:19 **Appendix -** 18:16, 108:15, 165:1 Applicability - 198: Application - 17:15 , 17:22, 21:25, 72:19, 89:2, 98:8, 239:10 **Apply -** 31:13 Appreciate - 191:7 Approach - 1:12, 107:9, 149:12, 150:14, 151:17, 151:18, 152:22, 152:24, 159:5, 162:12, 162:17, 222:1, 222:2 Appropriate - 12:1 6, 48:16, 67:9, 97:2, 99:24, 136:15, 149:8, 152:24, 153:13, 164:15, 222:7, 224:16, 225:1, 226:1, 226:5 **Appropriately - 59**: Approval - 13:5, 26:12, 56:7, 69:1, 96:4, 97:23, 98:2, 98:10. 233:22. 234:18, 247:24 **Approve -** 2:15, 234:13 Approved - 48:3,

Airflow - 55:24,

56:11

98:9, 172:18,

206:22, 208:22, 211:13, 249:4 Approximately - 2 0:5, 89:25, 168:2, 242:20 April - 148:22, 237:11, 238:19, 238:23, 239:1, 239:4, 239:23, 244:17 **Area -** 48:8, 48:11, 75:12, 75:22, 76:12, 77:2, 82:8, 201:18, 212:1, 241:17 Areas - 48:8 Arrangement - 221 :2, 221:20, 232:23 **Arrived - 111:5 Aspect -** 135:17, 212:2, 216:12, 218:8 Assessing - 82:18 Assessment - 48:3 , 49:19, 50:10, 51:5, 73:8, 84:20, 85:21, 90:2, 95:20 **Asset -** 9:19 Assets - 9:25, 190:12, 193:14, 223:16, 226:11, 226:15, 233:7, 234:11, 247:21 Assigned - 217:24 Assimilate - 247:2 Assimilating - 151: 11 Assimilation - 151: **ASSIS -** 203:4 **Assist -** 196:9 Assistance - 28:8, 28:19, 29:1, 30:9, 73:11, 73:14, 154:22 Associated - 4:10, 44:14, 53:23, 54:3, 89:5, 96:25, 101:9, 103:21, 108:8, 134:12, 153:3, 154:14, 184:24 Assumed - 4:3 Assumption - 6:15 Assumptions - 3:1 1, 3:14, 4:12 **Astray - 14:17 Attached -** 170:16 Attachment - 133: 14, 170:17, 170:23 Attend - 85:15,

85:24, 86:1, 86:4, 86:7, 86:14 Attended - 86:6. 86:13 Attributed - 165:5 **Audience - 111:25** Audit - 197:20, 197:23, 199:4, 199:21 **Auditing -** 199:19 August - 23:9, 59:9, 60:11, 108:22, 195:11, 196:22 Aux - 75:6, 75:22 Avail - 12:1, 12:21, 16:4 Availability - 16:16 70:5, 91:22, 93:19, 127:22, 142:20, 142:24, 207:21 Available - 9:4. 14:7, 20:22, 29:20, 29:22, 38:2, 133:18, 136:5, 139:14, 140:18, 144:25, 195:10, 196:22, 206:5, 206:11, 206:25, 207:12, 208:24, 220:11, 220:18 **Availing -** 159:16, 161:19, 227:17 **Avalon -** 87:12, 87:14, 87:18, 87:24, 91:6, 91:10, 93:3, 94:13, 94:17, 105:24, 106:19, 112:14, 112:16, 112:23, 120:4, 120:6, 120:7, 120:15, 121:1, 121:4, 121:7, 121:9, 121:19, 121:25, 122:9, 122:10, 133:11, 133:15, 133:18, 134:25, 154:8, 178:17, 183:23 Average - 32:11, 32:13, 32:15, 32:20, 77:11 Averages - 76:4, 80:18 **Averting - 130:19** Avoid - 18:8 Avoided - 145:24 Await - 152:13 Aware - 4:17, 27:18, 48:2, 93:18,

192:2, 215:22,

240:23, 241:7 В Back - 1:3, 12:11, 30:23, 45:22, 46:17, 48:19, 48:25, 50:14, 60:21, 61:17, 61:21, 70:21, 70:23, 71:24, 77:23, 78:22, 92:4, 96:19, 98:8, 98:10, 107:25, 112:7, 113:23, 118:20, 119:10, 121:13, 124:5, 124:20, 125:24, 133:4, 133:8, 135:14, 143:13, 154:18, 169:3, 173:19, 176:2, 177:23, 182:23, 197:5, 220:22, 235:6, 239:6, 244:16 Background - 109: 4, 127:1, 197:18 **Backlog -** 79:19, 79:23 **Backup - 73:5 Balance - 128:1**, 132:2, 132:3, 149:23, 162:2 **Balances - 89:2.** 98:9. 164:8 Balancing - 162:12 **Bar -** 231:23 **Base -** 49:25, 50:8, 235:7 Based - 6:15, 6:24, 7:13, 18:24, 20:8, 20:12, 23:14, 36:13, 68:19, 70:14, 76:15, 77:14, 81:22, 95:19, 100:21, 113:19, 113:21, 115:17, 123:7, 127:11, 164:24, 175:8, 181:9, 181:17, 182:10, 233:25, 234:4, 244:8, 244:10 Basis - 34:4, 37:17, 38:3, 38:7, 38:21, 40:9, 40:20, 98:5, 105:11, 114:23, 120:11, 130:23, 134:8, 147:25,

211:13, 219:5, 219:10, 221:24, 224:24, 229:21, 240:21 **Baskets - 56:11 Basque - 75:22 Basques -** 75:6 **Bay -** 43:25, 44:7, 91:20, 93:24, 178:16, 178:22, 178:24, 179:9, 179:23, 180:13, 183:22 **BC -** 212:10 **Bear -** 137:25, 238:22 Beast - 78:25 **Beat -** 220:24, 231:21 Became - 95:21, 97:11, 210:22 **Becomes -** 77:19, 137:7, 198:21 **Behind -** 10:11, 22:6, 22:9, 102:21, 200:3 Belabour - 200:8 Believed - 99:24 **Believes - 225:21 Bellows -** 61:1, 61:3, 61:12 Below - 32:11, 32:13, 32:20, 32:22, 37:16, 54:17, 55:1, 134:25, 137:7, 137:9, 148:2, 148:4, 148:10 Benefit - 7:2, 65:6, 67:18, 97:3, 104:18, 105:11, 110:11, 126:4, 128:5, 130:18, 131:12, 144:10, 144:18, 145:24, 146:16, 147:2, 147:11, 149:16, 152:6, 156:21, 156:25, 158:10, 165:4, 179:8, 226:17, 233:14, 233:15, 234:16 **Benefits - 111:7**, 131:20, 157:23 **Bi -** 73:6 **Big** - 68:22, 68:25, 75:8, 75:13, 82:6, 82:9, 172:23, 186:4, 241:23 Biggest - 82:12, 127:20

Bill - 157:15, 195:17, 198:12, 234:1 Billed - 24:15 Billing - 218:2 Bit - 11:11, 15:5, 27:10, 40:25, 43:23, 48:1, 48:13, 51:11, 53:16, 71:3, 78:14, 84:25, 85:20, 100:6, 108:23, 139:10, 160:11, 162:13, 174:18, 176:7, 177:9, 178:6, 183:8, 196:19, 200:17, 201:12, 210:14, 211:4, 219:12, 235:25, 246:21, 247:2 **Block - 228:20 Board -** 13:3, 13:4, 17:23, 22:1, 22:4, 47:5, 48:1, 56:6, 56:9, 57:23, 62:12, 69:7, 69:8, 69:13, 69:18, 95:1, 98:10, 100:2, 143:11, 151:7, 153:12, 156:6, 164:5, 164:10, 165:16, 165:17, 181:7, 211:11, 211:12, 224:12, 224:16, 224:25, 225:6, 225:9, 229:16, 229:19, 233:22, 234:17, 247:23 Board's - 152:14, 158:16 **Body -** 200:25, 228:18 **Booked - 236:9 Books -** 176:16, 197:25 Boss - 205:23 **Both -** 4:25, 31:14, 40:25, 58:11, 61:12, 64:6, 71:22, 78:3, 80:20, 104:9, 122:6, 122:15, 122:16, 122:19, 138:14, 226:16 Bottleneck - 73:24 **Bottom -** 33:7. 35:8, 43:1, 43:16, 63:21, 218:6 **Boxes -** 122:16 **Brag - 176:8 Brand - 63:6 Break -** 132:17,

148:1, 155:2,

164:6, 181:8,

188:12, 208:22,

132:20, 132:22, 29:22, 159:18 133:1, 167:13 **Calls - 235:20** Breakdown - 5:5 **Breaker -** 64:13 **Breakers - 63:21 Bribe - 208:16** Brook - 63:21, 218:7 Brought - 88:14, 98:7, 112:23, 117:9, 127:9, 174:21, 175:6, 178:21, 238:18 **Bruises -** 68:8 Brunswick - 73:25, 210:7, 210:10, 210:20, 211:2 Budget - 61:24, 62:14, 65:20, 65:25, 68:17, 69:2, 168:21, 173:22, 176:16, 176:17, 176:22, 181:1, 185:25, 192:25 Budgeted - 25:14 Budgets - 195:9, 196:14 **Buffer - 138:12** Build - 56:1, 212:13 **Building - 18:1**, 41:8, 185:13, 201:15 **Buildup -** 55:25 Built - 1:22, 3:8, 3:9, 24:4, 72:25, 73:2, 218:1 **Bulk -** 83:20, 84:2 **Bullet - 139:11 Bumps -** 68:8 Bunch - 80:15, 101:23, 244:22 **Business - 222:10**, 248:25 Buy - 63:6, 235:21 C Calculated - 20:14. 70:21, 70:23 Calculating - 130:1 Calculations - 127:

Call - 10:24, 28:9, 29:8, 36:14, 42:15, 64:14, 85:9, 86:2, 87:15, 105:17, 126:11, 149:1, 156:7, 206:16, 207:3, 249:6 Called - 8:15,

**Canada -** 213:18 **Cans -** 46:4 Can't - 78:24, 80:7, 101:16, 104:4, 104:5, 104:13, 111:1, 111:2, 114:5, 114:6, 114:16, 124:24, 142:6, 145:24, 146:1, 146:19, 146:20, 146:22, 148:19, 149:6, 201:20, 204:14, 236:6, 236:8, 236:10, 243:11, 243:13, 246:11, 246:13 Cap - 17:16, 17:23 Capability - 133:15 227:19 **Capacity -** 8:17, 8:24, 9:1, 9:10, 11:24, 26:25, 56:14, 71:19, 106:4, 116:14, 130:3, 139:12, 221:15, 233:8 Capital - 61:24, 62:14, 65:20, 68:17, 70:12, 71:2, 71:4, 72:10, 72:11, 89:11, 167:19, 168:13, 170:16, 172:4, 185:24, 191:16 **Capture - 105:3 Captured - 185:16** Care - 81:22 Carried - 176:2, 176:16 Carrying - 187:6 Carryover - 174:21 , 180:14 Carryovers - 168:1 4, 168:20 Caryn - 38:24, 144:7, 173:10 Case - 24:11, 24:15, 137:22, 139:8, 150:16, 151:24, 152:20, 155:8, 206:20, 216:7, 243:20 Cases - 189:1 Cash - 174:17 Caught - 79:22, 208:17 Cause - 47:4, 47:11 Caused - 49:3, 75:11, 145:6

**Causes - 134:20 Caution - 158:13 CEA -** 54:24, 76:3, 76:7, 76:11, 77:11 Cent - 231:4 **Center - 200:22 Central - 213:5 Centres - 16:17**, 18:1 Cents - 7:17, 230:25, 231:2 Certain - 91:22, 108:8, 124:19, 125:15, 149:13, 201:20, 204:9, 216:22, 243:12 Certainly - 5:12, 10:7, 13:4, 41:1, 47:20, 49:18, 62:25, 70:4, 86:19, 86:24, 91:17, 104:23, 123:13, 127:20, 127:23, 129:5, 147:24, 152:15, 153:10, 163:4, 164:10, 164:12, 165:8, 165:18, 172:10, 229:20, 230:22, 248:14 Certificate - 96:4, 96:14 Certification - 213: **CHAIR -** 1:5, 1:9, 132:18, 132:24, 133:3, 190:22, 190:25, 220:9, 249:13, 249:18, 249:20 Challenged - 195:2 **Chance - 23:3** Change - 15:2, 18:23, 19:5, 19:6, 19:15, 39:12, 43:5, 43:19, 66:1, 109:25, 111:21, 112:13, 116:19, 120:8, 120:16, 124:1, 147:3, 152:12, 154:13, 163:6, 166:18, 174:17, 232:24, 233:1, 240:8, 240:23, 241:1, 241:3 **Changed -** 6:25,

237:10 **Changes - 47:22**, 49:2, 109:13, 112:20, 123:23, 134:6, 154:16, 186:18, 240:17, 242:7 **Changing - 43:20**, 147:7, 154:5, 154:15, 240:1 Characterization -153:14, 160:13 Characterize - 134: 23, 151:16, 158:21 Charge - 204:20 **Charged - 22:7**, 219:23 **Charges - 1:16**, 197:3, 200:2, 200:14 **Charging - 1:19**, 232:24 **Chart - 33:5**, 147:22 **Charts - 147:22.** 148:1 Chat - 108:24, 133:9 Cheap - 12:2, 12:5 Cheaper - 63:23, 72:2 Check - 61:21, 121:13, 132:7, 168:11, 174:19 **Checking - 122:16** Checklist - 213:25, 214:5 **Checks - 145:18** Choice - 106:2, 229:2 Choose - 36:13, 160:2 Choosing - 10:11 **Chopped -** 243:24 **Circuit - 183:22 Circuits - 179:9** Clarification - 247: Clarified - 5:12, 5:19, 143:6, 143:10 **Clarify - 113:10 Clarity - 179:16** Clause - 212:19 Clean - 48:19, 112:8 **Cleaned - 48:24** Clearance - 56:12 **Clearest - 100:3** Close - 56:23, 107:12, 119:6, 148:12, 149:6,

232:15 Closeness - 207:1 Closer - 14:18, 238:11 **Cloud -** 123:24 Cms - 78:8 Coal - 230:4, 231:1 Code - 201:13, 201:19 Cognizant - 10:10, 109:22, 149:23, 154:21 **Combined -** 21:13, 21:15, 54:11 **Combines** - 76:11 Combustion - 55:2 Come - 6:6, 13:14, 17:17, 22:5, 33:18, 48:18, 60:20, 66:16, 71:24, 111:1, 111:2, 111:3, 111:25, 116:2, 118:20, 145:13, 149:5, 151:12, 153:23, 163:18, 179:9, 195:14, 196:12, 198:1, 207:20, 208:21, 214:23, 220:22, 233:16, 238:6, 239:6, 239:21, 239:23, 243:6, 247:18 Comes - 7:15, 72:1, 89:22, 145:15, 188:4, 230:16 Comfortable - 196: Coming - 3:24, 8:17, 14:7, 19:1, 20:21, 37:25, 38:8, 53:20, 57:1, 57:22, 87:23, 91:9, 108:20, 116:18, 153:19, 154:16, 177:8, 183:22, 184:1, 194:17, 196:3, 230:1, 242:16 Commenced - 7:23 110:1, 156:1 **Comment - 92:5.** 92:10, 95:23, 112:10, 114:19, 119:14, 150:15, 152:7, 153:6, 159:21, 186:8 Commented - 66:1

90:7, 90:12, 93:4,

111:12, 112:15,

120:13, 147:1,

July 17, 2018
0, 107:23
Comments - 118:2
2, 150:1, 150:2,
150:10, 159:14
Commissioned - 1 16:13
Commissioning -
6:25, 7:6, 16:2,
19:21
Commitment - 119 :9
.9 <b>Common -</b> 231:17
Communication -
154:13, 240:16
Communications' - 85:13
<b>Company's -</b> 229:1
0
Comparators - 242 :7
Compare - 27:23,
66:20, 76:3 <b>Compared -</b> 196:11
<b>Comparing -</b> 32:16
, 76:6
<b>Compelled -</b> 211:1 9
Competing - 223:5
, 223:12, 227:1
<b>Competition -</b> 223: 24, 226:9, 226:19,
228:24
Competitive - 202:
19, 204:12 Complaint - 209:14
, 213:16, 213:17
Complaints - 213:1
8
<b>Complete -</b> 19:21, 23:16, 134:6,
187:25
Completed - 2:11,
28:3, 46:20, 46:21,
47:5, 48:5, 49:9, 49:20, 62:24,
72:20, 94:4, 180:25
Completely - 210:2
3, 236:9
Completing - 27:1
Completion - 190:
8, 190:9, 191:12
Complicate - 131:1
Complicated - 24:6
Component - 134:
15, 137:17, 138:5,
138:15 <b>Components -</b> 56:
2, 59:21
Compromising - 2

35:9 Concentrate - 82:3, 84:21 Concept - 11:20, 28:16, 113:5, 196:1 Concern - 16:22, 16:24, 18:9, 168:19, 231:10 Concerned - 17:9, 205:20, 236:22, 236:23 Concerning - 231: 12 Concerns - 17:12, 85:22, 86:19, 94:18 Concludes - 249:1
Concluding - 249: 25 Conclusion - 150:6 Conclusions - 62:2 3, 66:5 Condenser - 58:18 Condensing - 64:2 2
Condition - 44:22, 47:13, 47:19, 48:3, 49:19, 51:5, 59:17, 82:18, 86:24, 88:16, 148:3 Conditions - 206:7, 215:1 Conduct - 201:14, 201:19
Conductor - 78:12 Confidential - 160: 6, 229:21 Confidentiality - 1 3:21 Confirm - 15:16 Confirmed - 14:6 Conflict - 205:16, 205:22
Conflicted - 227:25 , 228:2 Confuse - 105:1 Confused - 246:21 Confusion - 134:2 1, 143:9 Conjunction - 62:1
Connected - 224:1 Conscious - 93:8, 153:18, 160:14, 160:20, 161:21, 186:12 Consciously - 178: 11, 180:10, 183:12 Conservative - 10: 2, 10:12
Consider - 62:17,

72:11, 93:3, 124:12
146:24, 147:1,
140.24, 147.1,
150:11, 151:18,
159:19, 249:3
Consideration - 91
:6, 198:17
Considered - 141:
2
Considers - 36:20
Constraint - 87:15,
87:18, 87:20, 91:7,
07.10, 07.20, 91.7,
94:13, 105:23,
129:12, 154:8
Constraints - 94:1
9, 129:2, 129:5
Construction - 50:
1, 53:8, 92:15,
173:13
Consult - 95:1,
99:22, 100:1,
108:10, 109:6,
245:16
Consultant - 153:1
2, 196:8
Consultation - 66:
11, 110:1, 156:2,
162:22
Consulting - 89:19
Consumer - 2:7,
84:18, 218:11,
221:12
Consumers - 83:2
1, 84:7
Consumer's - 227:
7, 229:13
Contact - 218:20,
239:24
<b>Contacts -</b> 220:14
<b>Contained -</b> 65:19,
160:5
Contemplate - 58:
3
Contemplated - 27
:5, 27:14, 58:2,
.5, 27.14, 56.2,
68:14, 69:13, 93:7,
96:3, 233:24
Contemplation - 2
6:17
Content - 66:4
Context - 22:6,
22:9, 107:23,
124:12, 249:7
Contingency - 99:
19, 111:15, 115:3,
133.10 133.21
133:19, 133:21,
137:15, 140:19,
137:15, 140:19,
137:15, 140:19, 144:23
137:15, 140:19, 144:23
137:15, 140:19, 144:23
137:15, 140:19, 144:23
137:15, 140:19, 144:23 <b>Continue -</b> 15:23, 27:5, 79:9, 81:13, 95:1, 190:18,
137:15, 140:19,

199:16, 222:4, 223:3  Contracted - 4:2, 4:22, 8:4, 8:13, 221:24  Contractor - 198:1  Contractor - 198:1  Contractors - 223: 23  Contracts - 3:23, 13:13, 14:6, 16:19, 18:6, 18:25, 26:15, 26:19, 27:4, 27:13, 73:10, 225:6, 229:16, 248:20  Contribution - 47:1  0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4  Contributor - 75:9  Contributors - 178:7  Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12  Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7  Conversation - 15  9:10, 163:2, 225:25  Conversations - 1  07:15, 156:3, 163:3  Convinced - 225:2  Corrected - 78:19  Correction - 115:7  Correctly - 209:21  Corresponds - 138:4  Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9  Corrosion - 46:13  Costly - 107:20,	244:24 Continued - 108:3 Continues - 41:9, 124:16, 159:19 Continuing - 56:8 Contract - 73:11,
Contractor - 198:1  Contractors - 223: 23  Contracts - 3:23, 13:13, 14:6, 16:19, 18:6, 18:25, 26:15, 26:19, 27:4, 27:13, 73:10, 225:6, 229:16, 248:20  Contributes - 125: 7  Contribution - 47:1 0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4  Contributor - 75:9  Contributors - 178: 7  Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12  Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7  Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25  Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3  Convinced - 225:2  Corrected - 78:19  Corner - 79:1  Corporate - 206:14  Corporation - 126: 12  Corrector - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9  Corrosion - 46:13	223:3 Contracted - 4:2, 4:22, 8:4, 8:13, 221:24 Contracting - 26:2
Contracts - 3:23, 13:13, 14:6, 16:19, 18:6, 18:25, 26:15, 26:19, 27:4, 27:13, 73:10, 225:6, 229:16, 248:20 Contributes - 125: 7 Contribution - 47:1 0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4 Contributor - 75:9 Contributors - 178: 7 Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12 Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7 Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25 Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3 Convinced - 225:2 5 Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correction - 115:7 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	Contractor - 198:1
13:13, 14:6, 16:19, 18:6, 18:25, 26:15, 26:19, 27:4, 27:13, 73:10, 225:6, 229:16, 248:20  Contributes - 125: 7  Contribution - 47:1 0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4  Contributor - 75:9  Contributors - 178: 7  Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12  Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7  Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25  Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3  Convinced - 225:2 5  Coordinate - 187:1 9  Corner - 79:1  Corporate - 206:14  Corporation - 226: 12  Corrected - 78:19  Corrector - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9  Corrosion - 46:13	
Contributing - 50:1 5 Contribution - 47:1 0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4 Contributor - 75:9 Contributors - 178:7 Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12 Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7 Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25 Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3 Convinced - 225:2 5 Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	13:13, 14:6, 16:19, 18:6, 18:25, 26:15, 26:19, 27:4, 27:13, 73:10, 225:6, 229:16, 248:20 Contributes - 125:
Contribution - 47:1 0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4 Contributor - 75:9 Contributors - 178:7 Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12 Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7 Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25 Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3 Convinced - 225:2 5 Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	Contributing - 50:1
Control - 200:22, 215:12, 234:10, 234:12 Conventional - 71: 14, 148:5, 149:7 Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25 Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3 Convinced - 225:2 5 Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	Contribution - 47:1 0, 125:13, 125:17, 126:19, 186:4 Contributor - 75:9 Contributors - 178
14, 148:5, 149:7 Conversation - 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25 Conversations - 1 07:15, 156:3, 163:3 Convinced - 225:2 5 Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	<b>Control -</b> 200:22, 215:12, 234:10,
07:15, 156:3, 163:3 Convinced - 225:2 5 Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	14, 148:5, 149:7 <b>Conversation -</b> 15 9:10, 163:2, 225:25
Coordinate - 187:1 9 Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	07:15, 156:3, 163:3 <b>Convinced -</b> 225:2
Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226: 12 Corrected - 78:19 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	Coordinate - 187:1
Corrected - 78:19 Correction - 115:7 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138:4 Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	Corner - 79:1 Corporate - 206:14 Corporation - 226:
Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13	Corrected - 78:19 Correction - 115:7 Correctly - 209:21 Corresponds - 138
1.71CHV = 1117 711	Corridor - 87:17, 87:20, 91:9, 94:19, 129:4, 134:6, 194:5, 236:9 Corrosion - 46:13

150:25, 151:10
Couldn't - 8:25,
131:10
<b>Council -</b> 22:9,
211:11
Count - 117:17,
117:18, 148:7
<b>Counted -</b> 195:6
Counter - 150:8,
159:16
Counting - 195:5
<b>Couple -</b> 32:9,
46:4, 63:1, 64:18,
93:6, 106:1,
106:17 108:21
106:17, 108:21, 179:19, 179:21,
179:19, 179:21,
188:9, 221:11
Coupon - 50:9
Course - 10:1,
Course - 10.1,
23:25, 200:14,
205:19, 222:6,
227:4, 233:2,
233:11, 233:18
Cover - 123:24,
136:11, 139:15,
139:17
<b>Coverage -</b> 121:25
Covered - 59:5
Coxworthy - 249:1
4, 249:17, 249:23
Crack - 48:24
Cracked - 78:12
Cracking - 49:4
Create - 77:13,
104:24, 148:1
Created - 40:10,
83:7, 84:8, 244:21
Creates - 177:9
Creating - 83:13
Credit - 24:23
Crews - 192:1
Cried - 214:18
Criteria - 28:2,
97:21, 113:13,
114:7, 122:20,
241.49 220.40
211:18, 230:10
Critical - 56:1,
59:21, 103:18,
134.22 135.6
104.22, 100.0,
134:22, 135:6, 135:16, 137:7
Criticality - 137:9 Criticism - 99:13,
Criticism - 99:13
00:17 00:21
99:17, 99:21
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms -</b> 99:1,
99:17, 99:21
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms -</b> 99:1, 99:8, 100:17
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms -</b> 99:1, 99:8, 100:17 <b>Crop -</b> 219:13
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms -</b> 99:1, 99:8, 100:17 <b>Crop -</b> 219:13 <b>Cross -</b> 39:15,
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms</b> - 99:1, 99:8, 100:17 <b>Crop</b> - 219:13 <b>Cross</b> - 39:15, 39:21, 39:25,
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms -</b> 99:1, 99:8, 100:17 <b>Crop -</b> 219:13 <b>Cross -</b> 39:15,
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms</b> - 99:1, 99:8, 100:17 <b>Crop</b> - 219:13 <b>Cross</b> - 39:15, 39:21, 39:25, 243:16
99:17, 99:21 <b>Criticisms</b> - 99:1, 99:8, 100:17 <b>Crop</b> - 219:13 <b>Cross</b> - 39:15, 39:21, 39:25,

July 17, 2018 Cry - 213:1, 214:10, 214:14, 214:15 **CT -** 30:7, 68:2, 70:13, 90:21, 95:21, 107:5, 117:13 Curb - 131:22 Current - 34:12, 105:25, 140:8, 206:7, 232:23 Currently - 1:19, 13:20, 16:25, 27:4, 27:17, 60:2, 165:14, 227:18, 248:24 Curve - 33:24, 37:7 **Customer - 17:17**, 17:24, 140:12, 202:18, 204:17, 205:12, 206:1, 216:3 Customers - 12:18 , 31:2, 39:17, 83:22, 83:24, 84:1, 93:9, 97:2, 145:8, 149:19, 154:2, 156:2, 156:4, 156:5, 156:7, 156:22, 157:9, 157:11, 157:20, 158:3, 158:14, 164:1, 223:17, 226:16, 228:1, 239:25, 240:12, 241:24, 241:25 Customer's - 237: Cut - 50:9, 187:17 D **DAFOR - 44:2 Daily -** 85:4, 86:16, 87:7, 88:4, 97:14, 98:4, 147:25

**Damn -** 151:22 **Data -** 4:13, 16:17, 18:1, 101:19, 104:22, 104:24, 105:3, 241:10, 242:5 **Database - 81:25**, 187:21, 188:19 Date - 6:25, 15:11, 31:20, 49:15, 59:24, 128:1, 128:9, 131:15, 132:8, 150:24, 160:9, 160:25, 161:15, 164:6, 166:9, 178:2,

185:17, 221:18, 238:12 Day - 30:21, 42:14, 44:24, 54:11, 57:8, 71:9, 71:22, 91:25, 95:10, 104:8, 122:22, 123:7, 123:14, 124:2, 124:17, 134:8, 144:20, 145:2, 148:7, 148:22, 160:2, 219:2, 249:19 **Days -** 71:21, 122:24, 122:25 **DC -** 196:12 **De -** 178:14, 179:10, 183:17 **Deal -** 95:6, 196:2, 232:19, 232:20 **Dealing - 94:16**, 213:23 **Deals - 236:14** Dealt - 55:19, 207:24, 209:23, 209:25 **Debate - 153:9 Decay - 92:22**, 146:11 **December - 35:15,** 58:5, 75:9, 150:22, 150:24, 170:9, 178:4 **Decide -** 42:17. 71:16, 81:19, 95:8, 100:25, 104:16, 148:10, 148:12, 157:10, 222:15, 234:14, 234:25 **Decided -** 84:3, 107:4, 155:15, 222:7 Deciding - 71:5, 234:12 Decision - 40:2, 41:21, 42:16, 42:22, 59:21, 92:10, 94:22, 97:10, 125:21, 126:5, 152:14, 154:19, 155:8, 158:4, 158:14, 158:16, 159:25, 206:16, 208:8, 208:13, 208:14, 235:18 **Decisions - 38:19,** 41:2, 83:17, 100:21, 105:9, 123:5, 229:7, 229:9

**Deck - 87:4** 

**Decrease - 241:5** Dedicated - 187:6 Deem - 198:3, 199:10, 200:3 **Deemed - 202:18 Default - 142:17** Defer - 198:25, 245:17, 245:19 **Deferral - 89:3**, 90:15, 96:20, 100:18, 132:3, 150:4, 155:18, 160:24 **Deferred -** 178:13, 178:17 **Deficiencies - 78:1** 8, 79:19, 79:23 Definitely - 68:7, 90:4, 150:25 Degradation - 46:1 4, 49:3, 50:16 **Delay -** 1:4, 194:16 **Delays - 180:19 Deliver - 218:6** Delivered - 8:20. 180:18, 230:23 Delivery - 6:24, 11:5, 76:14, 84:2, 180:16, 189:9 **Demands - 136:15 Denied - 206:21 Department - 186**: 19, 201:3, 201:5, 201:7, 202:4, 203:17, 203:23, 206:15, 209:7, 209:8, 209:9, 219:15, 219:18, 223:1, 237:1 **Depth - 229:3 Derated -** 55:14, 102:14, 131:13 **Derating - 102:4**, 102:22 **Deratings - 129:18** Deration - 55:24 **Derations - 129:16 Deregulation - 211** :24 **Derivation - 4:12 Describe - 138:23 Design - 191:24**, 191:25 **D'espoir - 44:1**, 44:7, 91:20, 93:24, 93:25, 178:17, 178:24, 179:9, 179:24, 180:13, 183:23 **Deterioration - 44**:

Determine - 64:9. 98:21 **Determined - 22:1** 7, 63:2, 64:24, 221:25, 234:16 **Determines - 62:20 Determining - 244**: **Detrimental - 206**: 23, 208:23 **Develop -** 45:24, 145:1, 219:1, 221:2, 222:25, 223:15, 233:3 Developed - 38:2, 71:9, 83:19, 91:19, 92:21, 161:19, 196:7, 212:12, 221:14, 228:6 **Developing - 2:9** Develops - 37:7, 87:19, 91:25 Deviation - 91:16 **Dialogue - 246:16 Didn't -** 9:23, 9:25, 10:5, 20:10, 39:9, 39:10, 96:13, 98:20, 104:24, 106:1, 113:9, 114:13, 122:9, 124:8, 145:9, 145:25, 147:12, 151:5, 155:11, 180:19, 181:15, 181:21, 183:21, 194:1, 195:24, 196:15, 221:9, 225:23, 226:10 **Diesel - 165:24.** 166:4 **Differ - 111:21** Difference - 6:24. 7:5, 7:8, 7:19, 8:1, 12:19, 20:23, 123:22, 148:23, 172:23, 184:20, 216:8 Different - 7:10, 8:5, 8:7, 20:20, 42:7, 49:24, 49:25, 67:11, 88:22, 88:23, 95:18, 96:2, 96:13, 100:24, 101:23, 106:15, 116:10, 121:8, 121:22, 122:1. 138:7. 139:21, 157:5, 164:11, 193:3, 199:14, 199:18, 201:15, 220:15, 248:24

Differently - 107:5, 144:11, 165:12 **Difficult - 101:8.** 104:11, 147:23, 167:13 **Difficulty - 100:20**, 135:1, 137:10, 159:24, 160:11 Diligence - 78:14, 195:4, 196:11, 197:20 **Dime -** 78:25 **Dip -** 97:20, 148:4, 148:9, 148:11 **Direction - 225:17**, 225:20 Directions - 96:10 Directly - 3:1, 21:20, 24:15, 215:13, 215:15, 221:19 Disappearing - 15 4:9 Disappointed - 54: 13 Discipline - 188:17 **Discover - 246:20** Discovered - 245:6 . 248:1 **Discoveries - 249**: Discovery - 245:5, 245:10, 248:16 Discrepancies - 78 :18 Discretion - 221:6, 223:21, 223:22 Discriminate - 204: Discussions - 23:1 2, 23:13, 73:18, 110:16, 144:6, 162:18 Dispatch - 2:17, 39:24, 40:2, 42:17, 93:1, 97:14, 105:14, 106:2, 122:22, 123:5, 126:10, 127:6, 145:1, 160:15, 160:16, 161:23, 234:14, 234:20, 235:1, 235:4 Dispatched - 122:1 5, 122:19 Dispatches - 89:6, 140:25 Dispatching - 72:2 0, 147:8, 161:21, 235:19 **Displacement - 23** 

21

2:2 Disseminate - 203: Disseminating - 20 3:5 Dissipate - 129:10 Distribution - 78:4, 80:2, 80:3, 193:14, 204:4 **Divide -** 76:20 **Divorce - 104:6**, 104:13 **Document - 18:16**, 42:16, 42:21, 170:4, 170:17, 171:6, 171:8, 213:6 Documents - 31:21 42:21 Doesn't - 43:5, 47:17, 65:25, 96:4, 97:23, 120:16, 141:13, 141:25, 152:19, 165:19, 167:5, 204:10, 216:7, 230:11, 231:7, 231:22 Dollar - 172:20, 174:20, 180:5, 180:14 **Dollars - 21:5,** 173:21, 176:15, 177:23, 181:8, 182:3, 182:22, 192:25, 194:12 **Dotted -** 33:7, 43:3 **Double -** 24:24, 61:21, 121:13, 122:17, 132:6, Downstream - 46:3 , 48:10 **Downward -** 79:3, 80:19 Downwards - 81:3, 81:7 **Driest -** 36:15, 37:6 **Drifting -** 125:6, 126:15 **Drive -** 102:5, 243:11 **Driven - 235:13 Driver - 101:9**, 103:21, 155:9, 165:5 **Drivers -** 75:13, 75:24, 100:24, 101:22, 101:23, 103:12, 108:7, 108:9, 109:3 **Driving -** 75:17, 164:19, 206:20

**Drop -** 35:5, 86:8, 242:19, 244:13 **Dropped - 33:12**, 33:16, 37:23 **Drove -** 164:20 **Dry -** 37:18, 39:17, 40:12, 40:17 **Dual - 163:11 Ducts - 244:2 Due -** 8:21, 28:6, 46:13, 49:16, 55:24, 78:14, 167:6, 173:14, 195:4, 196:11, 197:19, 228:5 **Duke - 111:3 Duration - 154:5** 

Ε

Each - 21:17, 42:23, 46:4, 62:2, 101:9, 103:21, 165:5, 190:10, 223:12, 226:9 Earlier - 46:23, 46:25, 64:6, 110:14, 111:9, 126:10, 133:6, 150:6, 150:18, 161:1, 164:25, 167:9, 186:8, 211:11, 223:20, 233:13, 247:3 **Early -** 59:8, 126:8, 127:10, 162:18, 177:9, 196:14, 210:21, 233:5 Easier - 94:19 East - 17:24, 17:25 ECC - 85:11, 126:23, 136:10, 136:15 **Economic - 10:24**, 16:5, 27:6 Economical - 15:9 **Educate - 211:5 Effect -** 44:4, 84:4, 88:5, 128:20, 130:9, 131:5, 206:23, 208:23, 217:4, 217:25 Effective - 15:6, 63:9, 106:23, 128:22 Efficiencies - 209: Efficiency - 164:14 **Efficient -** 107:9, 172:18 **Effort -** 186:13

Efforts - 82:3,

84:21, 234:1 **Eight -** 176:24, 194:12, 210:23, 231:2 Elaborate - 128:24 **Elasticity - 241:10**, 241:15, 241:16, 241:20, 241:23, 242:2, 242:11, 242:17, 243:15, 243:16, 243:20, 244:4 Electrical - 144:5, 146:8, 215:12 Electrically - 116:1 Electricity - 83:21, 84:6, 204:13, 243:9, 243:18 Electronic - 188:19 **Element -** 115:8 **Elements - 78:16** Eligibility - 216:3 Eliminated - 50:18 **Email - 240:19 EMERA -** 221:24, 222:4, 222:6 Emergency - 27:12 **Emissions - 231:7**, 231:8 **Employ -** 195:15 Employees - 201:1 **Enables - 140:11** Encountered - 242 :6 **Engage -** 67:5, 67:17, 99:22, 157:4, 157:9, 157:11, 163:5, 163:14 Engineer - 144:5 Engineering - 69:4 , 187:11 Engineers - 82:1, 188:2 **England - 209:20**, 209:23, 209:24, 217:4, 217:16 **Ensure - 2:9**, 47:16, 211:25 Ensures - 2:4 Enter - 31:25, 36:1, 71:4, 103:4 **Entire -** 237:25 **Entities - 212:15 Entity -** 203:16, 204:3, 204:21, 210:22, 225:5, 237:2

:8 **Environmental - 9** 6:11, 230:15, 230:20, 231:7, 231:13 **Envision - 205:16 Equal -** 136:17, 139:12, 140:9, 212:5 **Equally -** 208:1, 208:21 Equipment - 43:25, 80:13, 80:16, 192:2 Equivalent - 70:13, 212:5, 213:2, 214:8 **Errors -** 148:21 Escalating - 153:2 Essentially - 68:20 , 105:21, 150:13 Establish - 148:25, 149:3 **Estimate -** 9:23, 9:24, 10:6, 20:19, 20:23, 22:18, 22:23, 131:10, 181:16, 188:22, 232:12, 237:24 **Estimated -** 4:18, 9:15, 232:8 Estimates - 110:10 , 163:23, 187:10, 237:25 Estimating - 161:6, 187:9, 189:14, 190:1 Estimation - 54:17, 199:4 Estimations - 9:13 **Estimator -** 188:24 Estimators - 188:2 Evaluated - 34:4, 34:9 **Evening -** 71:20, 124:18 Everybody - 105:1, 145:10, 207:25 Everybody's - 239: **Everyone - 25:17**, 63:22, 85:20, 86:25, 88:19, 88:22, 105:3, 155:6, 201:16, 203:6, 203:7, 207:25, 208:20, 212:2, 232:2, 248:2 Everything - 104:6, 126:15, 153:19, 241:3 **Environment - 231 Evidence -** 5:13,

5:20, 11:7, 22:5, 44:3, 85:2, 100:21, 137:13, 143:25, 147:16, 166:21, 166:23, 167:25, 169:1, 195:22, 232:7, 232:8, 244:19, 245:3, 248:8 **Examine -** 82:1, 162:11 Examining - 149:2 **Example - 11:21**, 16:1, 26:19, 36:22, 38:23, 39:1, 39:9, 41:7, 41:16, 64:16, 89:23, 124:13, 125:4, 126:21, 142:14, 144:20, 178:12, 215:16 **Exceed -** 56:4 Exceeding - 57:16 **Except -** 48:20, 81:5, 210:19 Exception - 142:21 , 142:23 **Excess - 21:4**, 190:11, 221:14, 222:13, 223:7 **Execute - 235:3** Executed - 98:4 Executing - 160:4 Execution - 69:5. 187:5, 187:7 Exercising - 89:15 **Exhibit - 36:1**, 172:16, 237:4 **Existed -** 53:7. 105:23, 248:2 **Expect -** 8:8, 23:8, 25:8, 53:15, 53:19, 56:13, 57:1, 79:9, 81:13, 91:22, 99:16, 106:6, 106:7, 127:24, 155:8, 164:2, 166:13, 166:18, 166:25, 195:10, 214:4, 233:1 Expectation - 91:2 3, 130:7 Expectations - 90: **Expected -** 18:18, 19:25. 42:23. 147:12, 152:3, 154:10, 182:8, 241:5 Expecting - 7:5, 20:5, 24:11, 51:1

Expenditure - 170: Expenditures - 16 7:19, 168:13, 168:21, 185:25 **Expenses - 153:20** Expensive - 12:14 Experience - 145:1 4, 199:15, 209:18, 220:17, 222:18, 229:3, 229:4 Experienced - 68:3 , 70:6, 75:7, 228:13 Experiencing - 55: 23, 105:20 **Expertise - 199:19**, 228:7, 228:8 **Explain - 74:15**, 76:9, 147:23, 200:2 **Explains - 140:3** Explanation - 197: 17, 218:24 **Export -** 12:21, 236:4, 236:10 **Exporters - 212:9**, 215:14 **Exports - 204:13** Expression - 104:4 Extended - 212:7 **Extending - 145:20** Extension - 200:21 **Extent - 19:5**, 69:20, 214:22 **Extra -** 19:6. 116:21, 117:23, 118:2, 157:15 **Extract -** 77:17 **Extreme -** 39:22

## F

Facilities - 180:12, 196:17, 223:8, 223:9 Facility - 180:12, 201:14, 231:3 **Factored -** 230:22 **Factors -** 80:17, 243:6, 244:3 Fagan - 21:2, 21:19, 21:22, 22:13, 31:4, 31:11, 112:3, 112:5, 245:25, 246:2, 246:6 **Fail -** 159:19, 236:7 Failed - 150:11 **Failure - 152:5 Fair -** 33:14, 38:12, 83:12, 89:7, 90:1, 96:21, 99:3, 101:1, 101:4, 101:13,

103:13, 103:22, 105:12, 106:24, 111:16, 119:20, 122:25, 143:19, 144:3, 151:16, 162:13, 168:25, 177:18, 199:2 Fairly - 68:18, 92:23, 96:22, 119:25 **Fall -** 7:3, 8:9, 15:19, 19:25, 20:21, 98:8, 129:23, 233:22, 247:4, 247:24 **Falls -** 242:16 Far - 237:14, 245:15 Farm - 209:9 Fashion - 105:22 **Fashions -** 88:23 **Favour -** 207:17 Favouritism - 204: 14 **Fear -** 214:14 **February -** 9:22, 33:18, 128:10, 128:12, 128:17, 132:14 Fee - 219:23 **Feeders -** 81:20 Feel - 141:21, 144:10, 155:23, 165:10, 196:19, 197:15, 211:18, 225:23 Feels - 165:17, 209:14, 227:15 Feet - 46:5, 52:20, 181:25, 182:1 Felt - 151:10, 178:25, 184:2, 184:7 Figure - 20:13, 75:18, 161:1, 232:10, 237:8, 237:10, 237:14, 237:16, 237:18, 237:21, 238:1 Figures - 16:8, 76:3, 79:14, 90:23, 186:6 File - 56:9, 62:1, 100:12, 119:21, 119:22 Filed - 3:15, 3:25,

62:12, 65:5,

239:11

100:14, 166:21,

**Filing -** 119:10,

150:20, 150:22,

150:23, 162:15 **Fill -** 8:15, 18:7, 66:8, 67:1 Final - 192:23, 248:22 Financial - 233:14 Financing - 174:3 **Find -** 74:15, 103:24, 105:6, 181:16, 224:15, 233:15 **Finding -** 47:20, 139:4, 160:20 **Findings - 144:12 Fine -** 48:20 Fire - 179:23. 245:23 Firm - 3:24, 4:2, 4:16, 7:20, 7:23, 8:4, 8:13, 8:23, 10:5, 13:12, 18:25, 26:15, 26:20, 73:23 **Firming - 14:24** First - 9:15, 34:19, 68:6, 85:19, 86:6, 86:12, 86:16, 139:1, 161:16, 179:15, 187:4, 207:20, 207:22, 208:21, 211:10, 218:20, 223:8, 223:11, 246:11, 248:3 **Firstly - 211:17** FITGERALD - 230: FITGGERALD - 24 9:10 Five - 84:19, 110:20, 133:23, 144:14, 145:11, 146:15, 157:17, 230:25, 231:3 **Flag - 236:19** Fleet - 44:20 Flexibility - 27:7 Flow - 174:17 **Flowing -** 7:14, 106:12, 196:18 Flows - 207:7 Fluctuations - 189: Flying - 194:3, 194:6 **Focus -** 77:9. 162:16, 186:13 **Folks -** 97:19 **Follow -** 67:15, 175:23 Following - 114:19,

Footnote - 133:23, 136:6, 140:16 Force - 213:16 Forecast - 14:18, 23:2, 87:7, 87:25, 93:17, 94:20, 122:23, 123:13, 124:14, 148:3, 148:18, 148:20, 148:24, 149:5, 167:10, 239:9, 239:10, 239:15, 239:18, 240:4, 240:21, 241:16, 241:19, 241:25 Forecasted - 167:1 Forecasting - 95:1 1, 168:1 Forecasts - 122:24 , 138:14 Foresight - 91:14 Form - 214:6, 224:22 Formal - 12:24, 42:15, 42:21 Format - 164:11, 164:12 Formats - 88:23 Fortune - 181:19 **Forty -** 145:7, 145:15 Forward - 53:16. 66:16, 71:12, 83:16, 94:7, 94:11, 94:12, 95:12, 105:6, 107:7, 111:13, 111:21, 114:23, 115:1, 115:5, 116:12, 119:13, 144:9, 147:25, 149:11, 149:24, 151:13, 152:11, 153:22, 154:20, 154:24, 159:7, 163:20, 169:8, 174:21, 175:6, 178:11, 183:9, 186:7, 187:10, 188:6, 189:8, 191:18, 196:3, 205:6, 219:4, 219:5, 225:23, 225:24, 245:6 Foul - 213:1, 214:10, 214:14, 214:15, 214:18 **Found -** 47:10, 49:24, 50:9, 78:18, 88:4, 195:4, 232:12

Four - 71:21, 84:15, 94:14, 95:10, 149:2 Fourth - 166:5 **Frame -** 88:15 **Framing - 157:3 Frayed -** 78:11 Free - 141:21 Freeze - 248:25, 249:2, 249:4, 249:7, 249:9 **Frequency - 92:22**, 94:18, 135:2, 137:11, 145:5, 145:6, 146:11 **Frequent -** 164:12 Friday - 31:22, 145:4 Front - 187:11 **Fronts -** 113:13 Fuel - 20:19, 20:24, 21:4, 127:17, 141:13 Full - 14:11, 14:13, 27:2, 56:14, 56:23, 57:5, 116:14, 130:3 Fully - 56:13, 104:10, 104:21, 161:20, 204:12, 249:5 **Function - 105:25**, 216:5, 233:19, 247:21 Functioning - 64:8, 65:21 **Funding -** 18:2 **Furnace - 244:2 Further - 27:8**, 73:19, 79:6, 131:18, 132:19, 190:20, 212:23 Future - 1:23, 12:22, 25:20, 27:21, 28:4, 37:25, 51:2, 53:17, 55:21, 66:18, 90:19, 108:6, 108:12, 109:14, 110:9, 127:18, 127:21, 127:24, 163:23, 200:4, 201:9, 212:22

## G

**Gap** - 66:8, 66:17, 66:20, 67:1, 67:7 **Gas** - 59:6, 62:17, 62:23, 64:3, 67:10, 71:15, 72:2, 72:5, 72:21, 89:22, 91:3, 91:13, 92:19, 93:1,

132:19, 247:3

July 17, 2018
93:17, 94:5, 94:15, 105:16, 105:18, 106:2, 106:14, 106:18, 124:15, 125:1, 125:1, 129:19, 130:14, 130:23, 131:19, 131:22, 131:25, 144:21, 145:12, 160:21, 165:23, 166:4  Gate - 122:9  Gates - 63:14, 122:6, 122:15  Gathering - 88:22  Gauge - 84:13  Gave - 198:12  Gears - 84:25  General - 85:10, 86:3, 196:1, 241:21, 241:23  Generally - 39:24, 59:16, 87:20, 93:25, 99:15, 101:6, 126:10, 145:3, 147:9, 154:10, 155:25, 163:10  Generated - 12:17, 220:25, 233:10  Generated - 230:4, 231:2  Generating - 47:14, 47:18, 115:19, 136:4, 136:12, 138:3, 138:24, 140:14, 141:5  Generator - 113:14, 115:12, 122:2  Gentleman - 119:5  Gets - 85:20, 125:14, 188:1, 203:7, 205:24, 213:17, 229:23  GIBBONS - 1:2  Gigawatt - 3:12, 4:23, 5:10, 8:10, 10:18, 10:21, 14:13, 130:14, 166:6  Give - 9:14, 11:11, 23:11, 27:7, 29:7, 88:11, 91:23, 158:9, 182:11, 184:8, 20:16, 33:11, 126:1, 208:2
208:2 <b>Gives -</b> 18:8

**GLYNN - 31:24**, 35:25, 162:8 **Go -** 3:5, 25:14, 37:13, 38:23, 41:22, 46:17, 57:23, 61:21, 71:17, 80:14, 82:21, 94:7, 94:11, 94:12, 95:12, 107:7, 114:23, 121:13, 127:17, 135:22, 139:9, 139:10, 140:16, 141:9, 149:24, 151:5, 151:13, 152:11, 161:17, 166:25, 171:2, 171:15, 173:4, 173:11, 173:12, 173:19, 174:14, 174:19, 176:22, 189:20, 197:1, 197:5, 212:15, 220:10, 222:16, 237:5, 238:19, 245:1, 245:15 **Gone -** 87:14, 87:15, 87:21, 94:13, 106:16, 121:4, 121:7, 134:9, 134:11, 152:16, 220:8 **Good -** 16:4, 20:3, 44:9, 48:15, 53:12, 53:19, 59:24, 63:7, 68:5, 132:23, 172:2, 178:4, 179:2, 181:19, 190:25, 191:3, 191:5, 208:6 Got - 14:12, 35:19, 37:25, 38:1, 60:5, 60:20, 60:21, 63:14, 70:10, 86:2, 107:3, 107:24, 128:9, 131:17, 134:23, 142:19, 158:8, 169:18, 179:4, 181:18, 185:24, 223:13, 227:16, 235:13 **GRA -** 168:18, 186:13 **Grant - 207:12 Granted -** 206:8, 206:10, 211:11, 217:23 **Grasped - 104:21 Grew -** 212:7 Grid - 212:25,

236:18

Ground - 196:18 Group - 50:20, 59:20, 71:10, 88:15, 89:19, 112:6, 145:4, 187:5, 213:13, 227:16, 234:24 GT - 89:22, 90:21, 92:6 Guarantee - 39:15 Guidelines - 38:3 Guys - 20:14

Н Hadn't - 129:17 **Half** - 52:14, 116:22, 139:22 Hand - 235:2 **Handle - 166:8 Hands -** 87:4 Happening - 174:1 Happy - 110:2, 110:4, 194:10 **Hard -** 113:23 Hardwoods - 59:12 , 59:17, 59:20, 59:22, 59:24, 60:16, 60:17, 60:19, 60:24, 61:16, 64:4, 64:14, 142:13 Haven't - 51:16, 57:4, 60:14, 227:3 **Haynes - 11:3**, 16:15, 45:12, 95:17, 128:21, 169:25, 195:21, 196:24, 233:4, 237:8, 238:18, 245:22, 245:24, 248:13 **Haynes' - 244:19** Haystack - 239:7 **Head -** 39:14, 39:22, 41:10, 133:8 **Headed -** 110:5, 110:8 Hear - 20:10, 194:11, 209:21, 213:18 **Heard - 104:3 Hearing -** 3:21, 3:22, 22:5, 107:18 **Hearings - 238:13** Heartened - 51:14 Heat - 129:10 **Heater -** 56:11 **Heating -** 129:9,

79:21, 106:10, 126:21, 126:24, 127:17, 127:18, 131:21, 155:7, 245:23 Helpful - 86:3, 104:22, 104:24, 126:13, 153:9, 156:13, 224:24 Henderson - 107:1 6, 150:18 Here's - 66:7, 66:17, 156:24, 156:25, 213:8, 220:22 **He's -** 244:19 High - 129:20, 231:23 Higher - 12:19, 34:23, 35:6, 74:11, 74:23 **Highly -** 68:12 **Highway -** 236:15 **Hindsight -** 125:23, 125:24 **Hired -** 196:8 Hiring - 248:23, 248:24 Historical - 56:24 Historically - 57:4, 106:16, 151:12 **History -** 245:13, 246:7, 248:19 **Hit -** 37:15, 149:13 **Hitting -** 69:24 **Hoc -** 86:8, 188:12 **Hold - 236:5** Holders - 215:21 Holyrood - 12:14, 55:14, 55:23, 56:2, 56:3, 57:8, 68:2, 70:5, 89:22, 90:21, 91:19, 93:4, 93:12, 93:21, 94:9, 95:21, 105:18, 105:19, 106:10, 117:13, 124:13, 124:15, 129:16, 129:23, 130:20, 131:13, 140:10, 144:21, 145:12, 231:19, 231:20, 232:4, 232:5 **Homes - 156:7** Hopeful - 53:11 Hopefully - 7:3, 13:10, 120:2 **Hoping -** 163:1, 224:15

**Host -** 67:13

Help - 17:2, 71:11,

Hot - 56:10 **Hotspots** - 78:11 **Hour -** 75:11 **Hourly -** 95:19 **Hours -** 3:12, 4:9, 4:23, 5:10, 8:10, 10:19, 10:21, 14:13, 17:23, 71:21, 75:7, 92:11, 96:2, 96:5, 130:14, 145:20, 149:2, 166:6 House - 196:8, 199:19, 209:10, 222:5, 222:8, 222:9, 237:22, 243:23 **HQ -** 212:25 **HR -** 209:8 Huge - 184:19, 184:24 **Human - 208:7** Hundred - 148:23, 220:19, 237:6, 239:17, 242:18, 242:22, 242:24, 243:13, 243:14, 244:8, 244:10 **Hutchens - 23:22**, 245:25, 246:6 Hydraulic - 31:19, 37:4, 43:23, 44:8, 93:25, 94:10, 148:6, 231:2 Hydrology - 32:9, 32:10, 39:23 **Hydro's -** 61:24, 92:19, 99:2, 99:9, 119:21, 144:9, 152:5, 205:7, 231:18, 237:16

## П

**I'd -** 18:13, 31:18, 61:21, 86:19, 99:12, 121:13, 158:21, 198:25, 249:18 **Ideally -** 34:4, 157:14 Identified - 218:18 Identifying - 219:8 **I'II -** 10:24, 23:21, 27:10, 28:9, 42:15, 74:6, 85:9, 86:2, 89:20, 90:18, 100:6, 118:20, 126:11, 132:6, 156:7, 239:4, 239:5 **I'm -** 3:5, 17:8, 20:12, 21:17,

Helicopter - 78:10

243:19, 244:3

229:11

211:13

Interim - 26:3,

30:20, 33:11, 49:14, 53:11, 54:12, 61:9, 90:14, 107:25, 114:16, 114:21, 115:1, 118:19, 121:11, 121:21, 137:20, 139:6, 139:8, 144:5, 150:23, 152:18, 169:7, 172:16, 173:8, 186:6, 192:2, 192:23, 193:3, 193:20, 213:13, 218:24, 220:19, 224:21, 228:12, 228:22, 231:25, 239:16, 245:9, 245:12, 245:23, 246:6, 248:5 Imagine - 105:12 Immediate - 41:1, 218:25 Impact - 19:10, 44:7, 47:17, 47:19, 123:25, 125:20, 129:12, 133:19, 167:11, 207:10, 243:5 **Impacted - 179:17** Implemented - 85: 3, 111:11, 147:17, 150:12 **Import -** 11:10, 12:9, 12:18, 218:4 Importance - 59:19 **Important -** 110:10 **Importers - 215:14 Imports -** 6:9, 70:7, 204:14, 217:3, 217:16 Impose - 234:9 Improve - 77:16, 77:17, 79:9, 79:24, 81:13, 126:9, 127:5 **Improved - 95:10** Improvement - 21: 3, 79:2, 79:4, 79:6, 80:20, 127:21, 143:18, 151:17, 151:22, 176:8 **Improvements - 50** :23, 85:3, 147:17, 150:14 Improving - 78:1, 78:3. 79:18 Imprudently - 98:2 2, 150:5 Inadvertent - 10:25 Inc - 249:26 Incidents - 74:20

Inconsistencies -119:12, 139:4 Incorporate - 157: 24, 241:19 **Incorporated - 156** :9, 240:9 Increase - 113:21, 242:19, 242:22, 243:5, 244:8, 244:12 Increased - 78:8, 163:7, 187:11, 192:3, 209:5 **Increases -** 136:14. 241:13, 242:15 Incurred - 98:21, 98:22, 128:3, 132:14, 150:5, 153:17, 153:20, 154:14, 161:16 Indeed - 28:6, 62:20, 94:6, 161:22, 177:21, 224:18 Independently - 20 4:23 Index - 82:24, 83:5, 83:14 Indicated - 4:5, 22:17, 26:14, 89:23, 109:13, 138:1, 143:25, 161:1, 209:19, 218:18, 219:21, 228:6 Indication - 22:4, 133:17, 137:23, 241:4 Indicative - 56:25, 57:21 Indicator - 128:5 Indicators - 163:17 Indice - 84:8 Indices - 78:3, 83:10, 84:16, 84:19 Industrial - 123:23, 156:5, 237:6, 239:24, 241:24 Industrials - 240:1 Infer - 249:8 **Inference - 207:17** Inferred - 248:17 Informally - 240:17 **Informed -** 158:4 **Infrared -** 78:10 Infrastructure - 82: 14, 82:19, 91:18, 168:3. 196:15

Inherently - 104:13

, 129:1

Initial - 92:5, 92:12, 95:15, 95:19 **Initially - 90:1**, 90:24, 96:3, 126:8, 210:19 Initiate - 205:11 Inking - 30:21 **Input -** 95:4, 151:3, 151:11, 152:10, 152:20, 153:10, 153:13, 154:2, 156:4, 156:8, 156:15, 157:20, 157:24, 158:21, 158:23, 162:22, 238:4 Insensitive - 153:4, 153:16 Insight - 163:11, 163:12 **Inspect -** 82:15 Inspected - 48:7. 78:17 Inspecting - 82:13 Inspection - 48:6 Inspections - 78:9, 81:19, 82:13 Installed - 106:4 Instruction - 115:2 2, 118:18, 119:23, 120:5, 120:18, 123:11, 133:16, 133:25, 139:16 Instructions - 96:9. 98:3, 112:22, 117:21, 118:23, 120:8, 133:11, 140:24, 143:10 Insulators - 78:12, 82:17 Integrating - 233:7 Intend - 13:3, 163:24, 165:3 **Intended -** 163:8, 247:13, 248:18 **Intending - 162:24** Intention - 3:25, 4:7, 12:12, 109:1, 226:16, 233:16, 233:20 Interacting - 9:21 Interaction - 9:20, 127:4 Interconnected - 3 0:14, 32:4, 113:12, 116:4. 128:6. 166:3 Interconnection -64:7 Interconnections -114:5 Interest - 227:23,

**Interior -** 46:12 Interlinked - 235:1 Internally - 202:22 **Interpret -** 99:12, 157:12 Interpretation - 15 1:4 Interpreted - 99:14 , 99:21, 100:3 Interruptions - 93: Intervene - 97:22 Intolerable - 108:4 Intricately - 245:13 Intuitively - 228:17 Investment - 51:23 , 52:3, 64:15, 68:19, 109:24, 110:20, 151:25, 158:17 **Invoice - 199:8 Invoiced - 22:23** Invoices - 23:1 **IOC - 30:14** Irresistible - 207:1 **Island -** 3:1, 6:10, 8:18, 8:21, 9:10, 16:3, 18:15, 18:21, 28:10, 32:3, 59:19, 62:19, 64:21, 67:10, 67:12, 83:21, 84:7, 87:12, 87:21, 87:23, 91:11, 112:14, 112:22, 114:4, 116:11, 116:12, 120:11, 120:14, 120:15, 120:16, 120:18, 121:1, 121:9, 122:1, 122:8, 133:12, 135:24, 136:3, 161:18, 166:3, 205:21, 206:24, 218:16, 231:18, 246:12, 247:16 Isn't - 248:1 Issue - 49:6, 51:12, 51:13, 51:22, 54:14, 54:16, 56:12. 87:19. 93:14, 102:4, 102:17, 106:5, 133:6, 144:21, 145:1, 145:16, 146:7, 148:15,

148:16, 154:5, 200:16, 214:22, 223:24, 228:24, 238:17, 239:8 **Issues -** 43:25, 44:4, 46:13, 48:12, 50:6, 52:23, 52:25, 55:19, 61:12, 68:2, 84:1, 85:15, 91:18, 92:20, 93:5, 95:6, 95:8, 103:3, 105:20, 118:25, 209:13 **Item - 195:5 Items - 175:11 It'll -** 19:5, 65:15, 67:12, 156:9 I've - 35:19, 57:22, 71:7, 104:3, 146:9, 181:2, 188:18, 196:10, 196:16, 200:1, 239:6

J

January - 75:6, 132:14 January/ **February - 180:20 Jeopardy -** 206:19 Job - 189:13, 218:25 Judgments - 40:20 **July -** 6:15, 7:13, 60:19, 62:13, 62:14 **Jumps - 82:9** June - 31:22, 32:11, 38:25 Jurisdiction - 213: 7, 214:9, 225:10, 231:9, 231:14 **Jurisdictions - 210** :16, 224:18 Justified - 130:23, 155:2, 249:5

## Κ

Kid - 228:20 Kilometer - 77:5 Kilometres - 191:2 2, 191:23 Kilowatt - 17:23, 237:8 Kilowatts - 17:19 Kinds - 157:7 Knock - 131:5 Knowing - 38:3, 220:17 Knowledge - 228:1 8, 230:6, 231:17 Knows - 232:2

L Lab - 17:24, 17:25, 172:17, 173:9, 173:12, 173:19, 176:14, 176:23, 185:3, 185:4 Labrador - 6:10, 8:17, 8:18, 8:20, 9:7, 9:8, 12:8, 16:2, 16:18, 17:4, 17:18, 18:15, 206:25, 213:3, 221:15, 233:9 Labrador/ Island - 127:23 **Language - 199:15** Large - 53:22, 69:25, 89:5, 96:22, 155:18, 161:1, 189:18 **Largely - 100:23** Larger - 51:13, 88:15, 146:13, 161:3 Largest - 113:14, 113:25, 115:4, 115:18, 115:19, 116:6, 116:8, 133:19, 133:20, 135:11, 136:4, 137:5, 138:12, 139:13, 139:22, 140:14, 141:5, 178:7 **Late -** 9:22, 221:17 Later - 7:4, 8:9, 12:13, 12:15, 20:21, 27:10, 71:3, 112:24, 149:16 **Leads - 188:17** Leak - 45:14, 45:21, 45:23, 46:15 **Leakage -** 56:12 **Lean - 114:5 Learned -** 187:21, 188:5 **Learning -** 47:21, 189:8, 222:10 **Leaving - 226:19** Leblanc's - 50:19, 71:10, 112:6 **Led -** 14:17 **Left -** 1:9, 22:13 **Legal - 198:21 Legally - 200:15 Length -** 76:19 **Lengths -** 76:23 **Lesser -** 244:13 **Lessons -** 187:21, 188:5

**Let's -** 6:13, 72:3,

93:22, 105:17, 111:3 **Letting - 164:1** Level - 32:23, 32:24, 33:4, 33:6, 33:12, 33:20, 33:24, 95:2, 97:23, 110:20, 136:17, 197:17, 201:15 **Levels -** 32:10, 91:22 **Leverage - 197:12 Liaison -** 219:15 **Liberty -** 66:9, 89:19, 89:23, 90:22, 98:15, 98:20, 100:19, 102:11, 103:17, 107:22, 108:10, 108:14, 108:20, 111:13, 112:7, 112:21, 118:21, 119:1, 119:7, 139:3, 143:14, 143:17, 143:24, 152:5, 153:1, 155:23, 159:3, 159:14, 160:12, 162:11, 164:25 Liberty's - 98:16, 101:5, 101:15, 104:21, 110:3, 143:13, 150:2, 152:12, 153:10 **Light - 29:7 Lights -** 151:24 Liked - 105:5, 129:15 LIL - 8:15, 14:24, 15:12, 15:19, 18:7, 19:12, 19:18, 19:20, 20:20, 22:2, 25:3, 26:19, 31:14, 38:1, 38:8, 73:7, 116:13, 194:10 Line - 13:14, 18:21, 20:21, 33:7, 34:12, 38:17, 39:3, 39:4, 39:8, 39:11, 39:14, 39:15, 39:20, 39:25, 42:11, 43:1, 43:5, 43:16, 60:12, 76:16, 76:17, 76:19, 76:22, 76:23, 77:3, 91:8, 109:19, 110:4, 115:13, 129:4, 129:13, 140:8, 145:9, 145:15, 166:5, 178:21,

178:22, 185:13,

191:22, 191:24, 191:25, 194:4, 194:6, 242:17, 244:20 Linear - 243:4 Lines - 33:3, 43:2, 43:3, 76:25, 78:9, 129:10, 167:25, 178:23, 183:25, 194:4, 194:7 **Link -** 3:7, 4:4, 6:7, 6:10, 6:11, 8:18, 9:12, 10:15, 12:7, 12:8, 15:1, 15:5, 15:10, 15:13, 15:23, 16:3, 18:15, 70:7, 72:6, 72:9, 116:14, 127:22, 127:23, 128:3, 130:12, 132:10, 132:15, 205:17, 205:19, 206:3, 216:14, 217:17, 217:22, 218:8, 221:4, 230:1, 234:13, 238:1 **List -** 74:14 Load - 9:7, 9:16, 16:18, 93:3, 105:24, 123:7, 123:23, 124:1, 148:2, 148:17, 149:12, 207:7, 239:8, 239:9, 239:15, 239:18, 240:1, 240:4, 240:17, 240:20, 241:5, 241:16, 241:19, 242:20, 243:8, 243:9 **Loadings -** 91:8, 129:14 **Loads -** 243:12 Location - 46:6, 46:10, 59:18 Lock - 228:23 **Lodged -** 213:17 **Logic -** 10:11 **Long -** 40:22, 41:17, 52:7, 53:13, 62:1, 76:16, 76:23, 90:20, 93:19, 94:1, 94:2, 162:16, 203:18, 204:25, 205:2, 207:9, 221:25, 233:18,

84:15, 90:22, 98:15, 114:22, 147:7, 178:14, 178:25, 244:4 Looking - 3:5, 18:19, 26:7, 32:13, 32:14, 42:2, 62:1, 62:25, 78:11, 84:12, 90:14, 119:20, 120:23, 126:9, 127:5, 135:16, 147:2, 149:11, 151:11, 156:15, 156:20, 159:7, 160:10, 160:19, 161:22, 170:11, 173:8, 189:8, 190:8, 206:13, 219:4, 219:5, 224:19, 230:13, 230:24, 238:20, 239:2, 242:16, 245:9, 245:23 **Losing -** 125:12 Loss - 113:14, 113:25, 115:8, 115:17, 116:6, 116:22, 125:16, 140:13, 149:19 **Losses -** 8:21 Lost - 214:19, 239:6 Lot - 11:22, 15:22, 46:11, 76:24, 79:10, 80:17, 83:25, 92:19, 126:22, 151:3, 151:25, 181:20, 189:1, 196:17, 241:21, 244:3 **Lots - 240:7**, 243:24 **Loving -** 81:22 **Low -** 76:14, 166:16 Lower - 48:10, 49:23, 50:5, 81:10, 93:21, 103:19 **Lowest -** 37:12 **LTA -** 19:12, 22:2, 25:4, 31:14, 194:10 **Lumped - 193:12** 

## M

**MAC -** 17:15 Madam - 1:9. 190:25, 249:18 Magnitude - 106:8, 106:13, 153:3, 242:8 Main - 183:16

Maine - 209:21 **Mainly -** 76:12 Maintain - 136:10, 136:16, 137:6 Maintaining - 136: **Maintains - 140:15** Maintenance - 77: 18, 79:11, 87:16, 134:5, 139:11, 142:2, 142:25 Major - 51:21, 78:16, 179:15, 182:16 Make - 14:12, 26:20, 37:3, 40:20, 41:1, 59:16, 59:21, 82:2, 105:2, 118:19, 120:23, 122:6, 123:4, 150:7, 158:4, 165:13, 179:4, 185:15, 185:16, 211:23, 216:7, 225:11, 229:6, 232:15, 236:10 Making - 15:13, 40:3, 41:21, 42:17, 42:22, 57:24, 92:10, 94:22, 97:10, 125:21, 158:14, 159:25, 208:8, 208:12, 208:13, 208:14, 229:8, 235:20, 248:5 **Manage -** 187:18 Management - 82: 15, 99:2, 99:9, 100:18, 100:21, 105:9, 152:23, 207:4, 208:9, 208:12 Management's - 1 53:1 Manager - 188:22, 208:8 86:3, 188:16

**Managers -** 85:10, **Managing - 137:11** Mandatory - 29:2, 188:20 Manitoba - 212:10 Many - 90:20, 113:13, 145:20, 149:18 March - 3:4, 92:21, 92:24, 107:4,

107:14, 111:12,

Maritime - 3:7, 4:4,

147:1

Longer - 133:25,

Looked - 48:14,

72:18, 78:17,

244:25

145:14

6:6, 6:11, 9:12, 10:15, 12:7, 15:1, 15:5, 15:10, 15:13, 15:23, 16:3, 70:7, 72:6, 72:8, 116:13, 127:22, 128:3, 130:12, 132:10, 132:15, 205:17, 206:3, 216:14, 217:17, 217:22, 218:8, 221:4, 230:1, 234:13, 238:1 Maritimes - 10:8, 11:21, 12:4 Market - 10:4, 10:6, 10:24, 12:16, 41:22, 204:13, 216:9, 220:11 Marketer - 202:19, 216:8, 223:14, 225:13, 227:9 **Marketers - 221:7**, 222:23, 228:13 Marketing - 1:12, 1:16, 2:5, 71:17, 216:5, 219:10, 221:14, 222:11, 223:17, 233:3, 247:18 Markets - 215:25, 244:6 **Married -** 104:13 **MASSIE - 170:10 Massive -** 52:3 **Material -** 6:23, 7:5, 43:19, 47:10, 51:17, 67:7, 93:2, 93:10, 123:21, 123:25, 152:11, 163:5, 180:16, 180:17, 180:20, 241:1, 241:3 Materialize - 123:1 Materializes - 39:1 8, 109:23, 129:14 Materially - 47:25, 56:14, 109:15 **Materials - 189:10** Math - 182:4, 182:5, 243:1 Mature - 25:11, 238:14 **Maximize -** 8:16, 8:25. 9:3 Maximum - 8:19, 26:25, 32:23, 43:9, 43:12 Means - 140:20, 141:8, 152:19,

241:22, 242:18, 243:10, 243:22 **Meant - 246:22 Measure - 146:22**, 146:24 **Measures - 47:16** Mechanics - 31:6 Mechanism - 109:2 , 209:14, 225:1 Meet - 2:5, 67:6, 96:10, 108:20, 108:22, 117:11, 141:25, 148:8, 149:6, 219:4, 219:9, 220:24 **Meetings** - 38:21, 85:5, 85:6, 88:5, 219:9, 219:11, 234:24 Megawatt - 120:19, 120:24, 121:11, 121:18, 148:23 Megawatts - 4:8, 4:10, 8:20, 8:21, 115:23, 123:21, 125:5, 125:7, 125:8, 125:12, 133:24, 134:12, 134:24, 136:17, 137:23, 139:14, 140:9, 140:16, 141:1, 141:23 **Melt -** 39:9 **Member -** 211:19, 213:13, 213:25, 214:1 **Members -** 215:21 **Mentions - 111:14 Message -** 100:3 **Messages - 149:21 Metal -** 50:1, 50:8 Method - 209:12 Methodology - 195 :15 Metric - 172:4 Metrics - 28:1 Milk - 104:5 Million - 18:23, 19:13, 20:6, 21:4, 96:25, 132:6, 132:8, 161:7, 161:9, 161:11, 161:13, 168:2, 172:19, 173:21, 174:20, 175:25, 176:15, 177:23, 180:5, 180:14, 181:8, 182:3,

182:22, 192:25,

194:12, 195:1,

195:8

Mindset - 72:16 Mini - 243:25 Minimal - 143:18, 232:17 **Minimize - 54:21** Minimum - 32:24, 33:4, 33:6, 33:11, 33:20, 33:24, 34:14, 35:5, 36:12, 38:17, 133:19, 133:22, 134:20, 135:7, 135:11, 135:15, 136:5, 136:16, 137:7, 137:8, 232:16 Minus - 174:4, 176:7, 190:4, 242:18, 244:6 Misheard - 210:2 **Miss -** 113:19 Misunderstood - 2 35:10 **Mitigate - 153:20** Mix - 6:10, 39:13, 39:20, 157:23 **Mode -** 58:18 Model - 205:2, 209:11, 210:19, 244:5 Modelled - 55:4 Modernization - 18 9:6 **Modified -** 96:14, 118:24, 119:22 **Monday -** 145:4 Money - 96:23, 151:2, 176:18 **Monies - 175:9** Monitor - 94:14, 97:19, 156:23 Month - 13:10, 49:17, 86:14 Monthly - 4:6, 10:3 Months - 20:17, 33:13, 86:7, 120:1, 161:16 Morning - 71:20, 86:15, 122:23, 124:16, 194:11, 195:8, 219:21, 219:22, 249:16, 249:22

178:11, 183:8, 183:12 **Movement - 182:11** Movements - 175: Moving - 31:18, 55:11, 78:21, 78:25, 80:18, 111:21, 177:22 Much - 1:6, 4:16, 4:17, 13:25, 15:13, 17:9, 50:18, 50:20, 51:13, 51:23, 63:5, 63:23, 64:8, 74:11, 77:5, 106:2, 109:22, 123:20, 129:15, 130:9, 149:17, 156:15, 233:14, 236:4, 243:8 Multi - 189:9 Multiple - 76:22, 77:3 **Muskrat - 26:7**, 27:20, 62:21, 64:6, 223:7, 242:16, 247:14, 247:17, 247:18 Myriad - 30:12 Ν

**N1 -** 99:19, 137:15 **Nalcor -** 1:11, 1:16, 2:4, 20:13, 20:16, 22:18, 22:23, 24:16, 24:23, 195:4, 195:9, 196:7, 196:16, 199:16, 201:1, 201:23, 202:5, 202:10, 202:22, 205:18, 206:1, 208:2, 208:9, 208:20, 214:20, 217:24, 221:15, 221:22, 223:6, 223:10, 225:18, 225:21, 226:11, 227:1, 227:13, 228:5, 233:3, 237:18, 237:20, 238:9, 245:1 Nameplate - 102:2 **Natural - 221:3 NB** - 27:14, 73:10, 212:9 **Near -** 13:17, 54:9, 54:14, 55:4, 160:6 Necessary - 60:23, 124:7, 126:1,

Needed - 12:18, 63:15, 64:6, 64:21, 64:25, 118:24, 154:12, 207:8 Neighbors - 114:6 Neighbouring - 21 2:14 Neighbours - 10:8, 27:23, 66:21 **NEM -** 218:5, 222:25, 223:15, 225:18, 225:21, 225:22, 229:2, 232:18, 233:19, 244:21, 244:25, 246:15 Nems - 218:20, 219:16, 219:24, 220:3, 221:4, 224:6, 224:11, 225:5, 227:10, 228:23, 231:21, 234:1, 235:19 Net - 233:14, 233:15 Nevertheless - 194 :21 New - 4:2, 4:22, 9:20, 13:12, 14:18, 16:19, 17:24, 17:25, 42:9, 47:20, 63:6, 73:25, 77:20, 83:4, 147:3, 166:23, 180:12, 200:18, 203:16, 203:17, 209:20, 209:23, 209:24, 210:2, 210:7, 210:10, 210:20, 211:1, 217:4, 217:16, 228:20, 245:5, 245:10, 248:15 Newfoundland - 8: 18, 83:22, 84:4, 84:5, 84:6, 156:5, 157:10, 168:19, 206:24, 213:3, 215:16, 218:7, 239:25, 240:14, 241:18 **Newly - 248:1** Night - 138:1 Nine - 46:4, 89:25, 90:24, 181:7

130:10, 158:3

:22

Necessitated - 177

Mouth - 101:5,

141:18, 248:14

88:21, 116:12,

154:19, 174:2,

178:6, 183:4,

188:6, 225:22,

225:24, 238:17

**Moved -** 175:11,

**Move -** 18:16, 80:1,

**Nineties -** 211:25

NLH - 133:13,

237:7

**NLSO - 200:18**, 201:9, 201:19, 202:4, 202:9, 203:16, 204:3, 205:6, 205:19, 205:22, 206:6, 206:14, 207:4, 209:3, 234:21, 235:3, 235:11, 235:22, 236:2, 236:5, 236:12, 236:15, 236:16, 237:1 **Nobody -** 151:21 **Non -** 71:14, 113:7, 113:18, 114:3, 114:12, 114:14, 117:1, 117:3, 117:7, 118:7, 134:13, 140:20, 141:3, 141:6, 182:2, 185:3, 185:6, 186:4, 237:1 Normal - 23:25, 148:6 **Normally - 24:2**, 145:3, 171:25 North - 99:16. 209:11, 212:24, 214:17 Nostradamus - 14 8:20 Note - 112:21 **Noted -** 10:3. 10:18, 100:19, 145:11, 162:9 Notification - 205: 13 **Notify - 205:12 Nova -** 27:14, 28:25, 30:15, 73:10, 73:20, 73:25, 74:2, 74:4, 206:2, 210:14, 212:15, 212:18, 213:8, 213:23, 216:15, 216:23, 217:2, 217:14, 224:20, 230:2 **November -** 46:15, 47:23, 156:9, 180:18 **NP -** 133:13, 144:7 Numbers - 32:14, 93:19, 93:22, 94:7, 94:8. 95:10 Nutshell - 226:4

0

**O&M** - 24:1, 30:23, 78:8, 82:3, 82:5,

84:21, 191:17, 192:3, 193:6, 193:9, 193:11, 193:13, 196:13, 196:20 O'bien - 165:21 **Object - 197:16 Objective -** 143:16, 246:12 Obligation - 29:10, 200:12 Observation - 119: Observations - 14 3:17, 150:7 **Occasion - 124:9** Occasions - 103:1 Occur - 64:19, 87:17, 124:11, 138:13, 145:25, 146:12, 148:15, 148:16, 229:19 **Occurred -** 45:14, 145:16, 245:14 Occurring - 154:6 Offends - 208:9 Offer - 212:4, 213:1, 214:25, 231:22 Officer - 208:17 Official - 7:6, 249:9 **Offline -** 58:11, 58:13, 59:1, 60:2, 102:6 Offset - 12:13, 72:3, 72:4, 128:6, 160:20 Offsetting - 70:8, 146:12 Often - 25:25, 92:7, 180:15 Oil - 243:18 **Older -** 94:7 **Omission - 152:7** On/Off - 235:12 Ones - 46:25, 62:25, 81:22, 179:14, 179:15, 219:12 Ongoing - 63:24, 156:14, 174:17, 246:16 Online - 18:2, 115:18, 115:19, 126:12, 128:20, 139:13, 140:10, 140:18, 141:24,

146:6, 146:8,

146:10, 146:14

Open - 24:1, 203:3,

210:5, 211:5, 211:20, 211:22, 212:3, 212:12, 212:24, 213:2, 213:15, 216:1, 216:15, 217:2, 217:15 **Opening - 144:8**, 159:10 **Operate -** 38:17, 47:22, 50:21, 91:24, 92:2, 99:15, 100:25, 102:5, 120:24, 124:13, 151:6, 151:10, 155:25 **Operated - 118:12** Operating - 32:23, 47:11, 94:23, 103:5, 105:9, 107:5, 107:10, 112:21, 115:22, 117:20, 118:18, 118:23, 119:22, 120:4, 120:8, 121:8, 133:10, 133:16, 133:25, 135:12, 140:23, 146:17, 147:7, 147:18, 151:1, 152:2, 155:24, 159:20 Operation - 47:17, 47:24, 50:17, 51:15, 51:16, 52:8, 53:5, 53:8, 53:11, 91:13, 94:15, 96:14, 97:10, 99:3, 99:9, 160:21, 179:1 Operational - 38:1 8, 83:16, 85:2, 85:9, 99:13, 99:25, 106:22, 106:23, 109:14, 123:5, 126:5, 147:16, 149:18, 247:19 Operations - 84:13 , 179:5, 187:20 **Operator - 210:22**, 211:1 **Operators - 30:15**, 50:19, 72:10, 123:4, 126:14 **Operators' -** 30:14 **Operator's - 103:5 Opinion -** 102:12, 152:16 Opportunities - 28: 5, 132:15, 161:23, 219:11, 220:16

146:13, 199:11, 227:24, 229:7, 232:19 **Optic - 227:8 Optics - 227:20 Optimization - 247** .19 **Optimize - 223:15**, 226:15 **Option -** 63:2, 63:3, 72:23, 114:14, 144:25, 165:10, 198:5, 198:14 **Options -** 67:13, 110:21 **Orange - 39:4**, 39:8, 42:11 Order - 67:23, 72:21, 104:17, 105:24, 117:18, 123:11, 123:13, 145:1, 207:24, 211:10 **Orders -** 22:9 Original - 53:7 Originally - 178:3 Originates - 218:1 **Otherwise -** 60:14, 226:25 Ours - 216:18, 241:19 **Ourselves - 27:23**, 37:2, 66:20, 231:13 Outage - 45:1, 74:16, 74:18, 74:24, 75:7, 75:10, 77:13, 78:3, 83:23, 92:23, 107:14, 143:2, 145:14, 145:21, 146:13, 157:17, 205:5, 205:9. 205:13 Outages - 74:14, 77:5, 77:15, 79:10, 79:16, 79:21, 80:15, 81:23, 81:24, 103:3, 103:6, 108:4, 144:2, 144:3 Outcome - 152:17, 155:17, 156:11 **Outcomes -** 40:19 Outs - 209:9 Overcharge - 199: 3, 199:6, 199:7, 199:12 Overhaul - 68:22, 68:23, 68:25, 69:25

44:20, 77:11, 88:21,

94:17, 137:17,

Overhauls - 70:15 Overlapping - 103: 12 Overly - 17:8 Overview - 9:14 Own - 12:12, 77:9, 77:10, 77:13, 81:19, 84:1, 184:6, 199:19, 209:6, 209:7, 209:8, 222:25, 231:14 Owned - 245:7 Owns - 245:2, 248:10 Oxen - 64:17

# Р

Package - 103:8 Packaging - 189:7 Panel - 22:8, 190:21, 191:1 **Parallel - 156:11** Parent - 198:14. 206:15 Parse - 101:8, 105:3 **Parsing - 103:20** Particles - 55:25 Particularly - 189:2 Parties - 27:17, 27:18, 48:2, 49:14, 66:12, 67:5, 67:17, 93:18, 95:2, 99:23, 100:1, 111:5, 111:24, 151:5, 157:4, 157:6, 163:5, 163:14, 229:20 **Partner - 12:3**, 226:10 Partnership - 225: 22 Parts - 53:2 **Partway - 34:10** Party - 25:13, 29:19, 107:15, 157:5, 198:11, 227:21, 227:22,

227:24, 228:3, 229:8 **Past -** 34:24, 77:10, 90:16, 129:15, 209:19

**Path -** 73:24, 110:6, 110:8

Patrols - 78:10 Pay - 12:10, 24:11, 24:16, 31:2, 31:7, 157:15, 198:6, 198:16, 200:12, 217:2, 217:14

**Oppose - 197:13** 

**Opposed -** 12:6,

July 17, 2018
Paying - 25:17,
198:13, 217:5, 217:18, 217:21,
218:9
<b>Payment -</b> 24:24,
200:10
<b>Payments - 24:23</b>
<b>Payroll -</b> 209:9
<b>Peak -</b> 4:8, 4:11,
9:1, 11:5
<b>Peaking -</b> 10:9,
53:6, 53:9
<b>PEI -</b> 210:7,
210:10, 212:16
<b>Pending -</b> 4:20,
4:21, 85:15, 88:18, 131:21, 148:8,
153:18, 163:2
Penstock - 44:15,
45:1, 45:7, 45:15,
45:22, 45:24,
47:13, 47:19, 48:6,
48:12, 48:16, 49:6,
49:9, 49:18, 49:22,
49:23, 49:24, 50:6,
50:7, 50:14, 50:24,
52:5, 52:8, 52:16,
54:16, 181:6,
181:9, 181:10,
181:18, 181:19, 181:25, 182:1
Penstocks - 44:22,
51:3, 52:4
<b>People -</b> 25:11,
83:25, 85:13,
88:15, 109:3,
145:13, 148:13, 157:21, 184:6,
157:21, 184:6,
195:5, 213:18, 220:14, 222:19,
220.14, 222.19, 227:16
<b>Perceived -</b> 144:14
Perfect - 91:14
Performance - 31:
20, 43:23, 44:2,
44:5, 44:9, 44:13,
47:15, 53:15,
53:19, 53:23,
55:12, 56:25, 59:5,
59:7, 59:23, 74:9, 80:2, 80:3, 82:22,
82:24, 113:19,
113:22, 136:11,
137:16, 139:15,
139:17, 233:25,
234:4, 235:7
Performed - 207:1
1 Porforming 56:3
<b>Performing -</b> 56:3, 59:17, 81:20
<b>Perhaps -</b> 22:4,
<del> </del>

```
132:17, 139:4,
172:18, 208:9,
222:12, 239:5,
249:18
Period - 36:16,
36:20, 36:23, 37:6,
37:18, 37:19,
124:19, 129:11,
156:10
Periods - 36:22
Permit - 95:18
Person - 194:5,
199:16, 221:5,
222:5
Perspective - 54:1
5, 62:22, 63:13,
63:16, 63:17,
63:19, 64:11, 64:12,
64:20, 64:23,
71:12, 71:13, 90:6,
96:11, 104:21,
121:19, 126:19,
129:13, 137:4,
149:16, 152:13,
152:23, 164:14,
227:8, 229:10
Phase - 150:22
Phenomenon - 53:
7, 53:9
Philosophy - 90:11
, 99:3, 99:10,
99:13, 99:25,
106:14, 106:22,
106:23, 109:14
Phrase - 11:10
Phrased - 159:15
Physically - 124:24
Picture - 184:17
Pieces - 146:5
Place - 3:23, 4:3,
9:15, 12:24, 14:5,
16:20, 17:2, 19:1,
24:9, 28:2, 30:10,
30:12, 47:16,
111:16, 134:1,
148:14, 149:9,
164:15, 196:16,
205:3, 248:3,
248:20
Plan - 12:24, 26:8,
41:16, 54:12,
67:16, 77:18,
84:12, 84:22,
90:19, 92:12,
108:9, 109:7,
119:21, 125:18,
163:25, 193:1,
212:22, 232:16,
234:25, 236:3,
247:19, 247:22
```

**Planned - 55:2**,

```
59:8, 77:15, 79:10,
79:11, 79:16, 79:20,
80:15, 103:3,
175:7, 178:19,
219:12
Planning - 26:2,
28:1, 40:23, 41:17,
54:15, 62:21,
63:13, 63:16,
63:17, 63:18,
67:15, 69:3, 93:19,
94:3, 106:6, 110:1,
137:4, 179:25,
203:18, 203:22,
203:24, 204:4,
219:19, 234:23
Plans - 62:1,
162:14, 162:18
Plants - 230:4
Pleased - 49:1,
159:9, 225:10
Pms - 78:8
Points - 76:14
Pole - 73:6, 82:15
Poles - 82:16
Police - 208:17,
213:15
Political - 208:13
Pond - 64:17,
185:14
Ponding - 11:16,
11:20, 233:12
Pop - 38:25
Port - 75:6, 75:21
Portion - 48:10,
49:23, 50:6, 53:12,
53:22, 77:16,
238:5, 238:6,
238:12
Position - 140:11,
144:9, 145:22,
249:3, 249:5
Positive - 239:17,
243:20
Possibilities - 62:1
Possibility - 113:7,
159:3, 212:25
Post - 26:7, 27:20,
62:20
Posted - 203:6
Potential - 91:12,
94:14, 161:19
Power - 1:12, 9:5,
16:16, 16:19,
18:21, 27:14,
27:15, 28:25,
30:15, 63:20,
64:13, 64:17,
73:10, 73:11, 73:20,
74:2, 75:10, 83:22,
```

84:5, 156:6,
157:10, 168:19, 196:18, 205:18,
196:18, 205:18,
Z 10.Z0. Z 11.Z.
212:9, 215:12,
215:15, 215:16,
216:23, 217:3,
217:16, 218:6,
218:16, 225:4,
229:25, 230:3, 235:21, 239:25,
240:14, 241:18,
244:20, 246:15,
248:1, 248:2
Practice - 50:17
Practices - 99:2,
99:9. 140:25
Pre - 114:21
Prefer - 52:2,
158:21, 206:16,
249:15
Preferable - 226:25
Preference - 208:1,
208:19
Preferential - 208:
19 <b>Profes</b> 164:11
Prefers - 164:11 Preliminary - 62:22
Preparation - 196:
6
<b>Prepare -</b> 39:13
Prepared - 196:2,
196:14, 237:18
<b>Present -</b> 6:20,
21:3, 78:2, 110:19,
165:16, 220:23,
233:21, 247:23
Presented - 195:17
, 196:5, 197:6, 199:17, 229:23,
199:17, 229:23,
234:17
Pressure - 208:10
Presumption - 244
:23 Prevalent - 209:12
Prevent - 144:3
Prevented - 146:6
<b>Prevents -</b> 146:10
<b>Previous -</b> 35:12,
57:7, 189:1
Previously - 46:19,
48:8, 105:23,
177:21, 181:11,
218:5
<b>Price -</b> 7:8, 7:10,
8:2, 8:5, 8:7, 12:16,
12:19, 19:6, 24:4,
71:23, 71:24,
189:23, 220:24,
230:22, 230:23, 242:1, 243:16
272.1, 24J.10

400.47
189:17
<b>Pricing -</b> 207:25,
233:12
<b>Principles -</b> 2:6 <b>Prior -</b> 2:19, 72:8, 80:23, 87:23,
<b>Prior -</b> 2:19, 72:8,
80:23, 87:23,
92:24, 106:9,
114:11, 128:3,
128:10
Priorities - 88:20
Prioritize - 81:21
<b>Priority -</b> 205:24
<b>Private -</b> 198:10,
229:10
Probabilistic - 37:1
7
Problem - 16:21
<b>Problems -</b> 80:14,
117:12
<b>Proceed -</b> 224:3
Processes - 17:1
<b>Procure -</b> 67:12,
71:19, 72:3
Procurement - 69:
3, 218:16, 224:10,
229:15
<b>Produce -</b> 162:2
Production - 37:4,
37:5, 102:24,
101.0 105.01
104:8, 165:24,
166:4, 166:5,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8, 235:13, 237:2
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 <b>Profitability -</b> 236: 24
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 <b>Profitability -</b> 236:
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit</b> - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 <b>Profitability</b> - 236: 24 <b>Profits</b> - 244:25
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 <b>Profitability -</b> 236: 24 <b>Profits -</b> 244:25 <b>Program -</b> 78:15, 82:15, 167:19
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 <b>Profit -</b> 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 <b>Profitability -</b> 236: 24 <b>Profits -</b> 244:25 <b>Program -</b> 78:15, 82:15, 167:19
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7, 187:25, 188:1,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7, 187:25, 188:1,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7, 187:25, 188:1, 188:16, 188:21,
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7, 187:25, 188:1, 188:16, 188:21, 238:1
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7, 187:25, 188:1, 188:16, 188:21, 238:1 Projections - 3:11
166:4, 166:5, 166:9, 167:6, 219:18, 234:23 Profit - 235:8, 235:13, 237:2 Profitability - 236: 24 Profits - 244:25 Program - 78:15, 82:15, 167:19 Programs - 189:4 Progress - 238:11 Prohibited - 226:2 0, 226:22, 227:3 Prohibitive - 210:2 5, 244:1 Project - 52:13, 56:6, 56:10, 56:13, 57:23, 57:25, 68:18, 172:17, 174:18, 180:17, 180:25, 184:25, 185:4, 186:5, 187:4, 187:7, 187:25, 188:1, 188:16, 188:21, 238:1

182:4, 182:6, 182:10, 182:16, 185:2, 189:9 **Propane - 243:11** Proration - 20:17, 25:9 **Protect - 37:2** Protection - 179:2 **Provide - 3:23**, 4:22, 10:7, 29:8, 95:11, 110:10, 154:8, 160:3, 160:15, 163:11, 165:3, 220:21, 233:19, 240:4, 240:20 **Provided - 22:18,** 31:1, 31:22, 56:8, 102:16, 164:25 **Providing -** 67:17, 102:23, 102:24, 121:25, 126:14, 156:21, 163:22 **Province -** 215:19, 223:4, 223:9, 226:14, 229:7 **Province's - 203:1** Provincial - 213:19 226:11 Provision - 99:23 **Proxy -** 116:5, 116:21 **Prudence - 107:14**, 150:3, 150:21, 159:17 **Prudent - 10:1**, 150:8 **PUB -** 139:24, 160:7 Public - 239:22, 249:8 **Pull -** 139:7, 238:23 Pulled - 238:24 Purchase - 2:14, 2:15, 225:4, 230:10, 230:24, 230:25, 231:1, 234:13 Purchased - 229:1 4, 230:2 Purchases - 1:12, 1:15, 2:4, 2:25, 3:2, 3:8, 3:9, 4:6, 6:20, 9:12, 10:4, 10:5, 10:14, 10:22, 10:25, 11:6, 15:5, 15:13, 15:14, 18:21, 19:7, 19:9, 20:22, 132:10,

224:10, 224:11, 224:17, 224:19, 224:21, 225:2, 225:11, 229:18, 231:19 Purchasing - 2:19, 7:15, 231:3 **Purple - 39:3**, 39:11 Pursue - 27:5, 28:5, 220:20 **Pursued - 227:3 Pursuing - 126:20** Push - 16:20 **Pushback - 198:18 Puts - 206:19 Putting - 17:16**, 92:19, 180:13, 199:11, 216:21 Q

**Q2 -** 162:3 Quantified - 143:2 Quantities - 148:9 **Quantity - 17:16**, 49:21, 103:10, 138:21, 189:18 **Quarterly - 163:24**, 164:9 Quebec - 212:16, 212:22, 212:24, 214:15, 214:17, 221:19, 222:3 Questioning - 132: **Queue -** 207:22 Quick - 9:14, 140:18, 141:23, 142:1, 166:2 **Quickly - 140:13**,

### R

145:10

**R5** - 160:6

**R5's -** 13:18 **Radically - 106:15 Radio -** 76:25 Raised - 113:3, 168:19 **Raises - 143:15 Raising - 119:1 Ramp - 12:11** Ran - 150:8 Range - 5:23. 40:18, 50:20, 51:10, 52:20, 90:2, 90:24, 96:25 Rare - 39:22 **Ratchet -** 113:23

Rate - 137:22, 146:11, 190:8, 241:12, 242:7, 243:5 Rated - 57:4, 58:9, 60:3 Rates - 25:15, 25:16, 25:25, 190:9, 204:20, 242:19 Rate's - 25:21 Rather - 12:5. 228:20, 239:4 Rationale - 200:2. 211:17 **Re** - 34:4, 34:9, 46:21, 148:25, 149:3, 162:11, 210:25 **Readiness - 78:15 Reads - 248:16 Ready -** 58:3, 129:22, 141:9 **Reality - 104:11**, 223:4 Realization - 153:2 **Realize - 160:9 Realized - 210:24** Realm - 37:2, 198:20 Reason - 91:16, 104:2, 104:3, 105:16, 107:8, 125:2, 183:16, 184:19, 226:24 Reasonable - 150: 16, 195:25 Reasons - 74:23, 104:8, 104:10, 131:24, 149:4, 178:18, 183:16, 226:8 Recapture - 3:7, 3:10, 4:7, 6:14, 7:2, 7:12, 8:5, 8:8, 8:23, 9:5, 14:13, 14:19, 14:23, 15:7, 15:20, 16:8, 16:11, 16:16, 16:19, 17:10, 38:1 **Receive - 18:25.** 149:21 **Received -** 47:23, 100:4, 152:10, 207:23 Receiving - 7:1 Recent - 32:2, 45:13, 56:24, 85:4 Reciprocal - 29:10

212:17, 212:19, 212:21, 214:4, 214:23, 215:24, 216:4, 216:12 Recognize - 110:9 Recommencement - 3:21 Recommendation - 110:25, 111:2, 111:4, 111:6 Recommendations - 51:6. 82:2, 100:7, 100:16, 110:3 Recommended - 1 62:11 Reconcile - 160:23 Reconsider - 134:7 , 155:16 Recovered - 90:17, 200:15 Recovery - 144:2 Recurrence - 49:3 **Reduce -** 27:8. 127:18, 144:2 **Reduced -** 47:25, 51:15, 131:19, 194:12 **Reducing - 25:15,** 128:22, 206:8 Reduction - 53:24, 146:16, 167:6, 243:13 Reestablish - 154: 12 Reevaluate - 154:1 2 Referenced - 104:1 References - 169:2 Referred - 237:8 **Refers - 115:7 Refiled -** 143:11 **Reflect -** 34:10, 195:24, 241:12 Reflecting - 37:13, 37:14 Reflection - 37:24, 94:11, 125:20 Reflective - 94:6 **Reflects - 34:13** Refurbished - 48:9 , 52:9 Refurbishing - 66: Refurbishment - 5 2:15, 178:13, 178:15, 181:21, 189:6 Reciprocity - 212:2 Refuse - 197:5, 198:5

Regards - 27:25. 28:9, 109:20, 127:23, 156:16 Regime - 24:2, 211:20 **Region -** 76:11 **Regions -** 75:16, 75:17, 75:18 Registry - 213:5 Regular - 240:21 Regularly - 84:11, 86:1, 86:4 Regulating - 135:1 Regulator - 224:18 , 235:11 Regulators - 213:1 Regulatory - 85:14 Reinstate - 56:14, 87:18 Reintegrated - 211 Reinvesting - 66:2 **Relation - 191:17** Relationship - 226: Release - 201:21 **Released - 142:25** Reliable - 52:8, 68:12 Rely - 241:18, 241:25, 242:5 **Relying -** 142:13 **Remain - 205:14** Remaining - 113:1 **Remedy -** 198:10, 199:3 **Removed -** 64:23, 125:15, 134:3 **Removing - 53:11**, 120:5, 120:6 Renegotiate - 222: Renegotiation - 22 1:21 **Reoccur -** 37:19 Reopened - 46:16 Repair - 65:11, 80:16 **Repairs - 45:13**, 51:2, 59:8, 60:11, 60:23, 68:14, 142:15, 205:11 **Replace - 56:10**, 63:5. 80:16. 102:15, 114:1 **Replaced - 46:12**, 113:15

, 212:11, 212:13,

Replacement - 65:

7, 65:11, 83:9

**Reply - 163:4** Report - 31:23, 32:3, 38:24, 47:4, 47:11, 47:24, 49:16, 62:1, 62:8, 65:4, 65:7, 66:10, 85:11, 89:19, 89:24, 93:23, 98:16, 100:19, 108:15, 109:1, 111:14, 112:7, 119:9, 119:22, 143:14, 150:3, 164:13, 165:1, 170:5, 171:9, 172:20, 188:4 **Reported - 176:17** Reporting - 83:23, 103:25, 109:2 **Reports - 86:15**, 87:6, 87:8, 165:6, 219:19 Repower - 63:4 Repowering - 63:1, 66:1 Representation - 8 5:12 Request - 17:17, 206:4, 206:6, 206:8, 206:21, 207:10, 207:12 Requested - 240:2 Requests - 17:3, 207:22 **Require - 18:1.** 97:23, 127:4, 187:12, 189:13, 207:7, 242:1 Required - 52:4, 52:15, 62:20, 63:19, 65:20, 66:3, 66:5, 88:17, 88:19, 91:5, 91:13, 95:18, 96:5, 120:19, 137:14, 141:25, 217:1, 217:14, 218:20, 229:22, 249:6 Requirement - 10: 3, 18:18, 24:22, 61:25, 113:17, 121:9, 124:8, 192:7, 193:3 Requirements - 9: 8, 24:7, 128:23, 155:16, 156:20, 156:24 **Requires - 97:18**, 110:19, 124:14 Requisition - 220:5

**Resell - 12:16 Reserves -** 27:12, 28:9, 29:7, 41:22, 89:18, 91:10, 91:11, 94:24, 115:17, 121:22, 124:21, 139:12, 142:17, 143:1, 236:8 Reservoir - 43:10 Reservoirs - 11:24 Residential - 241:1 7, 242:15 **Resist -** 200:10 Resistance - 195:2 2 **Resort -** 72:22 **Resource - 219:18** Resources - 179:3, 184:4, 184:9, 185:14 **Respect - 18:14**, 204:15, 204:22, 228:5 **Respond - 240:7**, 240:9 Responded - 240:6 **Response - 100:12** , 100:14, 109:12, 112:7, 140:7 Responses - 2:7, 131:9 Responsibility - 20 5:7, 205:14 Responsible - 197: 9, 205:7, 205:10, 236:17 **Restore -** 140:12, 145:10 Restrict - 96:4 Restricted - 201:18 202:21 Restriction - 120:5 , 120:7 Restrictions - 215: 18, 215:22, 231:13, 234:8 **Restricts -** 215:13 **Result -** 9:4, 9:7, 18:20, 20:20, 20:22, 25:17, 44:24, 77:5, 100:23, 109:23, 109:24, 111:7, 131:12, 148:21, 153:25, 155:17, 163:7, 202:17. 233:11, 247:20

Resulted - 30:7,

Resulting - 76:18

**Results - 50:24**,

53:10, 182:2

83:15 **RESUME -** 133:2 Retrospective - 14 9:15 **Revenue - 12:6**, 18:17, 24:7, 24:22, 192:6, 192:7, 193:2, 234:6, 235:14 **Revenues - 25:13 Reverse - 224:19** Reviewable - 224:1 Reviewed - 49:1. 98:16, 188:25, 189:1, 229:16, 245:2, 248:10 Reviewing - 116:15 **Revised -** 20:1, 195:7 RFI - 123:19, 144:12, 148:19, 218:11, 231:17 **Rfis -** 131:9, 221:11 **Rich -** 124:22, 125:10, 126:19 **Ride - 37:5 Riding - 36:13 Ring - 77:3** Risk - 156:25, 157:17, 178:14, 178:20, 183:17 **Risks -** 85:21, 179:10 **Road -** 73:9, 162:17 **Robust -** 187:4 **Role -** 153:23, 203:17 **Rolling - 49:15 Rolls - 103:7** Room - 119:5, 134:22, 157:6, 157:21 **Rooms - 243:24 Root -** 47:4, 47:11 **Rough -** 47:12, 47:17, 47:24, 50:17, 51:15, 53:4, 53:8, 53:11 **Rounded - 79:1** Rsps - 106:12 Rule - 142:21 **Ruled - 63:7 Rules - 116:10** Run - 27:25, 71:5. 71:25, 89:24, 90:21, 91:2, 91:3, 106:6, 106:7, 106:14, 144:18,

**Running - 72:12**, 72:21, 111:1, 124:6, 124:19, 232:4 **Rural - 76:12** S Sacrificed - 61:15 Sacrifices - 59:11 **SAFI -** 84:17 **SAIDI -** 74:11, 75:14, 76:15, 77:1, 80:4, 80:6, 80:20, 84:16, 84:17 **SAIFI - 76:15**, 76:25, 80:20, 84:16 Sake - 184:1 Sale - 221:23 **Sales -** 215:25, 235:9, 236:13 **Sat -** 220:8, 237:11 **Satisfied -** 122:19, 213:24 **Satisfy - 9:8,** 120:14, 228:2 Satisfying - 104:3 **Savings - 160:8**, 182:2, 194:21, 232:17 **Savvy - 157:7 Saw -** 44:2, 48:12, 49:22, 50:7, 80:3, 108:17, 139:16, 181:10 **Scale -** 243:1, 244:11 **Scenario -** 18:19, 24:6 **Schedule -** 60:12, 166:1 **Scope -** 236:14 Scotia - 27:14, 28:25, 30:15, 73:10, 73:20, 73:25, 74:2, 74:4, 206:3, 210:14, 212:15, 212:18, 213:8, 213:24, 216:23, 217:2, 217:14, 224:20, 230:2 **Scotia's -** 216:15 **Screen - 177:22 Scroll - 135:14**, 136:7, 139:10 **Seal -** 56:12 Search - 41:22 Season - 10:9,

78:19, 131:21

**Seasons - 4:21** 

Second - 46:15,

113:25, 115:19,

116:6, 116:8, 116:22, 139:2, 139:22, 156:11, 159:16 **Security -** 201:13, 201:15 Seeing - 7:14, 17:3, 50:22, 53:10, 79:2, 79:18, 155:18 Seek - 109:16 Seen - 36:15, 46:14, 46:16, 50:5, 51:16, 52:14, 108:4, 237:5 **Sell -** 205:18, 206:2, 216:9, 221:16, 235:21, 236:8 **Sellers -** 215:15 **Selling -** 215:13, 221:16, 221:18, 222:13, 223:6 Sells - 236:12 **Sensitive -** 202:17 **Sent -** 50:10, 119:9, 119:10 Sentences - 139:1 **Separate - 112:16**, 139:19, 164:13, 165:2, 210:22, 218:2, 223:13 **Separated -** 193:12 **September -** 46:10. 181:11 **Sequence -** 36:15, 39:18, 40:12, 40:17, 40:18 **Series - 91:2 Serious - 152:7 Seriously -** 54:22, 153:10 **Serve -** 39:16, 120:16 Served - 207:20, 208:21 **Service -** 3:4, 6:15, 7:13, 8:9, 20:17, 38:1, 44:15, 45:23, 50:14, 68:7, 72:6, 72:9, 125:16, 128:4, 178:2, 178:3, 190:12, 194:17, 204:21, 205:18, 212:4, 212:5. 213:2. 214:8, 214:16, 214:25, 219:23, 232:24, 241:21, 241:24 Services - 1:17,

247:7

July 17, 2018
1:20, 227:14  Serving - 76:23, 163:10  Set - 77:14, 96:9, 104:24, 147:3, 163:8, 208:18, 210:17, 234:5  Sets - 76:25  Settle - 198:15  Settlement - 18:20  Seven - 182:17, 182:18, 210:23  Several - 91:4, 131:20, 131:23, 218:23, 222:9, 222:14, 240:3  Shall - 136:10  Share - 188:20, 204:10  Shared - 202:22, 235:8  Shareholder - 226:
Shareholder - 226: 17
Sharing - 73:15, 73:19, 73:23, 74:1, 114:6, 246:14, 247:11, 247:13 Shift - 93:2, 93:10, 127:25, 154:10, 180:5 Shifting - 240:1 Shorter - 36:21, 207:9 Shouldn't - 195:6 Show - 111:4,
139:8, 188:24,
188:25, 197:19, 204:14
<b>Shows -</b> 33:5,
169:1, 172:19 <b>Shut -</b> 124:18,
124:23, 124:24,
125:4, 125:11, 127:3, 141:18
Shutting - 125:20
<b>Side -</b> 16:21, 23:23,
218:7
<b>Sign -</b> 201:19 <b>Signed -</b> 14:6,
188:21, 212:11,
214:2, 214:7 Significant - 44:7,
51:22, 51:23,
55:24, 67:8, 68:18, 92:23, 106:8,
123:25, 127:25,
129:18, 148:24,
171:20, 191:18, 191:21
<b>Similar -</b> 16:12,
16:14, 46:10,

49:21, 51:1, 52:25,
61:12, 64:4, 64:14,
156:11, 189:2,
189:6, 215:9,
222:17, 222:20,
222:24, 227:12,
227:15 <b>Simplistic -</b> 66:17
Single - 111:15,
<b>Single -</b> 111:15, 113:14, 115:18,
224:23
Sister - 185:13
<b>Site -</b> 180:12, 187:12, 238:22
<b>Situation -</b> 114:11,
205:16, 205:23,
207:15, 235:8
<b>Situations</b> - 148:8
<b>Six -</b> 41:8, 110:20, 144:16
<b>Slide -</b> 243:1
Slight - 115:7,
195:3
<b>Slightly -</b> 80:6,
116:10 <b>Slow -</b> 78:25,
156:13
<b>Slowly -</b> 78:1
<b>Small -</b> 48:24,
76:23, 243:23
Snow - 39:9, 39:10
<b>Soften -</b> 17:2, 17:12
<b>Software -</b> 127:11
<b>Sold -</b> 233:9,
244:24, 246:10,
246:13 <b>Soldier's -</b> 185:14
<b>Solid -</b> 86:2,
232:10
<b>Solution -</b> 15:7,
51:22, 53:13,
63:24, 65:1,
103:25, 163:16, 224:2
Solutions - 52:7,
160:3, 163:20,
165:20, 196:9
Somewhat - 10:12,
18:23, 179:10 <b>Sorts -</b> 81:15,
245:5
<b>Sought -</b> 90:17
Sound - 231:22
Source 12:15
<b>Source -</b> 12:15, 220:10, 220:15,
223:23, 230:7,
247:15
O 1 400:40

**Sourced - 199:18** 

Sources - 3:6,

131:17
<b>South -</b> 214:17
Specialist - 227:17
Crecialists 227:17
Specialists - 227:1
6
Specification - 49:
25
Specifics - 61:10
<b>Speeding -</b> 208:18
<b>Spend -</b> 168:2,
178:7, 182:2
Chill 11:00 10:4
<b>Spill -</b> 11:23, 12:4
<b>Spit -</b> 66:7
<b>Split -</b> 5:18,
<b>Spiit -</b> 5. 16,
233:15, 234:16,
243:25
240.20
<b>Spot -</b> 221:5
Spread - 146:7
<b>Spring -</b> 11:22
Springboard - 163:
9
Stable - 122:7
Staff - 85:9, 145:2,
148:11, 148:12,
140.0 140.14
149:8, 149:14
Staffed - 149:17
Staffing - 147:18
Stailing - 147.10
<b>Stage -</b> 73:22
<b>Stage -</b> 73:22 <b>Staged -</b> 64:19
Staged - 04.19
Stages - 218:23
Stakeholder - 109:
16, 158:23, 162:21
Stakeholders - 109
<b>Stakeholders -</b> 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19
<b>Stakeholders -</b> 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19
<b>Stakeholders -</b> 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 <b>Stamina -</b> 191:7
<b>Stakeholders -</b> 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 <b>Stamina -</b> 191:7 <b>Stamped -</b> 207:23
<b>Stakeholders -</b> 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 <b>Stamina -</b> 191:7 <b>Stamped -</b> 207:23
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16 , 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5,
Stakeholders - 109 :6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16 , 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10, 123:5, 124:5,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10, 123:5, 124:5, 128:23, 130:9,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10, 123:5, 124:5, 128:23, 130:9, 130:19, 140:24,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10, 123:5, 124:5, 128:23, 130:9, 130:19, 140:24,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10, 123:5, 124:5, 128:23, 130:9, 130:19, 140:24, 147:19, 154:22,
Stakeholders - 109:6, 110:11, 162:19 Stamina - 191:7 Stamped - 207:23 Stand - 103:19, 105:10 Standalone - 112:1 7 Standard - 111:11, 111:15, 111:20, 115:3, 143:16, 144:1, 146:25, 147:4, 150:9, 150:13, 154:1, 191:24 Standards - 116:16, 160:4 Standby - 27:11, 42:2, 85:1, 89:1, 89:6, 89:15, 94:23, 97:4, 97:10, 100:25, 102:5, 103:6, 107:10, 123:5, 124:5, 128:23, 130:9, 130:19, 140:24,

**Start -** 3:20, 15:12, 19:20, 41:10, 70:13, 105:15, 107:5, 117:13, 117:17, 125:1, 135:23, 140:18, 141:23, 141:24, 142:1, 142:6, 142:16, 157:8, 218:19, 233:7 **Started -** 86:13, 92:15, 124:20, 161:19, 187:5, 188:8, 211:22, 221:16, 222:12 **Starting -** 8:19, 11:15, 30:7, 70:12, 140:7 **Starts -** 8:19, 68:19, 69:6, 69:20, 72:4, 128:7, 128:17, 244:20 **Statement - 106:24** , 109:18 **Station - 44:1.** 76:17, 178:13, 178:15, 183:24, 189:5, 192:2 **Stations - 76:19**, 76:22, 76:24, 77:4 Statistics - 77:6, 77:8, 77:13, 83:23 **Stats -** 79:17. 79:24, 81:23 **Status -** 85:4, 86:17, 88:4 **Stay -** 201:10 Stephenville - 59:6 , 59:11, 59:18, 59:22, 60:1, 61:16, 63:11, 63:12, 63:18, 64:12 Steve - 239:1 **Storage -** 32:10, 32:24, 33:4, 33:6, 33:12, 33:20, 33:24, 36:12, 38:3, 38:17, 189:19 **Store -** 11:8, 11:9, 11:25, 189:15, 189:17 **Storm -** 75:12 **Story -** 176:6 Straight - 89:17 **Strategic - 235:20 Strong -** 153:5 **Structure -** 206:14 **Struggle -** 153:14 **Studies - 207:6**, 207:10, 241:10, 242:5

**Sub -** 134:15 Submitted - 47:5, 48:2, 69:1 Subset - 136:24, 137:3, 138:19 Subsidiary - 202:5, 206:15 Successes - 77:10 Successful - 105:5 Sufficient - 136:10 Suggested - 100:1 9, 164:4, 164:7, 165:9, 229:1 Suggestion - 108:1 4, 159:18, 232:22 Suggests - 143:25, 153:1 **Sum -** 5:2 **Summary - 171:11 Summer - 129:6** Sunnyside - 178:1 6, 178:25, 183:25 **Super -** 107:12 Superior - 212:5 Supplemental - 52: 13, 181:7, 181:9 **Supplied -** 29:19 **Supplies - 102:17 Supply -** 3:6, 4:2, 4:22, 8:13, 14:7, 18:18, 28:10, 30:1, 31:23, 32:3, 67:12, 72:19, 89:3, 97:1, 128:1, 131:17, 153:24, 161:18, 164:8, 246:15 **Supplying -** 104:9 **Support -** 101:24, 233:20 **Supports - 152:21 Supposed -** 180:17 Surge - 48:11 **Surprise -** 48:13 Surprised - 110:2 **Survival - 208:14 Suspect - 94:3 Suspend -** 214:18 Suspension - 173: 14 Switch - 84:24, 142:3, 235:12, 243:12, 243:22 **Switched -** 243:9, 243:10 **Switches -** 63:21 **Switching -** 241:22 Sync - 58:20 Synchronous - 58: 17, 64:22 Systems - 196:12, 220:18

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Т
<b>T096 -</b> 113:1
<b>T20267 -</b> 91:4
159·11 172·16
Table - 3:5, 4:12, 159:11, 172:16, 172:19, 185:25 Taking - 152:22,
Taking - 152:22,
183:24, 191:11,
196:20
Tank - 48:11
<b>Tap -</b> 228:19 <b>Target -</b> 77:20,
172:5, 177:6,
186:10, 186:12.
186:14, 190:3
186:10, 186:12, 186:14, 190:3 <b>Targets</b> - 77:9,
77:14, 172:4 <b>Tariff -</b> 24:3, 24:8,
<b>Tariff -</b> 24:3, 24:8,
24:17, 24:21, 25:12, 26:3, 211:5,
211:13, 212:3,
212:19, 212:20,
215:21, 216:16,
217:3, 217:15
<b>Tariffs -</b> 212:13
<b>Tea -</b> 104:5
<b>Team -</b> 108:21, 187:12, 188:1,
208:12
<b>Teams -</b> 187:19
Technical - 53:6,
234:8
Technically - 15:12 Technology - 48:1
6
Template - 188:22
Temporary - 221:2
4
Ten - 110:21,
144:14, 145:11, 146:16, 172:1,
172:5, 175:8,
177:2, 177:5,
182:18, 186:2,
186:3, 186:8,
190:4, 220:15,
228:7, 228:12,
229:3 <b>Tender -</b> 81:22,
189:20
<b>Term -</b> 13:18,
40:22, 40:23, 41:1,
41:17, 52:7, 53:13, 54:9, 54:14, 55:4,
54:9, 54:14, 55:4, 62:1, 88:6, 93:19,
94:1, 142:16,
160:6, 162:16,
203:18, 204:25,
205:2, 207:8,
207:9, 207:10,

221:19, 221:25,

	_
000:40 044:05	
233:19, 244:25	
Terminal - 77:4,	
178:13, 178:15,	
189:5	
Test - 1:22, 2:1,	
3:2, 3:9, 18:3, 18:5,	
22:3, 25:2, 79:7,	
81:9, 90:6, 165:24,	
166:6, 167:5,	
241:11	
Testimony - 21:2,	
150:19, 150:20, 196:25, 233:5	
196:25, 233:5	
Testing - 10:22,	
10:25, 103:7,	
128:15	
<b>TGS</b> - 196:9	
Thanks - 2:3,	
12:21, 162:7	
That'll - 25:20	
Theoretically - 208	
:5	
<b>Theory -</b> 43:18,	
134:3	
<b>Therefore -</b> 5:17, 9:24, 91:15, 103:25	
9:24, 91:15, 103:25	
There'll - 49:17	
Thermal - 37:5,	
39:12, 55:12, 78:10	
These - 3:6, 3:8,	
3:11, 16:19, 23:25,	
24:24, 42:6, 51:3,	
51:10, 62:2, 62:16,	
71:10, 71:11, 76:3,	
87:6, 88:4, 91:12,	
121:22, 134:7,	
184:9, 189:11,	
190:2, 195:16,	
196:13, 197:3,	
213:6, 238:13 <b>They'd -</b> 12:5,	
204:16, 206:3, 214:10	
<b>They'll -</b> 197:19,	
206:6, 236:19 Thoy're 1:10	
They're - 1:19,	
13:13, 23:14, 24:2,	
29:15, 50:22, 75:24, 95:3, 98:2,	
13.24, 33.3, 30.2, 133·12 138·7	
133.12, 130.7, 1/18·11 153·2	
133:12, 138:7, 148:11, 153:2, 153:11, 187:5, 198:14, 207:23,	
198.14 207.3	
207:24, 224:11,	
232:23, 236:22,	
236:23	
<b>They've -</b> 48:18,	
126:13, 165:8,	
196:10, 196:11,	
209:15, 222:14,	
209.13, 222.14,	

228:6

<b>T</b> I. 1 05 40	
Third - 25:13,	
139:11, 178:21,	
183:21, 198:11,	
103.21, 190.11,	
227:24, 229:8	
<b>Thirty -</b> 145:7,	
1.111 ty = 170.7,	
145:15, 229:4	
Three - 36:23,	
39:17, 56:17,	
56:19, 56:21, 57:4,	
58:7, 96:23, 97:8,	
149:2, 178:10,	
179:18 180:14	
179:18, 180:14, 180:16, 185:2,	١.
180.16, 185.2,	
194:6, 212:9 <b>Threshold -</b> 35:8	'
Threshold - 35.8	
Till estible - 55.0	
inursday - 100:11	
<b>Tidy -</b> 119:8	
<b>Tighter -</b> 50:20	
lighter - 50:20	
<b>Tilt -</b> 159:4	
<b>Time -</b> 25:16,	
36:22, 37:14,	
37:16, 38:4, 40:16,	١.
11.0 11.16 16.10	
41:8, 44:16, 46:12,	
49:18, 64:9, 92:24,	
94:2, 107:13,	
34.2, 107.13,	
107:20, 108:23,	
108:24, 111:16,	
113:24, 114:4,	
113.24, 114.4,	
123:20, 124:19,	
124:25, 125:19,	
	١,
126:4, 126:5,	
126:7, 126:23,	
144:2, 150:12,	
144.2, 150.12,	١.
150:19, 151:19,	ļ '
156:10, 181:1,	
100.10, 101.1,	
185:20, 187:25,	
203:3, 203:8,	
204:19, 207:23,	
204.19, 207.23,	
212:9, 216:20,	
220:18, 224:3,	
	١.
238:15, 239:5,	
245:11, 245:12	ļ '
Timeframes - 141:	
25	
Timeline - 13:8,	
18:2, 117:11	
Times - 71:22,	
76:21, 89:25,	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24,	
76:21, 89:25,	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4,	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18,	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6,	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6,	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 <b>Timing -</b> 7:6	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 Timing - 7:6 TL - 167:7, 167:11	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 Timing - 7:6 TL - 167:7, 167:11 TL202 - 179:7	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 <b>Timing -</b> 7:6 <b>TL -</b> 167:7, 167:11 <b>TL202 -</b> 179:7 <b>TL206 -</b> 179:7	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 <b>Timing -</b> 7:6 <b>TL -</b> 167:7, 167:11 <b>TL202 -</b> 179:7 <b>TL206 -</b> 179:7	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 Timing - 7:6 TL - 167:7, 167:11 TL202 - 179:7 TL206 - 179:7 TL214 - 75:12	
76:21, 89:25, 90:21, 90:24, 123:11, 124:4, 134:5, 149:18, 219:7, 237:6, 240:3, 240:7 <b>Timing -</b> 7:6 <b>TL -</b> 167:7, 167:11 <b>TL202 -</b> 179:7 <b>TL206 -</b> 179:7	

```
116:18, 120:6,
128:20, 129:11,
130:8, 130:18,
130:22, 131:23,
154:7, 154:19,
169:8, 174:16,
177:8, 178:21,
182:11, 185:15,
191:12
Today - 10:19,
15:17, 95:4
Tomorrow - 249:15
Tone - 79:20
Took - 103:17,
238:3
Tools - 71:10,
71:11, 126:12,
126:14, 126:21,
127:10
Top - 43:1, 43:5,
136:18
Topic - 31:18,
167:17, 248:24
Torpedoes - 151:2
Total - 18:17,
18:22, 103:8,
103:10, 118:5,
118:7, 176:17
Touch - 165:22
Touched - 128:19,
128:21
Tough - 101:18
Toward - 39:2,
39:11, 39:22
Towards - 25:15,
80:19
Track - 103:19,
108:7, 147:10,
149:17, 163:25
Tracked - 81:24
Tracking - 57:12,
57:14, 78:13,
103:24, 107:7,
108:6, 146:24,
181:3, 193:1
Traditionally - 33:1
Transaction - 214:
19, 224:23
Transactions - 212
Transcript - 147:24
, 238:19, 238:21,
244:17
Transformer - 63:2
0, 64:13, 64:18
Transgrid - 196:9
Translates - 156:1
Travel - 187:16
```

_	INE TIYOTO ZOTT OTO
	Treat - 105:21,
	112:16, 204:16
	Treated - 208:1,
	208:20, 209:15
	Treatment - 208:19
	Trand 41:0 70:0
	<b>Frend -</b> 41.9, 79.2,
	<b>Trend -</b> 41:9, 79:2, 80:18, 80:24, 81:7
	Trending - 39:2,
	39:8, 39:10, 42:11,
	79:3, 80:19, 81:1,
	81:3
	<b>Trends -</b> 80:8
	Trigger - 92:1,
	95:9, 102:16,
	126:25, 131:19
	Triggered - 91:21
	Triggers - 91:3,
	01.4 04.5 04.40
	91:4, 91:5, 91:12,
	94:14, 148:2
	94:14, 148:2 <b>Trip -</b> 73:6, 75:11,
	111 <b>p -</b> /3.0, /5.11,
	145:5
	TTO 100:21
	<b>TTO -</b> 108:21
	<b>Turbine -</b> 59:7,
	62:23, 64:3, 72:5,
	89:22, 91:3, 91:13,
	93:1, 93:17, 94:5,
	94:15, 105:18,
	106:18, 124:15,
	125:1, 125:5,
	126:17, 127:24,
	120.17, 127.24,
	128:7, 129:19,
	130:23, 131:19,
	100.20, 101.10,
	131:22, 131:25, 144:21, 145:13,
	144:21. 145:13.
	160:21, 165:23,
	166:4
	<b>Turbines -</b> 62:17,
	101011103 - 02.17,
	67:10, 71:15, 72:2,
	72:22, 92:20, 94:5,
	105:17, 106:3,
	106:14, 130:14
	Turn 0.04 70.05
	<b>Turn -</b> 2:24, 78:25,
	139:24, 194:9,
	239:7
	Turning - 218:19
	<b>TV -</b> 243:11, 243:12
	Twenty - 222:19,
	229:3
	Twice - 217:5,
	217:19, 217:21,
	218:9
	<b>Two -</b> 4:20, 4:21,
	5.2 24.12 24.5
	5:2, 24:13, 34:5,
	44:16, 44:18, 48:8,
	52:21, 59:1, 62:17,
	JZ.Z I, JJ. I, UZ. II,
	63:14, 64:23,
	71:21, 86:7, 112:21,
	139:19, 140:10,
	142:1, 161:16,
	475.0 470.40
	175:9, 178:18,
	178:23, 179:8,
	· - · - · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·

**TL267 -** 87:16,

181:19, 182:1, 182:16, 183:16, 183:25, 186:6, 187:21, 194:4, 194:7 **Types -** 2:25, 23:25, 55:19, 72:9, 72:11, 127:9, 190:16

179:14, 179:15,

U **Ultimate - 152:14**, 158:17, 162:24, 198:5, 230:23 **Unanticipated - 13** 6:14 **Unavailability - 93**: 4, 93:12 **Unaware - 153:2** Unbundled - 210:2 **Uncertainties - 117** :22, 136:12, 137:16, 138:3, 138:13, 138:24, 139:15, 139:17 **Uncertainty - 148:** 17 **Underground -** 76: 13 Underlined - 137:8 Understood - 28:1 8, 47:8, 47:12, 47:14, 47:19, 74:22, 84:10, 85:1, 92:11, 95:16, 98:4, 99:17, 109:11, 117:15, 117:20, 118:2, 120:18, 133:20, 135:23, 137:13, 139:21, 147:8, 195:21, 196:24 Undertake - 2:14, 48:4, 67:9, 147:12, 152:6, 152:10, 222:19, 226:1 Undertaking - 27:2 1, 109:21, 162:1, 163:6, 192:21, 193:20 Underway - 120:1 Unexpected - 143: **Unfairly - 209:15 Unfortunately - 11** 4:24

Unintelligible - 54:

Unit - 42:23, 47:15,

23, 93:23

239:9

**Updates - 26:8,** 

47:18, 55:13, 55:20, 56:13, 56:17, 58:8, 58:20, 58:22, 60:5, 60:20, 63:12, 68:7, 68:12, 102:14, 102:23, 113:25, 115:4, 115:18, 115:19, 116:6, 117:8, 124:18, 125:16, 125:21, 136:4, 137:6, 138:12, 139:13, 140:14, 141:5, 142:15, 142:25, 145:5, 236:7 United - 211:23, 212:8 **Units -** 7:4, 44:8, 44:14, 44:16, 44:18, 47:22, 47:25, 50:21, 55:23, 56:15, 58:3, 58:7, 58:11, 62:2, 64:6, 64:23, 65:7, 65:21, 93:13, 93:24, 93:25, 94:10, 102:4, 102:6, 129:23, 130:20, 131:13, 136:12, 138:3, 138:24, 140:10, 142:2, 142:20, 146:6, 146:8, 146:10, 147:19, 148:6, 235:2 **Unless -** 57:24. 87:16, 105:15, 113:22, 201:16 **Unlimited - 249:26** Unplanned - 44:25, 54:14, 54:16, 75:7, 75:10, 77:16, 77:17, 77:23, 103:6 Unreasonable - 19 7:15, 198:3, 198:12, 200:4, 200:5 **Upcoming - 77:19**, 78:19, 84:22, 241:12 **Update - 23:8**, 48:1, 49:17, 119:13, 195:3, 239:18, 240:4 **Updated - 23:11**, 25:16, 25:21, 25:25, 74:10, 94:8, 166:20, 238:13,

86:17, 239:16, 240:20 Updating - 23:4, 195:9 **Ups -** 86:16 **Upstate - 209:24**, 210:2 Upstream - 46:3 **Upward - 81:1 Upwards - 80:24**, 81:1 **URB -** 216:24 **Urban -** 76:11, 77:2 **Usage - 93:17**, 94:4, 95:19, 95:20, 97:4, 127:24, 129:19, 130:23, 131:19, 131:22, 131:25, 154:22 **Used -** 11:9, 50:1, 83:6, 84:20, 86:1, 93:20, 94:2, 94:6, 95:22, 96:2, 105:18, 106:10, 197:4, 209:11, 209:13 **User -** 82:23 **Uses - 83:5** Using - 8:14, 15:4, 15:10, 15:12, 25:3, 59:16, 92:6, 94:8, 107:8, 121:19, 199:14, 227:13, 233:12 **Utilities - 116:4**, 147:10 **Utility - 111:1**, 113:12, 155:25

## V

Value - 246:14, 247:11, 247:13, 247:20 **Variable - 136:13 Variance - 89:3.** 97:1, 168:20, 169:2, 170:5, 172:5, 172:20, 172:25, 173:1, 173:4, 173:7, 173:8, 173:10, 173:13, 173:20, 174:4, 174:14, 175:5, 175:7, 176:13, 176:14, 176:25, 178:9, 178:10, 179:16, 180:11, 181:3, 182:12, 184:24, 185:19

171:20, 178:10 **Vary -** 123:14 Venture - 111:23, 112:11 **Venue -** 203:4 Versus - 11:5, 32:15, 41:23, 52:20, 65:11, 77:23, 83:5, 95:21, 102:22, 113:6, 135:6, 138:4, 158:8, 159:4, 194:7 Vet - 195:16 **Veto -** 234:12 View - 41:17, 102:11, 112:18, 152:14, 179:5, 184:3, 187:8, 236:11 Violate - 124:8, 125:17, 126:17 Violating - 97:21 **Violation - 236:18 Vision -** 78:11 Visits - 187:12 **Visual -** 71:11, 126:11, 127:10 Voltage - 91:6, 92:21, 94:17, 135:2, 137:11 Volume - 19:9 **Volumes -** 155:18 **VP -** 97:12 **Vps -** 85:24 W

146:14, 249:15 Wants - 205:18, 218:3 Warmer - 129:11 Warranted - 199:1 Wasn't - 46:5. 47:18, 83:19, 107:12, 113:8, 116:5, 154:24, 155:2, 155:9, 167:10, 175:7, 246:22 **Wasting - 239:5** Watching - 149:4, 219:7 Water - 11:10 Ways - 127:5, 160:20 Weather - 80:12 **Weave -** 235:6 **We'd -** 26:7, 40:9,

40:16, 63:20,

Wait - 51:5, 125:14,

145:12, 145:18,

Week - 3:16, 4:1, 40:10, 40:11, 42:7, 42:12, 42:22, 42:24, 100:14, 109:12, 160:1, 166:22 Weekend - 145:17 Weekly - 38:21, 40:9, 219:4, 219:9, 219:10, 234:24 Weeks - 41:2, 41:20, 108:21, 120:2 Weeks' - 41:8 Weld - 48:5 Welding - 49:20, 181:20 Welds - 44:22, 46:12, 46:18, 46:21, 48:7, 48:9, 48:14, 48:20, 49:4, 50:16 **We'll -** 7:3, 18:24, 23:16, 28:3, 28:5, 29:6, 31:25, 36:1, 51:5, 52:4, 64:9, 64:14, 65:1, 67:5, 67:6, 69:2, 108:22, 110:20, 120:2, 126:23, 152:13, 164:10, 165:19, 179:6, 190:17, 194:23, 198:15, 200:1, 247:17, 247:22, 249:21 Weren't - 105:4, 122:8, 174:1, 189:12, 196:6 West - 172:17, 173:9, 173:13, 173:19, 176:14, 176:23, 185:4 Western - 178:17, 183:23 Wet - 40:18 We've - 9:21, 37:25, 38:1, 47:21, 48:24, 49:2, 50:5, 60:5, 60:20, 60:21, 62:25, 66:19, 72:4, 79:22, 86:2, 106:13, 106:18, 107:22, 107:24, 135:12, 142:24, 156:1, 160:8, 164:4, 164:7, 178:20, 181:2, 185:24, 187:9, 190:1, 192:3,

66:25, 219:4,

222:16, 226:9

**Variances - 171:19** 

July 17, 2018 232:8, 237:5, 246:18, 247:2 What's - 5:4, 20:8, 38:8, 52:4, 58:9, 60:3, 60:17, 63:15, 64:21, 65:25, 66:5, 71:9, 90:16, 119:21, 132:2, 163:25, 164:19, 177:21, 226:22 Whatsoever - 197: 12, 241:4 Wheels - 218:19 **Whereas -** 8:24 Who'd - 206:16 Whole - 63:6, 67:12, 82:23 Who's - 205:6, 205:23 Wider - 146:7 Williams' - 203:23 WILLILAMS - 14:4 Win - 223:18 Wind - 136:13, 148:6 Wins - 223:17 Winter - 3:24, 10:9, 14:5, 14:8, 56:24, 57:1, 57:22, 70:6, 75:12, 78:15, 78:19, 129:16, 129:18, 129:23, 130:3, 131:16 Winters - 53:20 Witness - 219:2 Witnessed - 92:23, 220:9 Witnessing - 129:1 Won't - 19:15, 24:24, 39:16, 79:3, 120:1, 157:12, 189:18, 196:25, 200:16 Wood - 82:14, 82:16, 243:11 Word - 134:20, 134:21, 137:8, 174:2, 230:21, 234:9 Wording - 214:1 Words - 8:14, 101:5, 138:2, 153:5, 197:4, 213:8, 248:14

Work - 9:17, 13:6.

25:12, 33:22,

57:25, 60:21,

77:18, 81:21,

84:22, 89:18,

121:23, 126:24,

173:15, 174:1, 178:12, 178:19, 178:24, 179:6, 179:10, 181:5, 181:6, 181:10, 183:17, 183:23, 184:7, 184:10, 187:6, 189:1, 189:3, 189:7, 192:1, 199:9, 209:23, 213:22, 222:8, 222:20, 223:16, 224:25, 227:18, 233:6, 233:13, 233:21, 234:6 Worked - 145:3, 209:24 Working - 13:2, 149:19, 157:10, 183:21, 184:6, 222:6, 223:14, 226:14, 233:2, 247:17 Works - 2:11, 35:21, 103:25, 147:20, 218:21, 220:5, 234:24 Worse - 77:1, 79:17, 80:12, 81:20, 111:15, 204:18 Worst - 78:1 Wouldn't - 15:9. 43:18, 92:9, 93:6, 97:22, 120:12, 144:7, 195:22, 217:4, 222:22, 222:25, 235:21 **Wrapping - 41:10** Writing - 143:9 Written - 120:22 Υ Yearly - 34:4, 95:20

Years - 3:2, 4:20, 4:25, 5:2, 18:5, 21:13, 22:3, 24:13, 34:5, 63:1, 79:7, 81:9, 85:4, 89:14, 89:24, 90:18, 90:20, 93:6, 93:20, 96:23, 97:8, 106:1, 106:9, 106:17, 141:1, 157:17, 157:18, 161:4, 165:24, 187:21, 188:9, 190:10, 210:23, 222:14, 222:18, 228:7, 228:12, 229:4,

248:19 Yesterday - 1:10, 2:13, 3:22, 48:5, 71:8, 165:23, 166:2, 184:5, 187:16, 218:24, 248:23 York - 209:25, 210:2 You'd - 38:6, 40:11, 63:4, 63:5, 64:12, 89:4, 96:20, 102:7, 142:16, 145:17, 151:24, 158:2, 171:25, 172:1, 177:2, 209:7, 209:8, 226:25, 242:19 You'll - 41:21, 51:12, 149:13, 157:14, 195:16 **Young -** 3:20, 104:4, 133:9, 193:19, 193:23, 238:25 **You're -** 13:14, 15:16, 17:13, 18:7, 22:23, 32:13, 32:14, 32:16, 67:15, 67:17, 69:24, 71:5, 82:7, 82:10, 101:23, 103:5, 110:8, 116:11, 120:23, 125:10, 125:12, 135:15, 137:4, 155:24, 158:9, 170:11, 206:20, 208:17, 213:23, 213:25, 220:25, 226:24, 234:21, 235:18, 238:8, 239:2, 240:23, 243:2, 244:11, 244:12 You've - 11:4, 26:14, 59:5, 63:14, 67:19, 118:12, 128:9, 131:16, 164:24, 219:21, 227:15

## Ζ

**Zero -** 12:6 **Zone -** 47:12, 47:17, 47:24, 50:17, 51:15, 53:4, 53:8

'13 - 82:8, 171:21 '14 - 82:8, 171:21 '15 - 171:21, 172:10, 190:10 **'16 -** 171:21, 172:10, 174:22, 175:3, 175:14, 186:3, 190:10 **'17 -** 81:5, 148:22, 172:11, 175:3, 178:8, 182:23, 190:10 **'18 -** 182:23 **'19 -** 25:2 **'59 -** 36:16 **'61 -** 36:16 **'62 -** 36:16 \$ **\$2.00 -** 157:15 0 **046 -** 139:24 1 **1.64 -** 44:25, 45:3 **1:00 -** 230:18

**1:15 -** 241:8

**10 -** 18:22, 36:2,

74:8. 76:19. 76:20. 76:21, 113:15, 113:20, 114:8, 117:13, 126:8, 130:13 **10:00 -** 70:2 **10:15 -** 85:7 **10:30 -** 101:2 **10:45 -** 119:2 **10:48 -** 121:16 **100 -** 5:17, 5:18, 5:22, 7:4, 17:18, 17:23, 21:4, 24:12, 24:16, 113:21, 114:9, 115:4, 123:21 **106 -** 169:14, 169:15, 170:4, 171:8 **11 -** 140:8, 167:25 **11:00 -** 133:1 **11:33 -** 133:2 **110 -** 4:8, 4:10, 5:18, 5:22, 9:1, 9:3 **116 -** 58:8 **12 -** 179:16, 180:11

**12:00 -** 161:24

**12:30 -** 199:23

**12:15 -** 180:8

**12:45 -** 213:20 **122 -** 237:7 **128 -** 176:15 **13 -** 182:12 **1400 -** 182:1 **15 -** 57:8, 57:12, 72:4, 94:9, 132:6, 132:8, 161:9, 161:15, 167:25 **15.9 -** 174:4 **1500 -** 52:20 **154 -** 140:11 **162 -** 173:13 **163 -** 172:19, 173:21 **167 -** 168:3 **17 -** 180:4, 185:25 **170 -** 116:20, 117:5, 117:25, 118:2, 125:10, 126:17, 133:21, 135:11, 135:16, 136:18, 137:15, 137:18, 138:2, 138:20, 139:13, 140:9, 142:6, 142:9, 148:4, 148:10 **18 -** 161:11, 161:13, 172:16 **183 -** 218:12 **184 -** 221:12 **188 -** 191:22 **19 -** 174:20, 244:20 **1903 -** 32:14 1st - 35:5, 58:5, 148:22

### 2

**2,000 -** 181:25

**2.29 -** 44:24, 45:5, 45:7, 54:9, 54:12, 55:1 **2.6 -** 54:11, 55:9, 94:10 **20 -** 57:16, 106:3, 126:8, 157:18, 243:18, 244:11 **200 -** 4:23 **2000s -** 210:21, 221:17 **2011 -** 77:24, 186:1 2012 - 77:24, 80:22, 82:8 **2013 -** 78:22 **2014 -** 44:2, 78:2, 78:22, 81:2, 92:15, 173:13 **2015 -** 92:21, 96:24, 97:8, 98:8, 107:4, 111:12, 111:13, 114:12,

116:18, 118:13, 153:22, 168:25, 169:2, 173:4, 173:7, 175:14, 184:18, 186:3, 222:11 **2016 -** 45:21, 46:19, 47:2, 74:12, 74:22, 80:4, 96:24, 97:8, 98:9, 168:25, 169:2, 174:10, 174:14, 174:16, 176:6, 176:18, 177:3, 184:18 **2017 -** 30:20, 44:23, 46:15, 57:7, 74:10, 74:11, 74:24, 75:13, 80:3, 80:12, 81:2, 96:24, 97:9, 98:11, 166:6, 168:1, 169:3, 169:5, 170:9, 175:16, 175:18, 177:8, 177:18, 178:4, 185:17 **2018 -** 1:24, 4:16, 4:21, 5:4, 5:7, 6:14, 8:11, 15:2, 19:13, 20:6, 20:24, 21:11, 25:2, 26:16, 31:22, 32:14, 68:17, 69:2, 69:4, 126:11, 127:10, 128:2, 130:17, 131:12, 132:4, 166:7, 166:8, 167:4, 175:12, 177:9, 177:14, 194:11 2018/2019 - 3:9, 18:3 **2019 -** 1:24, 4:21, 6:2, 16:7, 16:11, 23:9, 26:16, 65:25, 69:5, 166:7, 166:18, 166:23, 167:4, 195:1, 195:9, 241:11 **202 -** 178:23. 179:25 **2021 -** 64:16, 65:21, 237:10 **2026 -** 64:18 **206 -** 178:23, 179:25 **21 -** 32:15, 32:20 **214 -** 8:21 **22.89 -** 237:7, 241:13 **225 -** 8:19 22nd - 3:4, 150:22, 150:24

**230 -** 191:24 **230kV -** 191:25 **23rd -** 239:1, 239:4 **240 -** 118:5, 118:7, 120:13, 120:24, 121:12, 137:14, 137:17, 137:23, 138:1 24th - 75:6, 238:19, 238:23, 244:17 **25 -** 60:3, 60:5, 113:17, 113:20, 243:19, 249:25 **26 -** 10:18, 10:21, 46:20 **2600 -** 191:23 **267 -** 87:23, 167:7, 167:11, 179:4, 179:18, 184:9, 185:8, 193:11 **27 -** 19:13 **270 -** 125:9 **28 -** 178:9

#### 3

**29 -** 46:20, 178:9

**294 -** 192:25

**3.000 -** 52:21 **3.32 -** 139:9 **3.42 -** 167:24, 167:25 **3.6 -** 139:7 **30 -** 114:2, 117:9, 166:23, 242:20, 244:13 **300 -** 34:14, 37:12, 37:16 **306 -** 144:7 **30th -** 75:9 31st - 170:9 **32 -** 172:25, 173:10 **34 -** 75:11 **35 -** 120:19, 133:23, 134:11, 134:24, 135:18, 166:1 **3500 -** 52:21

## 4

**370 -** 168:2

**38 -** 75:8, 133:13,

175:25, 177:22,

178:10, 182:22

**388 -** 3:12, 6:14,

8:8, 8:10, 14:13

**3's -** 49:19

**40 -** 125:5 **41 -** 169:2, 172:21, 173:1, 173:10, 176:7

**41.1** - 166:7, 167:5 **437-5028 -** 249:26 **46 -** 166:11, 166:13

#### 5

**5.5 -** 182:3 **50 -** 21:17, 104:7, 114:1, 243:2 **500 -** 14:18, 92:11 **50s -** 166:16 **51.3 -** 195:7 **52 -** 169:16, 169:18, 170:4, 171:6, 171:9 **52.9 -** 194:25 **54 -** 221:12 **56 -** 166:6 **59 -** 96:25, 169:1, 173:19, 173:20

#### 6

**60 -** 21:17, 48:7, 48:19 **65 -** 181:4 **67 -** 32:23 **6th -** 178:4

## 7

70 - 115:21, 115:22, 116:21, 117:1, 117:7, 117:21, 118:2, 118:7, 128:2, 128:9, 132:13, 136:17, 137:15, 138:2, 138:4, 138:19, 139:14, 140:15, 141:1, 141:23, 142:9, 142:11, 161:15 **709 -** 249:26 **70s -** 138:7 **75 -** 113:18 **76 -** 133:14

### 8

**8.3 -** 20:6 **80 -** 125:8 **82 -** 135:22

#### 9

**9.64 -** 93:24 **9:00 -** 1:1, 85:19, 249:21 **9:15 -** 14:9 190:11, 231:19,

232:3, 232:20 **93 -** 15:2

**94 -** 238:19, 244:18 **96 -** 238:20, 244:18

9:30 - 29:24 9:45 - 49:7 **90 -** 5:8, 5:10, 125:7, 125:12,